
AGENDA –ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, JANUARY 26, 2023 - PAGE 1 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA - ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST 

     (Revised)

THURSDAY, JANUARY 26, 2023 - 10:00 A.M. 

MEETING WILL BE HELD IN-PERSON ONLY 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION NORTH – MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM – 1ST FLOOR 
400 W. CIVIC CENTER DRIVE 

SANTA ANA, CA 92701 

 STEPHEN FAESSEL 
        Chairman SHARI FREIDENRICH 

Vice Chair  
DON BARNES 
Director 

NATALIE MOSER 
Director 

JAMEY FEDERICO 
Director 

DOUG CHAFFEE 
Director  

JESSIE LOPEZ 
Director 

CYNTHIA VASQUEZ 
Director 

(TBD) 
Director 

Trust Manager     Trust Counsel Clerk of the Trust 
Adam Eliason    Lauren Kramer Valerie Sanchez 

Except as otherwise provided by law, no action shall be taken on any item not appearing in the agenda.  When addressing the Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust, please state your name for the record prior to providing your comments. In compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this meeting should notify the Clerk of the Board's 
Office 72 hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-2206. 

Except as otherwise provided by law, no action shall be taken on any item not appearing in the agenda.  When addressing the Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust, please state your name for the record prior to providing your comments. 

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  The Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
encourages public participation.  Members of the public may address the Trust regarding any item in the following ways:  

1. In-person:  If you wish to speak during public comment, please complete a Speaker Request Form and deposit it in the
Speaker Form Return box located next to the Clerk.  Speaker Forms are located on the table next to the entrance doors.

2. Written Comment – The Trust is also accepting public comments to be submitted by emailing them to aeliason@ochft.org.
The comments will be distributed to all of the Directors and read into the record. If you wish to comment on a specific
agenda item, please identify the item in your email. General public comments will be addressed during the general public
comment item on the agenda. In order to ensure that staff has the ability to provide comments to the Directors in a timely
manner, please submit your comments prior to noon the day before the meeting. Public comments will be made available to
the public upon request.

mailto:aeliason@ochft.org


 
 

AGENDA –ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, JANUARY 26, 2023 - PAGE 2 

All supporting documentation is available for public review online at:  
www.OCHFT.org and in the office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors located in the  

County Administration North building, 400 W. Civic Center Drive, 6th Floor,  
Santa Ana, California 92701 during regular business hours,  

8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS (Item 1): 
 

1. Approve Orange County Housing Finance Trust minutes from the November 16, 2022 meeting 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS (Items 2-6): 
At this time, members of the public in attendance may ask the Board to be heard, and emails received by members 
of the public will be read into the record on the following items as those items are called. 
 

2. Receive and file Federal and State funding advocacy update from Townsend Public Affairs 
3. Receive and file the 2022 County of Orange Housing Funding Strategy Update 
4. Authorize the Trust Manager to apply for grant funding to create a new Trust Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Loan Program. 
5. Authorize Trust Manager to issue Request for Proposal for mapping services. 
6. Approve 2023 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA); and authorize issuance of NOFA on January 26, 

2023. 
 

HOUSING TRUST MANAGER REPORT (Item 7): 
 

7. Oral Report from the Housing Trust Manager 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
At this time members of the public may address the Trust, and emails received by deadline will be read into record on any 
matter not on the agenda but within the jurisdiction of the Trust.  The Trust or Chair may limit the length of time each 
individual may have to address the Trust, and emails received are to be read.  
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS: 
 
ADJOURNED: 
 
NEXT MEETING:  March 15, 2023 – 10:00am 



 
Agenda Item 1 

Minutes – November 16, 2022 
  



 

MINUTES –ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 - PAGE 1 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST 

 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022, 10:00 A.M. 

 
 
 

STEPHEN FAESSEL 
Chairman 

 
 

SHARI FREIDENRICH 
Vice Chair 

DON BARNES 
Director 
 

LISA A. BARTLETT 
Director  

JAMEY FEDERICO  
Director 
 

DOUG CHAFFEE 
Director  

FRED JUNG 
Director 
 

DAVID PENALOZA 
Director 
 

ED SACHS 
Director  

 
Trust Manger Trust Counsel Clerk of the Trust 
Adam Eliason Lauren Kramer Valerie Sanchez 

 

 

 
ATTENDANCE: Directors Barnes, Chaffee, Federico, Jung, Penaloza and Faessel  

   (All Members participated via Zoom) 
 
 
  ABSENT:            Directors Bartlett, Sachs and Freidenrich        
 
PRESENT: Trust Counsel  Lauren Kramer 
 Clerk of the Trust  Valerie Sanchez 
 Trust Manager  Adam Eliason  

  
CALL TO ORDER 

The Chairman called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Director Penaloza led the pledge of allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL 

The Clerk called the roll and confirmed quorum  
 



 

MINUTES –ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 - PAGE 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item 1) 
 

1. Approve Orange County Housing Finance Trust minutes from the October 19, 2022 meeting 
ON THE MOTION OF DIRECTOR JUNG, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR CHAFFEE, BY A VOTE 
OF 6 TO 0, WITH DIRECTORS BARTLETT, SACHS AND VICE CHAIR FREIDENRICH 
BEING ABSENT,  THE BOARD APPROVED THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 28, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS (Items 2-5): 
 

2. Provide direction to cancel the December 14, 2022 OCHFT Board Meeting OR adopt resolution finding 
that, due to the proclaimed state of emergency arising from the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) and local 
officials continued recommended measures to promote social distancing, it is necessary for Directors to 
participate in the meetings via teleconferencing 
ON THE MOTION OF DIRECTOR FAESSEL, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR JUNG, BY A VOTE 
OF 6 TO 0, WITH DIRECTORS BARTLETT, SACHS AND VICE CHAIR FREIDENRICH 
BEING ABSENT, THE BOARD APPROVED A MOTION TO CANCEL THE DECEMBER 14, 
2022 BOARD MEETING AND RETURN TO MEETING FULLY IN PERSON STARTING WITH 
THE JANUARY 18, 2023 MEETING 

 
3. Adopt resolution establishing the 2023 Orange County Housing Finance Trust meeting calendar 

ON THE MOTION OF DIRECTOR BARNES, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR JUNG, BY A VOTE 
OF 6 TO 0, WITH DIRECTORS BARTLETT, SACHS AND VICE CHAIR FREIDENRICH 
BEING ABSENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ITEM AS RECOMMENDED 
RESO: 22-015-OCHFT 
 

4.  Approve Second Round 2022 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA); and authorize issuance of NOFA 
on November 21, 2022 
ON THE MOTION OF DIRECTOR JUNG, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR BARNES, BY A VOTE 
OF 6 TO 0, WITH DIRECTORS BARTLETT, SACHS AND VICE CHAIR FREIDENRICH 
BEING ABSENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ITEM AS RECOMMENDED 
 

5. Approve new three-year professional services agreement with CivicHome to provide management and 
administrative services to the Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
ON THE MOTION OF DIRECTOR JUNG, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR FEDERICO, BY A 
VOTE OF 5 TO 0, WITH DIRECTORS BARTLETT, CHAFFEE, SACHS AND VICE CHAIR 
FREIDENRICH BEING ABSENT, THE BOARD APPROVED ITEM AS RECOMMENDED 
 

HOUSING TRUST MANAGER REPORT (Item 6): 
 

6. Oral Report from the Housing Trust Manager 
TRUST MANAGER ADAM ELIASON THANKED THE BOARD FOR THEIR CONFIDENCE IN 
HIS MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ON BEHALF OF THE TRUST; 
SHARED THAT DIRECTOR SACHS SENDS HIS THANKS TO THE BOARD AND THE TRUST 
FOR THE TIME SPENT SERVING AS A DIRECTOR; REPORTED THAT YORBA LINDA IS 
THE 26TH CITY MEMBER OF THE TRUST; ATTENDED VALENCIA GARDENS AND 
WESTVIEW HOUSE GROUNDBREAKING CEREMONIES; MET WITH LOS ANGELES 
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTOR DURING COLLABORATIVE TOUR OF A PROJECT IN ANAHEIM 
 



 

MINUTES –ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 - PAGE 3 

PUBLIC & TRUST COMMENTS:  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 
Steve McNally – Oral re: 80-acres next to Be Well OC campus and the vacant Fairview property provide 
opportunities for supportive housing; Apple and Disney corporations contributed private sector funds towards 
development of affordable housing units; the trust should ask community business partners to contribute; also 
ensure Orange County receives fair share of state funding 
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS:  
 
Director Jung – Oral re: This is last meeting serving on trust, City Selection Committee will make new appointment 
soon; thanked Adam and other Directors 
 
ADJOURNED:  10:49 a.m. 
 
NEXT MEETING:  January 18, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

 
       
STEPHEN FAESSEL 
Chairman, Orange County Housing Finance Trust 

 
       
VALERIE SANCHEZ 
Clerk of the Orange County Housing Finance Trust 



Agenda Item 2 
Federal & State Funding Update 
  



1 | P a g e  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 2 

 

REQUEST FOR ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST (TRUST) BOARD ACTION 

 

MEETING DATE:    January 26, 2023 

 

SUBJECT:  Receive and file Federal and State funding advocacy update from 
Townsend Public Affairs. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

RECEIVE AND FILE FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDING ADVOCACY UPDATE FROM TOWNSEND 
PUBLIC AFFAIRS. 

 

_________________________ 
Adam B. Eliason, Manager 
 

BACKGROUND: 

Attachment A is a memo summarizing funding advocacy efforts from Townsend Public Affairs to 
date. The Trust Board will receive a full update at the meeting and a representative of Townsend 
Public Affairs and will be available to answer any questions from the Board. 

 

ATTACHMENT:  

Attachment A – Memo from Townsend Public Affairs - Advocacy Update 

 



State Capitol Office ▪ 925 L Street • Suite 1404 • Sacramento, CA 95814 • Phone (916) 447-4086 • Fax (916) 444-0383 
Federal Office ▪ 600 Pennsylvania SE • Suite 207 • Washington, DC 20003 • Phone (202) 546-8696 • Fax (202) 546-4555 

Southern California Office ▪ 1401 Dove Street • Suite 330 • Newport Beach, CA 92660 • Phone (949) 399-9050 • Fax (949) 476-8215 
Central California Office ▪ 744 P Street • Suite 308 • Fresno, CA 93721 • Phone (949) 399-9050 • Fax (949) 476-8215 

Northern California Office ▪ 300 Frank Ogawa Plaza • Suite 204 • Oakland, CA 94612 • Phone (510) 835-9050 • Fax (510) 835-9030 

Page 1 of 3 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: Orange County Housing Finance Trust 

From: Townsend Public Affairs 
Christopher Townsend, President 
Cori Takkinen, Vice President 
Eric O’Donnell, Deputy Director 

Date: December 30, 2022 

Subject:  Advocacy Update 

Townsend Public Affairs (TPA) is currently working with the Orange County Housing Finance 
Trust (Housing Trust) staff on executing a state and federal advocacy strategy to secure funding 
in Sacramento and Washington DC. 

TPA is proud that after one year of working with the Housing Trust, TPA has helped secure $3 
million in direct funding for Housing Trusts projects and priorities.  

Below is a summary of those efforts as well as an update on our current advocacy strategy. 

State Legislative Calendar and Update–  

The Legislature will return to Sacramento on January 4, 2023 to kick off the first year of the current 
two-year legislative session. Legislators will be focused on introducing bills before the bill 
introduction deadline on February 17, 2023. Bills must sit for 30 days after they are introduced 
before they can be heard in any committee and be considered for passage.  

Legislators had a chance to start introducing bills shortly after they were sworn into office in 
December 2022. A few bills that were introduced that are of interest to the Housing Trust include: 

• SB 4 (Wiener) requires that a housing development project be a use by right upon the
request of an applicant who submits an application for streamlined approval, on any land
owned by an independent institution of higher education or religious institution on or before
January 1, 2024, if the development satisfies specified criteria. Includes strict affordability
requirements for units.

• SB 20 (Rubio) allows any 2 or more cities to enter into a JPA for the purposes of
establishing a Housing Trust. TPA has already scheduled a meeting with Senator Rubio’s

Item 2.0
Attachment A



Page 2 of 3 

office and Housing Trust staff to discuss SB 20 and identify opportunities to collaborate 
on legislation and standards for future housing trusts statewide. 

State Budget Opportunities – 

In 2022, TPA worked with the Housing Trust to develop a State budget ask for $30 million in 
funding for the Housing Trust, to help facilitate the construction of over 900 affordable and 
permanent supportive units by 2025. TPA worked to secure then-Assemblymember Daly as the 
sponsor of the request and received support from the entire Orange County Delegation. The 
request was not awarded funding in the June budget bill, nor was the request awarded funding in 
the subsequent Budget cleanup legislation despite strong county-wide legislative support. 

TPA is currently working with Trust staff to strategize on our next State ask, targeting the 2023 
legislative session. 

However, it is important to look at potential budget opportunities in 2023 through a different lens 
than 2022. The Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) and legislative leadership have released fiscal 
projections for the State’s 2023-24 upcoming budget cycle that identify a $25 billion budget 
shortfall in the 2023-24 fiscal year due to rising inflation rates and constricted revenue projections, 
as well as anticipated deficits of $17 billion and $8 billion over the next two out years. While just 
a projection at this time, it is likely that the budget uncertainty for 2023-2024 will lead to a slightly 
more vague and disjointed budget process in 2023. 

In the greater context of historical California budgets, this shortfall is manageable. The State will 
enter into the next fiscal year with $23 billion in the Rainy-Day Fund as well as healthy reserve 
accounts, which are accessible to help offset the impact of the deficit. 

TPA will continue to be diligent and aggressive when it comes to a proposed budget ask in 2023. 
Despite less than ideal financial predictions, legislative leadership and budget chairs are open to 
receiving funding requests for consideration during budget development. 

Federal Budget Opportunities – 

TPA coordinated with the Housing Trust to submit a request for $3 million in funding to Senator 
Feinstein, as well as Congressmember Correa and Congressmember Kim. The request was 
submitted through the Transportation, Housing, and Urban Development Appropriations bill to the 
Housing and Urban Development Economic Development Initiative (HUD-EDI) account. 

Congressmember Correa selected the Trust’s $3 million request as one of his top projects, which 
was eventually included in a legislative package that was passed by the House of 
Representatives. 

After continuing resolutions bought Congress additional time to negotiate a full-year 
appropriations funding package, TPA is proud to announce the bi-partisan compromise omnibus 
appropriations package was eventually introduced and passed with the Housing Trust’s $3 million 
included. This direct funding to the Housing Trust will be used to help develop permanent 
supportive housing in the County of Orange. 

Item 2.0
Attachment A



Page 3 of 3 

The President is expected to sign the omnibus appropriations package this week. It is expected 
that the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) will be in touch with the Housing 
Trust in Q2 of 2023 to discuss funding disbursement. 

Additionally, it is expected that the next cycle of congressionally directed spending will open in 
the beginning of 2023. TPA is ready to work with the Housing Trust to submit additional requests 
for funding to our congressional delegation once the application process opens. 

Item 2.0
Attachment A



Agenda Item 3 
County of Orange Housing 
Funding Strategy Update 

  



1 | P a g e  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 3 

 

REQUEST FOR ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST (TRUST) BOARD ACTION 

 

MEETING DATE:    January 26, 2023 

 

SUBJECT:  Receive and file the 2022 County of Orange Housing Funding Strategy 
Update. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

RECEIVE AND FILE THE 2022 COUNTY OF ORANGE HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY UPDATE. 

 

_________________________ 
Adam B. Eliason, Manager 
 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 12, 2018, the Board of Supervisors received and filed the 2018 Housing Funding 
Strategy (2018 Strategy) which identified the goal of developing 2,700 units of supportive 
housing by 2025 and the required financial resources to achieve that goal. The 2018 Strategy 
generated the goal based on the 2017 Point in Time Count (PIT). As the 2019 PIT count was 
conducted only one year into the 2018 Strategy, OC Community Resources (OCCR) made no 
update to the 2018 Strategy at that time. 

In March 2019 the Orange County Housing Finance Trust (Trust) was created to bring additional 
funding into County to help finance the development of additional affordable housing and align 
the Trusts goals with those included in the 2018 Strategy. 

Based on the most recent 2022 PIT count, OCCR worked with their consultant Corporation for 
Supportive Housing, who helped to complete the 2018 Strategy, to provide an update to the 
2018 Strategy. The 2022 Strategy provides a progress report on the regional efforts to produce 
the 2,700 units of supportive housing, a review of the current homeless numbers from the 2022 
PIT count and subpopulations, reviews current market forces and housing needs, and updates 
the financial model based on the updated housing production goal for supportive housing units 
in consideration of current needs. 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

From June 2018 to 2022, a significant regional effort has been made to leverage funding and 
develop supportive housing across Orange County. Current projections indicate that at the end 
of seven years (2025) there will be 1,643 supportive housing units produced towards the 2,700-
unit goal. This includes the current supportive housing units in the pipeline totaling 1,232 units 
which are currently at various stages of completion, under construction and/or in the process 
of obtaining financing. It is also important to note that within the developments in the pipeline 
there are an additional 1,046 of general affordable housing units. Projecting out through 2025, 
there is currently a gap of 1,057 supportive housing units still needed to achieve the goal of 
2,700 units.  

Although capital funding for supportive housing development has increased, so have the costs 
of housing construction. The impacts of the COVID-19 global pandemic have resulted in 
significant increases to construction costs due to supply chain issues and related delays, staffing 
shortages and inflation. This unanticipated significant increase in costs has greatly impacted the 
supportive housing pipeline and limited unit production. It is anticipated that the costs of 
production will continue to increase due to market forces for at least the next couple of years 
resulting in the need for additional investments that exceed prior projections. 

The 2022 Strategy identifies an updated goal of producing 2,396 new units of supportive 
housing by 2029 to meet the current needs based on the 2022 PIT. Current projections estimate 
a funding gap of $458 million in capital and $495 million in operating subsidies for 2,396 units. 
The 2022 Strategy also includes information on how these units are a subset of the region's 
Regional Housing Needs Assessment unit numbers that are being incorporated into Cities and 
County Housing Elements. The 2022 Strategy does acknowledge that achieving the 
aforementioned updated goal is not without its challenges; however, the 2022 Strategy 
continues to highlight existing opportunities to help mitigate the challenges. 

The 2022 Strategy includes Recommendations and Next Steps that will help guide the Orange 
County region to continue to maximize supportive housing production, including: 

• Maximize competitiveness for capital and operating funding by aligning local, flexible 
resource commitments. 

• Dedicate additional funding to housing development and operating subsidies, continue 
to refine funding policies that maximizes supportive housing developers’ ability to 
attract other investors. 

• Maximize the ability of all Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) in the region to use Special 
Purpose Vouchers and Project-Based Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV); up to 
the caps allowed for the available tenant-based vouchers managed by a PHA to be 
project-based to a specific unit in a development, based on available funding (the 
subsidy remains with the unit). 



3 | P a g e  
 

• Continue building investments from the 34 cities and the County in the Orange County 
Housing Finance Trust. 

• Explore the outcomes of the Permanent Local Housing Allocation funding and the 
possibility of investing funds in supportive housing production or operations. 

• Prioritize supportive housing for people experiencing chronic homelessness and design 
and invest in supportive housing resources for special populations, including veterans, 
seniors, transitional aged youth and people with a history of justice involvement. 

• Build partnerships with mainstream supportive services (e.g., Federally Qualified Health 
Centers; Managed Care Plan/CalOptima Health; California Advancing and Innovating 
Medi-Cal (CalAIM) and Program for All Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) initiatives, 
etc.). 

• Build on collaborative regional investments in supportive housing development and 
pursue an expanded Coordinated Funding structure. This allows funders to develop 
shared priorities to target beneficiaries and improve service delivery. Coordinate 
discussions between funders focused on breaking down barriers and “silos” and helping 
to realize common goals and benefits. 

• Incorporate the best practices, guiding principles and commitments of the Housing Pillar 
as detailed in the Homeless Systems Pillar Report into the development of supportive 
housing to ensure stability and sustainability for people exiting from homelessness into 
housing. 

The Trust will continue to share the same goals identified in the County’s updated 2022 
Strategy and work collaboratively in the region.  

 

ATTACHMENT:  

Attachment A – Housing Funding Strategy 2022 Update 

 



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA1HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATEORANGE  COUNTY,  CAL IFORNIA

HOUSING FUNDING
STRATEGY:

2022 UPDATE
(NOVEMBER, 2022) 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 1 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA2HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3

OVERVIEW – 2022 ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4

REGIONAL EFFORTS IN ORANGE COUNTY  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5

HOMELESSNESS IN ORANGE COUNTY  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6

 n Chronic Homelessness  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7

 n Veteran Homelessness   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9

 n Seniors  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10

 n Youth and Transitional Aged Youth .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11

 n Justice Involved  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 12

 n Race Equity Considerations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 13

UPDATING THE FINANCIAL MODELING  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14

 n Supportive Housing Development Costs  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14

 n COVID Impacts on Housing Construction  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14

 n Leveraging Public Resources and Subsidies .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 16

 n Success of Orange County in Leveraging Public Resources  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 16

MARKET FORCES AND HOUSING NEED   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 19

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING UNIT PRODUCTION: 2018 TO DATE  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 22

2022 FUNDING STRATEGY SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROJECTIONS  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 24

AFFORDABLE/SUPPORTIVE HOUSING RESOURCES  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 25

 n Capital Funding Sources .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 25

 n Operating Funding Sources .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 34

 n Services Funding Sources and Partnerships  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 36

 n Potential Future Funding Sources  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 38

 n Support Services Needs and Funding Gap  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 38

CAPITAL FUNDING AND OPERATING SUBSIDY NEEDS  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 39

2022 HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY RECOMMENDATIONS & NEXT STEPS   .  .  . 42

Appendix: Acronyms/Definitions  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 43 

 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 2 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA3HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

n The 2018 Housing Funding Strategy identified a goal of creating 2,700 units of
 supportive housing over seven years, with an estimated funding gap of $353 million   
 in capital and $350 million in operating subsidies (or an additional 1,375 Project Based   
 Section 8 subsidies) .

n Significant investments in capital and operating expenses have been made since 2018,   
 producing a pipeline of 1,232 supportive housing units and a total projected pipeline of   
 2,144 supportive and affordable housing units .

n Orange County, local cities and developers have successfully leveraged local housing   
 funding resources at a higher rate than initially anticipated . For example, for every $1
 of local funds invested/approved by Orange County, $5 .50 of other (non-County)   
 housing funding has been invested in supportive/affordable housing .

n These investments have spurred the creation of significant new supportive and    
 affordable housing in Orange County .

n People experiencing chronic homelessness has increased in Orange County since 2017,   
 with decreases seen in veteran’s homelessness and youth homelessness over that same
 time period . Persons experiencing chronic homelessness are most likely to need
 supportive housing units . People with long histories of homelessness and disabling   
 health conditions need deeply affordable housing with services in order to remain 
 successfully housed .

n There have been significant changes over the last four years, including rapidly    
 increasing housing costs, and thus the supportive housing need continues . 

n This Orange County 2022 Housing Funding Strategy Update continues to build on and
 refine the planning and investments to date in order to maximize supportive and    
 affordable housing production .

n Current projections estimate a need for capital funding for 2,396 supportive housing   
 units, including the need for 1,696 operating subsidies, with an estimated funding gap   
 of $458 million in capital and $495 million in operating subsidies. This reflects significant
 increases in total development costs due to factors outlined in this report . 

n The Housing Funding Strategy will support the creation of housing resources that will   
 follow the best practices, guiding principles, and commitments of the Homeless Service
 System Pillars Report which was created by the Commission to End Homelessness and   
 accepted by the County of Orange Board of Supervisors on October 4, 2022 . 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 3 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA4HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

OVERVIEW
2022 ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY

The 2018 Orange County Housing Funding Strategy outlined a bold vision of the creation 
of 2,700 supportive housing units over seven years as well as a need to create additional 
affordable housing . Investments in housing developments throughout Orange County have 
been an urgent priority and there has been catalytic investment in supportive housing 
opportunities over the last four years . 

This 2022 Orange County Housing Funding Strategy updates the 2018 Strategy and maps 
out the progress that has been made toward the 2,700 unit goal, as well as provides an 
analysis of federal, state and local resources available to produce affordable and supportive 
housing . Orange County’s strategic responses to homelessness and the California housing 
crisis is seen in the significant progress that has been made in supportive and affordable 
housing production locally . In addition, this 2022 Housing Funding Strategy provides an 
overview of current development costs, which rose significantly over the last four years, 
as well as the success of the County of Orange (County) in leveraging of locally invested 
resources to create new supportive housing as well as general affordable housing in 
the region .

SALVATION ARMY - CENTER OF HOPE
ANAHEIM

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 4 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA5HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

REGIONAL EFFORTS IN ORANGE COUNTY

Local regional partnerships are the engine of supportive housing production in Orange 
County, driven by the commitments from the Orange County Board of Supervisors as well 
as commitments from cities throughout the County to significantly address homelessness. 
Through these partnerships and regional efforts, significant investments of land, capital 
funding, operating funding, and services supports have spurred unprecedented supportive 
and general affordable housing production, creating pathways out of homelessness for 
those who need it most . This funding strategy focuses on the resources to be invested 
by the County to produce supportive housing in the region to meet the needs of persons 
experiencing homelessness and chronic homelessness . It is important to note, however, 
that the County investments also assist with the production of general affordable housing 
within the same developments as those providing supportive housing units . These units 
can also be made available to very low and extremely low income households with the 
assistance of other public subsidies .

Notably, since the original 2018 Housing Funding Strategy, the regional Orange County 
Housing Finance Trust was established as a joint powers authority between the County 
now 25 member cities throughout Orange County . Since 2019, the Orange County Housing 
Finance Trust has implemented several Notices of Funding Availability (NOFAs) using locally 
allocated funds from the County and matching funds from the State through a competitive 
process, demonstrating shared investments in ending homelessness across Orange County .

The various Public Housing Authorities in the region are investing Housing Choice 
Vouchers, including the Orange County Housing Authority, Anaheim Housing Authority, 
Santa Ana Housing Authority, and Garden Grove Housing Authority . These Public Housing 
Authorities are also working collaboratively to streamline access to housing, including close 
coordination with the Coordinated Entry System, which prioritizes people experiencing 
chronic homelessness for supportive housing. Additional significant resources have been 
dedicated through County Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Housing and Housing 
Support Services Funds, Bringing Families Home and Housing and Disability Advocacy 
Programs . Most recently, the Orange County Continuum of Care has taken action to 
support the efforts of the County and the Orange County Housing Finance Trust to further 
advance the development of supportive housing and support the leveraging of Continuum 
of Care funding resources . These regional collaborative efforts will continue to drive the 
success of supportive housing production throughout the Orange County region .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 5 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA6HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

HOMELESSNESS IN ORANGE COUNTY

This report updates Orange County’s 2018 Housing Funding Strategy, which was informed 
by the 2017 Point in Time (PIT) Count and identifies strategies to meet the housing needs 
of people experiencing homelessness in Orange County based on the most current 2022 
Point in Time Count .1 Over the last four years, there has been significant progress in 
addressing homelessness across a variety of populations, with thousands of people moving 
from homelessness into homes through Orange County’s strategic investments in solutions 
to homelessness. At the same time, the housing landscape has changed significantly.  For 
example, housing costs have increased significantly while housing availability has become 
increasingly constrained. This 2022 Housing Funding Strategy analyzes a variety of factors, 
such as trends in homelessness, and the supportive and affordable housing development 
landscape, in order to continue to refine priorities and strategies that effectively address 
homelessness in Orange County .

Overview: Change in Homeless Population 2017 to 20222 
The data from the most recent Point In Time Counts is seen in the chart below:

2017 2019 2022 Change 2017
to 2022

Homeless Individuals
(chronically homeless individuals 
and% of all people experiencing 
homeless)

3,523
(893/19%)

5,296
(2,491/36%)

4,510
(2,408/42%)

+987
(+28%)

Homeless Families (households 
with at least one minor child)
(# of people in households)

398 
households

(1,265 people)

466 households
(1,550 people)

389 
households

(1,201 people)

-9 households
(-64 people)

Unaccompanied Minors 4 14 7 +3

Total 4,792 6,860 5,718 +926

While the 2022 PIT showed a 16% decrease from the 2019 PIT that tallied 6,860 
people experiencing homelessness (3,961 unsheltered and 2,889 sheltered), the overall 
homelessness in Orange County has continued to show an upward trend in the last five 
years, increasing by 19% . 

1  This document analyzes the change between the 2017 and 2022 Point in Time counts to reflect on changes since the 2018 Housing Funding
  Strategy . Data on the 2019 Point In Time count as well as the 2020 and 2021 Sheltered Point in Time counts are available at 
 http://ochmis .org/point-in-time-count-pit/
2  Note, the Point in Time Count methodology changed between 2017 and 2019.  The Point in Time Counts in 2019 and 2022 utilized the same  
 methodology .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 6 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA7HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Chronic Homelessness
An individual experiencing chronic homelessness is someone who is homeless and lives 
in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven or in an emergency shelter; and 
has been homeless and living or residing in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe 
haven or in an emergency shelter continuously for at least one year or on at least four 
separate occasions in the last three years where the combined length of time homeless in 
those occasions is at least 12 months; and has a disabling condition. A detailed definition 
as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) can be found 
in Appendix A . Supportive housing is an effective solution to end chronic homelessness 
for individuals . Understanding chronic homelessness in Orange County is an important 
element of this 2022 Housing Funding Strategy . The Orange County Commission to End 
Homelessness Homeless Service System Pillars Report recognizes supportive housing as a 
best practice to end a person’s homelessness and provides a sustainable place to live long 
term .

The 2022 PIT count identified 2,408 individuals experiencing chronic homelessness in 
Orange County . While the total number of individuals experiencing chronic homelessness 
decreased from the 2019 PIT, the percentage of individuals experiencing chronic 
homelessness compared to the total homeless population had noticeably increased . It is 
important to note that individuals experiencing chronic homelessness makes up 42% of all 
homelessness in Orange County which is an increase from 19% in 2017 .

Homelessness in Orange County (PIT 2017-2022)

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 7 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA8HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

In addition, 55% of 
unsheltered homeless 
individuals are 
chronically homeless, 
which makes up the 
largest subpopulation of 
unsheltered homeless 
individual in Orange 
County . 

Chronic Homelessness 
is Increasing Across 
California
Increase in chronic 
homelessness is not 
unique to Orange 
County . 10 of the 15 
large counties in California show an increase in chronic homelessness between 2017 and 
2022, and 6 large counties show an increase in chronic homelessness by more than 10% . 

People experiencing chronic homelessness are particularly vulnerable because they often 
live in unsheltered settings and typically have multiple complex and long-term health 
conditions, such as mental illness, substance use and physical disabilities3 . Once they fall 
into homelessness, it becomes exponentially challenging to return to housing stability . 
Supportive housing has shown to be an effective intervention in stabilizing the lives of 
individuals experiencing chronic homelessness by decreasing shelter utilization and acute 
psychiatric health care usage while staying housed .4 Continued effort in providing and 
streamlining access to supportive housing in all service planning areas is crucial in curbing 
the number of individuals experiencing chronic homelessness in Orange County .5 

3 National Alliance to End Homelessness . Chronically Homeless . https://endhomelessness .org/homelessness-in-america/who-experiences
 -homelessness/chronicallyhomeless/#:~:text=People%20experiencing%20chronic%20homelessness%20typically,disabilities%2C%20or
 %20other%20medical%20conditions .
4 Raven, Maria C.; Niedzwiecki, Matthew J.; Kushel, Margot. A randomized trial of permanent supportive housing for chronically homeless   
 persons with high use of publicly funded services . https://onlinelibrary .wiley .com/doi/full/10 .1111/1475-6773 .13553
5 Orange County Service Planning areas: https://ochealthinfo.com/sites/hca/files/import/data/files/69115.pdf

Chronic Homelessness in Orange County  
(PIT 2017-2022)

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 8 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA9HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Veteran Homelessness
As highlighted in the 2018 
Housing Funding Strategy, veteran 
homelessness has been on the 
decline since 2009 due to significant 
and ongoing investments in 
affordable and supportive housing 
for veterans in Orange County . The 
PIT count from 2017 to 2022 show 
the impact of these investments in 
housing, through efforts such as the 
U .S . Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) Veterans 
Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) 
program and the State of California 
Veteran Housing and Homeless 
Prevention (VHHP) program, 
resulting in a continued downward 
trend in veteran homelessness . 

As noted in the 2018 Housing Funding Strategy, veterans were disproportionally 
represented in people experiencing homelessness – in 2018, veterans 

made up approximately 4% of the overall population in Orange County 
compared to 10% of the overall homeless population . The PIT count 

in 2022 showed progress in this regard as well – from the most 
recent data, veterans make up approximately 3 .3% of the overall 

population in Orange County and 4 .8% of the homeless 
population . 

The persistent effort to providing access to affordable, 
supportive housing targeted to the veterans 
combined with the strategic planning among County 

agencies, local jurisdictions and housing partners are 
the key to successfully reducing the number of veterans 

experiencing homelessness . 

Veterans Experiencing Homelessness
in Orange County (PIT 2017-2022)

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 9 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA10HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Seniors
In 2022, Seniors ages 62 years and older, represent approximately 13% of people 
experiencing homelessness in Orange County . This is an increase from 2019 where 9% of 
people experiencing homelessness were seniors . Data on older adults was not collected in 
the 2017 PIT count . It is important to note that the upward trend of seniors experiencing 
homelessness can also be seen statewide . According to Homeless Data Integration System 
(HDIS), a data hub that gathers local California Continuum of Care data from the Homeless 
Management Information System (HMIS), the number of individuals ages 65 years and 
older in California accessing homeless services has increased by 53% from 2017 to 2020 .6 
In contrast, the number of individuals under 65 years old accessing homeless services in 
California increased by 24% during the same period . 

Seniors experiencing homelessness presents a complex set of challenges for 
housing and service providers as issues stemming from living in places 
not meant for human habitation is complicated by health challenges 
unique to elderly individuals . A comprehensive and coordinated 
services plan tailored to the needs of seniors, through program 
such as Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE), 
combined with ample access to affordable and supportive 
housing is key to addressing homelessness within this 
population . 

6 State of California Business and Consumer Services and Housing Agency . Homeless Data Integration System . 
 https://bcsh .ca .gov/calich/hdis .html

>>>

THE GROVES 
SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO
C&C DEVELOPMENT

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 10 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA11HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Youth and 
Transitional Aged 
Youth
A homeless youth 
is defined as an 
individual under the 
age of 18 experiencing 
homelessness . A 
homeless individual 
between the ages of 
18 to 24 is considered 
homeless transitional 
aged youth (TAY) . The 
data utilized in this 
analysis comprises of 
all individuals that fall 
within the specified 
age range captured 
in the PIT, including youth and TAY that are unaccompanied or a part of household . An 
overall downward trend in youth homelessness continued in 2022 as 722 homeless youths, 
representing 13% of total homeless population, were identified. 

It is important to note that youth and TAY experiencing homelessness, 
especially those who are unaccompanied, are particularly vulnerable . 

Many homeless youth and TAY have unmet basic needs and 
undiagnosed and/or untreated mental health disorders; as 

a result, they are susceptible to substance use, sexual 
exploitation and physical victimization.7 Housing with 

tailored supportive services designed to meet the 
developmental, social, mental and physical health 

needs of homeless youth and TAY is necessary to 
achieve success in curbing the number of youth 

and TAY experiencing homelessness . 

Youth and TAY in Orange County  
(PIT 2017-2022)

7   California Coalition for Youth . California’s Homeless Youth . https://calyouth .org/advocacy-policy/californias-homeless-youth/

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 11 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA12HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Justice Involved
Justice involved 
individuals are broadly 
defined as someone 
who is involved with 
the justice system, 
including the jail, 
parole and/or probation 
systems . The Point in 
Time count does not 
gather data regarding 
people’s history with 
the justice system, 
however, in California, 
data indicates that many 
people experiencing 
homelessness have a 
history with the justice system, for example for violating loitering laws or for 
sleeping in public spaces . 

In looking at other data sources in Orange County, the 2025 Vision 
Integrated Services Plan identifies that 20% of individuals booked 
into Orange County jails between May 1, 2018 and April 30, 2019 
were experiencing homelessness . These homeless individuals 
displayed a higher percentage of mental health diagnoses, 
substance use disorder and co-occurring disorder when 
compared to the general jail population . The more 
recent data provided by Orange County’s Office of 
Care Coordination on high utilizers of the justice system, 
defined as individuals booked into Orange County jail system 
for four or more times during a twelve month period, further 
demonstrated barriers to housing for justice involved individuals . 
During fiscal year 2021 – 2022, there were 1,256 high utilizers of 
the justice system and 31% of these individuals have also accessed the 
homeless service system during the same time period . 

As seen through the data, justice involved individuals who are experiencing 
homelessness face additional barriers in attaining stability upon re-entry to the 
community, which often leads to prolonged periods of homelessness . Communities 
have seen success in utilizing the Housing First model to support the justice involved 
population with focus on reducing housing barriers . This can be done using an “in-reach” 
model which is designed to provide immediate access to low barrier shelter and/or housing 
upon release, with planned connection to permanent housing placement . This approach 

Mental Health, Substance Use Disorder & 
Co-Occurring Disorder Diagnosis in Orange 

County Jail System

>>>

Individuals in OC Jails who identified as homeless

General Jail Population

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 12 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA13HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

ensures participants are engaged in services and prevents any periods of homelessness . 
Further, housing coupled with strong service coordination is crucial in achieving success 
for justice-involved individuals . Early case planning, prior to release from jail, ensures 
individuals are care-connected upon release, which is a key contributor to one’s stability 
during the transition period . Strong coordination and wrap-around services post release is 
crucial to address legal, mental health, substance use, medical, employment and housing 
needs, as well as reduce recidivism in the justice system .

Race Equity Considerations
National data has shown that Black, Indigenous, and People of Color (BIPOC) experience 
homelessness at a higher rate than their white counterparts;8 this is also apparent in 
Orange County . According to the 2022 Point in Time Count, Black or African American and 
American Indian or Alaskan Native represents 12% of the total unhoused population while 
the same group represents only 3 .3% of the total Orange County population . In planning 
for housing and supportive services, additional consideration and intentional effort to 
address structural and systemic discrimination is crucial in addressing the disproportionate 
impact . 

Black or African American and American Indian 
or Alaskan Native Representation in the 

Unhoused Population

8 National Alliance to End Homelessness . Racial Inequalities in Homelessness, by the Numbers . 
   https://endhomelessness .org/resource/racial-inequalities-homelessness-numbers/

American Indian or Alaskan Native

Black or African American

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 13 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA14HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

The Point in Time (PIT) Count data and special population considerations provide critical 
information which informs this 2022 Housing Funding Strategy . In addition, this updated 
Housing Funding Strategy considers trends related to supportive housing development 
costs, the amount of supportive housing that has been produced since 2018, as well as 
funding resources that will continue to support the creation of supportive housing in Orange 
County .

Supportive Housing Development Costs
Development costs in Orange County (as well as the State of California) have been 
increasing at a steady rate over the past four years and are expected to continue to 
increase in the next few years . The range of total development costs (TDC) per unit 
(see summary chart on the next page) for supportive and affordable housing currently 
under development are:

 n a low of approximately $380,000 per unit to a high of $713,000 per unit
 n an average of $497,570 per unit (supportive housing projects 2018 to 2022)
 n more recent projects estimating development costs at $500,000 to $600,000 per unit

An analysis of the supportive housing developments funded in Orange County from 2018 
to 2022 indicate an average per unit cost of $497,570, which is significantly higher (nearly 
45%) than the initial 2018 projection of $344,444/unit . If current development cost trends 
continue, it is projected that the average per unit cost for supportive/affordable housing 
in Orange County will be approximately $550,000 . Because approximately 70% of the 
development costs (materials, wages, land) are heavily impacted by market forces, there is 
very little local government can do on its own to reverse the upward trend in development 
costs . However, the County of Orange can positively impact the production of supportive/
affordable housing by serving as a lender of below market financing, partnering with other 
public financing and health care agencies, and pursuing grants and other funding from 
state and national sources .  Various market forces and funding strategies are discussed 
further below to inform the recommendations set forth within this updated Housing Funding 
Strategy .

COVID-19 Impacts on Housing Construction
As a result of COVID-19 pandemic, housing developers saw an increase in development 
costs due to supply chain issues and related delays (such as the impact of quarantine on 
construction crews, delays in various site inspections and inspection sign-offs, etc.), staffing 
shortages, and inflation. While the cost of construction materials normally increases on 
an annual basis due to inflation (which was an issue prior to the pandemic), experts have 
indicated that the inflation that accompanied the pandemic has been significantly different 
and has largely impacted construction costs . The United States construction industry is 
heavily dependent on foreign construction materials such as steel and stone . Because 

UPDATING THE FINANCIAL MODELING 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 14 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA15HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

COVID-19 was a global pandemic, it caused closures and delays at international factories 
that produce the needed materials . The supply of construction materials dramatically 
decreased in the United States; demand remained high for the materials, but the supply 
was low so prices increased dramatically . Associated Builders and Contractors Chief 
Economist, Anirban Basu, opined that the supply chain troubles may last until 2024 
because it takes a long time to rebuild capacity . According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, 
construction material prices were up by 25% in 2021 and so far in 2022 construction costs 
are trending upwards .

In the supportive housing project financing example noted below, the per unit cost for the 
affordable/supportive housing development is $588,488 . While this is high in comparison to 
the average for all projects, it is not an unusual financial scenario for current (FY2021/22) 
projects due to steadily increasing land, construction, and financing costs. Costs can vary 
widely between projects due to location (coastal or inland), land acquisition costs (donated, 
below market, market rate), type of project (new construction vs . rehabilitation) and the 
use of funding which triggers increases in construction costs, such as federal or state 
prevailing wage developments (e .g . nine or more project based rental assistance vouchers 
trigger federal prevailing wage) . The most recent projects in Orange County’s supportive 
housing projected pipeline have been in the range of $500,000 to $600,000 per unit (total 
development costs for all units, which include a portion of supportive housing units) . 

Use Total Per unit Percentage

Land Acquisition Costs (including interest reserve) $6,925,000 $81,470 14%

Total Hard Costs (construction) $29,623,485 $348,512 59%

Construction Interest & Fees $1,200,000 $14,117 2%

Construction Contingency $1,481,174 $17,426 3%

Loan Fees/Permanent Financing $155,545 $1,830  .3%

Architectural & Engineering Fees $800,000 $9,412 2%

Soft Costs/Other $3,204,424 $37,698 6%

Reserves (Operating & Capitalized Transition) $1,319,519 $15,524 3%

Developer Fee $5,312,375 $62,499 11%

Total Uses of Funds $50,021,522 $588,488

Example: Uses of Funds

>>>

It is currently anticipated that the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on development 
costs and the trend upwards will continue until at least 2024 . There may be a leveling off of 
development costs, but it is unlikely that we will experience a reduction in these costs for 
many years .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 15 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA16HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Leveraging Public Resources and Subsidies
In order for developments to be successful in obtaining other public, low-cost financial 
assistance, loans, grants, etc ., it continues to be critical  for the County of Orange to invest 
in new, proposed developments. Since June 12, 2018, the County has approved financial 
assistance for 24 housing developments which continue to move forward in the process 
to obtain full financing. As of June, 2022, there remains only 5 projects (out of the 24) 
which have not been awarded all of the funding required to proceed with construction 
of the housing developments . While some of the developments required several funding 
applications/cycles to obtain full financing and some projects had to return to the County 
for additional funding when costs unpredictably increased, the track record for the 
Orange County region has been steadily improving over the past few years, with 20 new 
projects completing their financing and closing on construction loans and moving towards 
construction in the past couple of years . It is anticipated that there will continue to be a 
highly competitive environment in the next few years for all funding available for affordable/
supportive housing . The County of Orange, in partnership with cities throughout the region, 
intends to continue diligent collaborative efforts to financially assist projects in a responsible 
and cost-effective manner in order to expand the inventory of affordable/supportive 
housing, and assist housing developers to submit as competitive funding applications as 
possible to continue award success .

Leveraging is key to a successful supportive/affordable housing production strategy . The 
County can use its funding to leverage other sources of funding, such as tax-exempt bond 
proceeds, tax credit equity, conventional financing, housing trust funds and other grant and 
loan programs from the state and/or federal government . Without public subsidies from 
many sources, the number of units produced would be severely limited . 

Success of County of Orange in Leveraging Public Resources 
It is critical to leverage County resources in order to maximize affordable/supportive 
housing production . The total number of units produced would be limited if Orange County 
was required to provide 100% financing. As noted above, the cost of producing housing 
is increasing, and financial partnerships have become essential to any successful funding 
strategy. Through its low cost, flexible financial assistance, the County has demonstrated its 
success in assisting affordable/ supportive housing developers to compete for the additional 
public subsidies and other funding needed to produce the housing . Leveraging public 
resources is critical to this overall housing financing strategy. 

To date, the County of Orange has been successfully leveraging its capital funding 
investment in about a 1:5 .5 ratio . This means for every $1 of County capital funding 
invested/approved there has been approximately $5 .50 of other public subsidies and/
or private investment contributed or approved  for the 24 affordable/ supportive housing 
developments noted below . It is anticipated that this approach to leveraging public 
resources will continue as long as other public/private resources remain available for 
developments within the County of Orange .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 16 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA17HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Through the state, federal tax-exempt financing (bonds and tax credit equity) program, 
developers of a supportive/affordable housing development can obtain approximately 55% 
to 65% of their total project financing, depending on their competitiveness and investment 
partner relationships. This means there is a gap of about 35% to 45% of total financing 
to be filled by other public financing agencies or other public/private subsidies. Typically, 
about 10% to 15% of the gap financing can come from other special funding programs at 
the state or federal level . Developers often defer a portion of their fee (5% to10%) as well 
and have it financed over time through residual receipts once a development is operational, 
which reflects the developer financial investment. If cities, and/or the County can contribute 
20% to 25% of the total financing gap amount, the developments can successfully compete 
for the other public subsidies, which is demonstrated in the success of the County to date in 
financing 24 new supportive/affordable housing developments since 2018. In this strategy, 
it is assumed that the County will fund 18% of the gap and local cities will fund 7% of the 
gap, for 25% total in gap financing. By using city and County resources to leverage state 
and federal sources of funding, much more housing can be produced in Orange County and 
throughout the State of California .
 

>>>

  LEGACY SQUARE
SANTA ANA

NATIONAL CORE 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 17 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA18HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Project Name
Supportive 

Housing 
Units

Total 
Units

Total County 
Funds

OC Project-
Based 

Vouchers

Total 
Non-County 

Funds**

Per Unit Cost 
(All units)

FX Residences 16 17 $6,217,047 0 $ 1,777,913 $470,292

Legacy Square 33 93 $7,527,376 0 $42,972,624 $543,011

Altrudy Senior* 10 48 $3,916,768 8 $17,314,309 $442,314

Casa Paloma* 48 71 $7,638,000 48 $31,362,000 $549,296

Valencia Garden 
(Orange Corp Yard) 8 62 $479,520 8 $29,792,894 $499,866

The Crossroads at 
Washington 43 86 $2,650,701 43 $42,796,833 $528,460

Villa St . Joseph 18 50 $10,359,215 18 $18,743,828 $582,061

Ascent (formerly 
Airport Inn) 57 58 $4,409,468 57 $17,719,512 $ 381,534

Mountain View 8 71 $2,343,372 8 $40,826,982 $608,033

Cartwright Family 10 60 $4,982,250 8 $35,245,146 $670,457

Lincoln Avenue 13 55 $3,484,680 5 $25,737,416 $531,311

Santa Angelina Senior 21 65 $7,825,714 21 $19,763,733 $424,453

Orchard View 8 66 $5,725,975 8 $16,400,505 $335,250

North Harbor Village 89 91 $2,217,769 0 $32,413,390 $380,562

Center of Hope 70 72 $10,159,344 16 $29,134,210 $545,744

The Meadows Senior 7 65 $620,008 0 $27,538,380 $433,206

Westview House 26 85 $11,570,817 0 $40,496,588 $612,558

Huntington Beach 
Senior 33 43 $5,807,348 33 $20,648,257 $615,247

Paseo Adelanto 40 50 $5,687,945 40 $29,944,142 $712,642

Stanton Inn & Suites 
(Homekey #1) 71 72 $1,085,000 71 $23,998,397 $348,381

Tahiti Motel 
(Homekey #2) 59 60 $2,400,000 59 $24,116,158 $441,936

Riviera Stanton 
(Homekey #3) 20 21 $1,532,983 10 $9,420,132 $521,577

HB Oasis (Homekey 
#4) PBV 62 64 $0 0 $22,996,369 $359,318

Motel 6 Costa Mesa 
(Homekey #5) 40 88 $4,250,000 0 $38,052,458 $480,710

Wise Place 47 48 $1,500,000 0

Total 857 1561 $114,391,300 461 $639,212,176 $497,570

362 631 Additional completed units

1,219 2,192 Total SH/AH units (leased up/under development)

Current Orange County Supportive Housing/Affordable Housing Pipeline
2018 to Present; projects yet to be completed or very recently completed

* Altrudy and Casa Paloma were recently completed; summer, 2022 . All other projects in chart are yet to be completed and some are not yet  
 fully financed. 
** Total funding (non-county) amounts remain subject to change; funding amounts noted are a point in time (at county review) estimate .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 18 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA19HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

The Joint Center for Housing Studies of Harvard University recently released the “State 
of the Nation’s Housing 2022 .” In this report, the authors shared that the “the costs 
of both owner-occupied and rental housing continue to climb . Home price appreciation 
reached a nationwide high of 20 .6% in March, 2022 . Rents for apartments were up 12% 
nationally .” Nationwide and in California, including Orange County, there are a large number 
of apartments under construction or soon to be under construction; this will bring some 
relief to the rental side of the housing market . However, for lower-income households and 
households of color, the Harvard report indicates “the pressure of high housing costs is 
unlikely to relent . The surge in gas, food and other necessities has made matters worse, 
especially now that most emergency government supports have ended .” 
 
From a supportive housing perspective, the need for more housing units continues for those 
households in the lowest income brackets, specifically extremely low income. Discussion 
about the impact of market forces is important to understanding why there continues to 
be a growing need for the County of Orange to assist in the effort to provide more funding 
for more affordable/supportive housing for those persons experiencing homelessness and 
with very limited means. The County of Orange has made significant strides in financing the 
production of supportive housing in the past few years . With that said, the need continues 
to grow for several reasons . Here are some of the market forces, needs assessments and 
related impacts that are driving the focus of this housing funding strategy: 
 
n  Imbalance in Housing Supply . There has been for many years and remains 
today an imbalance in the housing market between supply and demand; this has caused 
housing costs to soar . To correct the imbalance, demand must be reduced and/or supply 
increased . Since it is very unlikely that demand for housing in the County will be reduced, 
this economic theory holds that supply must be increased to a point where supply exceeds 
demand. In the 6th cycle of the final Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation 
for the County of Orange, it is noted that a total of 183,861 housing units need to be 
constructed Countywide for households at all income levels – very low, low, moderate and 
above moderate/upper income – over the next 8 years . 

n  Housing Need – Very Low and Extremely Low Income . Within the RHNA 
allocation, it is noted that 25% of the Countywide housing need (46,416 units) is for very 
low-income households; 50% of these units (23,208) are estimated to be needed for 
extremely low-income households, which are typically those households who are receiving 
social security as their only source of income and/or households experiencing homelessness 
with very limited financial resources. The extremely low populations are most often those in 
need of supportive housing and the specific focus of this funding strategy. 

MARKET FORCES AND HOUSING NEED 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 19 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA20HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

n  Unincorporated County RHNA . The RHNA allocation for the unincorporated area 
of the County is 10,406 housing units total, of which 3,059 housing units are identified for 
very low-income households; again, it is anticipated that 50% of the housing units allocated 
for very low income (or 1,530 units) need to be affordable to extremely low income 
households . 

n  Overcrowded Housing . Based on the 2020 Census, the percentage of overcrowded 
housing units (10 .11%) within the County of Orange exceeds the national average of 
6 .76% . This means that households are very likely doubling and sometimes tripling up to 
be able to afford housing within the County, which is reflected in the imbalance of affordable 
housing inventory and demand for that housing . 

n  Cost-Burdened Households . According to the 2020 Census, 69 .88% of the lower 
income households in the County are paying more than 30% of their incomes on housing 
costs; this is 10 .88% higher than the national average . 

n  Rent Arrears . According to Household Pulse Survey data for December 2021 through 
April 2022, 10% of all households nationwide were still behind on their housing payments 
due to the pandemic . Renters with household incomes below $25,000 (extremely low-
income households) are at 20%, which is alarmingly high . 

n  Poverty Rate . Nationwide, the poverty rate in 2020 was 11 .4%, up 1 .0 percentage 
point from 2019; this was the first increase in poverty after five consecutive annual declines 
according to the American Community Survey (census data) . In the County of Orange, 9% 
of the population have incomes at poverty level (which is 285,103 persons total); housing 
insecurity is a continuing threat for a significant number of households in the County. 

n  Housing Supply Outlook . While the outlook for ongoing demand and supply is 
positive, it will take time for any additional supply to catch up with the demand and produce 
any meaningful improvement in affordability . 

n  Scaling Housing Production . Ongoing effort is critical by both the private and 
public sectors to bring housing production to scale in a way that will significantly impact 
the imbalance currently being experienced throughout the nation, including the County of 
Orange . 
 
Considering the above noted market forces and related impacts, there continues to be 
an ongoing need for additional affordable housing, and more specifically supportive 
housing for very low and extremely low income households,  in the County of Orange . 
While this updated Housing Funding Strategy focuses on resources needed specifically 
for the production of supportive housing to meet the projected needs in Orange County, 
the financial investments made by the County for supportive housing support the overall 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 20 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA21HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

development of general affordable housing units as well . Supportive housing units are 
typically only a small portion of an overall affordable housing development . The County 
can be credited with not only the supportive housing units created through its investments, 
but also the general affordable housing units built as a result of the County’s financial 
investments in all of the developments .

Generally speaking, there are two basic financial strategies to be pursued in combination 
or individually to address the need and impact the supply of supportive/affordable housing 
throughout the County: 
 
 1 . Invest in production of affordable/supportive housing and record a regulatory  
  agreement to restrict rents for the life of the development (typically 55 years)  
  to be affordable to households with very low and extremely low incomes,   
  which means the rents will not exceed 30% of the Orange County Area Median  
  Income for the targeted households; and/or,

 2 . Provide rental assistance and/or operating subsidies to the targeted
  households directly, or provide operating subsidies to the developments
  through project based rental assistance (e .g . housing choice vouchers) or   
  capitalized operating subsidy reserves (COSR). 

This Housing Funding Strategy Update is focused on both 1) the level of capital funding 
investments required to produce supportive housing to meet the need, by restricting rents 
for the life of the assisted developments to be affordable to households at 30% of the gross 
household income of the extremely low-income residents, and 2) the provision of rental 
assistance/operating subsidies . These two funding strategies are intended to work together 
to increase the supply of supportive housing within Orange County, together with the 
added benefit of ensuring the development of general affordable housing within the same 
developments .
 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 21 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA22HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

The section below outlines supportive housing production goals for Orange County by 
year, along with the number of actual units by type that have been developed and are 
leased up/leasing up/in the supportive housing pipeline . In addition, the chart details 
cumulative estimated supportive housing production as projected from through 2025 . The 
2018 Housing Funding Strategy projected unit goals starting in 2019 to recognize the time 
it takes from the announcement of funding opportunities and for projects to enter the 
supportive housing pipeline .
 
As noted above, the unanticipated significant increase in total development costs has 
greatly impacted the supportive housing pipeline and limited unit production . Current 
projections indicate that at the end of seven years (the original projected timeframe 
to produce 2,700 units of supportive housing), that there will be 1,643 supportive 
housing units produced towards the 2,700 unit goal .9 Based on current information and 
assumptions, there is a gap of 1,057 units between the projected need in 2018 and what is 
anticipated to be in the supportive housing development pipeline by 2025 . 

In addition to the supportive housing development, during the same time period a total 
of 2,144 general affordable housing units, including the noted supportive housing units, 
were produced or are anticipated to be produced as a result of the combined investment in 
supportive housing developments throughout the County .

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING UNIT PRODUCTION: 
2018 TO DATE

Cumulative Supportive Housing Production to Date
2018 - 2022

>>>9  This assumes that an additional 235 SH units will be added to the pipeline in both 2024 and 2025 .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 22 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA23HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Cumulative Supportive Housing Production 
Projection Through 2025

CASA PALOMA
MIDWAY CITY (ORANGE COUNTY) 

AMERICAN FAMILY HOUSING

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 23 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA24HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

In updating the 2018 Housing Funding Strategy, it is important to recognize the initial 2,700 
unit production goal, and to review the progress made towards achieving that goal . The 
current supportive housing pipeline projections identify a gap of 1,057 units of supportive 
housing . In addition, it is important to review the projections and estimates that were made 
in 2018 in order to determine current supportive housing need . 

Based on the updated Point in Time (PIT) Count data, in 2022, there is an updated 
estimated need for 3,225 supportive housing units in the Orange County region to meet 
the current need (3,150 units for individuals and 75 units for families) . Taking into account 
the current supportive housing units in the County’s production pipeline (829 total); as 
a result, the updated goal is 2,396 supportive housing units to meet the needs of people 
experiencing homelessness in Orange County . 

The number of supportive housing units projected to be needed within Orange County is 
based on the   number of people experiencing chronic homelessness in Orange County, 
who by definition have long histories of homelessness and disabling health conditions. In 
the production goal, it is anticipated that the vast majority of people experiencing chronic 
homelessness need a combination of housing and wrap around support services to end their 
homelessness and remain stably housed . 

The table below projects the unit breakdown to create 3,225 units of supportive housing 
over the next seven years to meet the housing needs of people with disabling health 
conditions who are experiencing homelessness in Orange County . There are an anticipated 
829 supportive housing units that are leasing up in 2022 after the Point in Time Count was 
conducted, as well as units projected in the supportive housing pipeline, leaving a need for 
the creation of  2,396 supportive housing units during the period of this updated strategy . 

2022 FUNDING STRATEGY SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 
PROJECTIONS

The Supportive Housing Unit production goal is a subset of the Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment (RHNA) numbers that communities are planning for with the update of their 
Housing Elements. It recognizes a specific type of housing that needs to be funded and 
developed as part of the plans to develop the housing needed for extremely low-income 
households in Orange County .

Supportive Housing Goal by Population Studio/1 Bedroom 2 or 3 Bedroom Total

Homeless Individual 330 330

Chronically Homeless Individual 2,820 2,820

Homeless Family 75 75

Total SH Unit Production Goal: 2022 to 2029 3,150 75 3,225

Units not leased up by 02/22 + Orange County Supportive Housing 
pipeline units currently assembling financing

829

Supportive Housing Unit Production Goal (2022 - 2029) 2,396

Projected Revised Supportive Housing (SH) Unit Goal (by Population and Unit Type):

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 24 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA25HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

AFFORDABLE/SUPPORTIVE HOUSING RESOURCES 

Financing affordable and supportive housing requires the use of diverse funding sources, 
including local, state, and federal funds as well as private equity . There is no single source 
of public or private funding that will fully fund any single supportive/affordable housing 
development . Funding partnerships and leveraging of public resources are critical to the 
success of providing for new supportive/affordable housing opportunities within the County 
of Orange, California .

Affordable/Supportive Housing requires three types of funding resources:

1 . Capital Funding – to build the housing infrastructure;

2 . Operating Funding – to ensure the affordability of housing for tenants and the 
long-term operation of the housing development; and,

3 . Resident/Supportive Services Funding – to provide support services to 
residents to ensure their housing stability and promote housing retention .

Capital Funding Sources
The funding programs described below have been identified as potential investment 
sources or public subsidies available from state and/or federal agencies to build the housing 
infrastructure for the production of supportive/affordable housing in Orange County that 
meets the goals set forth within this funding strategy .

Federal and State Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) and 
Tax-Exempt Bond Financing
The LIHTC financing program subsidizes the acquisition, construction and rehabilitation of 
affordable rental housing for low- and moderate-income tenants . Through the tax credit 
program, private investors make cash investments in return for reductions in tax liabilities 
from the state and/or federal government . The 9% tax credit program is highly competitive 
and is combined with taxable hard debt . The 4% tax credit program is combined with 
tax-exempt bonds, which now has a competitive process for the allocation . This is a very 
complicated and competitive financing program, but critical to the long-term financing of 
affordable/supportive housing developments . Typically, 30% to 50% of total funding needed 
for a housing development is provided through the federal and state LIHTC financing 
programs . Local funding must be contributed in order for developers to be competitive in 
obtaining tax credit and bond financing.

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 
Annually (CA state-wide)

9% Federal LIHTC New construction and rehabilitation projects $100 million 

4% Federal LIHTC New construction and rehabilitation projects, 
and funded with federal subsidies and/or tax-
exempt bonds

$125 million 

California LIHTC New construction of multifamily housing 
projects .

$300 to $500 million

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 25 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA26HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME), Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Program, and Section 108 Loans
HOME is a federally funded program and assists cities, counties, developers, Native 
American Entities and nonprofit Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs) 
to create and retain affordable housing . Grants and low-interest loans are available . 
Eligible activities include: housing rehabilitation, new construction and acquisition and 
rehabilitation, for multifamily projects . It also provides new construction and down payment 
assistance for single-family projects, first-time homebuyer assistance, owner-occupied 
rehabilitation, and tenant-based rental assistance programs, and predevelopment loans for 
CHDOs. All activities must benefit low-income renters, homebuyers and homeowners.

CDBG is a federally funded program and assists in meeting the community needs of lower 
income households, aids in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight, or meets an 
urgent need . For housing purposes, CDBG funds can be used for single and multi-family 
rehabilitation, rental housing acquisition or homeownership assistance, and other activities 
that support new housing construction (such as acquisition of property) .

Section 108 Loan Program is a federally funded program and provides CDBG recipients with 
the ability to leverage their annual grant allocation to access low-cost, flexible financing for 
housing and other CDBG eligible projects . Communities can use Section 108 guaranteed 
loans to either finance specific projects or launch loan funds to finance multiple projects 
over several years . Flexible repayment terms allow it to be layered with other sources of 
community and economic development financing including, but not limited to, New Market 
Tax Credits (NMTC), Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), and Opportunity Zone equity 
investments .

HUD 811 and 202 (Federal) 
HUD 811 and 202 HUD 811 and 202 is federal funding which may be available in the future . 
When funding is available, HUD will issue Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) and solicit 
applications for Section 811 and Section 202 funding . This funding can be used for capital 
and operating subsidies (through rental assistance) . HUD provides project rental assistance 
contracts for properties developed using Section 811 capital advances; this covers the 
difference between the HUD-approved operating cost of the project and the amount the 
residents pay — usually 30% of adjusted income . The initial term of the project rental 
assistance contract is 3 years and can be renewed if funds are available . The Section 202 
HUD program also provides interest free capital advances to finance the construction, 
rehabilitation or acquisition with or without rehabilitation of structures that provide 
supportive housing for very low income elderly persons, and also provides rent subsidies . 
Both programs are provided to private, nonprofit sponsors. Public agencies are not eligible 
for the funding .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 26 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA27HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds

HOME Program Housing Rehabilitation, New Construction, Acquisi-
tion and Rehabilitation – multifamily projects
New construction and down payment assistance - 
single family
First-time homebuyer assistance
Owner-occupied rehabilitation
Tenant-based rental assistance
Predevelopment loans - CHDOs

$1 million
Estimated annual County 
Allocation

CDBG Program Single and Multi-family Rehabilitation
Rental housing acquisition or homeownership assis-
tance
Activities that support new housing construction 
(e .g ., property acquisition)

$3 .6 million
Estimated annual County 
Allocation

Section 108 Loan 
Program

Must meet CDBG objectives; Acquisition of real 
property; rehabilitation of publicly owned real prop-
erty; housing rehabilitation eligible under CDBG; 
construction, reconstruction or installation of public 
facilities for housing; related relocation, clearance 
and site improvements; in limited circumstances, 
affordable housing construction

Up to 5 times the latest approved 
CDBG entitlement amount, minus 
any outstanding Section 108 
commitments and/or principal 
balances on Section 108 loans .
Maximum repayment period for a 
Section 108 loan is 20 years .

Section 811/202 Interest Free capital advances to nonprofit sponsors 
to help finance the development of rental housing 
such as independent living projects, condominium 
units and small group homes with the availability of 
supportive services for persons with disabilities . The 
capital advance can finance the construction, reha-
bilitation or acquisition with or without rehabilitation 
of supportive housing . HUD also provides project 
rental assistance contracts for properties developed 
using Section 811 capital advances

Funding available when Notice of 
Funding Availability ( NOFA) is-
sued by HUD . Amount of funding 
available will be indicated in the 
NOFA

State of California, Grants and Loans - Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) Department
The State Housing and Community Development (HCD) Department, administers a number 
of funding programs that provide grants and loans (from both state and federal housing 
programs) to create more rental and homeownership opportunities throughout the State of 
California . These programs are diverse and funding developments which meet the special 
needs of a variety of populations, including veterans, seniors, young families starting out, 
people with disabilities, farmworkers and individuals and families who are experiencing 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 27 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA28HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

homelessness . Over the past 30 years, HCD has provided more than $3 billion in state and 
federal funding for the development of affordable housing and associated infrastructure . 
Each year HCD posts its Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) Calendar and indicates its 
targeted release dates for draft guidelines, NOFAs, and awards as well as NOFA application 
due dates . Link to calendar: Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) Calendar | California
Department of Housing and Community Development

In 2022, HCD combined four programs into a SuperNOFA: Infill Infrastructure Grant 
Program (IIG); Joe Serna Jr . Farmworker Housing Grant, Multifamily Housing Program 
(MHP); and Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program (VHHP) . This action 
was taken to streamline the funding programs and provide for a coordinated single 
application and award process, and speed up the processing time in accordance with 
Assembly Bill 434 . The goal is to accelerate housing production .

Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) funds land-
use, housing, transportation, and land preservation projects to support infill and compact 
development that reduces greenhouse emissions. Three project areas have been identified 
to implement this funding strategy: transit-oriented development area; integrated 
connectivity project area; or rural innovation project area .

No Place Like Home Program (NPLH) was created through legislation in 2016 and 
dedicates up to $2 billion in bond proceeds to invest in the development of supportive 
housing for persons who need mental health services and are experiencing homelessness, 
chronic homelessness, or who are at risk of chronic homelessness . The bonds are repaid by 
funding from the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) . In 2018, voters approved Proposition 
2, authorizing the sale of up to $2 billion of revenue bonds and the use of a portion 
of Proposition 63 taxes for the program . There are two parts to this funding program: 
1) noncompetitive allocation which is distributed by formula allocation to each County
based on their 2017 homeless point-in-time count with a minimum of $500,000; and 2)
competitive allocation . It is important to note that the last anticipated round of No Place
Like Home (NPLH) funding occurred in 2022 .

NPLH funding is for supportive housing utilizing low barrier tenant selection practices that 
prioritize vulnerable populations and offer flexible, voluntary, and individualized supportive 
services . Counties must commit to provide mental health services and help coordinate 
access to other community-based supportive services .

Homekey 2 .0 builds upon the success of Project Room Key and the first Homekey round; it 
continues a statewide effort to sustain and rapidly expand housing for persons experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of homelessness, and who are inherently impacted by COVID-19 
and other communicable diseases . The money is available to cities, counties, or other local 
public entities, such as a housing authority or tribal entity within California (as well as in 
partnership with a private housing developer) . The deadline for capital expenditures is eight 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 28 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA29HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

months from the date of funding award, per statute . Operating funds are also available 
through this funding program, and must be fully expended by June 30, 2026 . (Anticipate 
Homekey 3 .0 NOFA in early 2023) .

Funding 
Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 

Annually (CA state-wide)

Infill Infrastructure 
Grant Program 
(IIG)

New infill development and rehabilitation of 
infrastructure that supports higher-density 
affordable and mixed-income housing

$300 million

Joe Serna Jr . 
Farmworker 
Housing Grant

Multifamily housing, new construction or 
rehabilitation, and single family owner-occupied $75 million

Multifamily 
Housing Program 
(MHP)

Affordable multifamily rental and transitional, 
new construction, acquisition, rehabilitation and 
conversion housing developments

$200 million

Veterans Housing 
and Homelessness 
Prevention 
Program (VHHP)

Multifamily rental housing containing supportive 
housing, transitional housing and affordable housing 
for veterans and their families

$100 million

Affordable Housing 
and Sustainable 
Communities 
Program (AHSC)

New construction, acquisition and substantial 
rehabilitation, including preservation or 
conversion for affordable housing; housing related 
infrastructure .

$400 million
Note: 50% of funds set aside for 
affordable housing developments 
and 50% set aside for projects 
benefitting disadvantaged 
community; a single project can 
address both set-asides

No Place Like 
Home

Supportive housing for persons experiencing 
homelessness and have a serious mental illness 
diagnosis

Noncompetitive Allocation
$190 million total
(formula allocation to County based 
on 2017 homeless point in time 
count)

Competitive Allocation
Up to $1 .8 billion 

Homekey 2 .0

Broad range of housing types, including hotels, 
motels, hostels, single-family homes and multifamily 
apartments, adult residential facilities, and 
manufactured housing, and to convert commercial 
properties and other existing buildings to Permanent 
or Interim Housing for the target population

$1 .4 billion
(FY2021-22)

Note: $1 .2 million is derived 
from the Coronavirus State Fiscal 
Recovery Fund established by the 
federal American Rescue Plan Act 
of 2021; $250 million comes from 
state General Funds . 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 29 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA30HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Local Housing Trust Fund
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust (OCHFT) was formed in 2019 as a joint powers 
authority between the County of Orange and the cities throughout the County . The 
OCHFT was created for the specific purpose of funding housing for persons experiencing 
homelessness and for persons and families of extremely low, very low and low income 
within the County of Orange . For projects to be eligible for this funding, the project location 
must be within the unincorporated County of Orange or within Trust member cities . The 
only exception is for projects seeking only MHSA funding from OCHFT, which is required to 
be available County wide (including non-member cities) . Projects must include a minimum 
of 5 units which are assisted by funding through the OCHFT . All projects must provide 
permanent supportive or affordable housing restricted to persons or families who qualify as 
extremely low income; they must also provide a plan for supportive services and eventually 
funding for the provision of those services .

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds Annually 
(CA state-wide)

Permanent Local 
Housing Allocation 
Formula Program
(PLHA)

New construction to meet local 
government RHNA allocation

Affordable housing for households at 
60% AMI or below

Assistance for persons experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of 
homelessness

Assistance to affordable owner-
occupied workforce housing

Facilitate housing affordability, 
particularly for lower and moderate 
income households

Amounts vary from year to year
For 2022, County of Orange has been awarded 
$1,977,337 to be used for rental subsidies 
(homeless), accessibility improvements to 
ownership units, and production of housing

Formula grants to entitlement and non-
entitlement jurisdictions based on the formula 
prescribed under federal law for the Community 
Development Block Grant Program

Note: applications for the formula allocation 
must be submitted within 48 months of the 
budget appropriation

Competitive grants to non-entitlement 
jurisdictions .

>>>

Permanent Local Housing Allocation Formula Program
In 2017, the Building Homes and Jobs Act (SB 2) established a $75 recording fee on real 
estate documents to increase the supply of affordable homes in California . The amount of 
funding available from year to year fluctuates because the number of real estate transactions 
vary each year . From 2019 and beyond, 70% of the funding available provides assistance to 
locally administered affordable housing activities; the remaining 30% of funding is used for 
other state administered programs with 15% to mixed-income multifamily rental housing, 
5% for a production incentive program and 10% for farmworker housing . This funding is 
provided in the form of grants to local governments in California for housing-related projects 
and programs that assist in addressing the unmet housing needs of their communities .

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 
Annually (CA state-wide)

Orange County 
Housing Finance 
Trust

Permanent supportive or affordable rental 
housing through new construction, acquisition/
rehabilitation, and/or conversion of commercial 
and light industrial to residential use on a 
case-by- case basis for extremely low income 
households .

10-12 million

Note: Funds are comprised of 
County Mental Health Services Act, 
County General Fund, and State 
of California – Local Housing Trust 
Fund Program .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 30 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA31HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Cities within the County of Orange also receive PLHA funding, which could provide some 
financial partnership opportunities. The amounts of funding for 2022 and anticipated 
funding activities are noted below:

City Annual Amount 
of PLHA Funding

Eligible Activities
As defined in each local jurisdiction’s PLHA Plan

Garden Grove $1,545,517 Matching funds and homeownership assistance

Orange $944,217 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Santa Ana $4,357,828 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Rancho Santa Margarita $157,602 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Mission Viejo $321,250 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Fullerton $1,070,068 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Huntington Beach $852,531 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Tustin $599,257 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Newport Beach $433,244 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Anaheim $3,349,981 Production of Affordable Housing, including operating
subsidies, for lower income households .

Costa Mesa $821,579 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Fountain Valley $1,524,968 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Irvine $1,178,131

Production of Affordable Housing, including operating 
subsidies, for lower income households; production of housing, 
including accessory dwelling units (ADUs) for moderate 
income households

Laguna Niguel $391,868 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing;
accessibility modifications for low income homeowners

San Clemente $482,867 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Westminster $793,596 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

Yorba Linda $165,580 Homeless Assistance, which includes construction of housing

$18,990,084 Total Annual PLHA funding in the region

Note: San Juan Capistrano recently joined the Urban County . However the city needs to 
apply to the State for the funding, which is pending .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 31 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA32HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

California Housing Accelerator Program
The funding for this program came from the Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund, 
established by the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 . In the Budget Act of 
2021, the State of California allocated ARPA funds to this program . This program will make 
funding available for shovel-ready projects that may have received one or more awards 
from other HCD funding programs, but did not receive low income housing tax credits or 
tax-exempt bond allocations . The application must have noted tax-exempt bonds and 4% 
low income housing tax credits as development sources to be eligible for this funding . The 
funding will be provided in the form of a forgivable loan, with zero percent interest for 20 
years, with no residual receipts or periodic payment during the life of the loan .

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 
Annually (CA state-wide)

California Housing 
Accelerator Program

Fill permanent financing funding gap left by the 
inability of the developer to obtain tax credits/
bonds for housing projects with active HCD 
funding awards .

$735 million

>>>

CASA PALOMA
MIDWAY CITY (ORANGE COUNTY) 
AMERICAN FAMILY HOUSING

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 32 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA33HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

National Housing Trust Fund
A federal program to increase and preserve the supply of affordable housing, with an 
emphasis on rental housing for extremely low-income households . For federal years 2018 
to 2021 the national funding is used for Housing for a Healthy California (HHC) Article 1 
Program . The HHC program creates supportive housing for individuals who are recipients 
of or eligible for health care provided through the California Department of Health Care 
Services, Medi-Cal program. The financing is provided as a deferred payment loan or 
forgivable loan . 

Through the Housing for a Healthy California, capital loans and operating reserve grants 
will be provided to developers for the creation of Supportive housing for people who are 
experiencing chronic homelessness, or are homeless and high-cost health users .

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 
Annually (CA state-wide)

Housing for a Healthy 
California

New construction of permanent housing for 
extremely low-income households

$160 million made available 
through a NOFA – competitive 
process; 70% of funds available to 
California developers

Transformative Climate Communities Program Implementation Grant 
The California Strategic Growth Council along with its partner agency, the Department 
of Conservation, makes funding available on an annual basis for projects that reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions through the development and implementation of neighborhood-
level transformative climate community plans that include multiple coordinated GHG 
emissions reduction projects that provide local economic, environmental and health 
benefits to disadvantaged communities. Applicants must implement a minimum of three 
projects associated with the following strategies through a Collaborative Stakeholder 
Structure: equitable housing and neighborhood development, affordable housing land 
acquisition, transit access, and mobility, solar installation and energy efficiency, water 
efficiency, recycling and waste management, urban greening and green infrastructure, land 
conservation, health and well-being .

Funding Program Type of Housing Activity Funded Est . Amount Available Funds 
Annually (CA state-wide)

Transformative 
Climate Communities 
Program 
(grant)

Multiple projects within a single funding 
application; equitable housing and neighborhood 
development; affordable housing land acquisition . 
Grant funding for projects that reduce 
greenhouse emissions . 

$106 million
Eligible applicants represent 
collaborative partners that compete 
for 3 large grants

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 33 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA34HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Operating Funding Sources
The funding programs described below have been identified as potential investment sources 
or public subsidies available from state and/or federal agencies to ensure the affordability 
of housing for tenants and the long-term operation of the supportive/affordable housing 
produced in Orange County that meets the goals set forth within this funding strategy .

Operating funding or subsidies are a key element of supportive housing in order to ensure 
that housing is affordable to tenants with histories of homelessness and disabling health 
conditions, while enabling a property to be financially feasible over the long term. Operating 
subsidies are required due to the very low affordable rents which are necessary to allow 
for rehousing of people experiencing homelessness, and other very low and extremely 
low-income households . Partnerships with Public Housing Authorities (PHAs), successor 
redevelopment and/or housing agencies, and cities located within Orange County offers 
opportunities for operating subsidies . There are also some state and federal funding 
programs which can assist with operating subsidies, and/or provide funding for resident 
supportive services . 

The following programs or funding sources can assist with subsidizing the operations of  
supportive/affordable housing:

Project-Based Vouchers – Section 8 Rental Assistance (Federal) – provide rental 
subsidies to supportive housing developments that backfill extremely low-income affordable 
rental rates for supportive housing tenants that assists with meeting operational needs of 
the developments. Project-based housing choice vouchers are specific to each development 
and are not portable; the subsidies remain with the unit when the tenant relocates to 
another development .

• HUD VASH – This program combines U .S Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s (HUD) Housing Choice Voucher rental assistance for Veterans
experiencing homelessness with case management and clinical services provided
by the U .S Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) . The program is administered in
partnership with HUD and the VA . HUD publishes an annual HUD-VASH Registration
of Interest Notice containing detailed instructions that PHA must follow if they
are interested in receiving a portion of the available vouchers . HUD-VASH vouchers
are renewed annually based on actual PHA leasing along with all other housing
choice vouchers .

Tenant-Based Vouchers – Section 8 Rental Assistance (Federal) - provide rental subsidies 
that backfill lower income affordable rental rates for permanent supportive/affordable 
housing tenants that assists with meeting operational needs of the developments . Tenant-
based housing choice vouchers, however, are portable; the subsidies move with the tenant . 
They can provide operational subsidies, however, both short and long term depending on 
how long a tenant retains housing at the development .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 34 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA35HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Non-Elderly Disabled (NED) Vouchers – Section 8 Rental Assistance (Federal) provide 
rental assistance to enable non-elderly disabled families, who would have been eligible for 
PHA unit if occupancy of the unit or entire project had not been restricted to elderly families 
only through an approved Designated Housing Plan . The NED vouchers may also assist non-
elderly families living in a designated unit/project/building to move from that project if they 
so choose . 
 • Category 2 NED Vouchers – these vouchers enable non-elderly persons with   
 disabilities to transition from nursing homes and other healthcare institutions into
 the community . Only persons currently living in healthcare institutions (excluding   
 board and care facilities) are eligible to apply for these vouchers . To be eligible, a
 person must be transitioning from a nursing home or other healthcare institution and  
 must be provided services needed to live independently in the community . 

No Place Like Home (NPLH) – provides funding for a Capitalized Operating Subsidy 
Reserve (COSR) that can be used to backfill operational revenue gaps due to extremely low 
income rents set for supportive housing tenants; the rental income provided by the tenant 
is not sufficient to meet operational needs for the extremely low income unit, and the COSR 
can be used to supplement the rental revenue for that unit to all for full operational cost 
reimbursement .

Housing for A Healthy California (HHC) – provides funding to create supportive 
housing for individuals who are recipients of or eligible for health care provided through 
the California Department of Health Care Services, Medi-Cal Program . These monies can be 
used for acquisition, new construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, administrative costs, 
as well as COSR and rental subsidies/rental assistance for existing and new supportive 
housing opportunities to assist the target population .

HUD 811 and 202 (Federal) - When funding is available, HUD will issue Notice of Funding 
Availability (NOFA) and solicit applications for Section 811 and Section 202 funding . This 
funding can be used for capital and operating subsidies (through rental assistance) . HUD 
provides project rental assistance contracts for properties developed using Section 811 
capital advances; this covers the difference between the HUD-approved operating cost of 
the project and the amount the residents pay – usually 30% of adjusted income . The initial 
term of the project rental assistance contract is three years and can be renewed if funds 
are available . The Section 202 HUD program also provides interest free capital advances 
to finance the construction, rehabilitation or acquisition with or without rehabilitation of 
structures that provide supportive housing for very low income elderly persons, and also 
provides rent subsidies. Both programs are provided to private, nonprofit sponsors. Public 
agencies are not eligible for the funding .

Multifamily Housing Program (MHP) - provides funding through low-interest, long-term 
deferred-payment loans for new construction, rehabilitation, and preservation of permanent 
and transitional rental housing for lower-income households . Eligible use of funds include 
capitalized operating reserves and capitalized replacement reserves up to the amount of the 
initial deposit required by the Department pursuant to UMR Sections 8303(b) and 8309(b) .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 35 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA36HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Services Funding Sources and Partnerships
The funding programs described below have been identified as potential investment 
sources, public subsidies or funding partnerships available to provide support services to 
residents to ensure their housing stability . This is aligned with the best practices, guiding 
principles and commitments of the Housing Pillar as detailed in the Homeless Systems Pillar 
Report for the development of supportive and affordable housing .

Supportive housing is a combination of affordable housing and supportive services designed 
to help vulnerable individuals and families use stable housing as a platform for health, 
recovery and personal growth . The Homeless System Pillar Report states, “All people can 
achieve housing stability in permanent housing if they are provided the right supports, 
such as coordinating and building access to services is equally valuable for residents in 
affordable developments serving low- and moderate-income households as in supportive 
housing developments for the most vulnerable individuals and families .” Quality affordable 
and supportive housing requires resources for capital to build or renovate the housing unit, 
revenue to support operations at the property, and funding to support direct service or 
coordination to connect residents to services . Property owners and providers are challenged 
to identify and coordinate resources from a wide range of sources – public and private 
– and to repeat the resource search year after year to maintain continued services for
existing and new residents .

This 2022 Housing Funding Strategy provides information on various funding sources for 
supportive services, but also acknowledges the need to continuously seek new opportunities 
for partnerships and additional funding . There are many stakeholders across communities 
that have vested interest in supporting services for vulnerable populations, including 
mainstream and special population health programs . The following programs can provide 
service partnerships in supportive housing with careful attention to the agreements and 
relationships that enable services for supportive housing tenants:

California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM)
CalAIM is a multi-year initiative by the State of California Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS) to transform and strengthen Medi-Cal, offering the people served a more 
equitable, coordinated, and person-centered approach to service delivery . CalAIM is the 
state’s multiyear plan to transform and expand California’s Medi-Cal program with the 
goal of improving participants’ health outcomes by meeting participants’ comprehensive 
needs through coordinated services and the whole person care approach . CalAIM services 
in Orange County are delivered through CalOptima Health. A wide-array of new benefit are 
available to Medi-Cal recipient in Orange County, including enhanced care management, 
housing transition navigation services, housing tenancy and sustaining services, housing 
deposit support, recuperative and medical respite care, short-term post-hospitalization 
housing, day habilitation programs, personal care and homemaker services, medically 
tailored meals and medically supportive food as well as sobering center . 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 36 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA37HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Program of All-inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE)
The PACE program is a community-based Medicare and Medi-Cal program that provides a 
wide range of medical and social services to frail, community-dwelling elderly individuals . 
A person qualifies for PACE if she or he is 55 years of age or older, meets the requirement 
for skilled nursing home care, lives within a PACE service area and is able to live in 
the community safely . PACE program consists of an interdisciplinary team of health 
professionals that provides participants with coordinated care . Services include medical 
care, in-home care, therapy, rehabilitation services, social services, nutritional services, 
and transportation support . PACE providers also contract with mental health specialists 
to deliver behavioral health support . The array of services allows the participants to live 
independently at home and in the community . In Orange County PACE is provided by 
CalOptima Health, AltaMed and Innovative Integrated Health . There are successful models 
PACE supports provided in conjunction with affordable/supportive housing developments to 
create a coordinated and robust wrap-around service for seniors exiting homelessness and 
transition .

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Services
MHSA programs provide a variety of services to low-income adults living with severe and 
persistent mental illness, and children living with severe emotional disorders and their 
families . In conjunction with supportive housing, MHSA programs are designed to help 
individuals and families break the cycle of homelessness, improve mental and physical 
health well-being, enhance employment readiness and ultimately be successful in their 
housing placements, and integration into the community . Supportive services programs 
are provided on-site or in the participant’s homes, promoting easy access to services . 
In addition, most housing sites are located near public transportation routes in order to 
enhance residents’ access to transportation, as many residents do not own a car . To be 
eligible for MHSA-funded supportive housing, a person must be diagnosed with severe and 
persistent mental illness or children diagnosed with severe emotional disorders and are 
experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness . 

Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) 
FQHCs are community-based health service providers that deliver health care and other 
supportive services to vulnerable and underserved population in a specific geographic 
area . FQHCs are designed to provide comprehensive and culturally competent primary 
health care, as well as supportive services such as case management, behavioral health, 
health education, nutritional services, translation, and transportation . FQHCs in Orange 
County is a vital service utilized by supportive housing tenant. Through the multitude of 
health and supportive services, participants are able to meet their health needs, enhance 
their individual wellbeing and thus improve their housing stability and break the cycle of 
homelessness .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 37 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA38HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding – Public Services Allocation
The County of Orange (County) and Entitlement Cities in Orange County can use up to 15% 
of their annual CDBG entitlement for social service type programs . These jurisdictions could 
potentially fund private, non-profit or other organizations that provide resident supportive 
services to tenants in supportive housing developments . This is not an ongoing operational 
source of funding because organizations must compete for the funding each year, but it 
could provide some additional resources for programming on an annual basis for supportive 
housing developments .

Additional Service Partners:
• Health Partners: It is important to identify local health partners (such as hospitals,

crisis centers, substance use disorder treatment services, and other health
resources in Orange County) who provide responsive services that can assist in
maintaining residential stability in housing . 

• Local Philanthropy: In addition, local philanthropy will be a critical partner in all
of these efforts, providing crucial supports to address funding gaps and spurring
innovative approaches to ending homelessness in Orange County .

Potential Future Funding Sources for production and/or operation of 
affordable/supportive housing:

• Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program (HHAP)
• HOME American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
• Portfolio Reinvestment Program (PRP)
• Excess Sites Local Government Matching Grant Program (LGMG)
• Current funding proposals/propositions that are expected as upcoming ballot

measures

Support Services Needs and Funding Gap
A critical element of supportive housing is tenant centered support services which enable 
supportive housing tenants to connect with the services that meet their health and 
behavioral health needs and support housing retention . It is estimated that the funding 
gap for the support services needed for the 2,396 unit goal is $350 million . 10

10 This is the projected annual services cost gap over 15 years of operations. This estimate takes into account available programs and services that 
are projected to be available for supportive housing tenants such as  County of Orange Health Care Agency Mental Health and Recovery Services, 
Veterans Affairs Medical Center, CalAIM, and other in-kind  support services. It is estimated that the majority of tenants will have experiences of 
chronic homelessness and an average services costs of $15,000/year in the first year. 

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 38 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA39HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Cumulatively, in planning to create 2,700 units of supportive housing in the original 2018 
Housing Funding Strategy, there was a funding “gap” estimated at a total of $703 million 
(representing $353 million in funding needed for capital expenses to develop the properties 
and $350 million in rental/operating subsidies to ensure the supportive housing units 
are affordable to people with histories of homelessness), along with an additional gap in 
resources to provide services in supportive housing. This significant funding gap in capital 
and ongoing operating subsidies has greatly limited the supportive housing development 
pipeline to date, and will continue to limit future development if additional resources are not 
committed to supportive housing production .

Capital Funding Review
For comparison and analysis purposes, a review of the financial modeling used in 2018 
was completed and then updated for 2022 . In reviewing the projections provided below, 
please note that the 2018 Housing Funding Strategy estimated that the noted units (2,700) 
would be financed over six years but produced over a seven-year period. The 2022 funding 
projections are estimated for the anticipated units that need to be financed (2,396 total) 
over six years and also produced over a seven-year period . 

Capital Funding Needs Projections

CAPITAL FUNDING AND OPERATING SUBSIDY NEEDS

Costs and Funding 2018 Modeling 2022 Modeling Notes

Total # of Projected Supportive 
Housing Units

2,700 2,39611 

Total Cost Estimate $930,000,000 $1,317,800,000 Per unit total development 
costs have increased from 
approximately $345,000/unit 
to $550,000/unit

Projection of Total Funds Available 
(non-County/city sources)

$576,550,000 $988,350,000

Projection of Local Funding Gap 
(local sources needed – County 
(18%)/cities (7%))

$353,450,000
38%

$329,450,000
25%

Projection of capital funding 
needed from local sources in 
Orange County over the next 
six years:
• Local cities: 
  $92,246,000 (7%)
• Orange County:
  $237,204,000 (18%)12

11 This includes the updated 1,926 supportive housing unit production goal, plus the 470 supportive housing units that are assumed will be   
 added in 2024 and 2025 to the current Orange County supportive housing pipeline .
12 Projections also show a shortfall off $458,350,000 in funding from other sources that will need to be identified in order to meet the   
 projected unit goal, on the next page .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 39 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA40HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

The 2018 Housing Funding Strategy identified the importance of attracting significant 
additional capital investment in Orange County to maximize housing development, including 
ensuring affordable and supportive housing projects in Orange County were successful 
in securing funding from State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD), such as the Multi-Family Housing Program (MHP),13 the Veterans 
Housing and Homelessness Prevention (VHHP) Program, as well as annual requests for 
State Budget funding . The Housing Funding Strategy also noted that new funding sources 
were needed to meet the demand for funding .

In the financial modeling for the 2022 Housing Funding Strategy, the funding projections 
builds upon the success experienced by the County to date in attracting financial investment 
in supportive/affordable housing from non-local sources . The assumptions for development 
costs and funding availability were also updated, with the impacts heavily influenced by 
the pandemic . The total development cost estimate for supportive housing increased from 
approximately $345,000 per unit (2018) to approximately $550,000 per unit (2022); this 
represents a 59% increase in development costs over four years largely due to increasing 
land costs as well as pandemic-related construction supply cost increases which are 
expected to have an ongoing cost accelerator impact for several more years . 

The assumptions were also updated for projections of gap financing needed from local 
sources (city and County). On average, since 2018 about 5% to 7% of project gap financing 
was contributed by local cities and 18% to 20% by the County. These financial contributions 
were sufficient to allow housing developers to leverage other state, federal and/or private 
funding sources to finance the development of supportive/affordable housing in the County. 

The following chart summarizes the projections of capital financing needed to develop 
supportive housing in Orange County, based on the projected goals

Capital Financing Summary 

2018 Estimates
(2,700 unit goal)

2022 Estimates
(2,396 unit goal)

Local Financing (Cities and County) $200,800,000 $329,450,000

State HCD Funding $63,750,000 $90,000,000 .00

9% Low Income Housing Tax Credits $48,000,000 $68,000,000 .00

4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits $120,000,000 $170,000,000 .00

Mortgage/Bonds $132,000,000 $185,000,000 .00

Other Sources (e .g . Deferred Developer Fee; AHP; etc .) $12,000,000 $17,000,000 .00

Total projected available (all sources) $576,550,000 $859,450,000

Total Capital Funding Needed to reach unit goals: $930,000,000 $1,317,800,000

Total Capital Gap: -$353,450,000 .00 -$458,350,000

13  Orange County projects have not received any MHP funding commitments to date .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 40 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA41HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Operating and Supportive Services Subsidy Review
The 2018 Housing Funding Strategy identified a clear need for additional operating/
rental subsidies to successfully develop 2,700 financially viable supportive housing units, 
recognizing the extremely low incomes of people coming from homelessness. There was 
operating subsidy gap as well as an estimated shortfall in subsidy for supportive housing 
units . In 2022, unfortunately, the situation is not better . The County is committing all 
available locally controlled operating subsidies (including Project Based Section 8 Housing 
Choice Vouchers, as well as other special purpose operating subsidies), and actively 
pursuing any opportunities to bring additional operating subsidies to Orange County . This 
means that there is a projected operating subsidy gap for all of the projected operating 
subsidy need (2,396) for supportive housing units in Orange County .

Operating/Rental Subsidy Needs

2018 Modeling 2022 Modeling

Total # of Projected Supportive Housing Units 2,700 2,396

Estimated Operating Subsidy Gap (15 years) $350,000,000 $495,000,000

Estimated shortfall of rental/operating subsidies for 
supportive housing units 1,375 1,69614 

14  Assumes commitment of 100 operating subsidies per year (e.g. Project Based Section 8 or Capitalized Operating Subsidy Reserve (COSR)   
     from local Orange County sources .

CASA PALOMA
MIDWAY CITY (ORANGE COUNTY) 

AMERICAN FAMILY HOUSING

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 41 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA42HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

In building on the successful and unprecedented investments in supportive housing across 
Orange County since 2018, the following recommendations outline specific strategies to 
continue to maximize supportive housing production in the Orange County region:

n Maximize competitiveness for capital and operating funding by aligning local, flexible   
 resource commitments .

n Dedicate additional funding to housing development and operating subsidies; continue to  
 refine funding policies that maximizes supportive housing developers’ ability to attract   
 other investors .

n Maximize the ability of all Public Housing Authorities (PHA) in the region to use Special   
 Purpose Vouchers and Project-Based Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers; up to the caps  
 allowed for the available tenant-based vouchers managed by a PHA to be project-based  
 to a specific unit in a development, based on available funding (the subsidy remains with  
 the unit) .

n Continue building investments from the 34 cities and the County of Orange in the   
 Orange County Housing Finance Trust .

n Explore the outcomes of the Permanent Local Housing Allocation funding and the   
 possibility of investing funds in supportive housing production or operations .

n Prioritize supportive housing for people experiencing chronic homelessness and design   
 and invest in supportive housing resources for special populations, including veterans,   
 seniors, Transitional Aged Youth, and people with a history of justice involvement .

n Build partnerships with mainstream supportive services (e.g. Federally Qualified
 Health Centers; Managed Care/CalOptima Health; California Advancing and Innovating 
 Medi-Cal (CalAIM) and Program for All Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) initiatives;   
 etc .) .

n Build on collaborative regional investments in supportive housing development and   
 pursue an expanded Coordinated Funding structure . This allows funders to develop
 shared priorities to target beneficiaries and improve service delivery. Coordinate    
 discussions between funders focused on breaking down barriers and “silos” and helping  
 to realize common goals and benefits. 

n Incorporate the best practices, guiding principles and commitments of the Housing
 Pillar as detailed in the Homeless Systems Pillar Report into the development of    
 supportive housing to ensure stability and sustainability for people exiting from
 homelessness into housing, as created by the County’s Commission to End    
 Homelessness and accepted by the Board of Supervisors .

2022 HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY 
RECOMMENDATIONS & NEXT STEPS

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 42 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA43HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

APPENDIX | ACRONYMS/DEFINITIONS

Affordable housing: A general term applied to public- and private-sector efforts to help low- and moderate- 
income people purchase or lease housing. As defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), any housing accommodation for which a resident/tenant household pays 30% or less of its 
income .

Area Median Income (AMI): A figure calculated by HUD based on census data, for specific size households in 
a specific area. The median income divides the income distribution into two equal groups, one having incomes 
above the median, and the other having incomes below the median .

At risk of chronic homelessness: An adult or older adult with a serious mental disorder or seriously 
emotionally disturbed children or adolescents who are exiting institutionalized settings such as jail or prison, 
hospitals, or long-term residential treatment and were experiencing homelessness prior to admission; 
transition- age youth (TAY) experiencing homelessness or with significant barriers to housing stability and with 
a history of foster care or involvement with the juvenile justice system; and persons, including TAY, who prior 
to entering into a facility or institutional care such as a state hospital, hospital behavioral health unit, hospital 
emergency room, institute for mental disease, psychiatric health facility, mental health rehabilitation center, 
skilled nursing facility, developmental center, residential treatment program, residential care facility, community 
crisis center, board and care facility, prison, parole, jail or juvenile detention facility, or foster care, have a 
history of experiencing homelessness with one or more episodes in the 12 months prior to entering into one 
of the above-mentioned facilities . A person’s history of experiencing homelessness may be documented within 
a local coordinated entry system. The definition of “homeless” according to HUD 24 CFR Section 578.3 and its 
length-of-stay limitations shall not apply to those who have resided in the above-named settings; and homeless 
persons who prior to entry into the above-named settings resided in any kind of publicly or privately operated 
temporary housing, including congregate shelters, transitional, interim, or bridge housing, or hotels/motels .

At risk of homelessness: An individual or family that is coming out of a treatment program, institution, 
transitional living program, halfway house, or jail and has no place to go; is living in a situation where they are 
at great risk of losing their housing; is in need of supportive services to maintain their tenancy; or is living in an 
inappropriate housing situation (i .e ., substandard housing, overcrowding, etc .) .

Capitalized operating subsidy reserve (COSR): The reserve established to address project operating deficits
attributable to units assisted with rental subsidies .

Case management: The overall coordination of an individual’s use of services, which may include medical and 
mental health services, substance use services, and vocational training and employment. Although the definition 
of case management varies with the model it follows, local requirements, and staff roles, a case manager often 
assumes responsibilities for outreach, advocacy, and referral on behalf of individual clients .
 
Chronic Homeless/Chronically homeless: HUD defines this as an individual or family who: (i) is homeless 
and lives or resides in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter; (ii) 
has been homeless and living or residing in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an 
emergency shelter continuously for at least year or on at least four separate occasions in the last three years; 
and (iii) has an adult head of household (or a minor head of household if no adult is present in the household) 
with a diagnosable substance use disorder, serious mental illness, developmental disability, post-traumatic 
stress disorder, cognitive impairments resulting from a brain injury, or chronic physical illness or disability, 
including the co-occurrence of two or more of those conditions. Additionally, the statutory definition includes 
as chronically homeless a person who currently lives or resides in an institutional care facility, including a jail, 

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 43 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA44HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

substance abuse or mental health treatment facility, hospital, or other similar facility, and has resided there for 
fewer than 90 days if such person met the other criteria for homeless prior to entering that facility .

Continuum of Care: Defined by HUD as “a community plan to organize and deliver housing and services 
to meet the specific needs of people who are homeless as they move to stable housing and maximize self-
sufficiency. It includes action steps to end homelessness and prevent a return to homelessness.”

Coordinated Entry System (CES): The system that ensures all people experiencing a housing crisis 
have fair and equal access, and are quickly identified, assessed for, referred, and connected to housing and 
homeless assistance based on their needs and strengths, no matter where or when they present for services . 
This moves from being project focused to client focused and eliminates different forms and assessment 
processes, maximizes resources by matching highest need clients with most intensive resources, and increases 
coordination .

Cost Burdened Households: A household is said to be cost-burdened when it pays more than 30 percent of its 
income toward housing expenses . 

Disability Income: Social Security Disability Income (SSDI) offers cash benefits for people with disabilities who
have made payroll contributions to the federal social security program while they were employed .

Dually diagnosed/co-occurring: Dual diagnosis (also referred to as co-occurring) is a term for when someone 
simultaneously experiences a mental illness and substance use diagnosis . Either diagnosis — mental illness or 
substance use - can develop first.

Extremely Low-Income Household/Rent: A household that has a gross household income that does not 
exceed the greater of the Poverty Guidelines as published and periodically updated by the Department of Health 
and Human Services or the 30% of the Area Median Income for the county in which the household is located, 
as calculated by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) . Low Income Rent is the annual 
rental rate that is charged to an extremely low-income household that does not exceed 30% of 30% of the Area 
Median Income for the county in which the household is to reside .

Homeless: HUD defines literal homelessness as an: (1) individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and 
adequate nighttime residence, meaning: (i) has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place 
not meant for human habitation; (ii) is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide 
temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels paid 
for by charitable organizations or by federal, state, and local government programs); (iii) is exiting an institution 
where (s)he has resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for 
human habitation immediately before entering that institution; (2) an individual or family who will imminently 
lose their primary residence: (i) within 14 days of application for homeless assistance; (ii) no subsequent 
residence has been identified; (iii) the individual or family lacks the resources or support networks
— such as family, friends, faith-based or other social networks — needed to obtain other permanent housing;
(3) unaccompanied youth under age 25, or families with children and youth who do not otherwise qualify as 
homeless; (4) an individual or family who: (i) is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking and (ii) has no other residence and; (iii) lacks the resources or support 
networks, such as family, friends, and faith-based or other social networks, to obtain other permanent housing .
 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD): The U .S . Department of Housing and Urban Development was 
created in 1965 to administer programs of the federal government that provide housing assistance as a way to 
develop the nation’s communities .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 44 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA45HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

HUD Homeless Management Information System (HMIS): A local information technology system 
used to collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness and persons at risk of experiencing homelessness .

Justice Involved Individuals: Someone who has been subject to an arrest and/or the adjudication process or 
otherwise involved with the justice system, including the jail, parole and/or probation systems . 

Low Income Household/Rent: A household that has a gross household income that does not exceed 80% of 
the Area Median Income for the county in which the household is located, as published by the US Department 
of Housing and Urban Development . Low Income Rent is the annual rental rate that is charged to a low-income 
household that does not exceed 30% of 80% of the Area Median Income for the county in which the household 
is to reside .

Medi-Cal: California’s Medicaid health care program . It pays for a variety of medical services for children and
adults with limited income and resources . Medi-Cal is supported by federal and state taxes .

Noncompetitive Allocation: NPLH funds that are distributed by formula allocation to each county based on
their 2017 homeless Point-In-Time Count .

No Place Like Home (NPLH) population: Populations identified in Welfare and Institutions Code Section 
5600 .3(a) and (b), adults and older adults with a serious mental disorder or seriously emotionally disturbed 
children or adolescents who are homeless, chronically homeless, or at risk of chronic homelessness . This 
includes persons with co-occurring mental and physical disabilities or co-occurring mental and substance use 
disorders .

Overcrowded Housing: A home where the number of occupants is greater than the number of total rooms; an 
average of more than one person per room . In overcrowded homes, it is not uncommon for people to double up 
or triple up in the available bedrooms or for people to convert a living room or kitchen into a sleeping space .

Permanent supportive housing: Permanent supportive housing is an intervention that combines affordable 
housing assistance with voluntary support services to address the needs of chronically homeless people . The 
services are designed to build independent living and tenancy skills and connect people with community-based 
health care, treatment, and employment services .

Point-in-Time Count (PITC): A count of sheltered and unsheltered people experiencing homelessness on a 
single night in January . HUD requires that Continuums of Care conduct an annual count of people experiencing 
homelessness who are sheltered in emergency shelter, transitional housing, and safe havens on a single night . 
Continuums of Care also must conduct a count of unsheltered people experiencing homelessness every other 
year (odd numbered years) .

Poverty Rate: The ratio of the number of people (in a given age group) whose income falls below the poverty 
line; taken as half the median household income of the total population .

Rapid rehousing: An intervention designed to help individuals and families that do not need intensive and 
ongoing supports to quickly exit homelessness and return to permanent housing . Rapid rehousing assistance 
is offered without preconditions (i .e ., employment, income, absence of criminal record, or sobriety) and the 
resources and services provided are tailored to the unique needs of the individuals and families .

>>>

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 45 of 46



ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA46HOUSING FUNDING STRATEGY: 2022 UPDATE

Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA): Quantifies the need for housing within each local 
government jurisdiction during a specified land use planning period; it is mandated by State Housing Law as 
part of the periodic process of updating local housing elements of the General Plan . Communities use RHNA in 
land use planning, prioritizing local resource allocation, and in deciding how to address identified existing and 
future housing needs resulting from population, employment and household growth .

Section 8 Rental Assistance: A rental subsidy that makes up the difference between what those in the low-
income household can afford to pay for rent, and a contract rent established by HUD for an adequate housing 
unit. Subsidies are either attached to specific units in a property (project-based), or are portable and move with 
the tenants that receive them (tenant-based) .

Subsidy: Financial assistance from the government to make the cost of housing affordable based on the
household’s income level .

Supplemental Security Income (SSI): Federal cash benefits for people aged 65 and over, the blind, or 
disabled. Benefits are based on income and living arrangement.

Supportive Housing: Permanent housing that has no time limit on residency and in which housing assistance 
(long term leasing or rental assistance) and supportive services are provided to assist households with at least 
one member (adult or child) with a disability in achieving housing stability . It is typically for those persons 
lacking housing who face a multitude of complex medical, mental health and/or substance use issues that are 
co-occurring .

Transitional-Aged Youth (TAY): This group is often characterized as unaccompanied youth and young adults 
between the ages of 18-24 . Reasons for TAY experiencing homelessness are diverse and can include family 
conflict, abuse or neglect, poverty, aging out of foster care, and rejection over sexual orientation. As such, the
service needs of this population are unique and vary from those of adults and younger youth .

Very Low-Income Household/Rent: A household that has a gross household income that does not exceed 
50% of the Area Median Income for the county in which the household is located, as published by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) . Low Income Rent is the annual rental rate that is 
charged to a very low-income household that does not exceed 30% of 50% of the Area Median Income for the 

county in which the household is to reside .

Agenda Item 3 
Attachment A

Page 46 of 46



Agenda Item 4 
Apply for grant funding to 

create a new Trust Accessory 
Dwelling Unit Loan Program. 

  



1 | P a g e  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 4 

 

REQUEST FOR ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST (TRUST) BOARD ACTION 

 

MEETING DATE:    January 26, 2023 

 

SUBJECT:  Authorize the Trust Manager to apply for grant funding to create a new 
Trust Accessory Dwelling Unit Loan Program. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

AUTHORIZE THE TRUST MANAGER TO APPLY FOR CALOPTIMA HEALTH NOTICE OF FUNDING 
OPPORTUNITY AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS REGIONAL EARLY 
ACTION PLANNING GRANT FUNDING TO CREATE A NEW TRUST ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT 
LOAN PROGRAM. 

 

 

_________________________ 
Adam B. Eliason, Manager 
 

BACKGROUND: 

The updated 2022 Trust Strategic Plan includes a strategic component goal of aggressive 
fundraising strategy and specifically to “subscribe and track various other funding possibilities 
and explore ways in which the Trust can apply for funding.” 

Trust staff has identified two additional funding sources and seeks Board approval to apply for 
these funding sources to create a new Trust Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Loan Program.  
ADU’s have been known by many names: granny flats, in-law units, backyard cottages, 
secondary units and more.  An ADU is accessory to a primary residence and has complete 
independent living facilities for one or more persons and has a few variations:  

• Detached: The unit is separated from the primary structure.  
• Attached: The unit is attached to the primary structure.  
• Converted Existing Space: Space (e.g., master bedroom, attached garage, storage area, 

or similar use, or an accessory structure) on the lot of the primary residence that is 
converted into an independent living unit.  



2 | P a g e  
 

• Junior ADU: A specific type of conversion of existing space that is contained entirely 
within an existing or proposed single-family residence. 

BENEFITS: 

ADUs are an affordable type of home to construct because they do not require paying for land, 
major new infrastructure, or structured parking.  ADUs can provide a source of income for 
homeowners. ADUs can provide as much living space as many newly built apartments and 
condominiums.   

The intent of new Trust ADU Loan Program would be to create additional affordable housing 
units in a short period of time and for a low subsidy amount per unit.   

FUNDING: 

On January 3, 2023, CalOptima Health released a Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) to 
support the increase of permanent housing units throughout Orange County.  All applications 
are due by January 31, 2023.   

Additionally, Trust Staff has been discussing with Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG) Staff regarding their Regional Early Action Planning (REAP 2.0) grant 
funding.  SCAG will be releasing their NOFO sometime in January or February and has 
prioritized funding directly to housing trusts in the SCAG region.  Preliminary discussions 
indicate that their REAP 2.0 NOFO will allow an ADU Loan Program to be funded.  The REAP 2.0 
application deadline will likely be in April 2023. 

ADU LOAN PROGRAM: 

The details of the proposed new Trust ADU Loan Program have not been completed and will 
depend upon the parameters set by both funding sources and what will be acceptable to 
homeowners considering an ADU on their property.   

In summary, the Trust ADU Loan Program will likely be a deferred loan and/or forgivable loan to 
the homeowner.  In either case the homeowner will not make monthly payments on the loan 
and either repay the loan at time of resale or be forgiven at some point in the future.  In return, 
the homeowner will covenant that the ADU will be rented to income qualifying tenants for a 
certain period of years.  That affordability covenant is still being determined and will hopefully 
provide a Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) credit to the city where the ADU is 
located.   

The Trust will manage the ADU loan program with administrative funding provided from a 
portion of the grant funding.  Trust staff will work collaboratively with other service agencies 
and partners that will help establish a team approach that connects homeowners with those 
entities that can make the process as smooth as possible.  The Trust is speaking with service 
providers and housing navigators that will provide tenant selection options, permitting 



3 | P a g e  
 

consultants, manufactured ADU companies, financing entities, housing authorities for voucher 
tenants, and others.   

The California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) provides a $40,000 pre-development grant to 
homeowners that construct an ADU.  The Trust ADU loan program will provide between 30%-
50% of the construction funding needed to build the ADU, depending upon the size and other 
homeowner selection options.  The remaining costs to complete the ADU will need to be either 
cash from the homeowner and/or some sort of loan the homeowner would obtain such as a 
home equity loan/line of credit.   

 



Agenda Item 5 
Request for Proposal for 

mapping services. 
  



 

1 | P a g e  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 5 

 

REQUEST FOR ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST (TRUST) BOARD ACTION 

 

MEETING DATE: January 26, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Authorize Trust Manager to issue Request for Proposal for mapping 
services. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Adam B. Eliason, Manager 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

AUTHORIZE TRUST MANAGER TO ISSUES REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR MAPPING SERVICES. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2021, the Trust was the recipient of $600,000 in administrative grant funding from the 
Orange County Council of Governments (OCCOG). One of the grant funded tasks for the Trust to 
complete is an upgrade to the existing Trust website regarding mapping and project data of 
affordable housing developments in Orange County.   

The grant agreement describes this task as: 

“OCHFT’s deliverables shall include the updated website GIS map to help OCHFT 
identify communities within Orange County that are most in need of housing 
resources, and to track the progress of the development of 2,700 new PSH units 
by 2025. The website includes existing affordable housing developments 
throughout Orange County, links to housing resources for residents in need of 
housing assistance, and statistical information about neighborhoods throughout 
the County collected from the US Census and the Orange County Homeless 
Point-in-Time Count to identify where the housing needs are most acute in 
Orange County.” 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

The grant agreement provides for $70,000 in funding for this task, which is included in the 
Trust’s approved operating budget for FY22/23. 

Trust staff has prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) (see attachment A) to solicit bids to 
complete this task in accordance with the Trust’s procurement policy. Trust staff has met with 
and discussed how an enhanced GIS mapping tool for affordable housing in Orange County 
would be most beneficial to affordable housing developers, those seeking affordable housing, 
and the public at large. Additionally, Trust staff did an informal survey of affordable housing 
mapping tools for other regions to identify best practices and other features that would benefit 
the Trust’s efforts in creating a mapping tool. The attached Mapping Services RFP incorporates 
the requirements of the grant agreement with OCCOG, as well as other features identified by 
Trust staff that would enhance the Trust’s mapping tool.  

A copy of the Mapping Services RFP is attached to this staff report.  If approved, Staff will issue 
the RFP, review applications, and bring a recommendation to the Trust Board at the March 
2023 meeting.  Staff recommends approval of this agenda item.   

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Request for Proposal for Mapping Services  



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

Request for Proposal 
 

Affordable Housing Mapping Services 
 

 

 
 

1 League #62335 

Irvine, CA  92602 

(909) 706-7193 

 

 

Key RFP Dates 
Issue Date: January 26, 2023 

Proposal Submittal Deadline: February 17, 2023 

  



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

The Orange County Housing Finance Trust (“OCHFT” or “Trust”) is issuing this Request for 
Proposal for Affordable Housing Mapping Services to engage the services of an individual or 
firm (Consultant) to create an affordable housing dashboard map as more specifically described 
below. This RFP is not a solicitation for employment or posting of a job opening with the Trust. 

OCHFT Background 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust is a Joint Powers Authority formed in March 2019 
between the County of Orange and 26 cities in Orange County, California. A complete list of 
member cities can be found in Attachment 1.  

The mission of the Trust is to strengthen the communities in Orange County by financing the 
development of affordable housing for homeless and low-income individuals and families. The 
Trust is working to achieve this mission by contributing to the construction of 2,700 permanent 
supportive housing units and working to secure funding that will contribute to additional 
affordable housing units by 2025. 

During its first three years of operation, the Trust has awarded over $28.4 million to 16 
affordable housing communities throughout Orange County. The Trust expects to be able to 
award approximately $10 million per year through 2025 for additional affordable communities in 
the County, and is looking for additional funding from private donations and other government 
sources so it may continue to provide financing for communities past 2025.  

Scope of Services 
Consultant shall provide services and advice to the Trust’s Board of Directors and staff, and be 
informed about the Trust’s mission, finances, operations, history, and accomplishments.  As 
more precisely detailed below, Consultant shall develop an online mapping application hosted 
through ArcGIS Hub, Mapbox, or similar platform.  

The mapping application will include two separate maps, intended for different audiences.  

The first map is intended to be for the general public. It will include information about existing 
and proposed affordable housing developments. The intent is for people looking for affordable 
housing to be able to use this map to identify affordable communities where they can apply to 
live. This map needs to have a filter that allows people to select criteria such as bedroom count, 
income level, and population served so they can limit the results to properties for which they are 
eligible. 

This map will include some of the same information that is currently included on the map 
provided on the Trust’s website at ochft.org/developments, which the Trust has available as an 
Excel spreadsheet. Information about each development will include:

• Development name 
• Development status 
• Development address 
• Developer name 

• Service Planning Area 
• Total number of units 
• Number of affordable units 

https://ochft.org/developments


Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

• Number of permanent supportive 
housing units 

• Estimated construction start date 
• Estimated construction completion 

date 

• Unit Mix (including income and 
bedroom count) 

• Populations served (families, 
veterans, special needs, homeless) 

• Property manager contact 
information

The second map is intended to be used by affordable housing developers, county and city staff, 
and housing advocates. The map will be a county-wide heatmap showing potential neighborhood 
amenity scoring for 9% tax credits. Amenities that are scored include:

• Bus & rail stops with 
frequency of service 

• Public parks 
• Community centers 
• Public libraries 
• Grocery stores 

• Public elementary schools 
• Senior Centers 
• Medical clinics 
• Hospitals 
• Pharmacies 
• CTCAC/HCD Opportunity Areas

Specific tasks to be undertaken are described below. 

1) Kickoff Meeting 
• Meet with Trust staff to fully develop a scope of needs and desires for the mapping 

application. 
• Prepare meeting agenda and notes.  

 
Deliverables 

• Meeting agenda 
• Meeting notes 

2) Develop Mockup 
• Prepare graphical mockup of website for review by Trust staff. It is expected that the 

mockup will be a static, non-working representation of what the mapping application will 
look like. 

• Include as many different views of the mapping application as necessary to convey the 
complete user and administrative experience of using the application. Views may include, 
but should not be limited to, landing page, property information display, finance scoring 
map, and administrative backend. 

• Revise mockup according to Trust staff direction. (Up to three rounds of revisions.) 
 
Deliverables 
• Website mockup with revisions 

3) Develop Mapping Application  



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

• Create the mapping application in accordance with the Trust’s approved mockup.  
• Populate map with initial information, including existing housing developments and 

community amenities for finance scoring calculations. 
 
Deliverables 
• Mapping application 

4) Mapping Application Training & Hosting 
• Train Trust Staff on updating mapping information, including adding and modifying 

mapped housing developments, and adding and modifying community amenities. 
• Host mapping application for a period of three years. 

 
Deliverables 
• Mapping training 
• Mapping hosting 

A model professional services contract for this Scope of Services is included as Attachment 2 

Preparation of Proposals 
Proposals shall be accepted via email only to ghenninger@ochft.org no later than February 17, 
2023, at 5:00 PM. Proposals should be sent as a single PDF file.  Do not send hard-copy of 
proposal. 

The proposal shall include the following information: 

1) Cover Letter/Letter of Transmittal. The proposer shall provide a Cover Letter/Letter of 
Transmittal addressed to Adam Eliason, Manager, Orange County Housing Finance Trust. 

2) Contact Person. The proposer shall provide the name and title, address, telephone number, 
and e-mail address of the contact person for the proposal evaluation period. 

3) Validity Period. The proposer shall specify a proposal validity period of no less than 120 
days from the Proposal Submittal Deadline. 

4) Subcontractors. The proposer shall designate each entity that is proposed to perform work or 
render services pursuant to a subcontract, detailing the extent of subcontracting 
contemplated. Information regarding suppliers is required only if the supply subcontract is 
anticipated to have a value exceeding 10% of the proposed value of the prime contract. 

5) Conflicts of Interest. The proposer shall provide a completed Attachment 3, Conflict-of-
Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

The following provides guidelines for the format and content of the proposal and the approach to 
be used in its development and presentation. The intent of this RFP is to encourage responses 

mailto:ghenninger@ochft.org


Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

that clearly communicate the proposer’s understanding of the Trust’s requirements and its 
approach to successfully provide the services on time and within budget. Only that information 
which is essential to an understanding and evaluation of the Proposal should be submitted. Items 
not specifically and explicitly related to the RFP and Proposal (e.g., brochures, marketing 
material, etc.) will not be considered in the evaluation. 

Proposer must provide the following minimum requirements: 

• Provide a brief profile of the firm, including the types of services offered; the year 
founded; form of the organization (corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship); number, 
size and location of offices; and number of employees. 

• Describe how the firm proposes to staff this contract. Provide education, experience and 
applicable professional credentials of project staff. Identify the principals who will be 
engaged in the day-to-day activities for the Trust, their current assignments, level of 
commitment to those assignments, availability for this assignment, and how long each 
person has been with the firm. Furnish brief resumes (not more than two pages each) for 
the proposed principals and project staff who will work on the project.  

• Identify subcontractors, if any, by company name, address, contact person, telephone 
number and project function. Describe proposers experience working with each 
subcontractor. 

• Include the firm’s organization chart, clearly delineating the communication/reporting 
relationships among the firm’s proposed staff and the Trust. 

• Include a statement that the principals and key personnel will be available to the extent 
proposed for the duration of the project acknowledging that no person designated as 
“key” to the project shall be removed or replaced without the prior written concurrence of 
the Trust. 

• Describe the firm’s experience in providing communications services to joint powers 
authorities and/or other governmental agencies on housing related issues and provide 
examples of this work. 

• Describe the firm’s experience in performing services of a similar nature to that solicited 
in this RFP and highlight the participation in such services by the key personnel proposed 
for assignment to this project. Included in this experience is the list of social media 
accounts this firm has created, and for which it has or is currently providing social media 
content and/or is monitoring, particularly governmental agency accounts. Include all 
relevant dates and timeframes for the services provided.   

• Describe the experience of the principals and key personnel in working with joint power 
authorities and housing related issues. Provide samples of projects and programs. 

• In not more than five pages, describe your firm’s success in representing public agencies 
and other clients. 

• Provide examples of the scope of services for your current clients and narrative examples 
of accomplishments in achieving the requirements identified in the respective scopes of 
services.  

• Describe the firm’s proposed approach to representing the Trust. 



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

Compensation Proposal.  
The proposer shall deliver, with their proposal, Attachment 4, Compensation Proposal, 
specifying the cost of each task to complete, which shall include all expenses and other 
compensation for the proposer.  

Disclosure of Contributions.  

The proposer shall deliver, with their proposal, Attachment 5, Disclosure of Contributions, 
identifying all Trust Board members who received contributions from proposer within the 
preceding 12 months in excess of $250, or stating that no contributions were made that require 
disclosure. This disclosure requirement includes all “Parties” and “Participants” to this action as 
those terms are defined in Government Code §84308 (use extra forms as required). 

Confidential and Proprietary Information 

Proposals are not to be marked as confidential or proprietary. The County may refuse to consider 
any proposal so marked. Proposals submitted in response to this RFP may become subject to 
public disclosure per the requirements of the California Public Records Act, Government Code 
Section 6250 et seq. The County shall not be liable in any way for disclosure of any such 
records.  Additionally, all Proposals shall become the property of the Trust.  The Trust reserves 
the right to make use of any information or ideas in the Proposals submitted. 

Proposal Review and Selection 
1. The proposals shall be reviewed in accordance with the Trust’s Procurement Policy. 

 
2. The Trust shall convene an evaluation panel of at least three members to evaluate each 

responsive proposal. Criteria used as the basis for evaluation and ranking shall include: 

• Professional capability, demonstrated competence and specialized experience of the 
proposer, including existing workload and ability to meet schedules – 25%; 

• Work plan/methodology – 50%; including examples of previous work with public 
agencies.  

• Compensation Proposal – 25%; 

Proposals deemed to meet all minimum RFP requirements will be scored based on 
established criteria, which have been weighted and will be assigned points that measure the 
responsiveness to each identified criterion. The total number of points earned will be tallied 
for each Proposal, and the Proposals will be rank-ordered, based upon Offeror(s) submitted 
written materials. 

3. The Trust will rank the proposals, applying the foregoing evaluation criteria to the proposals. 
Upon completion of the evaluation process, the evaluation panel will summarize the 
strengths of each proposal, their scoring, and their rank-ordering for a decision by the Trust 
Board. 

 



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

4. The Trust may reject all proposals without further discussion or commence negotiations with 
the highest ranked proposer. If the Trust commences negotiations, the Trust may negotiate 
any component of the proposal. The proposer on the other hand, may raise issues only to the 
extent they are interrelated with negotiated topics raised by the Trust. 

 
5. Discussions and/or negotiations may be conducted with one or more Offerors. Each Offeror 

shall be accorded fair and equal treatment in conducting negotiations and there shall be no 
disclosure of any information derived from proposals submitted by competing Offerors. 

 
a. Concurrent negotiations. Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with 

Offerors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or contract award. 
b. Exclusive negotiations. Exclusive negotiations may be conducted with the Offeror 

whose proposal is determined in the source selection process to be most 
advantageous to the Trust. Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent 
to concurrent negotiations or may be conducted without requiring previous 
concurrent negotiations. Exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract 
award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful Offeror. If exclusive 
negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the Trust may enter 
into exclusive negotiations with the next highest ranked Offeror without the need 
to repeat the formal solicitation process. 

Instructions – Protest Procedures 
 
Any actual or prospective Proposer or Contractor who alleges a grievance by the solicitation or 
award of a contract may submit a grievance or protest to the Trust Manager at aeliason@ochft.org. 

 

1. All protests shall be typed under the protester’s letterhead and submitted in accordance 
with the provisions stated herein.  All protests shall include at a minimum the following 
information: 
 

a. The name, address and telephone number of the protester; 
 

b. The signature of the protester or the protester’s representative; 
 

c. The solicitation or contract number; 
 

d. A detailed statement of the legal and/or factual grounds for the protest; and 
 

e. The form of relief requested. 
 

 
2. Protest of Bid/Proposal Specifications: 

 



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

All protests related to bid or proposal specifications must be submitted no later than five 
(5) business days prior to the close of the bid or proposal.  Protests received after the five 
(5) business day deadline will not be considered by the Trust.  
 
In the event the protest of specifications is denied and the protester wishes to continue in 
the solicitation process, they must still submit a proposal prior to the close of the 
solicitation in accordance with the bid/proposal submittal procedures stated in this RFP.  
 

3. Protest of Award of Contract: 
 

In protests related to the award of a contract, the protest must be submitted no later than 
seven (7) business days after the notice of the proposed contract award is provided.  
Protests relating to a proposed contract award which are received after the seven (7) 
business day deadline will not be considered by the Trust.  

 
4. Protest Process: 

While a protest is in progress, the Trust may proceed with the solicitation or the contract 
unless the Trust Manager determines there is a reasonable probability that the protest will 
be sustained or that the stay of procurement is not contrary to the substantial interests of 
the Trust. The Trust Manager shall issue a written decision to the protestor within 14 days, 
including an explanation of the basis of the decision and a statement of the available 
appeals process. If the protest is sustained, in whole or part, the Trust Manager shall 
implement a remedy appropriate to the circumstances. 

 
5. Appeal Process: 

A protestor may appeal the decision of the Trust Manager to the Trust Board of Directors 
within seven (7) days from the date the decision is issued. The appeal shall contain all the 
information originally set forth in the protest, a copy of the decision of the Trust Manager; 
and the specific factual or legal error in the decision of the Trust Manager that forms the 
basis of the appeal. A decision by the Trust Board of Directors shall be final. 
 

 

  



Agenda Item 5 
Attachment A 

Attachment 1 
List of Trust Members 

 
 

1. Aliso Viejo 
2. Anaheim 
3. Buena Park 
4. Costa Mesa 
5. County of Orange 
6. Dana Point 
7. Fountain Valley 
8. Fullerton 
9. Garden Grove 
10. Huntington Beach 
11. Irvine 
12. Lake Forest 
13. Laguna Beach 
14. Laguna Hills

 
15. Laguna Niguel 
16. La Habra 
17. Mission Viejo 
18. Newport Beach 
19. Orange 
20. Placentia 
21. San Juan Capistrano 
22. Santa Ana 
23. Seal Beach 
24. Stanton 
25. Tustin 
26. Westminster 
27. Yorba Linda 

  



 

 

Attachment 2 
Model Contract 

MODEL/PROPOSED CONTRACT 
BETWEEN 

ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST 
AND 

[INSERT COMPANY NAME/TBD] 
FOR 

Mapping Services 
 

This Contract for Mapping Services, hereinafter referred to as “Contract” is made and entered into 
as of the date fully executed by and between the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 
with a place of business at 1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602: hereinafter referred to as “Trust”, 
and [Insert Company Name /TBD] with a place of business at [Insert Address/TBD]; hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor”, with Trust and Contractor sometimes referred to as “Party”, or 
collectively as “Parties”. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 
Attachment B – Compensation/Payment 

Attachment C – Staffing Plan 

i. RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, Trust issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Mapping Services; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor responded and represents that its proposed services shall meet 
or exceed the requirements and specifications of the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, the Trust Board of Directors has authorized the Trust Manager or their 
designee to enter into a Contract with Contractor for Mapping Services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

 

ii. ARTICLES 
 
I.   GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 



 

 

 
A. Governing Law and Venue: This Contract has been negotiated and executed in the state 

of California and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the state of 
California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Contract, the sole and 
exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, 
California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such 
court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394.  Furthermore, the parties 
specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for 
adjudication to another county. 

 
B. Entire Contract: This Contract, including Attachments A, B, and C which are attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, contains the entire Contract between the 
parties with respect to the matters herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties 
or undertakings other than those set forth herein or referred to herein.  No exceptions, 
alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on Trust unless authorized by Trust 
in writing.  Electronic acceptance of any additional terms, conditions or supplemental 
Contracts by any Trust employee or agent, including but not limited to installers of software, 
shall not be valid or binding on Trust unless accepted in writing by Trust’s Agent or 
designee. 

 
C. Amendments: No alteration or variation of the terms of this Contract shall be valid unless 

made in writing and signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not 
incorporated herein shall be binding on either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, 
substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on Trust unless authorized by Trust in writing. 

 
D. Taxes: Unless otherwise provided herein or by law, price quoted does not include California 

state sales or use tax.  Out-of-state Contractors shall indicate California Board of 
Equalization permit number and sales permit number on invoices, if California sales tax is 
added and collectable.  If no permit numbers are shown, sales tax will be deducted from 
payment.  The Auditor-Controller will then pay use tax directly to the State of California in 
lieu of payment of sales tax to the Contractor. 

 
E. Delivery: Time of delivery of goods or services is of the essence in this Contract.  Trust 

reserves the right to refuse any goods or services and to cancel all or any part of the goods 
not conforming to applicable specifications, drawings, samples or descriptions or services 
that do not conform to the prescribed statement of work.  Acceptance of any part of the 
order for goods shall not bind Trust to accept future shipments nor deprive it of the right to 
return goods already accepted at Contractor’s expense.  Over shipments and under 
shipments of goods shall be only as agreed to in writing by Trust.  Delivery shall not be 
deemed to be complete until all goods or services have actually been received and accepted 
in writing by Trust. 

 
F. Acceptance/Payment: Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Trust, 1) acceptance shall 

not be deemed complete unless in writing and until all the goods/services have actually been 
received, inspected, and tested to the satisfaction of Trust, and 2) payment shall be made in 
arrears after satisfactory acceptance. 



 

 

 
G. Warranty: Contractor expressly warrants that the goods covered by this Contract are 1) 

merchantable and good for the ordinary purposes for which they are used, and 2) fit for the 
particular purpose for which they are intended.  Acceptance of this order shall constitute an 
agreement upon Contractor’s part to indemnify, defend and hold Trust and its indemnities 
as identified in paragraph “Z” below, and as more fully described in paragraph “Z,” 
harmless from liability, loss, damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, 
incurred or sustained by Trust by reason of the failure of the goods/services to conform to 
such warranties, negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable state 
or federal codes, ordinances, orders, or statutes.  Such remedies shall be in addition to any 
other remedies provided by law. 

 
H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement: Unless otherwise expressly 

provided in this Contract, Contractor shall be solely responsible for clearing the right to use 
any patented or copyrighted materials in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor 
warrants that any software as modified through services provided hereunder will not 
infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right, or trade secret right of any third party.  
Contractor agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in 
paragraph “Z” below, it shall indemnify, defend and hold Trust and Trust Indemnitees 
harmless from any and all such claims and be responsible for payment of all costs, damages, 
penalties and expenses related to or arising from such claim(s), including, costs and 
expenses but not including attorney’s fees. 

 
I. Assignment: The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind 

the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.  Furthermore, 
neither the performance of this Contract nor any portion thereof may be assigned by 
Contractor without the express written consent of Trust.  Any attempt by Contractor to 
assign the performance or any portion thereof of this Contract without the express written 
consent of Trust shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this Contract. 

 
J. Non-Discrimination: In the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will 

comply with the requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage 
nor permit any subcontractors to engage in discrimination in employment of persons 
because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, 
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons.  Contractor 
acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject Contractor to penalties pursuant 
to Section 1741 of the California Labor Code. 

 
K. Termination: In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, Trust has the 

right to immediately terminate this Contract without penalty for cause or after 30 days’ 
written notice without cause, unless otherwise specified.  Cause shall be defined as any 
material breach of contract, any misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the Contractor.  
Exercise by Trust of its right to terminate the Contract shall relieve Trust of all further 
obligation. 

 



 

 

L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver: No term or provision of this Contract shall be deemed 
waived and no breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed 
by the party claimed to have waived or consented.  Any consent by any party to, or waiver 
of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver 
of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach. 

 
M. Independent Contractor: Contractor shall be considered an independent contractor and 

neither Contractor, its employees, nor anyone working under Contractor shall be considered 
an agent or an employee of Trust.  Neither Contractor, its employees nor anyone working 
under Contractor shall qualify for workers’ compensation or other fringe benefits of any 
kind through Trust. 

 
N. Performance: Contractor shall warrant all work under this Contract, taking necessary steps 

and precautions to perform the work to Trust’s satisfaction.  Contractor shall be responsible 
for the professional quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all 
documentation and other goods/services furnished by the Contractor under this Contract.  
Contractor shall perform all work diligently, carefully, and in a good and workmanlike 
manner; shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and 
supplies, shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by 
public authorities, including those of Trust required in its governmental capacity, in 
connection with performance of the work. If permitted to subcontract, Contractor shall be 
fully responsible for all work performed by subcontractors. 

 
O. Insurance Provisions: Prior to the provision of services under this Contract, the Contractor 

agrees to purchase all required insurance at Contractor’s expense, including all 
endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy the Trust that the insurance provisions of 
this Contract have been complied with.  Contractor agrees to keep such insurance coverage, 
Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit with the Trust during the entire term 
of this Contract.  In addition, all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as 
set forth herein for Contractor. 
Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract shall be covered under Contractor’s insurance as an Additional 
Insured or maintain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein 
for Contractor.  Contractor shall not allow subcontractors to work if subcontractors have 
less than the level of coverage required by Trust from Contractor under this Contract.  It is 
the obligation of Contractor to provide notice of the insurance requirements to every 
subcontractor and to receive proof of insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor to begin 
work.  Such proof of insurance must be maintained by Contractor through the entirety of 
this Contract for inspection by Trust representative(s) at any reasonable time. 

 

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance.  Any 
self-insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) 
shall specifically be approved by the Trust’s Risk Manager, or designee, upon review of 
Contractor’s current audited financial report.  If Contractor’s SIR is approved, Contractor, 
in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity provision(s) in this Contract, 
agrees to all of the following: 



 

 

 

1) In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold the Trust harmless against any and all 
liability, claim, demand or suit resulting from Contractor’s, its agents, employee’s 
or subcontractor’s performance of this Contract, Contractor shall defend the Trust 
at its sole cost and expense with counsel approved by Board of Directors against 
same; and 

 

2) Contractor’s duty to defend, as stated above, shall be absolute and irrespective of 
any duty to indemnify or hold harmless; and 

 

3) The provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply to any and all 
actions to which the duty to defend stated above applies, and the Contractor’s SIR 
provision shall be interpreted as though the Contractor was an insurer and the Trust 
was the insured. 

 

If the Contractor fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the Trust for the full term of this 
Contract, the Trust may terminate this Contract. 

 

Qualified Insurer: 
 

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of 
A- (Secure A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the 
most current edition of the Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or 
ambest.com).  It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business 
in the state of California (California Admitted Carrier). 

 

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the Trust retains the 
right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial 
ratings. 
 

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor shall provide the minimum 
limits and coverage as set forth below: 
 

Coverage Minimum Limits 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 aggregate 

Automobile Liability including coverage 
for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles 

$1,000,000 per occurrence 

Workers' Compensation Statutory 

Employers' Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Professional Liability Insurance $1,000,000 per claims made per occurrence 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Required Coverage Forms: 
The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad. 
The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, 
CA 0012, CA 00 20, or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad. 
Required Endorsements: 
The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which 
shall accompany the Certificate of insurance: 

1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13or a form at 
least as broad naming the Trust, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents 
and employees as Additional Insureds, or provide blanket coverage, which will 
state AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT. 

 

2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a 
form at least as broad evidencing that the Contractor’s insurance is primary and any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Trust shall be excess and non-
contributing. 

 

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement 
waiving all rights of subrogation against the Trust, its elected and appointed officials, 
officers, agents and employees or provide blanket coverage, which will state AS 
REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT. 
All insurance policies required by this Contract shall waive all rights of subrogation against 
the Trust, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting 
within the scope of their appointment or employment. 
Contractor shall notify Trust in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation 
and ten (10) days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice 
to Trust.  Failure to provide written notice of cancellation may constitute a material breach 
of the Contract, upon which the Trust may suspend or terminate this Contract. 
The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interest’s clause 
also known as a “separation of insured” clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy). 
Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the agency/department address listed on the 
solicitation. 
If the Contractor fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven 
(7) days of notification by CEO/Purchasing or the agency/department purchasing division, 
award may be made to the next qualified vendor. 
Trust expressly retains the right to require Contractor to increase or decrease insurance of 
any of the above insurance types throughout the term of this Contract.  Any increase or 
decrease in insurance will be as deemed by Trust Risk Manager as appropriate to adequately 
protect Trust. 
Trust shall notify Contractor in writing of changes in the insurance requirements.  If 
Contractor does not deposit copies of acceptable Certificates of Insurance and endorsements 



 

 

with Trust incorporating such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this 
Contract may be in breach without further notice to Contractor, and Trust shall be entitled 
to all legal remedies. 
The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit 
Contractor's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and 
requirements of this Contract, nor act in any way to reduce the policy coverage and limits 
available from the insurer. 
 

P. Changes: Contractor shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work 
without the Trust’s specific written approval. 

 
Q. Change of Ownership/Name, Litigation Status, Conflicts with Trust Interests: 

Contractor agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of Contractor’s business 
prior to completion of this Contract, and the Trust agrees to an assignment of the Contract, 
the new owners shall be required under the terms of sale or other instruments of transfer to 
assume Contractor’s duties and obligations contained in this Contract and complete them to 
the satisfaction of the Trust. 

 

Trust reserves the right to immediately terminate the Contract in the event the Trust 
determines that the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the Trust for the 
provision of services under the Contract.        

 

In addition, Contractor has the duty to notify the Trust in writing of any change in the 
Contractor’s status with respect to name changes that do not require an assignment of the 
Contract.  The Contractor is also obligated to notify the Trust in writing if the Contractor 
becomes a party to any litigation against the Trust, or a party to litigation that may 
reasonably affect the Contractor’s performance under the Contract, as well as any potential 
conflicts of interest between Contractor and Trust that may arise prior to or during the period 
of Contract performance. While Contractor will be required to provide this information 
without prompting from the Trust any time there is a change in Contractor’s name, conflict 
of interest or litigation status, Contractor must also provide an update to the Trust of its 
status in these areas whenever requested by the Trust.   

 

The Contractor shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or 
conditions that could result in a conflict with Trust interests.  In addition to the Contractor, 
this obligation shall apply to the Contractor’s employees, agents, and subcontractors 
associated with the provision of goods and services provided under this Contract.  The 
Contractor’s efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing rules and procedures 
preventing its employees, agents, and subcontractors from providing or offering gifts, 
entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to influence 
or appear to influence Trust staff or elected officers in the performance of their duties. 
 

R. Force Majeure: Contractor shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory 
performance penalties during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this 
Contract caused by any act of God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause 
beyond its reasonable control, provided Contractor gives written notice of the cause of the 
delay to Trust within 36 hours of the start of the delay and Contractor avails himself of any 
available remedies. 



 

 

 
S. Confidentiality: Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all Trust and Trust-

related records and information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and 
confidentiality that currently exist or exist at any time during the term of this Contract.  All 
such records and information shall be considered confidential and kept confidential by 
Contractor and Contractor’s staff, agents and employees. 

Contractor’s confidentiality obligations in this Contract and the obligations of this Section 
shall survive the termination or expiration of the Contract and all related subordinate 
contracts. 

T. Compliance with Laws: Contractor represents and warrants that services to be provided 
under this Contract shall fully comply, at Contractor’s expense, with all standards, laws, 
statutes, restrictions, ordinances, requirements, and regulations (collectively “laws”), 
including, but not limited to those issued by Trust in its governmental capacity and all other 
laws applicable to the services at the time services are provided to and accepted by Trust.  
Contractor acknowledges that Trust is relying on Contractor to ensure such compliance, and 
pursuant to the requirements of paragraph “Z” below, Contractor agrees that it shall defend, 
indemnify and hold Trust and Trust Indemnities harmless from all liability, damages, costs 
and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such laws. 

 
U.  [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.] 
 
V. Severability: If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Contract is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired or invalidated thereby. 

 
W. Attorney Fees: In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this 

Contract, each party shall bear their own attorney’s fees, costs and expenses. 
 
X. Interpretation: This Contract has been negotiated at arm’s length and between persons 

sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this Contract.  In addition, each 
party had been represented by experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel 
of their own choosing or has knowingly declined to seek such counsel despite being 
encouraged and given the opportunity to do so.  Each party further acknowledges that they 
have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this Contract by any other 
party hereto or by any person representing them, or both.  Accordingly, any rule or law 
(including California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require 
interpretation of any ambiguities in this Contract against the party that has drafted it is not 
applicable and is waived.  The provisions of this Contract shall be interpreted in a reasonable 
manner to effect the purpose of the parties and this Contract. 

 
Y. Employee Eligibility Verification: The Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all 

Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others 
and that all its employees performing work under this Contract meet the citizenship or alien 
status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and regulations.  The Contractor shall obtain, 



 

 

from all employees performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of 
employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes and regulations including, 
but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., 
as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended.  The Contractor shall retain 
all such documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed by the law. The 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by Trust, and hold 
harmless, the Trust, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any 
other liability which may be assessed against the Contractor or the Trust or both in 
connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or State statutes or regulations 
pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work under this 
Contract. 

 
Z. Indemnification: Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing 

by Trust, and hold Trust, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
those special districts and agencies which Trust’s Board of Directors acts as the governing 
Board (“Trust Indemnitees”) harmless from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or 
nature, including but not limited to personal injury or property damage, arising from or 
related to the services, products or other performance provided by Contractor pursuant to 
this Contract.  If judgment is entered against Contractor and Trust by a court of competent 
jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of Trust or Trust Indemnitees, 
Contractor and Trust agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by the court.   
Neither party shall request a jury apportionment. 

 
AA. Audits/Inspections: Contractor agrees to permit the Trust’s Auditor-Controller or the 

Auditor-Controller’s authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing 
firm hired by the Trust) access during normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, 
reports, files, financial records, supporting documentation, including payroll and accounts 
payable/receivable records, and other papers or property of Contractor for the purpose of 
auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this Contract.  The inspection and/or 
audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the Contract 
including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the Contract.  The Trust will provide 
reasonable notice of such an audit or inspection. 
The Trust reserves the right to audit and verify the Contractor’s records before final payment 
is made. 
Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years 
after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this 
Contract or by law.  Contractor agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who 
might reasonably have information related to such records.  Further, Contractor agrees to 
include a similar right to the Trust to audit records and interview staff of any subcontractor 
related to performance of this Contract. 
Should the Contractor cease to exist as a legal entity, the Contractor’s records pertaining to 
this agreement shall be forwarded to the Trust’s project manager. 
 

BB. Contingency of Funds: Contractor acknowledges that funding or portions of funding for 
this Contract may be contingent upon state budget approval; receipt of funds from, and/or 



 

 

obligation of funds by, the state of California to Trust; and inclusion of sufficient funding 
for the services hereunder in the budget approved by Trust’s Board of Directors for each 
fiscal year covered by this Contract.  If such approval, funding or appropriations are not 
forthcoming, or are otherwise limited, Trust may immediately terminate or modify this 
Contract without penalty. 

 
CC. Expenditure Limit: The Contractor shall notify the Trust assigned Agent in writing when 

the expenditures against the Contract reach 75 percent of the dollar limit on the Contract.  
The Trust will not be responsible for any expenditure overruns and will not pay for work 
exceeding the dollar limit on the Contract unless a change order to cover those costs has 
been issued. 

II. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

1. Scope of Contract: This Contract specifies the contractual terms and conditions by which 
the Trust will procure services from Contractor as set forth in the Scope of Work, attached 
hereto as Attachment A and incorporated by this reference. 

2. Term of Contract: This Contract shall commence on TBD or upon execution of all 
necessary signatures, whichever comes later, and continue for five calendar years from that 
date, unless otherwise terminated by Trust.  

3. Compensation/Payment: The Contractor agrees to accept the specified compensation, as 
set forth in Attachment B – Compensation/Payment, as full remuneration for performing all 
services and materials called for. The Contractor assumes responsibility for performance of 
all its duties and obligations hereunder.  

5. Usage: No guarantee is given by the Trust to the Contractor regarding usage of this 
Contract.  Usage figures, if provided, are approximations.  The Contractor agrees to supply 
services and/or commodities requested, as needed by the Trust, at rates/prices listed in the 
Contract, regardless of quantity requested. 

6. Adjustments-Scope of Work: No adjustments made to the scope of work will be 
authorized or paid for without prior written approval of the Trust assigned Agent.  

7.  Authorization Warranty: The Contractor represents and warrants that the person 
executing this Contract on behalf of and for the Contractor is an authorized agent who has 
actual authority to bind the Contractor to each and every term, condition and obligation of 
this Contract and that all requirements of the Contractor have been fulfilled to provide such 
actual authority.  
 

8.  [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.] 
 
9.  Breach of Contract: The failure of the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, 

covenants or conditions of this Contract shall be a material breach of this Contract.  In such 
event the Trust may, and in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or 
otherwise specified in this Contract: 



 

 

a. Terminate the Contract immediately, pursuant to Section K herein; 

b. Afford the Contractor written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such 
shorter time that may be specified in this Contract within which to cure the breach; 

c. Discontinue payment to the Contactor for and during the period in which the Contractor 
is in breach; and 

d. Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the Trust those 
monies disallowed pursuant to the above. 

 
10.  Civil Rights: Contractor attests that services provided shall be in accordance with the 

provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as 
amended; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and other applicable State 
and federal laws and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, sex or disability. 

 
11. [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.]  

  
12. Conditions Affecting Work: The Contractor shall be responsible for taking all steps 

reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under 
this Contract and to know the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost 
thereof.  Any failure by the Contractor to do so will not relieve Contractor from 
responsibility for successfully performing the work without additional cost to the Trust.  The 
Trust assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning the 
nature, location(s) or general conditions made by any of its officers or agents prior to the 
execution of this Contract, unless such understanding or representations by the Trust are 
expressly stated in the Contract. 

 
13. Conflict of Interest – Contractor’s Personnel: The Contractor shall exercise reasonable 

care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with 
the best interests of the Trust.  This obligation shall apply to the Contractor; the Contractor’s 
employees, agents, and subcontractors associated with accomplishing work and services 
hereunder.  The Contractor’s efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing 
precautions to prevent its employees, agents, and subcontractors from providing or offering 
gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to 
influence or appear to influence Trust staff or elected officers from acting in the best 
interests of the Trust. 

 
14. Conflict of Interest – Trust Personnel: The Trust Board of Directors policy prohibits its 

employees from engaging in activities involving a conflict of interest.  The Contractor shall 
not, during the period of this Contract, employ any Trust employee for any purpose. 

 
15. Contractor’s Records: The Contractor shall keep true and accurate accounts, records, 

books and data which shall correctly reflect the business transacted by the Contractor in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  These records shall be stored in 
Orange County for a period of three (3) years after final payment is received from the Trust.  



 

 

Storage of records in another county will require written approval from the Trust assigned 
Agent.  

 
16. Contractor Personnel – Reference Checks: The Contractor warrants that all persons 

employed to provide service under this Contract have satisfactory past work records 
indicating their ability to adequately perform the work under this Contract.  Contractor’s 
employees assigned to this project must meet character standards as demonstrated by 
background investigation and reference checks, coordinated by the agency/department 
issuing this Contract. 

 
17. Covenant against Contingent Fees: Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency 

has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or 
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona 
fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the 
Contractor for the purpose of getting business. 

 
For breach or violation of this warranty, the Trust shall have the right to terminate this 
Contract in accordance with the termination clause and, its sole discretion, to deduct from 
the Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such 
commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee from the Contractor.   
   

18. Data-Title to: All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the Trust data 
files or any Trust medium furnished to the Contractor in the performance of this Contract 
will at all times remain the property of the Trust.  Such data or information may not be used 
or copied for direct or indirect use by the Contractor after completion or termination of this 
Contract without the express written consent of the Trust.  All materials, documents, data 
or information, including copies, must be returned to the Trust at the end of this Contract. 

 
19. Debarment: Contractor certifies that neither contractor nor its principles are presently 

debarred, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in the transaction by any Federal department or agency.  Where contractor as 
the recipient of recipient of federal funds, is unable to certify to any of the statements in the 
certification, Contractor must include an explanation with their bid/proposal.  Debarment, 
pending debarment, declared ineligibility or voluntary exclusion from participation by any 
Federal department or agency may result in the bid/proposal being deemed non-responsible.
  
 

20. Disputes – Contracts: 
A.  The parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally.  
If the dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this Contract is not 
disposed of in a reasonable period of time by the Contractor’s Project Manager and the 
Trust‘s Project Manager, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the Trust Agent by 
way of the following process: 

 

1.    The Contractor shall submit to the agency/department assigned Deputy Purchasing 
Agent a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of any dispute 



 

 

between the parties arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, unless the 
Trust, on its own initiative, has already rendered such a final decision. 

2. The Contractor’s written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, 
if such demand involves a cost adjustment to the Contract, the Contractor shall 
include with the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating 
that the demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and 
complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment 
for which the Contractor believes the Trust is liable. 

B.    Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this 
Contract, the Contractor agrees to diligently proceed with the performance of this Contract, 
including the delivery of goods and/or provision of services.  The Contractor’s failure to 
diligently proceed shall be considered a material breach of this Contract. 

 

Any final decision of the Trust shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and 
shall be signed by the Trust Agent or his designee.  If the Trust fails to render a decision 
within 90 days after receipt of the Contractor’s demand, it shall be deemed a final decision 
adverse to the Contractor’s contentions.  Nothing in this section shall be construed as 
affecting the Trust’s right to terminate the Contract for cause or termination for convenience 
as stated in section K herein.   
 

21. Gratuities: The Contractor warrants that no gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts 
or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the 
Contractor to any officer or employee of the Trust with a view toward securing the Contract 
or securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the 
performance of the Contract.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the Trust shall have 
the right to terminate the Contract, either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage 
sustained by the Trust in procuring on the open market any goods or services which the 
Contractor agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by the Contractor.  The rights and 
remedies of the Trust provided in the clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any 
other rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract. 
 

22. News/Information Release: The Contractor agrees that it will not issue any news releases 
in connection with either the award of this Contract or any subsequent amendment of or 
effort under this Contract without first obtaining review and written approval of said news 
releases from the Trust through the Trust’s Project Manager. 
 

23. Notices: Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, 
called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing with a copy 
provided to the assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent (DPA), except through the course of the 
parties’ project managers’ routine exchange of information and cooperation during the 
terms of the work and services.  Any written communications shall be deemed to have been 
duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on 
the actual day of receipt or no greater than four (4) calendar days after being mailed by US 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first.  
The date of mailing shall count as the first day.  All communications shall be addressed to 



 

 

the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the parties hereto 
may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid. 

 
For Contractor: Company Name: (TBD) 

Address: 
Attn:  
Telephone:     
Fax:    
E-mail:  

                                      
For Trust:  Orange County Housing Finance Trust 

Attn: Adam Eliason  
1 League #62335 Irvine, CA  92602 
Phone: (909) 706-7193 
Email: aeliason@ochft.org 

 
24. Ownership of Documents: The Trust has permanent ownership of all directly connected 

and derivative materials produced under this Contract by the Contractor.  All documents, 
reports and other incidental or derivative work or materials furnished hereunder shall 
become and remain the sole property of the Trust and may be used by the Trust as it may 
require without additional cost to the Trust.  None of the documents, reports and other 
incidental or derivative work or furnished materials shall be used by the Contractor without 
the express written consent of the Trust.  
 

25. Precedence: The Contract documents consist of this Contract and its attachments and 
exhibit.  In the event of a conflict between or among the Contract documents, the order of 
precedence shall be the provisions of the main body of this Contract, i.e., those provisions 
set forth in the recitals and articles of this Contract, and then the attachments and exhibit. 

 
26. Price Increase/Decrease: No price increases will be permitted during the first period of the 

price agreement.  The Trust requires documented proof of cost increases on Contracts prior 
to any price adjustment.  A minimum of 30-days advance notice in writing is required to 
secure such adjustment.  No retroactive price adjustments will be considered.  All price 
decreases will automatically be extended to the Trust.  The Trust may enforce, negotiate, or 
cancel escalating price Contracts or take any other action it deems appropriate, as it sees fit.  
The net dollar amount of profit will remain firm during the period of the Contract.  
Adjustments increasing the Contractor’s profit will not be allowed. 

 
27. Project Manager and Key Personnel – Contractor: Contractor shall appoint a Project 

Manager to direct the Contractor’s efforts in fulfilling Contractor’s obligations under this 
Contract.  This Project Manager shall be subject to approval by the Trust and shall not be 
changed without the written consent of the Trust’s Project Manager, which consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

The Contractor’s Project Manager shall be assigned to this project for the duration of the 
Contract and shall diligently pursue all work and services to meet the project time lines.  
The Trust’s Project Manager shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of 



 

 

the Contractor’s Project Manager from providing services to the Trust under this Contract.  
The Trust’s Project manager shall notify the Contractor in writing of such action.  The 
Contractor shall accomplish the removal within three (3) business days after written notice 
by the Trust’s Project Manager.  The Trust’s Project Manager shall review and approve the 
appointment of the replacement for the Contractor’s Project Manager.  The Trust is not 
required to provide any additional information, reason or rationale in the event it requires 
the removal of Contractor’s Project Manager from providing further services under the 
Contract. 
 

28.  Project Manager – Trust: The Trust shall appoint a project manager to act as liaison 
between the Trust and the Contractor during the term of this Contract.  The Trust’s project 
manager shall coordinate the activities of the Trust staff assigned to work with the 
Contractor. 

 

The Trust’s project manager shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of 
the Contractor’s project manager and key personnel.  The Trust’s project manager shall 
notify the Contractor in writing of such action.  The Contractor shall accomplish the removal 
within three (3) business days after written notice from the Trust’s project manager.  The 
Trust’s project manager shall review and approve the appointment of the replacement for 
the Contractor’s project manager and key personnel.  Said approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Trust is not required to provide any additional information, 
reason or rationale in the event it requires the removal of Contractor’s Project Manager from 
providing further services under the Contract. 
 

29.  Remedies Not Exclusive: The remedies for breach set forth in this Contract are cumulative 
as to one another and as to any other provided by law, rather than exclusive; and the 
expression of certain remedies in this Contract does not preclude resort by either party to 
any other remedies provided by law. 

 
30. Reports/Meetings: The Trust’s Project Manager and the Contractor’s Project Manager will 

meet on reasonable notice to discuss the Contractor’s performance and progress under this 
Contract.  If requested, the Contractor’s Project Manager and other project personnel shall 
attend all meetings.  The Contractor shall provide such information that is requested by the 
Trust for the purpose of monitoring progress under this Contract.  
   

31. Responsibility of the Contractor: The Contractor shall be responsible for the professional 
quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all reports, 
documentation, and services furnished by the Contractor under this Contract.  The 
Contractor shall perform such services as may be necessary to accomplish the work required 
to be performed under and in accordance with this Contract.  The Contractor shall develop 
reports and any other relevant documents necessary to complete the services and 
requirements as set forth in Attachment A, Scope of Work.  
 

32. Subcontracting: No performance of this Contract or any portion thereof may be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the express written consent of the Trust.  Any 
attempt by the Contractor to subcontract any performance of this Contract without the 



 

 

express written consent of the Trust shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this 
Contract. 

 

In the event that the Contractor is authorized by the Trust to subcontract, this Contract shall 
take precedence over the terms of the Contract between Contractor and subcontractor, and 
shall incorporate by reference the terms of this Contract.  The Trust shall look to the 
Contractor for performance and indemnification and not deal directly with any 
subcontractor.    All work performed by a subcontractor must meet the approval of the Trust. 
 

33. Substitutions: The Contractor is required to meet all specifications and requirements 
contained herein.  No substitutions will be accepted without prior Trust written approval. 

 
34. Termination – Default: If Contractor is in default of any of its obligations under this 

Contract and has not commenced cure within ten days after receipt of a written notice of 
default from Trust and cured such default within the time specified in the notice, the Trust 
shall immediately be entitled to either commence resolution in accordance with this 
paragraph or to terminate this Contract by giving written notice to take effect immediately.  
Default shall include failure to carry out any of the requirements of this Contract, including 
but not limited to not providing enough properly skilled workers or proper materials, 
persistently disregarding laws and or ordinances, not proceeding with the work as agreed to 
herein, or otherwise substantially violating any provision of this Contract.  Upon termination 
of the Contact with Contractor, the Trust may begin negotiations with a third-party 
contractor to provide services as specified in this Contract.      
 

35. Termination – Orderly: After receipt of a termination notice from the Trust, the Contractor 
shall submit to the Trust a termination claim, if applicable.  Such claim shall be submitted 
promptly, but in no event later than sixty (60) days from the effective date of the termination, 
unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the Trust upon written request of 
the Contractor.  Upon termination, Trust agrees to pay the Contractor for all services 
performed prior to termination which meet the requirements of the Contract, provided, 
however, that such compensation plus previously paid compensation shall not exceed the 
total compensation set forth in the Contract.  Upon termination or other expiration of this 
Contract, each Party shall promptly return to the other Party all papers, materials, and other 
properties of the other held by each for purposes of execution of the Contract.  In addition, 
each Party will assist the other Party in orderly termination of this Contract and the transfer 
of all aspects, tangible and intangible, as may be necessary for the orderly, non-disruptive 
business continuation of each Party.  
   

36. Title to Data: All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the Trust data 
files or any Trust medium furnished to the Contractor in the performance of this Contract 
will at all times remain the property of the Trust. Such data or information may not be used 
or copied for direct or indirect use by the Contractor after completion or termination of this 
Contract.  All materials, documents, data or information, including any copies, and all Trust 
Employees Workers’ Compensation claim files, must be returned to the Trust at the end of 
this Contract.  
 



 

 

37. Waivers-Contract: The failure of the Trust in any one or more instances to insist upon 
strict performance of any of the terms of this Contract or to exercise any option contained 
herein shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the right to 
assert or rely upon any such terms or option on any future occasion.   
 

38. Contract Award – Multiple: The Trust reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make 
multiple awards to bidders/proposers for services requested in this solicitation.   

 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

MODEL CONTRACT SIGNATURE PAGE 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract on the dates shown 
opposite their respective signatures below. 
 
CONTRACTOR* 

* If the Contractor is a corporation, signatures of two specific corporate officers are required as 
further set forth. 

The first corporate officer signature must be one of the following 1) the Chairman of the Board 
2) the President 3) any Vice President. 

In the alternative, a single corporate signature is acceptable when accompanied by a corporate 
resolution demonstrating the legal authority of the signature to bind the company. 

 
Print Name          Title 

(DO NOT SIGN THIS TIME) 
Signature          Date 

 

The second corporate officer signature must be one of the following: a) Secretary; b) Assistant 
Secretary; c) Chief Financial Officer: d) Assistant Treasurer. 

 
Print Name          Title 

(DO NOT SIGN THIS TIME) 
Signature          Date 

****************************************************************************** 

Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 

 
Print Name          Title 
 
Signature          Date 
 
  



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust is a Joint Powers Authority formed in March 
2019 between the County of Orange and 24 cities in Orange County, California. A complete 
list of member cities can be found in Attachment 1.  
 
The mission of the Trust is to strengthen the communities in Orange County by financing 
the development of affordable housing for homeless and low-income individuals and 
families. The Trust is working to achieve this mission by contributing to the construction of 
2,700 permanent supportive housing units and working to secure funding that will 
contribute to additional affordable housing units by 2025. 
 
During its first three years of operation, the Trust has awarded over $28.4 million to fifteen 
affordable housing communities throughout Orange County. The Trust expects to be able 
to award approximately $10 million per year through 2025 for additional affordable 
communities in the County, and is looking for additional funding from private donations 
and other government sources so it may continue to provide financing for communities past 
2025. 
 

II. TRUST RESPONSIBILITIES  
1. Trust will assign a Trust Project Manager and coordinate work closely with Contractor. 
2. Trust Project Manager will monitor and track project status to ensure it is progressing 

within the project timeframe. 
3. Trust Project Manager will review and approve all work, materials, reports, and 

deliverables required in this Contract.    
 

III. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES  
Consultant shall provide services and advice to the Trust’s Board of Directors and staff, and 
be informed about the Trust’s mission, finances, operations, history, and accomplishments.  
As more precisely detailed below, Consultant shall develop an online mapping application 
hosted through ArcGIS Hub, Mapbox, or similar platform.  

The mapping application will include two separate maps, intended for different audiences.  

The first map is intended to be for the general public. It will include information about 
existing and proposed affordable housing developments. This map will include the same 
information that is currently included on the map provided on the Trust’s website at 
ochft.org/developments. Information about each development will include:

• Development name 
• Development status 

• Development address 
• Developer name 

https://ochft.org/developments


 

 

• Service Planning Area 
• Total number of units 
• Number of affordable units 

• Number of permanent supportive 
housing units 

• Estimated construction start date 
• Estimated construction completion 

date 
• Property manager contact 

information

The second map is intended to be used by affordable housing developers, county and city 
staff, and housing advocates. The map will be a county-wide heatmap showing potential 
neighborhood amenity scoring for 9% tax credits. Amenities that are scored include:

• Bus & rail stops with 
frequency of service 

• Public parks 
• Community centers 
• Public libraries 
• Grocery stores 

• Public elementary schools 
• Senior Centers 
• Medical clinics 
• Hospitals 
• Pharmacies 
• CTCAC/HCD Opportunity Areas

Specific tasks to be undertaken are described below. 

2) Kickoff Meeting 
• Meet with Trust staff to fully develop a scope of needs and desires for the mapping 

application. 
• Prepare meeting agenda and notes.  
 
Deliverables 

• Meeting agenda 
• Meeting notes 

3) Develop Mockup 
• Prepare graphical mockup of website for review by Trust staff. It is expected that the 

mockup will be a static, non-working representation of what the mapping application 
will look like. 

• Include as many different views of the mapping application as necessary to convey 
the complete user and administrative experience of using the application. Views may 
include, but should not be limited to, landing page, property information display, 
finance scoring map, and administrative backend. 

• Revise mockup according to Trust staff direction. (Up to three rounds of revisions.) 
 
Deliverables 
• Website mockup with revisions 

4) Develop Mapping Application  
• Create the mapping application in accordance with the Trust’s approved mockup.  



 

 

• Populate map with initial information, including existing housing developments and 
community amenities for finance scoring calculations. 

 
Deliverables 
• Mapping application 

5) Mapping Application Training & Hosting 
• Train Trust Staff on updating mapping information, including adding and modifying 

mapped housing developments, and adding and modifying community amenities. 
• Host mapping application for a period of three years. 
 
Deliverables 
• Mapping training 
• Mapping hosting 

  



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

COMPENSATION/PAYMENT  
 

 
I. COMPENSATION: This is an all-inclusive, firm, fixed fee Contract between Trust and 

Contractor for all other services provided in Attachment A, Scope of Work.   
 
The Contractor agrees to accept the specified compensation as set forth in this Contract as full 
payment for performing all services and furnishing all staffing and materials required, for any 
reasonably unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the execution of the 
services until acceptance, for risks connected with the services, and for performance by the 
Contractor of all its duties and obligations hereunder. Contractor shall only be compensated 
as set forth herein below for work performed in accordance with the Scope of Work. Trust 
shall have no obligation to pay any sum in excess of total Contract amount specified herein 
unless authorized by amendment in accordance with Trust Contract Terms and Conditions. 

 
The Contract amount shall not exceed $TBD. 
 

II. FIRM RATE: Contractor guarantees that rates quoted are equal to or less than rates 
quoted to any other local, State or Federal government entity for services of equal or lesser 
scope. Contractor agrees that no rate increases shall be passed along to the Trust during 
the term of this Contract not otherwise specified and provided for within this Contract.  

III. CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE: The Contractor will be responsible for all costs related to photo 
copying, telephone communications, fax communications, online research services, travel, 
parking, and any and all “out of pocket” expenses incurred by the Contractor while on Trust sites 
during the performance of work and services under this Contract, unless otherwise specified. The 
Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all parking costs and expenses incurred at a Trust facility 
while performing work under this Contract, except to the extent the Trust facility has free parking 
available to the public and the Contractor makes appropriate use of this free parking.  However, the 
Trust will not provide free parking to the Contractor in the County Civic Center. 
 
Contractor shall bill for the actual number of hours worked. Contractor shall notify Trust 
in advance if any task requires an additional time commitment to complete. Trust approval 
is required before Contractor can work additional hours/time on the project. 

IV. PAYMENT TERMS: Invoices are to be submitted in arrears, after services have been 
completed, to the bill to address specified under Section VI – Billing Instructions, unless 
otherwise directed in this Contract.  Contractor shall reference Contract number on invoice.  
Payment will be net 30 days after receipt of the invoice in a format acceptable to the Trust, and 
verified and approved by the agency/department and subject to routine processing 
requirements.  The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice rests with the Contractor. 



 

 

Billing shall cover services not previously invoiced.  The Contractor shall reimburse the Trust 
for any monies paid to the Contractor for services not provided or when services do not meet 
the Contract requirements. 
Payments made by the Trust shall not preclude the right of the Trust from thereafter disputing 
any services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as acceptance of 
any part of the services. 

 
V. TAX ID NUMBER: The Contractor shall include its taxpayer ID number on all invoices 

submitted to the Trust for payment to ensure compliance with IRS requirements and to expedite 
payment processing. 

VI. BILLING INSTRUCTIONS: The Contractor will provide an invoice on the Contractor’s 
letterhead for services rendered. Each invoice will have a number and will include the 
following information: 

1. Contractor’s name and address 
2. Contractor’s remittance address, if different from 1, above 
3. Name of Trust agency/department 
4. Agency/department address 
5. Contract Number (TBD) 
6. Federal Tax I.D. Number 
7. Date of service 
8. Service description 
9. Total 
 

Billing Address:  All invoices shall be billed to: 
  OC Housing Finance Trust 
  Attn: Adam Eliason 
  1 League #62335 
  Irvine, CA 92602 
  aeliason@ochft.org 

 
Incomplete or incorrect invoices are not acceptable and will be returned to the Contractor for 

correction. 

VII. PAYMENT (ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER [EFT]): The Trust of Orange offers 
Contractors the option of receiving payment directly to their bank account via an Electronic 
Fund Transfer (EFT) process in lieu of a check payment.  Payment made via EFT will also 
receive an Electronic Remittance Advice with the payment details via e-mail.  An e-mail 
address will need to be provided to the Trust via an EFT Authorization Form. To request a 
form, please contact the agency/department Procurement Buyer listed in the Contract.  Upon 
completion of the form, please mail, fax or email to the address or phone listed on the form.  
 

  



 

 

ATTACHMENT C 
     STAFFING PLAN 

 
 

I. Primary Staff/Key Personnel to perform Contract duties 

Name Classification 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(Additional lines may be added if necessary)  

II. Alternate Staff/Key Personnel (for use only if primary is not available) 

Name Classification 

  
  
  
  
  
  

(Additional lines may be added if necessary)  

Contractor understands that those individuals represented as assigned to the project must 
remain working on the project throughout the duration of the project unless otherwise 
requested or approved by the Trust.  Substitution or addition of Contractor’s Key Personnel in 
any given classification/title shall be allowed only with prior written approval of the Trust 
Project Manager.  During the Term of this Contract, Contractor shall maintain a business office 
in Southern California. 

The Contractor may reserve the right to involve other Contractor personnel, as their services 
are required.  The specific individuals will be assigned based on the need and timing of the 
service/classification required.  Assignment of additional key personnel shall be subject to 
Trust written approval.  Trust reserves the right to have any of Contractor personnel removed 
from providing Services/Deliverables to Trust under this Contract.  Trust is not required to 
provide any reason for the request for removal of any Contractor personnel. 

III. SUB-CONTRACTOR(S) 



 

 

In accordance with Article I, Assignment, listed below are sub-contractor(s) anticipated by Contractor to perform 
services specified in Attachment A.  Substitution or addition of Contractor’s sub-contractors in any given project 
function shall be allowed only with prior written approval of the Trust Project Manager.  
 

Company Name & Address Contact Name and Telephone 
Number 

Project Function 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

(Additional lines may be added if necessary)  

 

  



 

 

Attachment 3 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

Disclosure Policy 
It is the policy of the Trust to ensure that firms and individuals providing services to the Trust are 
not subject to organizational conflicts affecting their objectivity or their ability to provide 
impartial assistance or advice to the Trust. This form requires certain relationships to be 
disclosed to the Trust so that it may determine whether a potential organizational conflict exists 
and whether mitigation measures may be implemented so as to allow the firm or individual to 
perform services notwithstanding such potential conflict. Relationships with the following 
entities must be disclosed: 

1) Any firm, individual, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity currently 
retained for services by a developer of affordable housing or service provider for families and 
individuals at risk of or experiencing homelessness. 

2) Any firm currently retained or which may be retained for services by the County of Orange 
or any member city of the Trust or other public entity within Orange County, California (see 
list of member agencies below). 

Disclosure 

1)     Consultant IS NOT currently retained for services as defined in the Disclosure 
Policy above. 

2)     Consultant IS currently retained for services as defined in the Disclosure Policy 
above. 

 

a) Consultant is retained for services by the following member agencies of the Trust
     County of Orange 
     City of Aliso Viejo 
     City of Anaheim 
     City of Buena Park 
     City of Costa Mesa 
     City of Dana Point 
     City of Fountain Valley 
     City of Fullerton 
     City of Garden Grove 
     City of Huntington Beach 

     City of Lake Forest 
     City of Laguna Beach 
     City of Laguna Hills 
     City of Laguna Niguel 
     City of La Habra 
     City of Mission Viejo 
     City of Newport Beach 
     City of Orange 
     City of Placentia 
     City of San Juan Capistrano 



 

 

     City of Santa Ana 
     City of Seal Beach 
     City of Stanton

     City of Tustin 
     City of Westminster 

 
 

b) Consultant is retained for services by the following other public agencies and public 
or private entities within Orange County, California. (List individually.) 

 

c) Please describe briefly those services potentially affected by this Disclosure: 
 

Consultant is required to disclose to the Trust, in writing, any services relationship which may be 
entered into during the term of the Contract, which violates or appears to violate the intent of this 
Disclosure: 

 

 

      
Consultant 
 
 
      
Date 
 
 
      
Authorized Repetitive 
 
 
      
Title 

  



 

 

Attachment 4 
Compensation Proposal 

Enter below the proposed price for full compensation to proposer for full and complete 
performance of the Services identified in the RFP Scope of Services. Prices shall include direct 
costs, indirect costs, profit, and any other costs associated with providing the services as 
described in this RFP. 

 

Fee, including expenses:  $     

 

 

Proposer Name:      

Address:       

        

Phone Number:      

 

 

Signature:       

Printed Name:       

Title:        

Date:         



 

 

Attachment 5 
Disclosures of Contributions 

To be completed with the submission of any proposal. 

Prime Firm’s Name: ___________________________________________________________ 

Party’s Name:   ___________________________________________________________ 

Party’s Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 
   Street 
   _______________________________ _______________________ 
   City      State 
   _______________________________ (____)__________________ 
   Zip Code     Phone Number 

 

Board Member(s) to whom you and/or your agent made campaign contributions and dates of 
contribution(s) in the 12 months preceding August 25, 2021 (see attached lists): 

 

Name of Member:   

Name of Contributor (if other than Party):   

Date(s):   

Amounts(s):   

 

Name of Member:   

Name of Contributor (if other than Party):   

Date(s):   

Amounts(s):   

 

If no contributions are noted above, I hereby certify that no contributions have been made by the 
Party identified above to any of the Trust’s Board of Directors. 

 

Date:     
Signature of Party and/or Agent 



 

 

List of Board Members 

 

Board Chair Stephen Faessel  
City of Anaheim – Council Member 
 
Board Vice-Chair Shari Freidenrich  
County of Orange Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 
Board Member Doug Chaffee 
County of Orange Supervisor – 4th District 
 
Board Member Lisa Bartlett  
County of Orange Supervisor – 5th District 
 
Board Member Don Barnes  
County of Orange Sheriff-Coroner 
 

Board Member David Penaloza  
City of Santa Ana – Council Member 
 
Board Member Ed Sachs  
City of Mission Viejo – Council Member 
 
Board Member Jamey Federico  
City of Dana Point – Council Member 
 
Board Member Fred Jung  
City of Fullerton – Council Member 

 



Agenda Item 6 
2023 Notice of Funding 

Availability 
 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

AGENDA ITEM: 6 

 

REQUEST FOR ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST (TRUST) BOARD ACTION 

 

MEETING DATE: January 18, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Approve 2023 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA); and authorize 
issuance of NOFA on February 6, 2023. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Adam B. Eliason, Manager 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

APPROVE THE TRUST 2022 NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY (NOFA) TO FINANCE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF AFFORDABLE AND PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING AND AUTHORIZE 
THE ISSUANCE OF THE NOFA ON FEBRUARY 6, 2023. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Trust 2023 NOFA is substantially similar to the NOFAs issued by the Trust in 2022. The Trust 
2023 NOFA has been updated to incorporate changes requested by the Trust Board and to 
clarify questions submitted by applicants. 

The Trust 2023 NOFA will make $18,188,987.20 available for project financing of affordable and 
permanent supportive housing.  The available funds come from four sources: 

1. 2023 County Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) ($2,438,987.20) 
2. Contingent County Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) ($10,000,000) 
3. County General Fund ($1,000,000) 
4. State of California - Local Housing Trust Fund (LHTF) Program ($4,750,000) 

This NOFA only includes a portion of the Trust’s 2023 MHSA funds. The other portion is being 
used in the Second Round 2022 NOFA for Irvine and Yorba Linda as matching funds for 2022 
LHTF Program funds. 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

However, the 2023 NOFA also includes $10 million in additional MHSA funds that Trust and 
County staff are currently working on to transfer to the Trust. These additional MHSA funds are 
listed in the NOFA as contingent funds, based on future Trust Board and Board of Supervisors 
approval. It is anticipated that an agreement for these additional funds will come to the Trust 
Board at the next Board meeting in March, and that the agreement would go before the Board 
of Supervisors for consideration prior to the Trust Board making its funding commitments 
under this NOFA in May. 

The State of California’s Housing and Community Development (HCD) Local Housing Trust Fund 
(LHTF) program requires a dollar-for-dollar match to receive their funds. The Trust is eligible for 
up to $5 million through the LHTF program, as long as, the Trust has at least $5 million in 
matching funds that will be used for eligible projects.  If the Trust secures the maximum $5 
million award under the LHTF program, then $4,750,000 will be available for capital funding of 
eligible projects and $250,000 (5%) will be allocated and available for Trust administrative 
operating expenses. 

The following is a summary of the substantive changes to the 2023 NOFA: 

1. Additional $10 million in contingent MHSA funds; 
2. Added requirement that projects must be in cities that are in compliance with State 

housing law to be eligible for LHTF funds; 
3. Updated per unit loan limit for MHSA funded units to 2023 rates; 
4. Limited borrower partnership management fees to $15,000/year; 
5. Removed Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) vouchers as an eligible source of 

operating subsidy for MHSA-funded units since the funding sources are not compatible 
with one another; 

6. Increased the number of points for projects found on the Trust’s development pipeline 
report from 1 to 10; and, 

7. Added a requirement to include a 55-year cashflow analysis in the project proforma in 
the event that the project does not show any repayment of the Trust’s loan during the 
first 15 years of operation. 

It is proposed that this NOFA be issued on February 6, 2023, with the application deadline on 
March 22, 2023.   Trust staff will bring a project funding recommendation to the Board at the 
May 17, 2023, Board Meeting. 

A clean and redlined version of the 2023 Trust NOFA is provided as Attachment A and B.  Staff 
recommends approval of this agenda item. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – 2023 Notice of Funding Availability  
Attachment B – 2023 Notice of Funding Availability Redline from 2022 NOFA 



1 League #62335 
Irvine,  CA  92602 

2023  
PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE AND 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY 

DUE DATE: 5:00 P.M. - MARCH 22, 2023 

Orange
County

Housing 
Finance 
Trust

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Table of Contents 
 Introduction ................................................................................................. 1 

 Program Description .................................................................................. 2 
2.01 Funds Available ............................................................................................ 2 
2.02 Funding Reallocation .................................................................................... 2 
2.03 Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Allocation ......................................... 2 
2.04 Service Planning Area Allocation ................................................................. 2 
2.05 Eligible Projects ............................................................................................ 3 
2.06 Eligible Applicants........................................................................................ 3 
2.07 Eligible Activities ......................................................................................... 3 
2.08 Eligible Costs ................................................................................................ 3 
2.09 Affordability Covenant ................................................................................. 4 
2.10 Loan Award Terms & Conditions................................................................. 4 
2.11 Maximum Loan Amount/Subsidy Limits ..................................................... 6 
2.12 Developer Fee Limit ..................................................................................... 6 
2.13 NOFA Schedule Milestones ......................................................................... 6 
2.14 Application Review Committee .................................................................... 7 
2.15 Form of Loan Documents ............................................................................. 7 

 Threshold Requirements ............................................................................ 8 
3.01 Coordinated Entry System ............................................................................ 8 
3.02 Income Limits ............................................................................................... 8 
3.03 Supportive Services ...................................................................................... 8 
3.04 Reserves ........................................................................................................ 8 
3.05 Compliance Monitoring Fee ......................................................................... 9 
3.06 Financial Commitments ................................................................................ 9 
3.07 Underwriting Assumptions ........................................................................... 9 

 Scoring ....................................................................................................... 10 
4.01 Project Readiness ........................................................................................ 10 
4.02 Developer Experience & Financial Strength .............................................. 10 
4.03 Service Enriched Location .......................................................................... 10 
4.04 Development Pipeline ................................................................................. 11 
4.05 Tie Breaker .................................................................................................. 11 

 Application................................................................................................. 12 
5.01 General Application Form .......................................................................... 12 
5.02 Project Narrative ......................................................................................... 12 
5.03 Project Vicinity Map ................................................................................... 12 
5.04 Project Proforma ......................................................................................... 12 
5.05 Financial Notes and Assumptions ............................................................... 13 
5.06 Project SCHEDULE ................................................................................... 13 
5.07 Development Team Members ..................................................................... 13 
5.08 Applicant Experience .................................................................................. 13 
5.09 Applicant Financial Strength ...................................................................... 13 
5.10 Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter .......................................... 13 
5.11 Social Services Plan .................................................................................... 14 
5.12 Social Services Operating Budget .............................................................. 14 
5.13 Levine Act Statement .................................................................................. 15 

 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



1  

 INTRODUCTION 
This 2023 Permanent Supportive and Affordable Housing Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) 
announces the availability of eighteen million, one-hundred eighty-eight thousand, nine-hundred 
eighty-seven dollars and twenty cents ($18,188,987,20) in Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
(OCHFT) (the “Trust”) funds to promote the new construction or acquisition/rehabilitation of 
Permanent Supportive and Affordable Housing for Orange County’s extremely low-income 
households, and those experiencing homelessness by providing below market rate financing. 
Interested and qualified developers who can successfully demonstrate their ability to acquire, build 
or substantially rehabilitate, and operate Permanent Supportive and Affordable Housing are 
encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The initial NOFA application deadline shall be approximately 50 days after the release of this NOFA. 
All applications submitted within the NOFA application period shall be reviewed by Trust staff to 
ensure compliance with all threshold requirements and shall be competitively scored. Applications 
received after the NOFA application period will be considered if funding is still available from the 
initial round of applications. 
 
The Trust is committed to serving the County’s needs for Permanent Supportive and Affordable 
Housing. Projects in each County Service Planning Area (North, Central, and South) shall compete 
only against other projects within their Service Planning Area, with the goal of each Service Planning 
Area receiving an equal amount of funding through this NOFA. If all the funds are not committed in 
each Service Planning Area, then any remaining funds shall be made available to the other Service 
Planning Areas if there is remaining demand for funds. 
 
The sources of capital funds made available for this NOFA are the following: 

1. 2023 County Mental Health Services Act  ...................................... $2,438,987.20 
2. Contingent County Mental Health Services Act1 .......................... $10,000,000 
3. County General Fund  ...................................................................... $1,000,000 
4. State of California - Local Housing Trust Fund Program2 .............. $4,750,000 
TOTAL ................................................................................................ $18,188,987.20 

 
NOTES: 

1. The Trust is currently working with the County for additional Mental Health 
Services Act (MHSA) funds. It is anticipated that an amendment to the Grant 
Agreement for MHSA funds will be considered by the Board of Supervisors and 
Trust Board in the first half of 2023. 

2. The Trust will be applying for funding from the State of California – Local Housing 
Trust Funds in 2023. These funds are contingent upon actual award from the State 
in the winter of 2023.  

 
The Trust reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount in this NOFA at the direction of the 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



2  

 PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
2.01 FUNDS AVAILABLE 
Up to eighteen million, one-hundred eighty-eight thousand, nine-hundred eighty-seven dollars and 
twenty cents ($18,188,987.20) is made available from Trust. Of that, four million, seven-hundred 
fifty thousand dollars ($4,750,000) is from the Local Housing Trust Fund (LHTF) Program, which 
requires a local match to receive. To maximize the Orange County Housing Finance Trust’s award 
under this program, the Trust must award at least $5 million from other funding sources. The only 
other funding sources available to the Trust are $1 million from the County of Orange General Fund 
and over $12.4 million in Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds. 
 
Funding will be made available to projects with and without MHSA units. Up to one million, nine-
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($1,950,000) will be made available to projects without MHSA units. 
Up to sixteen million, two-hundred thirty-eight thousand, nine-hundred eight-seven dollars and 
twenty cents ($16,238,987.20) will be made available for funding of projects that include MHSA 
units. Funds originating from the LHTF program may be used for non-MHSA units within projects 
receiving MHSA funds through the Trust.  
 
2.02 FUNDING REALLOCATION 
In the event that the Trust does not receive the maximum award from the LHTF Program for which 
it is eligible, or the Trust does not receive the additional $10 million in MHSA funds from the County, 
the amount of funds available through this NOFA will be decreased. If the LHTF Program award is 
less than what is anticipated, or the Trust does not receive the additional MHSA funds from the 
County, at the time of Trust Board approval of project funding, the Trust will reduce the funding of 
each project awarded funds by a proportional amount to the reduction in LHFT and/or MHSA 
funding. The purpose of this even proportional reduction to all projects is to ensure that no single 
project, or subset of projects, receives the majority of the funding cut, and to ensure that all projects 
funded by the Trust remain viable. By applying for funding under this NOFA, Applicants agree and 
understand that the funding awards for projects funded with LHFT funding may be lower than 
initially awarded. 
 
2.03 MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) ALLOCATION 
Projects seeking MHSA funds must be reviewed by the Orange County Health Care Agency. 
Applicants are encouraged to submit their projects to the Health Care Agency, as soon as possible, 
and must meet with the Health Care Agency no later than March 8, 2023 to initiate the Health Care 
Agency’s review process. More information regarding this requirement can be found in Section 5.10, 
Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter. 
 
2.04 SERVICE PLANNING AREA ALLOCATION 
The County of Orange has divided the County into three County Service Planning Areas (SPAs), 
North, Central, and South. The Orange County Housing Finance Trust shall use the SPAs to ensure 
equal distribution of Trust loan money across the County. Each SPA will be allocated one-third 
(1/3rd) of the funding available under this NOFA. In the event there are not enough eligible projects in 
each SPA to use the full allocation, those funds may be allocated to fund other projects in other SPAs 
at the discretion of the Trust Board. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



3  

2.05 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
Projects eligible under this NOFA must be located within unincorporated County of Orange or within 
Trust member cities (See Attachment A). The only exception is for projects seeking only MHSA 
funding from this NOFA, which is required to be available county wide, including non-member 
cities. To be eligible for LHTF funds, projects must be in cities that are in compliance with State 
housing law, as determined by the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) as of the date the Trust applies for LHTF funds. HCD has not yet specified the deadline for 
this year’s LHTF application, but it is anticipated to be towards the end of May 2023. At the time of 
issuance of this NOFA, the Trust member cities in compliance with State housing law are:

• Dana Point; 
• Fountain Valley; 
• Irvine; 
• Newport Beach; 
• San Juan Capistrano; 

• Santa Ana; 
• Stanton; 
• Tustin; and 
•  Yorba Lina.  

 
It is encouraged that applicants with projects in member cities not in compliance with State housing 
law at the time of issuance of this NOFA contact the city’s planning department to determine if the 
city will be in compliance by May 2023 prior to applying for LHTF funds through this NOFA.  
 
Projects must include a minimum of five (5) units which are assisted under this NOFA and must 
provide permanent supportive or affordable housing restricted to persons or families who qualify as 
extremely low income. Proposals must include a plan and eventual funding for the provision of 
supportive services appropriate to the needs of the designated population, if supportive services are 
being proposed. 
 
Applicants who are awarded LHTF funds through this NOFA must comply with the State of 
California Housing and Community Development (HCD) 2017 Uniform Multifamily Regulations 
(UMR). The 2017 UMR can be found on HCD’s website at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-
funding/uniform-multifamily-regulations.  
 
2.06 ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Proposals will be accepted from non-profit and for-profit organizations, joint ventures, or 
partnerships that serve extremely low-income households, and those experiencing homelessness. 
 
2.07 ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
Funds shall be used to develop permanent supportive or affordable rental housing through new 
construction, acquisition/rehabilitation and/or conversion of commercial and light industrial to 
residential use on a case-by-case basis. 
 
2.08 ELIGIBLE COSTS 
Under this NOFA, funds may be used for construction loan financing and/or permanent loan 
financing. To the extent that all sources of project funding has been secured and are a part of either the 
construction loan and/or the permanent loan the following costs are eligible: “hard” costs of 
construction or rehabilitation of housing, “soft” costs associated with acquisition, financing, and/or 
rehabilitation. “Soft” costs include marketing costs (not to exceed $1,500 per unit), appraisals, 
architectural and engineering fees, individual apartment furnishings, certain common area 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



4  

furnishings (not to exceed $1,000 per unit), building permit fees, credit reports, environmental 
assessments, impact fees, legal and accounting costs, private lender origination fees, recording fees, 
surety fees, and title insurance. An overall cost limitation of fourteen percent (14%) of the cost of 
construction shall apply to contractor overhead, profit, and general requirements, excluding 
contractor’s general liability insurance. For purposes of contractor overhead and profit, the cost of 
construction includes site work, structures, prevailing wages, and general requirements. For purposes 
of general requirements, the cost of construction includes offsite improvements, demolition and site 
work, structures, and prevailing wages. 
 
2.09 AFFORDABILITY COVENANT 
Restricted units must remain affordable for the remaining life of the project, which shall be no less than 
fifty-five (55) years. A restrictive covenant will be recorded against the property to ensure 
affordability during the term of the agreement. All projects shall be required to agree to maintain the 
project’s affordability for the term of the restrictive covenant, regardless of whether the loan is fully 
repaid. 
 
The annual reporting requirements will be outlined in the Regulatory Agreement. Projects receiving 
funds from the Trust shall report annually certifying that they are in compliance with the occupancy 
and affordability requirements of the Regulatory Agreement. 
 
Program Compliance shall utilize a two-step monitoring process that provides for monitoring of all 
affordable housing developments financed with funds from the Trust. Monitoring of each 
development will occur in two phases: Phase 1: In-house review of annual reports, and Phase 2: 
Annual on-site monitoring visit, which shall include monitoring of tenant files in accordance with the 
affordability and income restrictions of the restrictive covenant and a Housing Quality Standards 
(HQS) inspection. 
 
2.10 LOAN AWARD TERMS & CONDITIONS 
Applicants shall agree to the Loan Award Terms and Conditions detailed in this section, and included 
in Attachment E, Loan Application Underwriting Criteria, as part of any funding award. Failure to 
accept these Loan Award Term and Conditions will result in forfeiture of any funding award.  

2.10.1 Funding Timing: Loan funds will be made available at the closing of the 
construction loan and/or closing of the permanent loan and is subject to the 
timing of HCD final approval of the Loan documents. However, no loan 
funds, or hard loan commitments, will be made available prior to the award 
of funds to the Trust through the LHTF Program. The Trust will not bifurcate 
award funding in order to meet closing dates occurring before additional 
funding is awarded through the LHTF Program. 

2.10.2 Interest Rate: Loans will bear an interest rate of three percent (3%) simple 
interest. Interest will be calculated based on a 360-day year and the actual 
number of days elapsed. The Orange County Housing Finance Trust reserves 
the right to renegotiate this rate for the benefit of the Trust and the project. 

2.10.3 Term: Loans will be for a term of fifty-five (55) years, from the date of 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

2.10.4 Loan Repayment: The Trust loan will be repaid through residual receipts. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



5  

An amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of Net Operating Income (as defined 
in Section 2.10.5, Residual Receipts Loans, below), if any, will be paid to the 
Trust and other public agencies (if any) providing residual receipts loans, and 
fifty percent (50%) to the developer. The 50% of cash flow payable to public 
agencies shall be shared by agencies in an amount proportional to the loan 
provided by such agencies. The value of non-loan contributions by other 
agencies (i.e. ground lease, project-based vouchers) shall not be considered 
as part of the loan value when calculating the Trust’s share of the residual 
receipts split. 

2.10.5 Residual Receipts Loans: The following is the definition of a residual 
receipts loan, which will be used by the Trust to underwrite projects: 

 
The loan for the project will be repaid from the Net Operating Income (NOI), 
if any, from the project as calculated ninety (90) days after the close of each 
fiscal year. NOI shall mean all of the rental revenue from the residential 
portion of the project (the “Annual Project Revenue”) less (i) operating 
expenses of the project as approved by the Trust (the “Annual Operating 
Expenses”) in an annual audit submitted by the developer and approved by 
the Trust; (ii) obligated debt service payments on the Project as approved by 
the Trust; (iii) scheduled deposits to reserves, as approved by the Trust; (iv) 
deferred developer fees, as approved by the Trust; and (v) partnership 
management or asset management fees as approved by the Trust. 

 
 Annual Project Revenue shall not include tenant security deposits, capital 

contributions, insurance or condemnation proceeds, income received for the 
purpose of completing the project, or funding received for the purpose of 
social services to the residents. 

 
By applying to this NOFA, Applicant understands and agrees to the 
definitions stated above and must use these assumptions in the further 
underwriting of their project. 

 
 Exclusions to NOI: It is the policy of the Trust that the following costs, fees, 

charges, penalties, judgments and the like shall not be deducted from the 
Annual Project Revenue by the developer thereby reducing the amount of NOI 
available to pay the Trust’s loan, including those arising out of: (i) a breach or 
default of the Trust’s loan or any other mortgage loan on the project, (ii) the 
fraud, negligence or willful misconduct of developer, (iii) the failure to make 
timely payments under any loan secured by the project, (iv) the breach or 
default by developer under any other contract, lease or agreement pertaining 
to the project; and (v) any other cost, expense, fee or the like which is not first 
approved by the Trust. The approved Operating Expenses of the project shall 
also not include other expenses such as intra-partnership or other internal 
loans of the operating entity, depreciation, amortization, accrued principal and 
interest expense on the deferred payment debt and capital improvement 
expenditures unless approved by the Trust. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



6  

2.10.6 Security: The loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note and secured by 
a deed of trust. 

2.10.7 Subordination: The Orange County Housing Finance Trust may, at its sole 
discretion, subordinate repayment, security positions, and affordability 
covenants to a conventional lender or other public agency lenders such as the 
State of California HCD, County of Orange, city loans, and CalHFA or AHP 
loans. 

 
2.11 MAXIMUM LOAN AMOUNT/SUBSIDY LIMITS 
The maximum loan/subsidy amounts shall be calculated on the basis of the number of units assisted by 
the Trust and shall vary by unit size. However, in no case shall the Trust’s investment in a single 
development exceed two-million five-hundred thousand dollars ($2,500,000). This cap may be 
waived at the sole discretion of the Trust Board. Final award amounts shall be at the discretion of the 
Trust Board. The maximum unit subsidy limits are shown below: 
 

Unit Size Maximum Loan Amount 
Non-MHSA Units MHSA Units 

0 Bedroom $110,000 $184,230 
1 Bedroom $125,000 $184,230 

2 Bedroom or larger $135,000 $184,230 
 
Under no circumstances may a development exceed a total MHSA subsidy per unit regardless of 
sources of MHSA funds. In the event that a project has already been awarded the maximum loan 
amount per unit in MHSA funds, that project will not be eligible for additional MHSA funds from 
the Trust. If a project has received an award of MHSA funds less than the maximum loan amount 
per unit, the applicant may apply for additional MHSA funds to bring their total award up to the 
maximum loan amount per unit.  

2.12 DEVELOPER FEE LIMIT 
The maximum Developer Fee shall be the same as the maximum allowed under the State Tax Credit 
Allocation Committee regulations for those projects that have been or will be awarded Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credits, as adopted at the time this NOFA was issued. For projects not receiving Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, the maximum Developer Fee shall be the same as the maximum 
allowed under the State of California Housing and Community Development 2017 Uniform 
Multifamily Regulations. 
 
2.13 PARTNERSHIP MANAGEMENT FEE LIMIT 
The maximum combined partnership management fee for all members of the borrower shall not 
exceed $15,000 per year.  
 
2.14 NOFA SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust is committed to helping Permanent Supportive and 
Affordable Housing units be occupied as quickly as possible. The Trust will strive to meet the 
following milestones: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



7  

1. NOFA Issuance – February 6, 2023 
2. NOFA Question & Answer Session for applicants – February 23, 2023 – 10:00-11:00am 

(a) Location: Zoom teleconference: Email aeliason@ochft.org to request meeting 
invitation. 

3. Health Care Agency Meeting Deadline – March 8, 2023 (make sure to schedule this 
with the HCA at least one week prior to the deadline). 

4. Initial Applications Deadline – March 22, 2023, 5:00pm 
5. Initial Application Review Committee meeting April 2023 
6. Trust Board Meeting and approval of initial NOFA awards – May 17, 2023 

 
Applications accepted after the Initial Application Deadline will be considered on a first-come, first-
served basis, if there is funding remaining after the Trust Board makes its initial NOFA awards. The 
Trust will evaluate and refer applications to the Trust Board for approval as quickly as practical. Any 
application submitted received after the Initial Application Deadline shall be submitted no less than 
four weeks prior to a Board meeting, to be considered for funding award at that the next Board 
meeting. The first Board meeting at which applications submitted after the Initial Application 
Deadline shall be considered will be held in July 2023. The Trust will close the online application 
form once all available funds have been allocated.  
 
2.15 APPLICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE 
After the close of the NOFA application period, the Orange County Housing Finance Trust will 
convene an Application Review Committee to review and score the applications. The Application 
review Committee may include: 

• OCHFT’s financial consultant 
• County Health Care Agency Staff Member 
• OCHFT Manager 
• County of Orange Affordable Housing Development Manager 
• Private sector representative with experience in homelessness 

 
2.16 FORM OF LOAN DOCUMENTS 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust’s standard loan document is included with this NOFA as 
Attachment B. These loan documents will be modified and negotiated on a project by project basis. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A

mailto:aeliason@ochft.org


8  

 THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS 
3.01 COORDINATED ENTRY SYSTEM 
To be eligible to live in units assisted with Orange County Housing Finance Trust funding through 
this NOFA, each potential tenant must be referred by and go through the County of Orange 
Coordinated Entry System (a process developed to ensure that a fair and equal access to housing are 
quickly identified, assessed for, referred, and connected to housing and assistance based on their 
strengths and needs). Trust funded units shall not have additional residency restrictions placed on 
tenancy by local municipalities. 
 
3.02 INCOME LIMITS 
All units assisted with Orange County Housing Finance Trust funding through this NOFA will be 
required to be restricted to households whose income does not exceed Thirty Percent (30%) Area 
Median Income, as adjusted for household size with rents that are affordable to such households. 
Utility costs shall be deducted from the tenants rent so that rent and utilities combined remain at an 
affordable level. Projects receiving funding through the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development’s (HCD’s) Local Housing Trust Fund Program must meet the income 
limits as published by HCD (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/docs/grants-and-funding/inc2k22.pdf). 
 
3.03 SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
MHSA units funded by the Trust shall include supportive services to ensure the maximum possible 
self-sufficiency by the tenants. Applicants must meet with the Orange County Health Care Agency 
prior to March 8th, 2023 to ensure the project meets all of the requirements for MHSA funding. 
Requirements for submission to the Health Care Agency can be found in Attachment C.  
See Attachment D – Mental Health Services Act Funding Term Sheet for loan terms and conditions 
applicable to all MHSA funded units. 
 
For projects not applying for MHSA funds through this NOFA, a Social Services Plan and budget is 
required to document anticipated services that will be provided for all other supportive and non-
supportive units in the proposed project. This Social Services Plan shall identify a lead service 
provider and other service providers who will be working with residents. A list of services should be 
included for each population that will be served at the property. 
 
3.04 RESERVES 
Projects funded by the Trust shall include a Capitalized Operating Reserve. Projects that have 
project-based rental assistance, such as Project Based Section 8 Vouchers, may forego the 
Capitalized Operating Reserve. The Capitalized Operating Reserve shall provide for the ongoing 
operation and maintenance of the project and the provision of required supportive services 
throughout the term of the of the loan agreement. 
 
In addition to the Capitalized Operating Reserve, projects shall provide for a Replacement Reserve to 
cover replacement of capitalized cost items. Projects not requesting MHSA funds through the Trust 
shall provide Replacement Reserve at no less than $350/unit/year. Projects requesting MHSA funds 
through the Trust shall provide Replacement Reserves at no less than $500/unit/year, increasing 5% 
every five years. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



9  

3.05 COMPLIANCE MONITORING FEE 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust shall charge all projects an annual compliance 
monitoring fee of $103 per unit per year, increasing annually in accordance with the Consumer Price 
Index for Los Angeles – Anaheim – Riverside (All Urban Consumers – All Items) (CPI). 
 
3.06 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 
Projects must have all financing committed within 18 months of the Trust’s award letter or risk losing 
their project funding. The Trust reserves the right to extend this time limit at its sole discretion. 
 
3.07 UNDERWRITING ASSUMPTIONS 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust has developed a set of underwriting assumptions to 
evaluate the financial feasibility of each project. These underwriting assumptions as based on the 
requirements of the Trust’s funding sources and industry best practices. The underwriting 
assumptions can be found in Attachment E. Applicants are encouraged to use these underwriting 
assumptions in their project proforma that will be submitted as part of their application to this NOFA. 
Further underwriting requirements are contained in the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development Uniform Multifamily Regulations located at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/uniform-multifamily-regulations 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



10  

 SCORING 
Applications will be competitively scored and ranked against other projects requesting the same type 
of funding and located within the same County Service Planning Area (SPA). Scoring serves as a 
basis to compare applications but ultimately the decision to award funds is based upon the Trust 
Board approval. 
 
Project scoring shall be based on the following categories: 

1. Project readiness; 
2. Developer experience; 
3. Service enriched location; 
4. Development Pipeline; and, 
5. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. 

 
Projects that have identical scores based on the project scoring will be ranked by a tie-breaker 
detailed below in Section 4.04, Tiebreaker. 
 
4.01 PROJECT READINESS 
Projects shall be scored on how quickly they will have units ready for occupancy. Projects will 
receive a maximum of 35 points for project readiness. For acquisition/rehab projects, projects will be 
deducted one point for each month past June 1, 2023 for its scheduled loan closing. For new 
construction projects, projects will be deducted one point for each month past December 1, 2023 for 
its scheduled loan closing. 
 
4.02 DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & FINANCIAL STRENGTH 
A maximum of 40 points will be available for applicants based on their prior development experience 
and financial strength. One point will be awarded for every ten (10) units of Permanent Supportive 
and Affordable Housing that the applicant developed and currently operates. Discretionary scoring 
may adjust this number downward based upon the financial strength of the applicant. 
 
4.03 SERVICE ENRICHED LOCATION 
Projects will be awarded a maximum of 25 points based on proximity to nearby amenities.  Distances 
must be measured using a standardized radius from the development site to the target amenity, unless 
that line crosses a significant physical barrier or barriers. Such barriers include highways, railroad 
tracks, regional parks, golf courses, or any other feature that significantly disrupts the pedestrian 
walking pattern between the development site and the amenity. The radius line may be struck from 
the corner of development site nearest the target amenity, to the nearest corner of the target amenity 
site. However, a radius line shall not be struck from the end of an entry drive or on-site access road 
that extends from the central portion of the site itself by 250 feet or more. Rather, the line shall be 
struck from the nearest corner of the site’s central portion. Where an amenity such as a grocery store 
resides within a larger shopping complex or commercial strip, the radius line must be measured to 
the amenity exterior wall, rather than the site boundary. The resulting distance shall be reduced in 
such instances by 250 feet to account for close-in parking. 
 
Amenity definitions and criteria mentioned below shall have the same definition as the California 
Tax Credit Allocation Committee Regulations in effect at the time this NOFA was issued. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



11  

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/ctcac/programreg/2021/20210616/2021-regulations-clean.pdf 
 
4.03.1 Grocery Store 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.25 miles of a full-scale grocery store. Projects 
will be awarded 2 points if they are within 0.50 miles of a grocery store.  
 
4.03.2 Medical Care 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a hospital. Projects will be awarded 
3 points if they are within 0.5 miles of an urgent care facility or qualifying medical clinic with a 
physician, physician’s assistant, or nurse practitioner onsite for a minimum of 40 hours each week 
(not merely a private doctor’s office).  A qualifying medical clinic must accept Medi-Cal payments, 
or Medicare payments or have an equally comprehensive subsidy program for low-income patients. 
 
4.03.3 Community Center 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a public library or community center 
that is open at least 5 days a week to the general public. 
 
4.03.4 Public Park 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a public park.   
 
4.03.5 Transit 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a bus station, or bus stop that provides 
service at least every 30 minutes during the hours of 7-9 a.m. and 4-6 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
If frequency and hours cannot be met but the project is still within 0.5 miles, 3 points will be awarded. 
 
4.04 DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE 
Projects will be awarded 10 points if they are included on the Trust’s Development Pipeline no later 
than December 1, 2022. New projects can be added to the Trust’s Development Pipeline at any time 
on the Trust’s website at https://ochft.org/development-pipeline. Applicants do not need to show 
evidence of project inclusion on the Trust’s Development Pipeline as part of their application.  
 
4.05 AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING 
Projects will be awarded 8 points if they are located in a High or Highest Resource area designated 
on the 2022 TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Map (https://belonging.berkeley.edu/2022-
tcacopportunity-map). 
 
4.06 TIE BREAKER 
Projects receiving identical scores based on the project scoring will be ranked based on a tie breaker. 
The tie breaker is intended to determine the efficiency of each project’s use of Trust funds. The tie 
breaker is a calculation of the requested Trust loan amount per unit in the project. (Total project 
request / total number of affordable units in the project = Trust dollars/unit.) The total number of 
affordable units in the project includes all affordable units, not limited to the number of units the 
applicant is requesting be funded through this NOFA. If a project includes multiple phases, the total 
number of affordable units in the project shall only include the number of units being proposed as 
part of the phase of the project that is being considered as part of the application to this NOFA. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/ctcac/programreg/2021/20210616/2021-regulations-clean.pdf
https://ochft.org/development-pipeline


12  

 APPLICATION 
This NOFA has an online application that is available at (https://forms.gle/q51pkrqnntXJwmdX7). 
Applications must be submitted through this website no later than 5:00pm, March 22, 2023. All 
submissions will be automatically date and time stamped. The application will consist of several 
parts, which are described below. 
 
The online application form cannot be saved as a work-in-progress, and can only be saved once fully 
complete. A copy of the entire application form is provided as Attachment F to this NOFA. 
 
5.01 GENERAL APPLICATION FORM 
The General Application Form includes basic information about the project and the applicant. Project 
information will include project name, address, and type of project. Applicant information will 
include the applicant name, contact information, and the legal structure of the applicant. 
 
5.02 PROJECT NARRATIVE 
A narrative description of the project is required. The project narrative must include: 

1. The purpose and the scope of the project. 
2. Identify the neighborhood the project will serve. 
3. Summarize the condition of the housing stock in the neighborhood. 
4. Document neighborhood services (public transportation, schools, shopping, etc.) 
5. Discuss the process and timing to receive entitlement approvals. 

 
The project’s narrative description will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the online 
application form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however applicants are 
encouraged to be concise and brief in describing the project.  
 
5.03 PROJECT VICINITY MAP 
A map showing the project site is required. The map should clearly show the project site boundaries 
and the surrounding neighborhood. In addition, the vicinity map must clearly show all service 
enriched amenities for which the applicant is seeking points for project scoring. The map should 
include the project boundary and numbered location markers showing the location of each amenity 
being used as part of the project scoring points calculation. In the map legend, include the name of 
each amenity and its corresponding numbered location marker, as well as the distance from the 
project site to the amenity. In addition to the one-page map, the applicant shall provide a schedule 
for any transit amenities being claimed as part of the project scoring. The file size for the PDF is 
limited to 100 megabytes.  
 
5.04 PROJECT PROFORMA 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust will provide all applicants with a blank project proforma 
in Excel for them to fill out and submit as part of their application. The project proforma must be 
summitted in an Excel format. 
 
In the event that the project proforma does not show any repayment of the Trust’s loan within the 
first fifteen years of project operation, a 55-year cashflow project will need to be included as part of 
the project proforma. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



13  

 
5.05 FINANCIAL NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Provide a brief narrative regarding each of the expected funding sources and their expected timing 
and other details indicating likelihood of award. 
 
The project’s financial notes and assumptions will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the 
online application form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however 
applicants are encouraged to be concise and brief in detailing their financial assumptions. Any and 
all residual receipts assumptions must include the criteria listed in 2.10.5. 
 
5.06 PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Provide a project schedule that includes funding milestones (anticipated application and award dates 
for all other funding sources), anticipated construction loan closing date, construction duration, and 
anticipated placed in service date.   
 
The project schedule will be accepted as a PDF. The file size for the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 
 
5.07 DEVELOPMENT TEAM MEMBERS 
Provide the name, address, contact person, telephone number, e-mail address, and resumes for 
members of the proposed project team. Include the developer principals and project manager, 
architect, civil engineer, contractor, and social services provider (if applicable). 
 
The list of development team members and their resumes will be accepted as a PDF. Limit the resume 
of each team member to two pages each. Please exclude any marketing material from all team 
members. The file size for the PDF is limited to 100 megabytes. 
 
5.08 APPLICANT EXPERIENCE 
Provide a brief description of the applicant’s experience developing the type of housing that is being 
proposed. 
 
The applicant’s experience will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the online application 
form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however applicants are encouraged 
to be concise and brief in detailing their experience.  
 
5.09 APPLICANT FINANCIAL STRENGTH 
Provide the most recent audited financial statements and a schedule of real estate owned. A template 
for the schedule of real estate owned is provided on the Orange County Housing Finance Trust's 
website at https://ochft.org/2023-notice-of-funding-availability, other formats that include similar 
information will be accepted. 
 
The audited financial statements and schedule of real estate owned will be submitted as separate 
PDFs. The file size for each PDF is limited to 100 megabytes.  
 
5.10 HEALTH CARE AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT LETTER 
Applicants seeking MHSA funding for their project must submit the project to the Orange County 
Health Care Agency and meet with them prior to March 8th, 2023 to be considered for this NOFA. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



14  

The Health Care Agency requirements for submission are included as Attachment C. The Health 
Care Agency will provide the applicant with a letter of acknowledgement that they are working with 
the applicant to develop a Social Service Plan and that the project meets the requirements for MHSA 
funding.  
 
The Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter will be uploaded as a PDF through the application 
form. The size of the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 
 
5.11 SOCIAL SERVICES PLAN 
All applications shall include a Social Services Plan demonstrating how social services appropriate to 
the needs of the residents will be provided. The Plan shall include provisions specified in Section 3.03 
of this NOFA and provide a description of the proposed social services to be provided, including: 
 

• Target Population 
• Types of Services to be provided 
• Agency which will provide the services and their experience 
• Location of the services (on or off-site, and if off-site, where and provide travel plan for 

clients) 
• Proposed source of funding for services 
• Status of funding for services 
• Any fees to be charged for services 

 
The Social Services Plan should address all populations that will reside in the proposed project. The 
applicant and the Orange County Health Care Agency will work together to develop a Social Services 
Plan for MHSA units funded through this NOFA. That portion of the Social Services Plan does not 
need to be included in this NOFA application, as long as the Health Care Agency has provided an 
Acknowledgement Letter in accordance with 5.10, Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter. 
 
All applicants must identify a qualified service provider that will provide supportive services to the 
residents occupying units assisted under this NOFA. For MHSA units funded through this NOFA, the 
Orange County Health Care Agency shall be the service provider, and will develop the Social Services Plan 
for those units with the applicant. The applicant will be required to arrange for the provision of 
supportive services for the term of the assistance provided under this NOFA. 
 
The social services plan will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The size of the PDF 
is limited to 100 megabytes. 
 
5.12 SOCIAL SERVICES OPERATING BUDGET 
If the applicant is proposing to fund services for the people experiencing homelessness through 
project revenues, or a funding source that is specific to the project, provide a budget for the social 
services. A budget is not required where services are proposed to be provided by third party agencies 
from existing revenue sources. 
 
The social services operating budget will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The 
size of the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



15  

5.13 LEVINE ACT STATEMENT 
An authorized agent of the applicant must review and execute the Levine Act Statement (Attachment 
G). 
 
The Levine Act Statement will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The size of the 
PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT A LIST OF TRUST MEMBERS 
 

1. Aliso Viejo 
2. Anaheim 
3. Buena Park 
4. Costa Mesa 
5. County of Orange 
6. Dana Point 
7. Fountain Valley 
8. Fullerton 
9. Garden Grove 
10. Huntington Beach 
11. Irvine 
12. Lake Forest 
13. Laguna Beach 
14. Laguna Hills 
15. Laguna Niguel 
16. La Habra 
17. Mission Viejo 
18. Newport Beach 
19. Orange 
20. Placentia 
21. San Juan Capistrano 
22. Santa Ana 
23. Seal Beach 
24. Stanton 
25. Tustin 
26. Westminster 
27. Yorba Linda 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT B LOAN DOCUMENT TEMPLATE 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

 

 

 

 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 

 

 

ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, 

a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq 

 

AND 

 

 

BORROWER 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 1 

  

 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS LOAN AGREEMENT ("the Agreement") is entered into as of this _____ 
day of _________________, 20[XX], by and between the ORANGE COUNTY 
HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (“OCHFT” or the “Trust”), and [BORROWER] 
("Borrower"), with reference to the following: 

 

RECITALS 

1. Borrower intends to construct a housing project on that certain real 
property located within [unincorporated/the City of [XXXXX], County of Orange, State 
of California, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Property").  The Borrower further intends to operate a [number 
of units] ([XX]) unit residential development consisting of [insert facts] which shall be 
constructed by Borrower on the Property (collectively, the “Project”). 

2. The Borrower has submitted to the Trust an application for funding of a 
project, described herein, under its 20[XX] Permanent Supportive Housing Notice of 
Funding Availability (“20[XX] PSH NOFA”). 

3. The Trust desires to provide a loan during the construction period (which 
will convert to a permanent loan upon completion of construction of the Project, as set 
forth herein) to Borrower subject to the Borrower’s agreement, amongst other things, to 
encumber the Borrower’s [fee simple/leasehold] interest in the Property with certain 
rental restrictions, all as more particularly set forth in this Loan Agreement and the 
Regulatory Agreement. 

4. The Trust Board of Directors approved a loan to the Borrower from Trust 
funds for permanent financing on [DATE].  

5. Borrower is financing the construction of the improvements and related 
costs and expenses through the following sources: 

[FINANCING SOURCES TO BE OUTLINED FORTHWITH] 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 2 

  

 The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the respective meanings 
assigned to them in this Article I unless the context in which they are used clearly 
requires otherwise: 

1.1. "20[XX] PSH NOFA" shall mean the 20[XX] XXXXX Notice of Funding 
Availability issued by the Trust on [DATE]. 

1.2. "Adjusted Income" shall mean the adjusted income of all persons who intend to 
reside in one residential unit, calculated in the manner which complies with 
determinations of income for low income families under the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 Program of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended. 

1.3. "Agreement" shall mean this Loan Agreement. 

1.4. "Annual Project Revenue" shall mean all of the rental revenue from the 
residential portion of the project but shall not include tenant security deposits, 
capital contributions, insurance or condemnation proceeds, income received for 
the purpose of completing the project, or funding received for the purpose of 
social services to the residents. 

1.5. "Architect" shall mean [NAME OF ARCHITECT], or any other architect 
designated by Borrower and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld conditioned or delayed, as the architect for the Project. 

1.6. "Architect’s Agreement" shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.4, 
hereafter, in which the Borrower has entered into with the Architect. 

1.7. "Area" shall mean Orange County, California.  

1.8. "Assignment of Leases" shall mean that certain Assignment of Lessor’s Interest 
in Leases, Rents and Profits executed by Borrower of even date herewith. 

1.9. "Borrower" shall mean [NAME OF BORROWER] 

1.10. "Close of Escrow" shall mean the date on which the Loan is funded by the Trust 
through the Escrow Holder and the Deed of Trust together with the other Loan 
Documents set up for recording are in fact recorded. 

1.11. "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to 
time hereafter, or any successor statute thereto. 

1.12. "Commencement of Construction" shall mean the date upon which the Senior 
Construction Deed of Trust is fully executed and recorded as a lien upon the 
Property.  

1.13. "Completion of Construction" shall mean the date on which the Borrower has 
submitted to the Trust and the Trust has approved the recorded Notice of 
Completion and the final certificate of occupancy or jurisdictional equivalent, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 3 

  

and shall, among other things (as set forth in Article VI, herein) be deemed the 
commencement of the Qualified Project Period, as defined hereafter. 

1.14. "Construction Agreement" shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.3, 
hereafter, in which the Borrower has entered into with the Contractor. 

1.15. "Construction Period" shall mean the period beginning with the 
Commencement of Construction and ending upon the Completion of 
Construction, which is estimated to last no more than [number of years] ([X]) 
years.  

1.16. "Contractor" shall mean [NAME OF CONTRACTOR], or any other contractor 
designated by Borrower and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld conditioned or delayed, as the contractor for the Project.  

1.17. "Conversion Date" shall mean the date on which the Construction Period shall 
end and the Qualified Project Period shall begin, on this date the County’s 
construction loan shall convert to a permanent loan as long as all of the 
conditions set forth in Article VI of this Agreement are fulfilled. 

1.18. "Deed of Trust" shall mean that certain Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and 
Security Agreement executed by the Borrower in favor of the Trust of even date 
herewith. 

1.19. "Due Date" shall mean the date which is fifty-five (55) years following the 
Conversion Date, on which all principal and interest due on the Loan shall be 
fully paid. 

1.20. "Escrow Holder" shall mean the escrowholder approved by the Trust for the 
escrow established to facilitate the Close of Escrow. 

1.21. "Extremely Low Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose 
incomes do not exceed the qualifying limits for extremely low income families 
as defined in and California Health & Safety Code section 50106. 

1.22. "Financing Plan" shall mean the financing plan described in Section 5.1 below. 

1.23. "Financing Statement" shall mean the UCC-1 form to be prepared and executed 
by Borrower, in a form satisfactory to the Trust, and delivered to the Trust, the 
filing of which shall give the Trust a perfected security interest in Borrower's 
tangible personal property and fixtures located on or about the Project. 

1.24. "Hazardous Materials" or "hazardous materials" shall mean:  

(a) any oil, flammable substance, explosive, radioactive material, 
hazardous waste or substance, toxic waste or substance or any other waste, 
material, or pollutant that: 

(i) poses a hazard to the Project or to persons on the Project or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 4 

  

(ii) causes the Project to be in violation of any Hazardous 
Substance Law; 

(b) asbestos in any form; 

(c) urea formaldehyde foam insulation; 

(d) transformers or other equipment that contain dielectric fluid 
containing levels of polychlorinated biphenyls; 

(e) radon gas; 

(f) any chemical, material, or substance defined as or included in the 
definition of “hazardous substance,” “hazardous substances,” “hazardous 
wastes,” “hazardous materials,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted 
hazardous waste,” or “toxic substances” or words of similar import under any 
applicable local, state, or federal law or under the regulations adopted or 
publications promulgated pursuant to those laws, including, but not limited to, 
any Hazardous Substance Law, Code of Civil Procedure § 564, as amended from 
time to time, Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, as amended from time to time, 
Code of Civil Procedure §736, as amended from time to time, and Civil Code § 
2929.5, as amended from time to time; 

(g) any other chemical, material, or substance, exposure to which is 
prohibited, limited, or regulated by any governmental authority or which may 
pose a hazard to the health and safety of the occupants of the Project or the 
owners or occupants of property adjacent to or surrounding the Project, or any 
other person coming on the Project or any adjacent property; and 

(h) any other chemical, material, or substance that may pose a hazard 
to the environment flammable materials, explosives, radioactive materials, 
hazardous wastes, toxic substances and similar substances and materials, 
including all substances and materials defined as hazardous or toxic wastes, 
substances or materials under any applicable law, including, without limitation 
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et. seq., as 
amended.  

1.25. "Hazardous Substance Law" means any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, 
regulation, or policy relating to the environment, health, and safety, any 
Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the use, handling, 
transportation, production, disposal, discharge, or storage of the substance), 
industrial hygiene, soil, groundwater, and indoor and ambient air conditions or 
the environmental conditions on the Project, including, without limitation, the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
1980 [42 USCS §§ 9601 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous 
Substances Transportation Act [49 USCS §§ 1801 et seq.], as amended from 
time to time; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act [42 USCS §§ 6901 et 
seq.], as amended from time to time; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act [33 
USCS §§ 1251 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Substance 
Account Act [Health and Safety Code §§ 25300 et seq.], as amended from time 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 5 

  

to time; the Hazardous Waste Control Law [Health and Safety Code §§ 25100 et 
seq.], as amended from time to time; the Medical Waste Management Act 
[Health and Safety Code §§ 25015 et seq.], as amended from time to time; and 
the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act [Water Code §§ 13000 et seq.], as 
amended from time to time. 

1.26. "HCD" shall mean the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

1.27. "Loan" shall mean the Loan in the amount of [LOAN AMOUNT] ($XXXXX) 
by the Trust to the Borrower, which Loan is the subject of this Agreement.  

1.28. "Loan Documents" shall mean the following documents evidencing the Loan:  
(a) the Note; (b) the Deed of Trust; (c) the Financing Statement; (d) the 
Regulatory Agreement; (e) Request for Notice of Default; (f) the Assignment of 
Rents and Leases; and (g) this Loan Agreement. 

1.29. "Local Housing Trust Fund Program" or "LHTF Program" shall mean the 
Local Housing Trust Fund Matching Grant Program as defined in California 
Health and Safety Code Sections 50842.1 through 50843.5, administered through 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development. 

1.30. "Lower Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose income 
does not exceed the qualifying limits for lower income families as defined in 
California Health & Safety Code section 50079.5. 

1.31. "Management Plan" shall mean that management plan submitted to and 
approved by the Trust pursuant to Section 5.1 below. 

1.32. "Marketing Plan" shall mean that certain Marketing Plan submitted to and 
approved by the Trust pursuant to Section 9.8 hereof. 

1.33. "Median Income for the Area" shall mean the median income for the Area as 
most recently determined by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (“HUD”) and published by the State of California.  In the 
event that such income determinations are no longer published, or are not 
updated for a period of at least eighteen (18) months, the Trust shall provide the 
Borrower with other income determinations which are reasonably similar with 
respect to methods of calculation to those previously published by HUD and The 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 

1.34. "Mortgage Loan" shall mean any of the following loans secured by a mortgage 
or deed of trust on the Project: 

(a) The Loan evidenced by the Note and the balance of the Loan 
Documents. 

(b) Any other loan secured by a mortgage or deed of trust on the 
Project, either senior or junior to the Loan. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 6 

  

1.35. "Mortgage Loan Documents" shall mean all documents executed by the 
Borrower endorsing or securing a Mortgage Loan. 

1.36. "Mortgagee" shall mean the mortgagee or beneficiary under a mortgage or a 
deed of trust executed in connection with a Mortgage Loan.  

1.37. "Net Operating Income"  or "NOI" shall mean all of the Annual Project 
Revenue of the project less (i) operating expenses of the project as approved by 
the Trust in an annual audit submitted by the Borrower and approved by the 
Trust; (ii) obligated debt service payments on the Project as approved by the 
Trust; (iii) scheduled deposits to reserves, as approved by the Trust; (iv) deferred 
developer fees, as approved by the Trust; and (v) partnership management or 
asset management fees as approved by the Trust.  

1.38. "Note" shall mean the promissory note in the principal amount of Loan 
evidencing the monies borrowed by Borrower from the Trust. 

1.39. "Operating Reserves" shall mean reserves maintained during the Qualified 
Project period and funded out of Residual Receipts, loan advances, equity, or 
other sources and set aside for taxes and assessments, insurance premiums, 
operating expenses, and debt service.  Projects that have project-based rental 
assistance, such as Project Based Section 8 Vouchers, may forego the 
Capitalized Operating Reserve. The Capitalized Operating Reserve shall provide 
for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the project and the provision of 
required supportive services throughout the term of the of the loan agreement.  

1.40. "Parties" shall mean the Trust and the Borrower. 

1.41. "Partnership" shall mean [NAME OF PARTNERSHIP CREATED, IF ANY]. 

1.42. "Permanent Lender" shall mean the permanent lender designated by Borrower 
and approved in advance by the Trust as the Permanent Lender for the Project. 

1.43. "Permanent Term" shall mean the period beginning on the Conversion Date and 
ending on the date that is fifty-five (55) years after the Conversion Date. 

1.44. "Persons and families of low or moderate income" shall mean persons and 
families whose income does not exceed 120 percent of area median income, 
adjusted for family size as further defined in California Health & Safety Code 
section 50093.  

1.45. "Plans and Specifications" shall mean the final set of architectural, structural, 
mechanical, electrical, grading, sewer, water, street and utility plans and 
specifications for the Project, including all supplemental, amendments and 
modifications. 

1.46. "Project" means collectively the Property and the structures and related 
buildings and other improvements now or hereafter located on the Property from 
time to time together with all fixtures and other property owned by the Borrower 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 7 

  

and located on, or used in connection with, such buildings, structures and other 
improvements. 

1.47. "Property" means the real property legally described on Exhibit "A", which is 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and all rights and 
appurtenances thereunto appertaining. 

1.48. "Qualified Project Period" shall mean the period beginning upon the 
Conversion Date and ending on the date which is fifty-five (55) years after the 
Conversion Date. 

1.49. "Qualified Tenant" or "Qualified Tenants" shall collectively mean the 
individual or individuals occupying the Restricted Units with the Adjusted 
Incomes more particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  The income of individuals shall be determined in a manner 
consistent with determinations of lower income households under Section 8 of 
the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended (or, if such program is 
terminated, in a manner consistent with such determinations under such program 
as is in effect immediately before such termination).  In no event, however, will 
the occupant of a Restricted Unit be considered to be a Qualified Tenant if the 
occupant is a student, and is not entitled to file a federal income tax return. 

1.50. "Regulations" shall mean the Income Tax Regulations promulgated by the 
United States Department of the Treasury pursuant to the Code from time to 
time. 

1.51. "Regulatory Agreement" shall mean that certain Regulatory Agreement and 
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants between the Trust and the Borrower of 
even date herewith.  

1.52. "Replacement Reserves" shall mean reserves maintained during the Qualified 
Project period and funded out of Residual Receipts, loan advances, equity, or 
other sources and set aside for replacement of roofing, furniture, fixtures, 
equipment and other capital expenditures.  The annual amount set aside shall 
provide for a Replacement Reserve to cover replacement of capitalized cost 
items at no less than three hundred and fifty dollars ($350) per unit per year, ,or 
such higher amount as may be required by a tax credit investor or senior 
Mortgagee and approved by Trust. 

1.53. "Request for Notice of Default" shall mean a request for notice of default to be 
recorded against the Property in a form approved by the Trust.  

1.54.  "Residual Receipts" shall mean Net Operating Income (NOI), if any, from the 
project as calculated ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal year, a portion 
of which shall be used to repay the Loan (as required under the Loan 
Documents) and other subordinated loans to the Borrower.  

1.55. "Restricted Unit" or "Restricted Units" means the dwelling units in the Project 
identified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein required to be 
rented to, or held available for occupancy by, Qualified Tenants pursuant to the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 8 

  

terms, covenants and conditions of the Regulatory Agreement, this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the rental restrictions and other matters set forth in 
said Exhibit "B" and the other Loan Documents. 

1.56. "Tax Credit Investor" shall mean the tax credit investor designated by Borrower 
and approved in advance by the Trust as the Tax Credit Investor for the Project. 

1.57. "Term" shall mean the Construction Period, and the Permanent Term, as 
applicable, for a total possible term of up to fifty-eight (58) years 

1.58. "Trust" shall mean the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California 
public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. 
seq. 

1.59. "Trust Manager" shall mean the Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
Manager or her or his designee. 

1.60. "Underwriting Standards" shall mean those standards approved by the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development for this loan. 

"Very Low Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose incomes do 
not exceed the qualifying limits for very low income families as defined in California 
Health & Safety Code section 50105. 

 

ARTICLE II 

LOAN 

2.1. Amount.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Trust hereby agrees to lend 
and the Borrower hereby agrees to borrow, the Loan, evidenced by the Note, the 
proceeds of which shall be used for construction of the Project and upon 
fulfillment of certain conditions, as set forth herein, to permanently finance the 
Project and for the other purposes set forth herein. 

2.2. Repayment of Loan.  Borrower shall repay the Loan, with interest, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Note and this Agreement.  Except as otherwise 
provided, all payments shall be applied first to interest and then to principal. 

In the event that the Trust is dissolved prior to full repayment of the Loan, 
Borrower shall repay the loan portion comprised of the LHTF Program Funds to 
HCD. 

2.3. Prepayment.  Borrower may pay the principal and any interest due the Trust under 
the Note prior to or in advance of the time for payment thereof as provided in the 
Note, without penalty; provided, however, that Borrower acknowledges the 
provisions of this Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement will be applicable to 
the Project throughout the Qualified Project Period, even though Borrower may 
have prepaid the Note. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 9 

  

2.4. Assumption.  Subject to the provisions of Section 8.7 hereof, the Note shall not be 
assumable by successors and assigns of Borrower, either voluntarily or by 
operation of law, without the prior written discretionary consent of the Trust and 
any such assignment or assumption without said prior consent of the Trust shall 
be void. 

2.5. Loan Disbursement.  Upon satisfaction of the conditions to disbursement set forth 
in Section 5.1 below and pursuant to the disbursement procedures set forth in 
Section 5.2 below, the Trust, through the approved Escrow Holder, will cause the 
disbursement of the Loan as provided for in Section 5.2. 

2.6. Security for Loan.  The Loan shall be secured by the Deed of Trust, Regulatory 
Agreement, the Financing Statement, Assignment of Leases and the Request for 
Notice of Default which shall be in [XXXXX] priority during the Construction 
Period and in [XXXXX] priority during the Qualified Project Period. 

2.7. Approval of Additional Financing.  Except as to the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust and as otherwise described herein, the 
Borrower shall not place or permit (either voluntarily or involuntarily) to be 
placed any encumbrances, including, but not limited to any additional liens or 
financing of any kind on the Project without the prior written discretionary 
consent of the Trust. 

2.8. Subordination of Deed of Trust.  

(a) Construction Period.  Upon Commencement of Construction, and until the 
beginning of the Qualified Project Period (as long as the conditions set forth 
in Article VI, herein, are fulfilled), the Trust agrees that the Deed of Trust 
may be subordinate to the lien of a permanent loan secured by the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust (and any refinancing of said 
construction loan secured by that Senior Construction/Permanent Deed of 
Trust) securing financing in an amount not to exceed $[XXXXXX] so long as 
(i) the documentation for said loan is approved by the Trust, (ii) said loan is 
otherwise provided for and approved by the Trust in the Financing Plan and 
(iii) the maximum draw on said loan shall not exceed $[XXXXXX] without 
the prior written consent of the Trust. 

(b) Qualified Project Period.  During the Qualified Project Period, as long as the 
conditions set forth in Article VI, herein, are fulfilled and the Conversion 
Date, in addition to the subordination provided for in Section 2.8, the Trust 
agrees that the Deed of Trust may be subordinate to the lien of: a permanent 
loan secured by the Senior Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust (and any 
refinancing of said permanent loan secured by that Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust) securing financing in an amount not 
to exceed $[XXXXXXX] so long as (i) the documentation for said loan is 
approved by the Trust and (ii) said loan is otherwise provided for and 
approved by the Trust in the Financing Plan. 

(c) The Trust has approved the [Senior financing], as set forth hereinabove, each 
to which the Trust Deed of Trust is subordinate, [as well as the [junior 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 10 

  

financing,] Tax Credit Equity and the Deferred Developer Fee.]  Any other 
financing, refinancing or encumbrance of the Project is prohibited without the 
Trust’s prior written consent which consent the Trust may withhold in the 
exercise of its discretion.  

(d) In order to affect the subordinations described above and elsewhere in this 
Agreement, the Trust and Borrower agree to execute and acknowledge for 
recordation a subordination agreement (in a form acceptable to the Trust) in 
favor of the senior lender, as requested by such senior lender.  

 

ARTICLE III 

CONSTRUCTION 

3.1. Construction.  Borrower will diligently proceed with construction of the Project 
and related improvements in accordance with the Plans and Specifications as 
approved by the Trust and the construction lender without delay subsequent to 
the Commencement of Construction.  It is anticipated that the Construction 
Period shall be no more than [number of months] (X) months from 
Commencement of Construction. 

3.2. Force Majeure.  The time within which construction of the Project must be 
completed may be extended for a period of time equal to the period of any delay 
directly affecting construction which is caused by fire, earthquake or other acts 
of God, strike, lockout, acts of public enemy, riot insurrection or governmental 
regulation of the sale or transportation of materials, supplies or labor; provided 
however, that (i) Borrower shall furnish to Trust written notice satisfactory to 
Trust evidencing any such delay within ten (10) business days from the 
occurrence of any such delay, and (ii) the delay shall in no event cause an event 
of default beyond any applicable notice and cure period under, or threaten the 
availability of, the other construction funding or permanent funding for the 
Project.  

3.3. Construction Agreement.  Borrower and Contractor have entered, or will soon 
enter into a Construction Agreement, as approved by the Trust, pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of which Contractor is to construct the Project.  Borrower 
shall require Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms of the 
Construction Agreement and, except with respect to change orders approved 
under Section 3.5 below, shall not amend, modify or alter the responsibilities of 
Contractor under the Construction Agreement without the Trust’s prior written 
consent.  Borrower shall execute, upon the Trust’s written request, an assignment 
of Borrower’s rights under the Construction Agreement to Trust as security for 
Borrower’s performance and obligations under this Agreement and the other 
Loan Documents and shall cause Contractor to consent to any such assignment, 
as necessary. 

3.4. Architect’s Agreement.  Borrower and Architect have entered, or will soon enter 
into an Architect’s Agreement, as approved by the Trust, pursuant to the terms 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 11 

  

and conditions of which Architect is to design the Project.  Borrower shall 
require Architect to perform in accordance with the terms of the Architect’s 
Agreement and shall not amend, modify or alter the responsibilities of Architect 
under the Architect’s Agreement without the Trust’s prior written consent.  
Borrower shall execute, upon the Trust’s written request, an assignment of the 
Architect’s Agreement and the Plans and Specifications to Trust as additional 
security for Borrower’s performance and obligations under this Agreement and 
the other Loan Documents and shall cause Architect to consent to any such 
assignment, as necessary. 

3.5. Plans and Specifications. 

(a) Changes; Trust Consent.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, 
Borrower shall not make any changes in the Plans and Specifications without 
Trust’s prior written consent if such change: (i) constitutes a material change in 
the building material or equipment specifications, or in the architectural or 
structural design, value or quality of the Project; (ii) would result in an increase of 
construction costs in excess of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for any 
single change, or in excess of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) for all 
such changes; (iii) would affect the structural integrity, quality or building 
materials, or overall efficiency of operating systems of the Project; or (iv) requires 
the approval of the Permanent Lender, Tax Credit Investor or any other third 
party.  Without limiting the above, the Trust agrees that Borrower may make 
minor changes in the Plans and Specifications without Trust’s prior written 
consent, provided that such changes do not violate any of the conditions specified 
herein, and provided that Borrower obtains the consent of the Permanent Lender 
and Tax Credit Investor to all such changes to the extent required by the 
permanent loan documents or any applicable partnership documents.  Borrower 
shall at all times maintain, for inspection by Trust, a full set of working drawings 
of the Project. 

(b) Changes; Submission Requirements.  If Trust’s consent to a change is 
required hereunder, then Borrower shall submit any proposed change in the Plans 
and Specifications to Trust at least ten (10) days prior to the commencement of 
construction relating to such proposed change; otherwise, Borrower shall submit 
plans and changes, which do not require Trust’s consent, with Borrower’s 
subsequent draw request.  Requests for any change which requires consent shall 
be accompanied by working drawings and/or specifications sheet and a written 
description of the proposed change, submitted on a change order form acceptable 
to the Trust, signed by Borrower and, if required by Trust, also by the Architect 
and Contractor.  At its option, Trust may require Borrower to provide: (i) 
evidence satisfactory to Trust of the cost and time necessary to complete the 
proposed change; (ii) a deposit in the amount of any increased costs into 
Borrower’s construction account; and (iii) a complete set of “as built” Plans and 
Specification for the completed Project, including any changes. 

(c) Consent Process.  Borrower acknowledges that Trust’s review of any 
changes and required consents may result in non-material delays in construction 
and hereby consents to any such non-material delays, so long as such non-

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 12 

  

material delays do not result in penalties or fines imposed on Borrower (e.g., 
liquidated damages under the construction contract, etc.), and the Borrower 
notifies Trust of the possibility of such penalties or fines; provided, however, that 
Trust shall use commercially reasonable efforts to review such changes in a 
timely manner.  Trust shall review and respond to any proposed change order that 
requires Trust’s consent hereunder within ten (10) business days of receipt of the 
requested change order.  If Trust fails to timely respond to a change order request, 
then Borrower may submit to Trust a second request for review and approval, 
which request will include a bolded and capitalized statement that “THIS IS A 
SECOND REQUEST FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CHANGE 
ORDER – FAILURE TO RESPOND WITHIN FIVE (5) BUSINESS DAYS 
SHALL CONCLUSIVELY BE DEEMED TRUST CONSENT THERETO.”  
If Trust fails to respond to the second request for said change order within five (5) 
business days of receipt of the second request, then the applicable change order 
shall be conclusively deemed approved by the Trust. 

(d) Final Plans and Specifications.  Upon Completion of Construction, 
Borrower shall deliver to Trust within thirty (30) days a set of final Plans and 
Specifications. 

3.6. Contractor/Construction Information.  Within ten (10) days of Trust’s written 
request, Borrower shall deliver to Trust from time to time in a form acceptable to 
Trust: (a) a list detailing the name, address and phone number of each contractor, 
subcontractor and material supplier to be employed or used for construction of 
the Project together with the dollar amount, including changes, if any, of each 
contract and subcontract, and the portions, thereof, if any, paid through the date 
of such list; (b) copies of each contact and subcontract identified in such list, 
including changes thereto; (c) a cost breakdown of the projected total cost of 
constructing the Project, and that portion, if any, of each cost item which has 
been incurred; and (d) a construction progress schedule detailing the progress of 
construction and the projected sequencing and completion time for the 
uncompleted work, all as of the date of such schedule. 

3.7. Prohibited Contracts.  Without Trust’s prior written consent, Borrower shall not 
contract for any materials, furnishings, equipment, fixtures or other parts or 
components of the Project, if any third party shall retain any ownership interest 
(other than lien rights created by operation of law) in such items after funds have 
been disbursed to pay for such items.  Borrower shall have five (5) days to effect 
the removal of any such retained interest. 

3.8. Liens and Stop Notices.  If a claim of lien is recorded which affects the Property 
or the Project, or a bonded stop notice is served upon Trust or Borrower, 
Borrower shall, within twenty (20) calendar days of such recording or service or 
within five (5) business days of Trust’s demand, whichever occurs first: (a) pay 
or discharge the claim of lien or bonded stop notice; (b) effect the release thereof 
by recording or delivering to Trust a surety bond in sufficient form and amount; 
or (c) provide Trust with other assurances which Trust deems, in its sole 
discretion,  to be satisfactory for the payment of such claim of lien or bonded 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 13 

  

stop notice and for the full and continuous protection of Trust for the effect of 
such lien or bonded stop notice. 

3.9. Construction Responsibilities.  Borrower shall construct the Project in a 
workmanlike manner in accordance with the approved Plans and Specification 
and the recommendations of any soils or engineering reports approved by Trust.  
Borrower shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
building restrictions, recorded covenants and restrictions (as approved by the 
Trust), requirements of all regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Property and Project.  Borrower shall be solely responsible for all aspects of 
Borrower’s business and conduct in connection with the Property and Project, 
including, without limitation, for the quality and suitability of the Plans and 
Specification and their compliance with all governmental requirements, the 
supervision of the work of construction, the qualifications, financial conditions 
and performance of all architects, engineers, contractors, material suppliers, 
consultants and property managers, and the accuracy of all applications for 
payment and the proper application of all disbursements. Trust is not obligated to 
supervise, inspect or inform Borrower or any third party of any aspect of the 
construction of the Project or any other matter referred to above. 

3.10. Assessments and Community Facilities Districts.  Without Trust’s prior written 
consent, Borrower shall not cause or allow to become effective or otherwise 
consent to the formation of any assessment district or community facilities 
district which includes all or any part of the Property and Project pursuant to: (a) 
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982; (b) the Municipal 
Improvement Act of 1913; or (c) any other comparable or similar statute or 
regulation.  Nor shall Borrower cause or otherwise consent to the levying of 
special taxes or assessments against the Property or Project by any such 
assessment district or community facilities district. 

3.11. Delay.  Borrower shall promptly notify Trust in writing of any event causing 
delay or interruption of construction, or the timely Completion of Construction.  
The notice shall specific the particular work delayed, and the cause and period of 
each delay. 

3.12. Inspections.  Trust, or Trust’s authorized representative, shall have the right to 
enter upon the Property at all reasonable times to inspect the Project and the 
construction work to verify information disclosed or required pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any inspection or review of the Project by the Trust is solely to 
determine whether the Borrower is properly discharging its obligations to Trust 
under this Agreement and may not be relied upon by Borrower or any third party 
as a representation or warranty of compliance with this Agreement or any other 
agreement.  Trust owes no duty of care to Borrower or any third party with 
regard to any negligent, faulty, inadequate or defective design or construction of 
the Project as determined by Trust. 

3.13. Surveys.  Upon Trust’s written request, Borrower shall promptly deliver to Trust: 
(a) a perimeter survey of the property; (b) upon completion of the foundations of 
the Project, a survey showing the location of the improvements constituting the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 14 

  

Project on the Property and confirming that the Project is located entirely within 
the Property and does not encroach upon any easement or breach or violate any 
governmental requirement; and (c) upon Completion of the Construction, an “as 
built” survey as set forth in Section 6.1(d) below.  All such surveys shall be 
performed and certified by a licensed engineer or surveyor acceptable to the title 
insurer. 

3.14. Letter of Credit.  Borrower’s contractor on the Project has provided a letter of 
credit in compliance with the Senior Mortgage Loan Document. If requested by 
Trust, within five (5) calendar days of such request, Borrower shall deliver to 
Trust evidence of such letter of credit.  If requested, by Trust, Borrower shall 
record said letter of credit, the Plans and Specifications and the Construction 
Agreement, if any, in the Office of the County Recorder. 

3.15. Trust’s Cessation of Construction.  If Trust reasonably determines at any time that 
the Project is not being constructed in accordance with the Plans and 
Specification and all governmental requirements, Trust may immediately cause 
all construction to cease on any of the Project improvements affected by the 
condition of nonconformance.  Borrower shall thereafter not allow any 
construction work, other than corrective work, to be performed on any of the 
Project affected by the condition of nonconformance until such time as the Trust 
notified the Borrower in writing that the nonconforming condition has been 
corrected to Trust’s reasonable satisfaction. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

QUALIFIED PROJECT PERIOD 

4.1. Use and Rent Restrictions. 

(a) During the Qualified Project Period, the Project shall be “Affordable” as 
defined in 24 CFR Part 92.252 and LHFT Program Guidelines Section 
105(c)(d)(e) as published by HCD, and in compliance with Trust policies 
associated with the 20[XX] PSH NOFA for a period of not less than fifty-five 
(55) years.   

(b) In accordance with the provisions of the Regulatory Agreement, this Loan 
Agreement and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein, the 
Borrower has agreed to rent the Restricted Units of the Project to Qualified 
Tenants for the Qualified Project Period at the rents described in said Exhibit “B.” 

(c) Borrower agrees to provide to Qualified Tenants notice of all rent 
increases pursuant to applicable California law. 

(d) Borrower agrees to limit rent increases to (i) the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually published Rent Adjustment factor for 
the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the rent established as affordable 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 15 

  

based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set 
forth in Exhibit “B”, which is adjusted annually by HUD and published by the 
State of California.  

4.2. Income Determination.  For the purposes of this section, the income of individuals 
and families and the area median gross income shall be determined in a manner 
consistent with determinations of lower income families and the Median Income 
for the Area under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as 
amended (or, if such program is terminated, in a manner consistent with such 
determinations under such program as is in effect immediately before such 
termination).  Determinations under the preceding sentence shall include 
adjustments for household size. 

4.3. Certifications.  With respect to those Restricted Units subject to the rental 
restrictions described above, during the Qualified Project Period the Borrower 
will comply with the Qualified Tenant certifications and recertifications in the 
same manner as prescribed under the Regulatory Agreement. Said certifications 
and recertifications shall include, but not be limited to, client name, address, and 
verifiable income level (as documented by income tax returns, employee payroll 
records, retirement statements, etc. or other third party documentation approved 
by the Trust for determining eligibility).  Such information shall be made 
available to Trust monitors, or their designees, for review upon request. 

4.4. Records. 

(a) The Borrower will maintain complete and accurate records as required by 
Federal Regulations specified in 24 CFR 92.508, which shall contain a description 
of each activity undertaken, records pertaining to the Restricted Units, records 
documenting compliance with fair housing and equal opportunity components, 
financial records as required by 24 CFR 92.508 (a)(5), other records to document 
compliance with Subpart K of 24 CFR 92, and records documenting the continued 
affordability and income restrictions outlined in Exhibit “B”.   

(b) The Borrower will permit any duly authorized representatives of the Trust 
to inspect and copy the books and records of the Borrower pertaining to the 
Project, including those books and records pertaining to the occupancy of the 
Restricted Units provided that the Trust will make a reasonable effort to provide 
notice of at least forty-eight (48) hours to inspect, examine, or make copies of 
such information. 

(c) Borrower will retain such records for a period of five (5) years after the 
termination of all activities funded under this Agreement. 

 
4.5. Leases.  Each lease pertaining to a Restricted Unit shall contain provisions to the 

effect that the Borrower has relied on the income certification and supporting 
information supplied by the Qualified Tenant in determining qualification for 
occupancy of the Restricted Unit, and that any material misstatement in such 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 16 

  

certification (whether or not intentional) will be cause for immediate termination 
of such lease. Trust reserves the right to require additional non-financial terms or 
clauses that are reasonably related to such qualifications (including, but not 
limited to additional disclosure clauses) that the Trust may from time to time 
deem appropriate or necessary to be included in said leases. 

 

ARTICLE V 

DISBURSEMENT OF LOAN 

5.1. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of Loan Proceeds.  The Trust shall cause 
Loan proceeds to be disbursed through escrow to the Borrower as set forth in this 
Article V.  No disbursement shall be made until all of the following conditions 
precedent are satisfied: 

(a) Execution and Delivery of Documents.  Borrower shall have executed and 
delivered to the Trust (i) this Agreement, the Note, the Deed of Trust, the 
Financing Statement, the Regulatory Agreement, and the Assignment of Leases, 
(ii) all resolutions and certificates necessary or appropriate in the opinion of the 
Trust to evidence the Borrower's authority to enter into the Loan and be bound by 
the Loan Documents, and (iii) all other documents and instruments required by 
the Trust to be executed and delivered, all in form and substance satisfactory to 
the Trust. 

(b) Insurance.  Borrower shall have furnished the Trust with certificates of 
insurance for all policies required under this Agreement. 

(c) Phase One Environmental Assessment Report.  Borrower shall have 
provided the Trust with a Phase One Environmental Assessment Report on the 
Property prepared by a licensed and registered environmental engineer or other 
qualified party satisfactory to Trust, along with any other information the Trust 
may require, in each case stating that no hazardous substances are present in, on, 
under or around the Property and that no condition or circumstances warranting 
further investigation now exists. 

(d) Phase Two Environmental Assessment Report.  If the Phase One 
Environmental Assessment Report recommends further investigation, the 
Borrower shall provide a Phase Two Environmental Assessment Report on the 
Property prepared by a licensed and registered environmental engineer or other 
qualified party satisfactory to Trust, along with any other information the Trust 
may require, in each case stating that no hazardous substances are present in, on, 
under, or around the Property and that no condition or circumstances warranting 
further investigation now exists or prevent the construction and habitation of the 
Project. 

(e) Compliance with Applicable Requirements.  The Borrower shall have 
submitted to the Trust evidence that the Property and its intended use are in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 17 

  

compliance with all applicable building, zoning and other requirements of 
applicable public authorities. 

(f) Financing Plan.  The Borrower shall have submitted and the Trust shall 
have approved the Borrower's plan for the permanent financing of the Project 
("Financing Plan"). 

(g) Title Policy.  Borrower shall, at its sole expense, have delivered to the 
Trust an ALTA loan policy-2006, with ALTA endorsement Form 1 coverage, 
amended 6/1/87, without further revision or amendment, issued by an insurer 
satisfactory to the Trust, together with an unconditional CLTA 100 endorsement, 
a CLTA 103.7 endorsement, a CLTA 116.1 endorsement, an ALTA Form 8.1 
endorsement and all other endorsements and binders required by the Trust, 
naming the Trust as the insured, in a policy amount of not less than the Loan, 
showing Borrower as the owner of the Property [OR showing the County/City as 
the owner of the Property with evidence of a long-term ground lease by 
Borrower] and insuring the Deed of Trust to be a valid [number] lien on the 
Property during the Construction Period, subject only to printed exceptions and 
exclusions to the title policy and other Schedule “B” exceptions approved by the 
Trust, and exceptions approved by the Trust in Section 2.8 above. 

(h) Recordation.  The Regulatory Agreement, Deed of Trust, Assignment of 
Leases and Financing Statement shall have been recorded, in that order, in the 
Official Records of Orange County. 

(i) Senior Construction Deed of Trust.  The Mortgage Loan Documents for 
the Senior Construction Loan shall have been recorded in such order as directed 
by the said senior construction lender. 

(j) No Default.  There shall exist no condition, event or act which would 
constitute an Event of Default (as hereinafter defined) hereunder or which, upon 
the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would constitute an Event of 
Default. 

(k) Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower herein contained shall be true and correct. 

(l) Availability of Funds.  The Borrower has submitted to the Trust and the 
Trust has approved in the exercise of its discretion evidence that the funds 
identified as committed to the acquisition of the Property in the approved 
Financing Plan are in fact unconditionally and readily available to Borrower for 
the Property as of the Close of Escrow. 

(m) Priority of Regulatory Agreement.  The Regulatory Agreement has been 
executed and recorded as a lien senior to the Deed of Trust.  

5.2. Procedure for Disbursement of Loan Proceeds.  When all the conditions to 
disbursement have been satisfied, the Trust shall deposit the Loan with the 
Escrow Holder for disbursement upon the Close of Escrow in accordance with 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 18 

  

the terms of separate written escrow instructions between the Trust and 
Borrower.  Said agreement shall be deposited into escrow. 

5.3. Waiver; Termination.  No waiver of any of the conditions to the Close of Escrow 
and disbursement of the Loan shall be permitted unless agreed to in writing by 
the Trust.  If any of the conditions to disbursement of the Loan are not satisfied 
within ninety (90) days following the date of this Agreement, Trust may 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Borrower.  Upon such 
termination, the parties shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

QUALIFIED PROJECT PERIOD 

6.1. Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Qualified Project Period.  Prior to the 
end of the Construction Period and as conditions precedent to the occurrence of 
the Conversion Date and commencement of the Qualified Project Period, all of 
the following conditions precedent must be satisfied: 

(a) Tax Credit Equity.  Borrower shall have secured the anticipated tax credit 
equity, as set forth in the Financing Plan. 

(b) Completion of Construction; Notice of Completion; Permits.  The 
Borrower shall have submitted to the Trust and the Trust shall have approved the 
recorded Notice of Completion, the final certificate of occupancy, or jurisdictional 
equivalent, and any other evidence required by Trust that the Project and its 
intended use are in compliance with all applicable building, zoning and other 
requirements of applicable public authorities. 

(c) Mechanic’s Liens.  The Borrower shall have submitted to Trust for Trust 
approval evidence that all construction costs have been paid in full and that the 
period for filing of mechanic’s liens has expired without the filing of any lien. 

(d) As-Built Survey.  Borrower shall have delivered and the Trust shall have 
approved a final, as-built ALTA survey for the Project showing the location of all 
improvements in and to the Project as well as: (i) all “setbacks” and other 
restrictions applicable to the Project pursuant to requirements of applicable public 
authorities, (ii) all easements, licenses and other rights of way, (iii) that no 
encroachments onto the Project or from the Project onto adjoining property and 
(iv) certifying the legal description of the Project as insured in the title policy. 

(e) Title Policy.  Borrower shall, at its sole expense, have delivered to Trust 
an ALTA loan policy-2006, with ALTA endorsement Form 1 coverage, amended 
6/1/87, without further revision or amendment, issued by an insurer satisfactory to 
Trust, together with an unconditional CLTA 100 endorsement, a CLTA 103.7 
endorsement, a CLTA 116.1 endorsement, an ALTA Form 8.1 endorsement and 
all other endorsements and binders required by Trust, naming Trust as the insured, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 19 

  

in a policy amount of not less than the Loan, showing Borrower as the owner of 
the Property and insuring the Deed of Trust to be a valid [number] lien on the 
Property, subject only to printed exceptions and exclusions to the title policy and 
other Schedule “B” exceptions approved by the Trust, and exceptions approved 
by the Trust in Section 2.8(c) above. 

(f) No Default.  There shall exist no condition, event or act which would 
constitute an Event of Default (as hereinafter defined) hereunder or which, upon 
the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would constitute an Event of 
Default.  

(g) Management Plan.  The Borrower shall have submitted and the Trust shall 
have approved a Management Plan ("Management Plan").  The Management Plan 
shall include a management contract with a manager approved in writing by the 
Trust for management of the Project and a plan for long-term marketing, 
operation, maintenance, repair and security of the Project, method of selection of 
tenants, and for rental policies in compliance with HUD and HOME 
requirements, policies and procedures and with the Regulatory Agreement, along 
with any other policies or procedures required by the Trust.  The Management 
Plan shall also include an initial budget for the Project.  

(h) Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower herein contained shall continue to be true and correct. 

(i) Availability of Funds.  The Borrower has submitted to the Trust and the 
Trust has approved in the exercise of its discretion evidence that the funds 
identified as committed to the Project in the approved Financing Plan are in fact 
unconditionally and readily available to Borrower for the Project as of the 
commencement of the Qualified Project Period. 

(j) Utilities.  All utility services, including gas, water, sewage, electrical and 
telephone, which are necessary or appropriate for the use and occupancy of the 
Project, are available, connected and functioning. 

6.2. Waiver.  No waiver of any of the conditions to commencement of the Qualified 
Project Period shall be permitted unless agreed to in writing by the Director.   

6.3. Conversion Date.  The Conversion Date shall be that date on which all of the 
conditions set forth in this Article VI are fulfilled and the Construction Period 
ends and the Qualified Project Period begins (whereby the Trust’s Loan shall 
convert to a permanent loan).  In the event that the Conversion Date does not 
occur upon the Completion of Construction, the Loan shall be immediately due 
and payable upon demand, as set forth herein and in the Note. 

6.4. Extension; Loan Repayment.  If any of the conditions precedent as set forth in this 
Article VI has not been completed by the end of the Construction Period, the 
Director may, in the sole and absolute discretion of Director, grant an extension 
as an addition to the Construction Period.  In the event such extension is not 
granted, the Loan shall immediately become due and payable upon written 
demand of the Director, as set forth herein and in the Note. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 20 

  

 

ARTICLE VII 

LEASES 

7.1. Standard Form Leases.  On or before the commencement of the Qualified Project 
Period, Borrower shall submit to Trust for its written approval a standard form of 
residential lease to be used for leasing of the Project (the “Standard Lease”).  The 
Standard Lease shall be in compliance with all applicable laws and Borrower 
shall be obligated to revise said Standard Lease from time to time to comply with 
any changes in said applicable laws.  

7.2. Leasing Program.  Borrower shall market and lease the Project consistent with the 
Marketing Plan described in Section 9.8 hereof. 

7.3. Pro-Forma Schedules.  Attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” is 
the rental rate schedule for the Units at the Project approved by Trust. 

7.4. No Changes.  Borrower shall not materially modify the approved Standard Lease 
or materially deviate from the approved rental rate schedule for the Units without 
the Trust’s prior written consent in each instance, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

7.5. Landlord’s Obligations.  Borrower shall timely and in good faith, perform all 
obligations required to be performed by it as landlord under any lease affecting 
any part of the Project or any space within the Project.  If any tenant at any time 
claims any breach of landlord’s obligations and the amount of such claim (in 
excess of available insurance coverage) is $10,000 or more, Borrower shall 
promptly notify Trust of such claim. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER 

8.1. Representations and Warranties.  Borrower hereby makes the following 
representations and warranties to the Trust, each of which shall also be deemed a 
covenant and all of the following, Borrower agrees, shall continue to be true and 
accurate in all material respects so long as the Loan or any portion thereof 
remains outstanding: 

(a) Organization.  Borrower is duly organized, validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of the State of California and has the power and authority 
to own its property and carry on its business as now being conducted.  The copies 
of the documents evidencing the organization of Borrower delivered to the Trust 
are true and correct copies of the originals, as amended to the date of this 
Agreement, and Borrower will promptly provide the Trust with copies of any 
modifications thereto. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 21 

  

(b) Authority of Borrower.  Borrower has full power and authority to execute 
and deliver this Agreement and to make and accept the borrowings contemplated 
hereunder, to execute and deliver the Loan Documents and all other documents or 
instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to 
this Agreement, and to perform and observe the terms and provisions of all of the 
above. 

(c) Authority of Persons Executing Documents.  This Agreement and the 
Loan Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, 
or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement have been executed 
and delivered by persons who are duly authorized to execute and deliver the same 
for and on behalf of Borrower, and all actions required under Borrower's 
organizational documents and applicable governing law for the authorization, 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Loan Documents 
and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed 
and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, have been duly taken. 

(d) Valid Binding Agreements.  This Agreement and the Loan Documents and 
all other documents or instruments which have been executed and delivered 
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement constitute or, if not yet executed 
or delivered, will when so executed and delivered constitute, legal, valid and 
binding obligations of Borrower enforceable against the Borrower in accordance 
with their respective terms. 

(e) No Breach of Law or Agreement.  Neither the execution nor delivery of 
this Agreement and the Loan Documents or of any other documents or 
instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed or delivered, pursuant to 
this Agreement, nor the performance of any provision, condition, covenant or 
other term hereof or thereof, will conflict with or result in a breach of any statute, 
rule or regulation, or any judgment, decree or order of any court, board, commis-
sion or agency whatsoever binding on Borrower and in effect at the time of 
execution of this Agreement, or any provision of the organizational documents of 
Borrower or, if applicable, of its constituent partners, or will conflict with or 
constitute a breach of or a default under any agreement to which Borrower, or, if 
applicable, its constituent partners, is a party, or will result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien upon any assets or property of Borrower, other than liens 
established pursuant hereto. 

(f) Pending Proceedings.  Borrower is not in default under any law or 
regulation or under any order of any court, board, commission or agency 
whatsoever, and there are no claims, actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to 
the knowledge of Borrower, threatened against Borrower or the Property or 
Project, at law or in equity, before or by any court, board, commission or agency 
whatsoever which might, if determined adversely to Borrower, materially affect 
Borrower's ability to repay the Loan or impair the security to be given to the Trust 
pursuant hereto. 

(g) Compliance with Laws; Consents and Approvals.  The Project shall 
comply at all times with all applicable laws (including but not limited to all 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 22 

  

Hazardous Substances Laws), ordinances, rules and regulations of federal, state, 
and local governments and agencies, and with all applicable directions, rules and 
regulations of the fire marshal, health officer, building inspector, and other 
officers of any such government or agency.  All consents, permissions and 
licenses required by any federal, state, or local government or agency to which the 
Borrower, the Property or the Project is subject, which may be necessary in 
relation to this Agreement or the ownership or operation of the Project, have been 
or will be obtained. 

(h) Financial Statements.  The financial statements of the Borrower and its 
constituent partners, if any, and other financial data and information furnished by 
the Borrower for review by the Trust relating to the financial condition of 
Borrower or any of Borrower’s constituent partners or the Project, fairly present 
the information contained therein.  As of the date of Loan disbursement, there will 
not have been any adverse material change in the financial condition of the 
Borrower or its constituent partners from that shown by such financial statements 
and other data and information. 

(i) Adequacy of Loan.  The amount of the Loan, together with any funds to 
be provided by the Borrower or to the Borrower from any other sources, is 
adequate to pay all costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the 
Property and to enable the Borrower to satisfy the covenants contained in this 
Agreement. 

(j) Payment of Taxes.  All federal, state, county, and municipal taxes required 
to be paid by the Borrower or on account of the Property have been paid in full as 
of the date of this Agreement or will be paid in full by the Close of Escrow.  
Borrower knows of no basis for any additional assessment of taxes as of this date.  

(k) Regulatory Agreement.  The Project is, and will at all times remain, in 
compliance with all requirements of this Agreement and the Regulatory 
Agreement.  The units in the Project shall be rented or available for rental on a 
basis which satisfies the requirements of the Regulatory Agreement.  All leases 
will comply with all applicable laws and the Regulatory Agreement.     

 

ARTICLE IX 

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWER 

9.1. Applicability.  For the longer of the entire Term, or so long as the Note remains 
outstanding, the Borrower shall comply with the provisions of this Article IX. 

9.2. Compliance with Loan Documents.  Borrower shall promptly comply with all the 
terms, covenants and provisions of the Loan Documents. 

9.3. Taxes and Assessments.  So long as Borrower owns the Property and the Project, 
Borrower shall pay all real and personal property taxes, assessments and charges, 
and all franchise, income, unemployment, old age benefit, withholding, sales, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 23 

  

and other taxes assessed against it, or payable by it, at such times and in such 
manner as to prevent any delinquency or penalty from accruing, or any lien or 
charge from attaching to the Project; provided, however, that Borrower shall 
have the right to contest in good faith any such taxes, assessments, or charges.  In 
the event Borrower exercises its right to contest any tax, assessment, or charge 
against it, Borrower, on final determination of the proceeding or contest, shall 
immediately pay or discharge any decision or judgment rendered against it, 
together with all costs, charges, and interest. 

9.4. Indemnity.  

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to indemnify, 
hold harmless and defend the Trust and its elected officials, officers, governing 
members, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified 
Parties"), from and against any and all losses, damages, claims, actions, liabilities, 
reasonable costs and expenses of any and every conceivable nature, kind or 
character (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, litigation and 
court costs, amounts paid in settlement and amounts paid to discharge judgments) 
to which the Indemnified Parties, or any of them, may become subject to under 
any statutory law (including federal or state securities laws) or at common law or 
otherwise, arising out of or based upon or in any way relating to: 

(i) the Loan Documents or the execution or amendment thereof or in 
connection with the transactions contemplated thereby; 

(ii) Borrower’s ownership or operation of the Project or any act or 
omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees or licensees in connection with the Loan or the Project, the 
operation of the Project, or the condition, environmental or otherwise, 
occupancy, use, possession, conduct or management of work done in or 
about, or from the planning, design, acquisition, installation, operation or 
rehabilitation of, the Project or any part thereof; 

(iii) any lien or charge upon payments by the Borrower to the Trust, or 
any taxes (including, without limitation, all ad valorem taxes and sales 
taxes), assessments, impositions and other charges imposed on the Trust in 
respect of any portion of the Project; 

(iv) any violation of any environmental law, rule or regulation with 
respect to, or the release of any toxic substance from, the Project or any 
part thereof;  

(v) any untrue statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue 
statement or alleged misleading statement of a material fact by the 
Borrower contained in any Loan Document or any of the documents or 
instruments relating to said Loan Documents that the Trust relied upon in 
making the Loan except to the extent such damages are caused by the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Party. In the 
event that any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified 
Party with respect to which indemnity may be sought hereunder, the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 24 

  

Borrower, upon written notice from the Indemnified Party, shall assume 
the investigation and defense thereof, including the employment and 
payment for counsel selected by the Indemnified Party, and shall assume 
the payment of all reasonable expenses related thereto, with full power to 
litigate, compromise or settle the same; provided that the Indemnified 
Party shall have the right to review and approve or disapprove any such 
compromise or settlement. 

(vi) If judgment is entered against Borrower and Trust by a court of 
competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of 
Trust or Indemnified Parties, Borrower and Trust agree that liability will 
be apportioned as determined by the court.   Neither Party shall request a 
jury apportionment. 

9.5. Entry by the Trust.  Borrower shall permit the Trust, through its officers, agents, 
or employees, at all reasonable times to enter into or onto the Property or the 
Project and inspect the Project to determine that the same is in conformity with 
the Loan Documents and all the requirements hereof.  Borrower acknowledges 
that the Trust is under no obligation to supervise, inspect, or inform Borrower of 
the results of its said inspection(s) and Borrower shall not rely upon the Trust 
therefor.  Any inspection by the Trust is entirely for its purposes in determining 
whether Borrower is in default under this Agreement or the Loan Documents. 
Borrower shall rely entirely upon its own supervision and inspection. 

9.6. Entry by HCD.  As required by the HCD as a condition of the LHTF Program, 
Borrower shall permit HCD, through its officers, agents, or employees, at all 
reasonable times to enter into or onto the Property or the Project and inspect the 
Project to determine that the same is in conformity with the Loan Documents and 
all the requirements hereof.  Borrower acknowledges that HCD is under no 
obligation to supervise, inspect, or inform Borrower of the results of its said 
inspection(s) and Borrower shall not rely upon HCD therefor.  Any inspection by 
HCD is entirely for its purposes in determining whether Borrower is in default 
under this Agreement or the Loan Documents. Borrower shall rely entirely upon 
its own supervision and inspection. 

9.7. Hazardous Materials.  Borrower shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
Trust, and its respective elected and appointed officials, members, directors, 
officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from and against any loss, 
damage, cost, expense or liability directly or indirectly arising out of or 
attributable to the use, generation, storage, release, threatened release, discharge, 
disposal, or presence of hazardous materials on, under, or about the Project, 
including without limitation:  (a) all foreseeable consequential damages; (b) the 
costs of any required or necessary repair, cleanup or detoxification of the Project 
and the preparation and implementation of any closure, remedial or other 
required plans; and (c) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Trust or 
Trust in connection with clauses (a) and (b), including but not limited to 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 25 

  

9.8. Signage During Construction.  As required by the HCD as a condition of the 
LHTF Program, during the Construction Period, if Borrower elects to place a 
sign or signs identifying the Project that is visible to the public, Borrower shall 
include the following language on the sign, “Funding provided by the Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust and the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development.” If the Borrower does not elect to place a sign on the 
Property identifying the Project, HCD may place one or more signs on the 
property stating that it is providing financing for the development. 

9.9. Transfers.  During the Term, Borrower shall not sell or otherwise transfer the 
Project or any portion thereof, and none of the constituent general partners of 
Borrower shall sell or otherwise transfer their interests in Borrower, and none of 
the constituent general partners in a partnership that is a partner in Borrower 
shall sell or otherwise transfer their interest in such partnership without first 
obtaining the approval of the Trust, which consent the Trust may withhold or 
grant in the exercise of its good faith discretion.  The Trust shall not approve any 
such transfer request if the Borrower is in default under any of the Loan 
Documents or the Management Plan. 

9.10. Management; Annual Marketing and Management Plans.  Any management 
company of the Project and the management agreement with such management 
company shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Trust.  The 
management agreement shall not be amended, modified, supplemented, 
terminated or canceled without the prior written consent of the Trust.  Borrower 
and the Trust (if it so elects) will cooperate in the marketing of the units on the 
Property pursuant to a marketing plan (the “Marketing Plan”) prepared by the 
Borrower and approved by the Trust.  Said Marketing Plan and the Management 
Plan described in Section 6.1 hereof shall be prepared by the Borrower and 
approved by the Trust on an annual basis; however, the Borrower shall provide 
quarterly written supplements to said approved plans (or more frequently if 
requested by the Trust).   

9.11. Operation and Maintenance of Project.   

(a) Operation.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall at all 
times operate on the Project an affordable housing rental facility in compliance 
with this Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement. 

(b) Maintenance.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower agrees to 
maintain all interior and exterior improvements, including landscaping (and all 
abutting ground, sidewalks, roads, parking and landscape areas) on the Project in 
good condition, repair and sanitary condition (and, as to landscaping, in a healthy 
condition) and in accordance with any Management Plan approved by the Trust 
under the Loan Agreement (including without limitation any landscape and 
signage plans), as the same may be amended from time to time, and all other 
applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and regulations of all federal, state, 
county, municipal, and other governmental agencies and bodies having 
jurisdiction and all their respective departments, bureaus, and officials.  Borrower 
acknowledges the great emphasis the Trust places on quality maintenance to 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 26 

  

protect its investment and to provide quality low income housing for its 
constituents and to ensure that all Trust-subsidized affordable housing projects 
within the Trust are not allowed to deteriorate due to deficient maintenance.  In 
addition, Borrower shall keep the Project free from all graffiti and any 
accumulation of debris or waste material.  Borrower shall promptly make all 
repairs and replacements necessary to keep the Project in good condition and 
repair and shall promptly eliminate all graffiti and replace dead and diseased 
plants and landscaping with comparable approved materials.  Borrower shall not 
commit or permit any waste or deterioration of the Project, shall not abandon any 
portion of the Project, and shall not otherwise act, or fail to act, in such a way as 
to unreasonably increase the risk of damage to the Project. 

In the event that Borrower breaches any of the covenants contained in this Section 
9.9 and such default continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice 
from Trust (with respect to graffiti, debris, waste material, and general mainte-
nance) or thirty (30) days after written notice from Trust (with respect to 
landscaping and building improvements), then Trust, in addition to whatever other 
remedies it may have under this Agreement, the other Loan Documents or at law 
or in equity, shall have the right to enter upon the Project and perform or cause to 
be performed all such acts and work necessary to cure the default.  Pursuant to 
such right of entry, the Trust shall be permitted (but not required) to enter upon 
the Project and perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain and 
preserve the improvements and landscaped areas on the Project, in the amount of 
the expenditure arising from such acts and work of protection, maintenance, and 
preservation by Trust and/or reasonable costs of such cure, including a fifteen 
percent (15%) administrative charge, which amount shall be promptly paid by 
Borrower to Trust upon demand. 

(c) Removal of Personal Property.  During the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower shall not cause or permit the removal from the Project of any items of 
Borrower’s personal property (other than tools and equipment used in the 
operation of the Project) unless (i) no Event of Default remains uncured and (ii) 
Borrower promptly substitutes and installs on the Project other items of equal or 
greater value in the operation of the Project, all of which shall be free of liens and 
shall be subject to the liens of the Deed of Trust and the Financing Statement and 
executes and delivers to Trust all documents required by Trust in connection with 
the attachment of such liens to such items.  Borrower shall keep detailed records 
of such removal and shall make such records available to Trust upon written 
request from time to time. 

9.12. Status of Borrower.  Borrower shall at all times maintain its legal status and all 
material licenses, rights, franchises and privileges in the jurisdiction of its 
formation in good standing and comply with all laws, rules and regulations of 
California and the United States and of any political subdivision thereof 
applicable to it or its business. 

9.13. Insurance.  While any obligation of Borrower under any Loan Document remains 
outstanding, Borrower shall maintain at Borrower's sole expense, the following 
policies of insurance in form and substance as follows: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 27 

  

(a) Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and Employers’ Liability 
insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence; 

(b) Builder's all-risk insurance covering one hundred percent (100%) of the 
replacement cost of the Project during the course of any construction or 
reconstruction in the event of fire, lightning, windstorm, vandalism, malicious 
mischief, and all other risks normally covered by extended coverage policies in 
the locality where the Project is situated (including insurance against loss by flood 
if the Project is located in an area now or hereafter designated as subject to the 
danger of flood); 

(c) Fire and hazard "all risk" insurance with boiler and machinery coverage, 
covering one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost of the Project in the 
event of fire, lightning, windstorm, vandalism, malicious mischief and all other 
risks normally covered by "all risk" coverage policies in the locality where the 
Project is situated (including insurance against loss by flood if the Project is 
located in an area now or hereafter designated as subject to the danger of flood, 
but excluding insurance against loss by earthquake), which coverage shall also 
include Project fixtures, furniture and equipment owned by Borrower and 
business income of at least one (1) year ; 

(d) General liability insurance in an amount not less than $5,000,000 for 
combined single limit per occurrence to cover bodily injury and property damage 
and $5,000,000 in the aggregate; 

(e) All such insurance shall be endorsed to provide that said insurance may 
not be canceled or materially modified without 30 days' prior written notice to the 
Trust.  The policies required pursuant to subparagraphs (b) and (c), above, shall 
include a "lender's loss payable endorsement" (Form 438BFU) in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Trust assuring Trust that all proceeds shall be paid to 
Trust as provided in the Deed of Trust subject to the interests of the senior lenders 
on the Project.  The Trust shall be an additional insured as to the policies required 
pursuant to subparagraph  (d) above, and such insurance shall be primary and any 
insurance maintained by the Trust shall be excess and non-contributing.  All 
policies shall waive all rights of subrogation against the Trust, its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees.   The general liability policy 
shall contain a severability of interests endorsement. Certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for all of the above policies (and/or original policies, if required by 
the Trust from time to time), showing the same to be in full force and effect, shall 
be delivered to the Trust.  All policies insuring against damage to the Project shall 
contain an agreed value clause sufficient to eliminate any risk of co-insurance.  
Trust expressly retains the right to require Borrower when reasonable to increase 
or decrease insurance of any of the above insurance types throughout the term of 
this Loan. Any increase or decrease in insurance will be as deemed by Trust Risk 
Manager as appropriate to adequately protect Trust. 

(f) No such insurance shall include deductible amounts to which the Trust has 
not previously consented in writing.  All insurance policies required by this Loan 
Agreement shall declare any deductible or self-insured retention (SIR).  Amounts 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 28 

  

in excess of $25,000 shall specifically be approved by the Trust’s Risk Manager, 
CEO/Risk Management. Borrower shall be solely responsible for the 
reimbursement of any deductible to the insurer. 

(g) The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer licensed 
to do business in the State of California (California Admitted Carrier).  Minimum 
insurance company ratings as determined by the most current edition of the Best’s 
Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or by ambest.com shall be A- 
(Secure Best’s Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category).  If the proposed carrier 
is a non-admitted carrier in the State of California, the Trust’s Risk Manager, 
Trust Risk Management reserves the right to approve or reject said proposed 
carrier after a review of said carrier’s performance and financial ratings. 

(h) Borrower shall file with the Trust, prior to the funding of the Loan, an 
original Certificate of Insurance together with all required endorsements 
evidencing that the coverage required under this Loan Agreement is in full force 
and effect. 

(i) All contractors performing work on behalf of Borrower shall be covered 
under Borrower’s insurance or shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms 
and conditions as set forth herein for Borrower, with the Trust named as an 
additional insured on all such policies. 

(j) The Trust retains the rights at any time to review the coverage, form and 
amount of the insurance required hereby.  If, in the opinion of the Trust, the 
insurance provisions in this Loan Agreement do not provide adequate protection 
for the Trust, the Trust may require Borrower to obtain insurance sufficient in 
coverage, form, and amount to provide adequate protection.  The Trust’s said 
additional requirements shall be reasonable and shall be designed to assure 
protection from and against the kind and extent of risks that exist at the time a 
change in insurance is required.   Trust shall notify Borrower in writing of 
changes in the insurance requirements.  If Borrower does not deposit copies of 
acceptable certificates of insurance and endorsements with the Trust incorporating 
such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, said failure shall 
constitute, at the option of Trust, an Event of Default (hereinafter defined in 
Article IX) this Loan Agreement without further notice to Borrower. 

(k) The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be 
construed to limit Borrower’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification 
provisions and requirements of this Loan Agreement. 

(l) The Trust shall also be named as an additional insured on any 
insurance polices required by the Senior Construction Deed of Trust or any 
related loan documents evidencing such construction loan. 

9.14. Alterations and Repair.  Except with the prior consent of the Trust, during the 
Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall not remove, demolish or materially alter 
any improvement constituting the Project, except to make non-structural repairs 
which preserve or increase the Project’s value, and shall promptly restore, in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 29 

  

good and workmanlike manner, any said improvement (or other aspect of the 
Project) that is damaged or destroyed from any cause. 

9.15. Changes in Property Restrictions.  Borrower shall not initiate, join in or consent to 
any change in any applicable zoning ordinance, general plan or similar law, or to 
any private restrictive covenant or any similar public or private restriction on the 
use of the Project, except with the prior written consent of the Trust. 

9.16. Books, Records and Annual Statement.  Borrower shall maintain complete books 
of account and other records reflecting the construction and operation of the 
Project in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a 
consistent basis.  During the Qualified Project Period, the amount of the Residual 
Receipts (as defined in the Note) shall be determined on the basis of an annual 
audited financial statement (“Annual Statement”), for the preceding year, 
beginning with the first year of operation of all or any part of the Project, 
prepared at the Borrower’s expense by an independent certified public account 
firm acceptable to the Trust.  Such Annual Statement shall be prepared based on 
the guidelines, and taking into account the information, set forth on Exhibit “C,” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein.  During the Qualified Project Period, the 
Borrower shall submit the Annual Statement and any payment to the Trust not 
later than six (6) months after closing of the Borrower’s previous year’s books.  
The first Annual Statement submitted by the Borrower for the Loan shall include 
the period from the Completion of Construction to the close of that year’s books.  
The Trust shall review and approve such statement, or request revisions, within 
ninety (90) days after receipt.  In the event that as the result of Trust review, 
there is an increase in the amount of Residual Receipts, Borrower shall pay to the 
Trust the full amount of such increase within ten (10) days of notice of such 
increases.  The terms of this subsection shall not be the exclusive method by 
which the Trust may review Residual Receipts payments by the Borrower.  In the 
event that an increase in the amount of Residual Receipts for any annual period 
is discovered at any time subsequent to the ninety (90) day period for that year’s 
books, no previous action or inaction by the Trust shall prohibit the Trust from 
requesting repayment of those amounts at any time during the term of this 
Agreement or thereafter. The Borrower shall pay to the Trust the full amount of 
such increase within thirty (30) days of notice of such increase for periods prior 
to the previous year. 

9.17. Notices of Certain Matters.  Borrower shall give notice to Trust, within ten (10) 
days after Borrower receives actual knowledge thereof, of each of the following: 

(a) Any litigation or claim against the Borrower relating to the Property or the 
Project and involving an amount in excess of $25,000 and any litigation or claim 
that might subject Borrower or any constituent partner of Borrower to liability in 
excess of $50,000, whether covered by insurance or not;   

(b) Any dispute between Borrower and any governmental or public agency 
relating to the Property or the Project, the adverse determination of which might 
materially affect the Project; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 30 

  

(c) Any trade name hereafter used by Borrower and any change in Borrower’s 
principal place of business; 

(d) Any Event of Default or event, which, with the giving of notice or the 
passage of time, without ameliorative action, or both, would constitute an Event 
of Default; 

(e) Any default by Borrower or any other party under any Loan Document or 
Mortgage Document, or the receipt by Borrower of any notice of default under 
any Loan Document or Mortgage Document; 

(f) The creation or imposition of any mechanics’ lien or other lien against the 
Project; 

(g) The presence of any hazardous materials on, under or about the Property 
or the Project; any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other action or requirement 
of any local, state or federal governmental or quasi-governmental authority with 
jurisdiction relating to any such hazardous materials; and the existence of any 
occurrence of conditions on any property in the vicinity of the Project that could 
cause any portion of the Project to be classified as “border-zone property” under 
the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code or any related regulations, 
or that could cause the Project to be otherwise subject to any restrictions relating 
to hazardous materials; and 

(h) Any material adverse change in the financial condition of Borrower or any 
of its constituent general partners. 

9.18. Further Assurances.  Borrower shall execute and acknowledge (or cause to be 
executed and acknowledged) and deliver to Trust all documents, and take all 
actions, reasonably required by Trust from time to time to confirm the rights 
created or now or hereafter intended to be created under the Loan Documents, to 
protect and further the validity, priority and enforceability of the Loan 
Documents, to subject to the Loan Documents any property intended by the 
terms of any Loan Document to be covered by the Loan Documents, or 
otherwise to carry out the purpose of the Loan Documents and the transactions 
contemplated thereunder. 

9.19. Liens.  Borrower shall not cause or suffer to become effective any lien, restriction 
or other title limitation affecting any part of the Project other than the (a) 
Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust, the Financing Statement and the 
senior first deed of trust Mortgage Documents (including the Senior Acquisition 
Deed of Trust, Senior Construction Deed of Trust and the Senior Permanent 
Deed of Trust, as applicable) and (ii) taxes not delinquent. 

9.20. Payment of Expenses.  Borrower shall pay the Trust's costs and expenses incurred 
in connection with the making, disbursement and administration of the Loan and 
the conversion of the acquisition loan to a permanent loan, as well as any 
revisions, transfers, extensions, renewals, modifications, refinancing or 
"workouts," and providing estoppels or subordinations of the Loan, and in the 
exercise of any of Trust's rights or remedies under this Agreement.  The Trust 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 31 

  

will receive from Borrower a nonrefundable fee in the amount of Five Hundred 
Dollars ($500) and Borrower shall reimburse Trust for all of the Trust’s 
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) 
incurred in the administration and review of such changes, to the extent such 
expenses exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500). Such costs and expenses may 
include title insurance, recording and escrow charges, survey charges, hazard 
insurance, premiums, fees for any appraisals and any appraisal reviews, 
architectural and engineering review, construction services and environmental 
and toxic services and reviews, zoning and entitlement services and reviews, 
mortgage taxes, legal fees and any other reasonable fees and costs for services, 
regardless of whether such services are furnished by the Trust's employees or 
agents or independent contractors. 

9.21. Loan Monitoring Fees.  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, the 
Borrower shall pay an annual loan monitoring fee during the Term.  Loan 
monitoring fees shall be incorporated into the operating pro forma. Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust shall charge all projects an annual compliance 
monitoring fee (“Annual Fee”) of sixty-five dollars ($95) per unit per year.  The 
Annual Fee will be payable to the Trust at the Close of Escrow. The Annual Fee 
will be due each subsequent year for the Qualified Project Period on or within 
thirty (30) days of the day and month that this Agreement was entered into as set 
forth on page one hereof.  Loan monitoring fees will be adjusted annually. The 
annual adjustment shall be in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price 
Index for Los Angeles – Anaheim – Riverside (All Urban Consumers – All 
Items) promulgated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U.S. Department of 
Labor.  This adjustment shall be calculated by means of the following formula: 

    A = B x C/D 

Where: A = Adjusted Annual Fee  

  B = Annual Fee (as such Annual Fee may have been previously 
adjusted) 

  C = Average monthly index for the most recent twelve-month 
period 

  D = Average monthly index for the twelve-month period preceding 
the date of this Loan Agreement.  

In the event that the Consumer Price Index (CPI) ceases to use 1982-84 = 100 as 
the basis of calculation, or if, in Trust’s sole judgment, a substantial change is 
made in the method used by the federal government to determine the CPI or the 
items used to calculate the CPI, then the CPI shall be converted to the figure that 
would have been calculated at (or as close to such figures as shall be practical) 
had the manner of calculating the CPI in effect at the date of this Loan Agreement 
not been altered. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 32 

  

In the event that the CPI is not issued or published for the period for which 
such minimum Annual Fees are to be adjusted and computed hereunder, or in the 
event that the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor 
should cease to publish said index figures, then any similar index published by 
any other branch or department of the United States Government selected by 
Trust, shall be used and if none is so published, then another index general 
recognized as authoritative shall be substituted by Trust. 

9.22. Subcontracts.  

(a) Upon request of Trust, or their designated agent, Borrower shall submit 
any requested subcontract agreements to the Trust for review and consent.  Any 
requested Subcontracts shall be submitted to Trust within forty-eight (48) hours of 
such request. 
(b) Borrower shall assume responsibility for all subcontracted services to 
assure compliance with this Agreement. 
(c) Borrower shall cause all of the applicable provisions of this Agreement in 
its entirety to be included in and made a part of any subcontract executed in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

9.23. Relocation. Borrower shall, if applicable, in all matters relating to the Project: 

(a) Take all reasonable steps to minimize displacement by providing tenants a 
reasonable opportunity to lease and occupy dwelling units in the Project being 
improved, if applicable; 

(b) Submit to Trust a plan outlining financial and advisory assistance in 
securing temporary housing for any eligible tenant who is temporarily or 
permanently relocated due to the Project; and, 

(c) Comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and 49 CFR 24 in providing relocation 
assistance for persons displaced by the Project. 

(d) Has in effect, and follows a residential anti-displacement and relocation 
plan required under Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development 
Act of 1974, as amended, in conjunction with any activity assisted with funds 
under the subject program. 

9.24. Mental Health Services Act Requirements. The Borrower shall carry out the 
design, construction and operation of the Project, and operate the Program, in 
conformity with all applicable laws, regulations, and rules of governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction, including without limitation, the requirements set 
forth in California Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5771.1 et. seq. and, 
without limitation, the requirements found in Exhibit D attached to this 
Agreement.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 33 

  

9.25. Lender Recognition.   The owner shall ensure recognition of the role of the Trust 
in providing funds through this Agreement.  All activities, facilities and items 
utilized pursuant to the Agreement shall be prominently labeled as to funding 
source.  

9.26. Labor Standards.  To the extent applicable, the Borrower agrees to comply with 
the requirements of the California Department of Industrial Relations Prevailing 
Wage Requirements and the Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-
Bacon Act as amended, the provisions of Contract Work Hours, the Safety 
Standards Act, the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 276, 327-333) and 
all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to 
labor standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement.  
The Borrower shall maintain documentation, which demonstrates compliance 
with hour, and wage requirements of this part.  Such documentation shall be 
made available to the Trust for review upon request. The Borrower agrees that, 
except with respect to the rehabilitation or construction of residential property 
designed for residential use for less than twelve (12) units, all contractors 
engaged under contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction, renovation or 
repair of any building or work financed in whole or in part with assistance 
provided under this Agreement, shall comply with federal requirements adopted 
by the Trust pertaining to such contracts and with the applicable requirements of 
the regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor, under 29 CFR, Parts 1, 3, 5, 7 
and 1926 governing the payment of wages and ratio of apprentices and trainees 
to journeymen; provided, that if wage rates higher than those required under the 
regulations are imposed by state or local law, nothing herein is intended to 
relieve the Borrower of its obligation, if any, to require payment of the higher 
rate.  The Borrower shall cause or require to be inserted in full, in all such 
contracts subject to such regulations, provisions meeting the requirements of this 
paragraph, for such contracts in excess of $10,000.00. 

9.27. Annual Audit. 

Following the Conversion Date and commencing on the date six (6) months after 
closing of the Borrower’s previous year’s books and every one year anniversary 
date thereafter during the Term, Borrower shall submit to Trust the following 
audit reporting package (the “Audit Reporting Package”). Trust reserves the right 
to revise the Audit Reporting Package requirements in accordance with changed 
Federal, State or County rules, regulations, ordinances, laws and statutes.  The 
Audit Reporting Package shall include the following: 

(a) Financial Statements for the Project preferably with a classified Balance 
Sheet identifying Current Assets and Current Liabilities; 

(b) Schedule of expenditures of Federal awards; 

(c) Independent Auditor’s report; 

(d) Summary schedule and prior audit findings, if applicable; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 34 

  

(e) Corrective action plan, if applicable; and  

(f) Management Letter.  

9.28. Operating Reserve. [REMOVE IF PROJECT HAS PROJECT BASED SECTION 
8 VOUCHERS] 

Borrower shall establish an interest bearing account to be known as the Operating 
Reserve Account.  Upon the Conversion Date shall deposit an amount into the 
Operating Reserve Account sufficient to pay three (3) months of operating 
expenses and three (3) months of mandatory debt service payments (“Target 
Balance”).  

Funds shall be invested subject to the prior written approval of the Trust, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, and any earnings shall become and 
remain a part of the Operating Reserve.  Funds may be drawn only when revenue 
is insufficient to pay operating expenses.  The Borrowers shall not draw funds 
from the Operating Reserve Account without the prior written approval of the 
Trust, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

If the balance in the Operating Reserve Account falls below the amount required 
to pay three (3) months of operating expenses and three (3) months of mandatory 
debt service payments, then Borrower shall apply Residual Receipts, when and if 
available, or other funds, to the replenishment of Operating Reserves until the 
Target Balance is achieved. 

In the event of a failure by the Borrower to pay operating expenses, mandatory 
debt service payments, or other payments required under the Loan Documents or 
Mortgage Loan Documents, or during the continuance of an event of default by 
Borrower under the Loan Documents or Mortgage Loan Documents that would 
provide for the acceleration of the Loan or Mortgage Loan, then Trust may, after 
delivery of notice to Borrower and the expiration of any applicable cure periods, 
apply the funds in the Operating Reserve Account to the Loan, a Mortgage Loan, 
or use such funds for the continued operation of the Project. 

9.29. Replacement Reserve. [WITHOUT MHSA THIS IS APPROPRIATE. WITH 
MHSA FUNDS $350 GOES TO $500 AND GO UP 5% EVERY 5 YEARS] 

At or before the Conversion Date, Borrower shall establish an interest bearing 
account to be known as the Replacement Reserve Account.  Annually prior to 
March 31 of each year, Borrower shall deposit into the Replacement Reserve 
Account an amount equal to three hundred and fifty dollars ($350) per unit or 
such higher amount as may be required by a tax creditor investor or senior 
Mortgagee and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  The Funds shall be invested subject to the prior written approval of the 
Trust and any earnings shall become and remain a part of the Replacement 
Reserve.  The Borrowers shall not draw funds from the Replacement Reserve 
Account without the prior written approval of the Trust, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 35 

  

Funds may only be drawn from the Replacement Reserve Account to replace or 
maintain Project assets which have a useful life of more than one (1) year in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), and have 
been or will be depreciated on the Partnership Tax Return, Form 1040P, filed with 
the Internal Revenue Service by the Borrower’s accountant. 

In the event of a failure by the Borrower to adequately maintain the Project, or 
pay operating expenses, mandatory debt service payments, or other payments 
required under the Loan Documents or Mortgage Loan Documents, or during the 
continuance of an event of default by Borrower under the Loan Documents or 
Mortgage Loan Documents that would provide for the acceleration of the Loan or 
Mortgage Loan, then Trust may, after delivery of notice to Borrower and the 
expiration of any applicable cure periods, apply the funds in the Replacement 
Reserve Account to the Loan, a Mortgage Loan, or use such funds for the 
maintenance, improvement, or continued operation of the Project. 

 

ARTICLE X 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

10.1. Events of Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" by 
Borrower under this Agreement: 

(a) Failure to Make Note Payments.  Borrower fails to make any payment of 
principal and/or interest under the Note when due, after ten (10) days notice from 
Trust.  Any payment that falls due on a non-business day may be made the next 
succeeding business day without penalty and shall not be considered a past-due 
payment; 

(b) Failure to Make Other Payments.  Borrower fails to perform any other 
obligation for the payment of money (other than payments described in 
subparagraph (a) above) under any Loan Document within ten (10) days after 
Trust gives Borrower written notice that such obligation was not performed or 
paid for; 

(c) Non-Monetary Failure to Perform.  Borrower fails to timely perform, 
comply with or observe any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this 
Agreement or any other Loan Document (other than those provisions elsewhere 
referred to in this Section 10.1) and such failure continues uncured or without 
Borrower commencing to diligently cure for thirty (30) days after notice thereof 
in writing is given by the Trust to Borrower, provided that if Borrower has 
commenced cure but cannot complete such cure reasonably within thirty (30) 
days, Borrower shall have ninety (90) days from the date of notice to cure such 
failure without such failure constituting an event of default; 

(d) Mortgage Loan Document Breach.  Any default or breach of Borrower 
that continues uncured after the expiration of any applicable cure period under 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 36 

  

any other loan document including, but not limited to, the Mortgage Loan 
Documents;  

(e) Voluntary Suspension.  The voluntary suspension of Borrower's business 
or the dissolution or termination of the partnership (if any) constituting Borrower; 

(f) Unauthorized Transfer.  Borrower’s sale or other transfer of the Property 
or the Project in violation of Section 9.7 above; 

(g) Fraud or Material Misstatement or Omissions.  Any fraudulent act or 
omission of Borrower's, or intentional misrepresentation of Borrower's, pertaining 
to or made in connection with the Loan, Loan Documents or the Project;  

(h) Insolvency.  A court having jurisdiction shall have made or entered any 
decree or order (i) adjudging Borrower to be bankrupt or insolvent, (ii) approving 
as properly filed a petition seeking reorganization of Borrower or seeking any 
arrangement for Borrower under the bankruptcy law or any other applicable 
debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any state or other jurisdiction, 
(iii) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or assignee of Borrower in 
bankruptcy or insolvency or for any of their properties, or (iv) directing the 
winding up or liquidation of Borrower, if any such decree or order described in 
clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive, shall have continued unstayed or undischarged for a 
period of ninety (90) days unless a lesser time period is permitted for cure under 
any other mortgage on the Property, in which event such lesser time period will 
apply under this subsection 10.1(h) as well; or Borrower shall have admitted in 
writing its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or shall have voluntarily 
submitted to or filed a petition seeking any decree or order of the nature described 
in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive.  The occurrence of any of the events of default in 
this paragraph shall act to accelerate automatically, without the need for any 
action by the Trust, the indebtedness evidenced by the Note; or 

(i) Project Monies.  Borrower’s misapplication or embezzlement of Project 
monies. 

10.2. Remedies.  The occurrence of any Event of Default shall, either at the option of 
the Trust or automatically where so specified, relieve the Trust of any obligation 
to make or continue the Loan and shall give the Trust the right to proceed with 
any and all remedies set forth in this Agreement and the Loan Documents or 
otherwise available at law or in equity or by statute (and all of the Trust's rights 
and remedies shall be cumulative), including but not limited to the following: 

(a) Acceleration of Note.  The Trust shall have the right to cause all 
indebtedness of the Borrower to the Trust under this Agreement and the Note, 
together with any accrued interest thereon, to become immediately due and 
payable.  The Borrower waives all right to presentment, demand, protest or notice 
of protest, or dishonor.  The Trust may proceed to enforce payment of the 
indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to the Trust as a creditor 
and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial Code, 
including foreclosure under the Deed of Trust.  The Borrower shall be liable to 
pay the Trust on demand all expenses, costs and fees (including, without 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 37 

  

limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the Trust in 
connection with the collection of the Loan and the preservation, maintenance, 
protection, sale, or other disposition of the security given for the Loan. 

(b) Specific Performance.  The Trust shall have the right to mandamus or 
other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform 
its obligations and covenants under the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts on 
things that may be unlawful or in violation of the provisions of the Loan 
Documents. 

(c) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The Trust shall have the right to 
cure any monetary default by Borrower under a loan other than the Loan.  The 
Borrower agrees to reimburse the Trust for any funds advanced by the Trust to 
cure a monetary default by Borrower upon demand therefore, together with 
interest thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum (which rate shall in 
no event exceed the maximum rate permitted by law and if it does, said rate shall 
be reduced to the maximum rate then permitted by law), from the date of 
expenditure until the date of reimbursement. 

10.3. Remedies Cumulative.  No right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by the 
terms of this Agreement or the Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of 
any other right, power, or remedy; and each and every such right, power, or 
remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, or 
remedy given to the Trust by the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute 
or otherwise against Borrower and any other person.  Neither the failure nor any 
delay on the part of the Trust to exercise any such rights and remedies shall 
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Trust 
of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise of such right 
or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 

10.4. Waiver of Terms and Conditions.  No waiver of any default or breach by 
Borrower hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the Trust to take 
action on account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no 
express waiver shall affect any default other than the default specified in the 
waiver, and such waiver shall be operative only for the time and to the extent 
therein stated.  Waivers of any covenant, term, or condition contained herein 
shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 
covenant, term, or condition.  The consent or approval by the Trust to or of any 
act by Borrower requiring further consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary the consent or approval to or of any subsequent 
similar act.  The exercise of any right, power, or remedy shall in no event 
constitute a cure or a waiver of any default under this Agreement or the Loan 
Documents, nor shall it invalidate any act done pursuant to notice of default, or 
prejudice the Trust in the exercise of any right, power, or remedy hereunder or 
under the Loan Documents, unless in the exercise of any such right, power, or 
remedy all obligations of Borrower to Trust are paid and discharged in full. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 38 

  

ARTICLE XI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

11.1. Approvals Under Agreement.  Where this Agreement requires an approval or 
consent of the Trust, such approval or consent may be given on behalf of the 
Trust by the Trust Manager or his or her designee. 

11.2. Time.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

11.3. Notices.  Any notice requirement set forth herein shall be in writing and delivered 
to the appropriate party at the address listed in this subparagraph.  Addresses for 
notice may be changed from time to time by written notice to the other party.  
All communications shall be effective when actually received; provided, 
however, that nonreceipt of any communication as the result of a change in 
address of which the sending party was not notified or as the result of a refusal to 
accept delivery shall be deemed receipt of such communication. 

Borrower:  [BORROWER TO PROVIDE] 

 Trust:   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

(a) Trust shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to 
Borrower to the following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the 
validity of any otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 

    [courtesy notices] 

    

Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same 
manner as provided above. 

11.4. No Third Parties Benefitted.  This Agreement is made and entered into for the 
sole protection and benefit of the Trust, its successors and assigns, and Borrower, 
its permitted successors and assigns, and no other person or persons shall have 
any right of action hereon. 

11.5. Trust to File Notices.  Borrower irrevocably appoints, designates, and authorizes 
the Trust as its agent (said agency being coupled with an interest) to file for 
record any notice that the Trust deems necessary or desirable to protect its 
interest hereunder and under the Loan Documents. 

11.6. Actions.  The Trust shall have the right to commence, appear in, or defend any 
action or proceeding purporting to affect the rights, duties, or liabilities of the 
parties hereunder, or the disbursement of any proceeds of the Loan. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 39 

  

11.7. Successors and Assigns.  The terms hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto; provided, however, 
that no assignment of Borrower's rights hereunder shall be made, voluntarily or 
by operation of law, without the prior written consent of the Trust as specified in 
Section 9.7 above, and that any such assignment without said consent shall be 
void. 

11.8. Construction of Words.  Except where the context otherwise requires, words 
imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, 
words imparting persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships and 
corporations, and words of either gender shall include the other gender. 

11.9. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be declared invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired. 

11.10. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement and the Loan Documents and other 
instruments given pursuant hereto shall be construed in accordance with and be 
governed by the laws of the State of California.  In the event of any legal action 
to enforce or interpret this Agreement or any of the Loan Documents, the sole 
and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange 
County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the 
jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

11.11. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be changed orally, but only by an 
agreement in writing signed by Borrower and the Trust. In the event of 
amendments to these loan documents, the Trust shall submit copies of all Trust 
fund loan guidelines and underwriting standards and procedures for review and 
approval by the Department of Housing and Community Development. 

11.12. Approvals.  Where an approval or submission is required under this Agreement, 
such approval or submission shall be valid for purposes of this Agreement only if 
made in writing. 

11.13. Captions and Headings.  Captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only, and are not to be considered in construing the 
Agreement. 

11.14. Nonliability.  By accepting or approving anything required to be performed or 
given to Trust under the Loan Documents, including any certificate, financial 
statement, survey, or insurance policy, Trust shall not be deemed to have 
warranted or represented the sufficiency or legal effect of the same, and no such 
acceptance or approval shall constitute a warranty or representation by Trust to 
anyone. 

11.15. Obligations Unconditional and Independent.  Notwithstanding the existence at 
any time of any obligation or liability of Trust to Borrower, or any claim by 
Borrower against Trust, in connection with the Loan or otherwise, Borrower 
hereby waives any right it might otherwise have (a) to offset any such obligation, 
liability or claim against Borrower’s obligations under the Loan Documents or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement 40 

  

(b) to claim that the existence of any such obligation, liability or claim excuses 
the nonperformance by Borrower of any of its obligations under the Loan 
Documents. 

11.16. Survival of Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower in the Loan Documents shall survive the making of the Loan and have 
been or will be relied on by Trust notwithstanding any investigation made by 
Trust. 

11.17. Prior Agreements.  This Agreement (together with the other Loan Documents) 
contains the entire agreement between Trust and Borrower with respect to the 
Loan and all prior negotiations, understandings and agreements (including, but 
not limited to, any commitment letter issued by Trust to Borrower) are 
superseded by this Agreement and such Loan Documents. 

11.18. Conflicts.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 
and those of any other Loan Document, this Agreement shall prevail; provided, 
however, that with respect to any matter addressed in both such documents, the 
fact that one document provides for greater, lesser or different rights or 
obligations than the other shall not be deemed a conflict unless the applicable 
provisions are inconsistent and could not be simultaneously enforced or 
performed. 

11.19. Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury.  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local 
laws, each party to this Agreement hereby expressly waives any right to trial by 
jury of any claim, demand, action or cause of action arising under any Loan 
Document or in any way connected with or related or incidental to the dealings 
of the parties hereto or any of them with respect to any Loan Document, or the 
transactions related thereto, in each case whether now existing or hereafter 
arising, and whether sounding in contract or tort or otherwise; and each party 
hereby agrees and consents that any such claim, demand, action or cause of 
action shall be decided by court trial without a jury, and that any party to this 
Agreement may file an original counterpart or a copy of this section with any 
court as written evidence of the consent of the parties hereto to the waiver of 
their right to trial by jury.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Signature Page Follows  

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the date and year first above written. 

 

    BORROWER:  

 

    [PLEASE PROVIDE SIGNATURE BLOCK] 

 

    By:   

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

TRUST: 

 

ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 

 

           
           
    By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Trust Manager  

     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  

 

 

  

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

TRUST COUNSEL 

  

  

By____________________________ 

           Trust Counsel 

  

Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit A 

Legal Description 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit B 

 Low and Very Low Qualified Tenant/Unit Mix 

 

EXHIBIT B 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

       

LOW AND VERY LOW QUALIFIED TENANT/UNIT MIX 

[XXXXXX], California 

 

 

11.20. RENT & AFFORDABILITY SCHEDULE   

 

Number 
of 
Restricted 
Units 

Number 
of 
Bedrooms 

* Gross 
Restricted 

ARTICLE XI
Rental 
Rate 

**Utility 
Allowance 

Net 

Restricted 

Rental 

Rate 

Income 
Limit 
based on 
Area 
Median 
Income 
(AMI) 

Age 
Restriction 
(if any) 

Project 
Based 
Sectio
n 8 
Units 

Number 
of Years 
Restricted 

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total         Total   
0 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit B 

 Low and Very Low Qualified Tenant/Unit Mix 

*  Restricted Rental Rate is based on the current Area Median Income (AMI) published by HUD annually and does not include the 
utility allowance deduction. 

 

* * Utility allowance is based on the current utility schedule published by the Orange County Housing Authority annually.   

*** Income Limit may be adjusted in accordance with Section 2(g) of the Regulatory Agreement in the event 
that Project Based Section 8 rental subsidies are no longer available for the Project. 

 

Rent increases shall be limited to (i) the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually 
published Rent Adjustment factor for the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the lower of rent established as 
affordable based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set forth above, which is 
adjusted annually by HUD and published by the State of California, or as required by California Health & Safety 
Code section 50053, as referenced in the Loan Agreement Section 4.1 (a).

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit C 

 Annual Statement Guidelines 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Annual Statement Guidelines 

Gross Revenue 
Rental Income (including Project Based Vouchers) 
Laundry & Miscellaneous 
 
Expenses 
Obligated debt service on the Senior Permanent Loans  
Operating reserves 
Replacement reserves ($XXX per unit) 
Deferred developer fee  
Trust annual loan monitoring fee 
Asset management and property management fee  
Utility fees 
Property taxes 
Insurance premiums 
Operating and maintenance expenses 
Supportive/Resident services 
 
Debt Service 
First Trust Deed  
Second Trust Deed 
Third Trust Deed 
 
Partnership and Management Fees 
Partnership management related charges and fees  
 
Cash Flow Available for Distribution as further described in the Promissory Note 
 

X.XX%   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit D 

 Mental Health Services Act Requirements 

 

EXHIBIT D 

Mental Health Services Act Requirements 

1. Population. The population to be served shall include extremely low 
income (30% of Area Median Income for Orange County), homeless individuals with 
documentation of a serious mental disorder completed by a qualified mental health 
worker. 

2. Rent Restrictions. Restricted rents for the MHSA funded units shall not 
exceed 30% of the HUD-published 30% Area Median Income (AMI) levels for Orange 
County, adjusted for designated household size (less a utility allowance unless included 
in the rent) with the tenants rent portion not to be more than 30% of their Social Security 
Income/Social Security Pension (SSI/SSP) or not more than 30% of their total gross 
household income (if additional income beyond SSI/SSP is received). If federally funded 
Project Based Vouchers are provided, the developer shall comply with the federal 
regulations for maximum rent and tenant rent portions.  

3. Coordinated Entry System. To the greatest extent feasible, the 
Developer shall utilize the local coordinated entry system to screen for eligible residents 
currently experiencing homelessness and with a documented serious mental disorder. 

4. Housing Unit General Requirements. Housing units and building 
features must meet the needs of the MHSA tenants to be served at the development, 
including privacy, housing activities and community interaction. There shall be no 
requirement for non-related, single, adult tenants to share bedrooms. There shall be 
adequate number of bedrooms to accommodate the housing composition.  Units are 
encouraged to have at least one-bedroom and be at least 450 square feet. 

5. Housing Unit Living Requirements. Housing units must have an 
identifiable and private living area, sleeping area, full kitchen area and a full bathroom. 
The kitchen area shall at a minimum include a sink, full size refrigerator, cupboard space, 
counter area, microwave or oven, and a two burner stove or built-in cook top. 

6. Furnishings. All units should be furnished with standard furnishings 
applicable to the unit type. 

7. Technology. Developers are encouraged to provide units that are pre-
wired for high technology and internet access.  

8. Common Space. The building must include common space, such as a 
community room that can accommodate a variety of activities and where tenants can 
choose to interact with one another.  

9. Office Space. The building must include a designated office space to 
provide services to MHSA tenants.   

10. Efficiency Requirements. The design and operation of the Project shall 
incorporate features designed to increase efficiency and reduce ongoing expenses. The 
Project shall incorporate appropriate and feasible green design practices, such as the use 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[         ] – OCHFT Loan Agreement Exhibit D 

 Mental Health Services Act Requirements 

 

of ENERGY STAR rated energy-efficient appliances and water-conserving fixtures and 
products. The Project must also utilize durable materials chosen to reduce future 
maintenance costs and renewable building supplies.  

Environmental Information. Tenants shall be provided with information to assist them 
to participate in environmentally friendly practices such as energy and water 
conservation, recycling and use of non-toxic household products. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

 REGULATORY AGREEMENT 
AND DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

 
By and Between 

 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, 

a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq 

 
and 

 
 [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  1 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

 
 REGULATORY AGREEMENT 

AND DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 
 
 THIS REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF 
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS (the "Regulatory Agreement" or "Agreement") is made 
and entered into as of _________________2020, by and between the ORANGE 
COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to 
California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") and [XXXXX] 
[BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY] (the "Borrower"). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Borrower intends to construct a housing project on that certain real property located 

within [unincorporated/the City of [CITY]], County of Orange, State of California, 
and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated 
herein (the "Property").  The Borrower further intends to construct and operate a 
[number of units] (#) unit residential development consisting of [insert facts] which 
shall be constructed by Borrower on the Property (collectively, the “Project”). 

B. The Borrower has submitted to the Trust an application for funding of a project, 
described herein, under its 20[XX] Permanent Supportive Housing Notice of Funding 
Availability (“20[XX] PSH NOFA”). 

C. The Trust desires to provide a loan during the construction period (which will convert 
to a permanent loan upon completion of construction of the Project, as set forth 
herein) to Borrower subject to the Borrower’s agreement, amongst other things, to 
encumber the Borrower’s [leasehold/fee simple] interest in the Property with certain 
rental restrictions, all as more particularly set forth in this Regulatory Agreement and 
the Loan Agreement. 

D. The Trust Board of Directors approved a loan to the Borrower from Trust funds on 
[DATE].  

E. Borrower is financing the construction of the improvements and related costs and 
expenses through the following sources: 

[Add funding sources] 

F. Relevant to this Agreement, the Trust has agreed to loan Borrower the sum of 
$[XXXX] in Trust Funds, the repayment of which is to be secured by the Project and 
will be evidenced by, among other documents, a promissory note secured by a 
[XXXXX] priority deed of trust during the Construction Period and a [XXXXX] 
priority deed of trust during the Qualified Project Period. 

G. The Trust and the Borrower now desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their 
agreement regarding the affordable housing restrictions for the Project and to cause 
said affordable housing restrictions to run with the land. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  2 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Trust and the Borrower hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein or in the Loan Agreement (as such 

term is defined below), capitalized terms used in this Regulatory Agreement shall 
have the respective meanings assigned to them in this Section 1: 

 
1.1. "Act" means Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 33750) of Part 1 of Division 

24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, as amended. 
 

1.2. "Adjusted Income" shall mean the adjusted income of all persons who intend to 
reside in one residential unit, calculated in the manner which complies with 
determinations of income for low income families under the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 Program of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended. 

 
1.3. "Area" means Orange County, California. 
 
1.4. “Borrower” means [XXXXX] [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND 

ORG IDENTITY]. 
 
1.5. "Code" means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 

hereafter, or any successor statute thereto. 
 
1.6. “Trust” means the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California public 

agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 
 
1.7. “Trust Manager” means the Orange County Housing Finance Trust Manager or 

their designee. 
 
1.8. “Housing Act" means the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, or its 

successor. 
 
1.9. "Loan" means the loan made by the Trust to the Borrower pursuant to the Loan 

Agreement for the purpose of financing the acquisition, construction and 
development of the Project. 

 
1.10. "Loan Agreement" means that certain Loan Agreement between the Trust and 

the Borrower of even date herewith as it may be amended from time to time, the 
terms of which are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
1.11. "Median Income for the Area" shall mean the median income for the Area as 

most recently determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”) and published by the State of California.  In the event that 
such income determinations are no longer published, or are not updated for a 
period of at least eighteen (18) months, the Trust shall provide the Borrower with 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  3 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

other income determinations which are reasonably similar with respect to methods 
of calculation to those previously published by HUD and the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. 

 
1.12. “Parties” shall mean the Trust and the Borrower. 
 
1.13. "Project" means collectively the Property and the structures and related 

buildings and other improvements located on the Property from time to time 
together with all fixtures and other property owned by the Borrower and located 
on, or used in connection with, such buildings, structures and other improve-
ments. 

 
1.14. "Property" means the real property legally described in Exhibit "A", which is 

attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and all rights and 
appurtenances thereunto appertaining. 

 
1.15. "Qualified Project Period" shall mean the period beginning upon fulfillment of 

the conditions precedent set forth in Article VI of the Loan Agreement and ending 
on the date which is fifty-five (55) years after the beginning of the Qualified 
Project Period. 

 
1.16. “Qualified Tenant” or “Qualified Tenants” shall collectively mean the 

individuals occupying the Restricted Units with the Adjusted Incomes more 
particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
The income of individuals shall be determined in a manner consistent with deter-
minations of lower income households under Section 8 of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended (or, if such program is terminated, in a manner 
consistent with such determinations under such program as is in effect 
immediately before such termination) and by the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development in accordance with California Health and 
Safety Code Section 50052.5.  In no event, however, will the occupant of a 
Restricted Unit be considered to be a Qualified Tenant if the occupant is a 
student, and is not entitled to file a federal income tax return. 

 
1.17. "Regulations" means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated or proposed by 

the Department of the Treasury pursuant to the Code from time to time. 
 
1.18. “Regulatory Agreement” or “Agreement” means this Regulatory Agreement. 
 
1.19. “Restricted Unit” or “Restricted Units” means the dwelling units in the Project 

identified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein required to be 
rented to, or held available for occupancy by Qualified Tenants pursuant to the 
terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 
the rental restrictions and other matters set forth in said Exhibit "B" and the other 
Loan Documents. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  4 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

1.20. “Term” is defined under Section 8 of this Agreement. 
 
2.  Trust Requirements as to Restricted Units. The Borrower hereby represents, 

warrants and covenants as follows: 
 

(a) Use of Restricted Units.  Borrower shall restrict the use, occupancy and 
rental of the Restricted Units of the Project to Qualified Tenants during the entire 
Qualified Project Period at the occupancy and rental rates provided for in Exhibit "B" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Borrower shall not rent nor permit the rental of 
any Restricted Unit in the Project except as provided in said Exhibit “B”. 
 

(b) Notifying Qualified Tenants.  Borrower shall adopt written tenant 
selection policies and criteria that meet all of the following requirements: 
 

i. Are consistent with the purpose of providing housing for Qualified 
Tenants and families. 
 

ii. Are reasonably related to program eligibility and the applicants' 
ability to perform the obligations of the lease. 
 

iii. Provide for: 
 

A. The selection of Qualified Tenants from a written waiting 
list in the chronological order of their application, insofar as is practicable; and 
 

B. The prompt written notification to any rejected applicant of 
the grounds for any rejection. 
 

iv. Carry out the affirmative marketing procedures of the Trust, to 
provide information and otherwise attract eligible persons from all racial, ethnic and 
gender groups in the housing market Area to the program.  Borrower and the Trust shall 
cooperate to effectuate this provision prior to the initial renting, upon occurrence of a 
vacancy, or upon the re-renting of any Restricted Unit. 
 

v. The Borrower agrees to provide to Qualified Tenants notice of all 
rent increases pursuant to applicable California law. 
 

 
(c) Qualified Tenant Protections.  The Restricted Units shall be rented to 

eligible and qualified Qualified Tenants in accordance with the following terms. 
 

i. Lease. The Lease between Borrower and a Qualified Tenant must 
be for not less than one (1) year, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both the 
Qualified Tenant and the Borrower. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  5 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

ii. Prohibited Lease Terms. The Lease between the Borrower and any 
Qualified Tenant may not contain any of the following provisions: 

 
A. Agreement to be sued.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

to be sued, to admit guilt or to a judgment in favor of the Borrower in a lawsuit brought 
in connection with the lease. 

 
B. Treatment of property.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

that the Borrower may take, hold, or sell personal property of household members 
without notice to the Qualified Tenant and a court decision on the rights of the parties.  
This prohibition, however, does not apply to an agreement by the Qualified Tenant 
concerning disposition of personal property remaining in the Restricted Unit after the 
Qualified Tenant has moved out of the Restricted Unit.  The Borrower may dispose of 
this personal property in accordance with applicable state law. 

 
C. Excusing owner from responsibility.  Agreement by the 

Qualified Tenant not to hold the Borrower or its agents legally responsible for any action 
or failure to act, whether intentional or negligent. 

 
D. Waiver of notice.  Agreement of the Qualified Tenant that 

the Borrower may evict the Qualified Tenant or household members without notice to the 
Qualified Tenant. 

 
E. Waiver of legal proceedings.  Agreement by the Qualified 

Tenant that the Borrower may evict the Qualified Tenant or household members without 
instituting a civil court proceeding in which the Qualified Tenant has the opportunity to 
present a defense, or before a court decision on the rights of the parties. 

 
F. Waiver of a jury trial.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

to waive any right to a trial by jury. 
 

G. Waiver of right to appeal court decision.  Agreement by the 
Qualified Tenant to waive the Qualified Tenant’s right to appeal, or to otherwise 
challenge in court, a court decision in connection with the lease. 

 
H. Qualified Tenant chargeable with cost of legal actions 

regardless of outcome.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant to pay attorney’s fees or 
other legal costs even if the Qualified Tenant wins in a court proceeding by the Borrower 
against the Qualified Tenant.  The Qualified Tenant, however, may be obligated to pay 
costs if the Qualified Tenant loses. 

 
(d) Termination of Tenancy.  Borrower may not terminate the tenancy or 

refuse to renew the lease of a Qualified Tenant except for serious or repeated violation of 
the terms and conditions of the Lease; for violation of applicable federal, state, or local 
law; for completion of the transitional housing tenancy period (if the housing is 
transitional); or for other good cause.  Any termination or refusal to renew must be 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  6 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

preceded by not less than thirty (30) days by the Borrower’s service upon the Qualified 
Tenant of a written notice specifying the grounds for the action. 

 
(e) Nondiscrimination Covenant.  By acceptance hereof, the Borrower agrees, 

for itself, its successors and assigns, to refrain from restricting the rental, or lease of the 
Project on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, sex, marital status, national 
origin or age of any person.  All leases or contracts shall contain or be subject to 
substantially the following nondiscrimination or nonsegregation clauses:  “The lessee 
herein covenants by and for himself or herself, his or her heirs, executors, administrators 
and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, and this lease or sublease is 
made and accepted upon and subject to the following conditions:  That there be no 
discrimination against or segregation of, any person or group of persons, on account of 
race, color, creed, religion, handicap, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, marital 
status, age or ancestry in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use or enjoyment of the 
land herein leased or subleased, nor shall the lessee himself or herself, or any persons 
claiming under or through him or her, establish or permit any such practice or practices of 
discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or 
occupancy of tenants, lessees, subleases, or subtenants in the land herein leased.” 
 

(f) Non-Qualifying Adjusted Income.  Subject to the applicable requirements 
and provisions of, and changes to, Section 42 of the Code, if, upon recertification of the 
income of a Qualified Tenant of a Restricted Unit, the Borrower determines that a 
Qualified Tenant has an Adjusted Income exceeding 30% of Median Income for the 
Area, adjusted for household size in accordance with the Act, as defined in Section 1.2 
above, such Qualified Tenant may be permitted to continue to occupy the Restricted Unit 
at the rental rate as provided for in Exhibit B, until the Qualified Tenant chooses to 
vacate the Restricted Unit. After the Restricted Unit is vacated, the Restricted Unit shall 
be re-rented to a Qualified Tenant pursuant to the terms, covenants and conditions of this 
Agreement. 
 

(g) Loss of Project Based Voucher Subsidy.  
 

1. It is anticipated that during the Qualified Project Period the Project 
will maintain Project Based Voucher (“PBV”) Restricted Units, supported by Project-
Based Section 8 rental subsidy payments (the "Rental Subsidy").  If, during the 
Qualified Project Period, any change in federal law or regulations occurs, or any action 
(or inaction) by Congress or any federal or State agency occurs, which results in a 
reduction, termination, or nonrenewal of the Rental Subsidy through no fault of 
Borrower, such that the Rental Subsidy shown on the Financing Plan (as defined in the 
Loan Agreement) is no longer available (or available in a lesser amount), Borrower may 
request approval of the Trust to increase the rent on one or more of the PBV Restricted 
Units, to an adjusted income that does not exceed sixty percent (60%) of Area Median 
Income, adjusted for actual household. 

 
2. The rent increase is subject to the following requirements: (a) 

concurrently with the request, Borrower shall provide the Trust with evidence of the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  7 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

anticipated  reduction, termination, or nonrenewal of the Rental Subsidy, (b) a 
Management Plan (as defined in Section 1.19 of the Loan Agreement) for the Project for 
the Trust's approval pursuant to Sections 4.1 and 7.8 of the Loan Agreement, showing the 
impact of the loss or reduction of the Rental Subsidy, (c) a proposed operating budget 
reflecting the rent increases (the “Operating Budget”),  and (d) a description of efforts to 
obtain alternate sources of rent.  The number of PBV Restricted Units subject to the rent 
increase and the amount of the proposed increase may not be greater than the number or 
amount required to ensure that the Project generates sufficient income to cover its 
operating costs, required deposits to replacement reserves, and debt service on approved 
financing as shown on the Operating Budget, and as is necessary to maintain the financial 
stability of the Project.  In addition, upon a reduction, termination or nonrenewal of the 
Rental Subsidy as described above, Borrower hereby agrees to the following: 

 
i. Borrower shall use good faith efforts to obtain alternative 

sources of rental subsidies and shall provide the Trust with annual progress reports on 
efforts to obtain alternative sources of rental subsidies that would allow the rents to be 
reduced.  Upon receipt of any alternative rental subsidies, Borrower shall reduce the rents 
back to the original restrictions found in Exhibit B to the extent that the alternative rental 
subsidies provide sufficient income to cover the operating costs, required replacement 
reserves and debt service of the Project as shown on the Operating Budget.   

 
ii. Borrower shall provide Qualified Tenants in the PBV 

Restricted Units with notice of any rent increase pursuant to Section 2.(g)(4), below, and 
shall notify the Qualified Tenant that if they have received a tenant-based voucher from 
the Orange County Housing Authority they may use the tenant-based voucher for their 
Restricted Unit.  

 
3. All rent increases are subject to County approval pursuant to the 

terms of this Section 2 (g).  No later than sixty (60) days prior to the proposed 
implementation of any rent increase, Borrower shall submit to the County a schedule of 
any proposed increase in the rent.  The County will disapprove a rent increase allowed 
pursuant to Section 2(g)(1)  if it does not comply with the restrictions set forth in Section 
2(g)(2).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, rent increases for the PBV Restricted Units shall 
be subject to review and approval of the County.   

 
4. Borrower shall give Qualified Tenants of all PBV Restricted Units 

written notice at least sixty (60) days prior to any rent increase.   
 

3. Qualified Tenants; Records, Reports and Monitoring.  During the Qualified 
Project Period, the Borrower shall submit to the Trust (i) not later than July 15, of each 
year, a report showing the necessary information to allow the Trust to determine the 
Owner’s compliance with this Regulatory Agreement, and (ii) within fifteen (15) days 
after receipt of a written request, any other information or completed forms requested by 
the Trust in order to comply with reporting requirements of HUD, or the State of 
California.  Borrower agrees to fully comply with Trust’s requirements for monitoring 
the affordability of the Project. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  8 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

 
4. Management.  Borrower shall manage the Restricted Units in accordance with a 
management plan prepared by Borrower and approved by the Trust Manager, describing 
Borrower's standards for operating, managing and maintaining the Restricted Units, 
including, but not limited to, the components listed below (the “Management Plan”). The 
Management Plan shall provide for occupancy standards that are appropriate for the 
Restricted Units. Borrower shall manage the Restricted Units in accordance with the 
approved Management Plan, including such amendments as may be approved in writing 
from time to time by the Trust Manager, for the Qualified Project Period.  The 
components of the Management Plan shall include: 
 

(a) Management Agent.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall 
be the management agent or Borrower shall submit the name and qualifications of the 
proposed management agent.  If the management agent is not Borrower, the Trust shall 
approve or disapprove the proposed management agent in writing based on the 
experience and qualifications of the management agent. 
 

(b) Management Agreement.  At the outset of the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower shall submit a copy of the proposed management agreement specifying the 
amount of the management fee, and the relationship and division of responsibilities 
between Borrower and management agent. 
 

(c) Marketing Plan.  The marketing plan will apply to all of the units in the 
Project, including the Restricted Units, except the Manager’s Unit.  The Borrower shall 
submit a marketing plan for review and approval by the Trust Manager.  The marketing 
plan must contain procedures that ensure marketing of the Restricted Units to Qualified 
Tenants throughout Orange County (including both unincorporated areas and other 
incorporated cities).  Such procedures shall be applicable for initial rent-up and ongoing 
marketing of the units throughout the Qualified Project Period.  Borrower shall advertise 
vacancies of the Restricted Units in general distribution newspapers that circulate 
throughout the County.  Where the Borrower utilizes other forms of advertising, such 
advertising shall also be distributed throughout the County. 
 

(d) Annual Budget and Projected Cash Flows.  Concurrently with the 
beginning of the Qualified Project Period, and annually thereafter not later than seventy-
five (75) days after the close of each calendar year (December 31) thereafter, Borrower 
shall submit, in a form that is acceptable to the Trust, a projected operating budget and 
cash flow for the Project to the Trust.   
 

(e) Trust Right to Replace Management Agent.  If at any time the Trust 
determines that the Project is not being managed or maintained in accordance with the 
approved Management Plan, Borrower shall change the management agent or the 
practices complained of, upon receipt of written notice from the Trust.  The Trust may 
require Borrower to change management practices or to terminate the management 
contract and designate and retain a different management agent, to be approved by the 
Trust.  The management agreement shall provide that it is subject to termination by 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  9 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

Borrower without penalty, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice, at the direction of 
the Trust. Within ten (10) days following a direction of the Trust to replace the 
management agent, Borrower shall select another management agent or make other 
arrangements satisfactory to the Trust for continuing management of the Project. 
 
5. Maintenance; Compliance with Law.  During the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower agrees to maintain all interior and exterior improvements, including 
landscaping, on the Project in good condition, repair and sanitary condition (and, as to 
landscaping, in a healthy condition) and in accordance with any Management Plan 
approved by the Trust under this Agreement (including without limitation any 
landscaping and signage), as the same may be amended from time to time, and all other 
applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and regulations of all federal, state, county, 
municipal, and other governmental agencies and bodies having or claiming jurisdiction 
and all their respective departments, bureaus, and officials.  Borrower acknowledges the 
great emphasis the Trust places on quality maintenance to protect its investment and to 
provide quality low income housing for its constituents and to ensure that all Trust 
subsidized affordable housing projects within the County are not allowed to deteriorate 
due to deficient maintenance.  In addition, Borrower shall keep the Project free from all 
graffiti and any accumulation of debris or waste material.  Borrower shall promptly make 
all repairs and replacements necessary to keep the Project in good condition and repair 
and shall promptly eliminate all graffiti and replace dead and diseased plants and 
landscaping with comparable approved materials. 
 
 In the event that Borrower breaches any of the covenants contained in this Section 
5 and such default continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice from the 
Trust (with respect to graffiti, debris, waste material, and general maintenance) or thirty 
(30) days after written notice from the Trust (with respect to landscaping and building 
improvements), then the Trust, in addition to whatever other right or remedy it may have 
under the Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documents, this Regulatory Agreement or at 
law or in equity, shall have the right to enter upon the Project and perform or cause to be 
performed all such acts and work necessary to cure the default.  Pursuant to such right of 
entry, the Trust shall be permitted (but is not required) to enter upon the Project and 
perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain and preserve the improvements 
and landscaped areas on the Project.  Borrower shall promptly pay to the Trust, as 
applicable, the amount of the expenditure arising from such acts and work of protection, 
maintenance, and preservation by the Trust and/or costs of such cure, including a fifteen 
percent (15%) administrative charge. 
 
6. Consideration.  The Trust has made the Loan for the purpose, among others, of 
inducing the Borrower to provide affordable housing in the County of Orange.  In 
consideration of the Loan to the Borrower, the Borrower has entered into this Agreement 
and has agreed to restrict the Restricted Units of the Project on the terms and conditions 
set forth herein. 
 
7. Sale or Transfer of the Project.  The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees not 
to voluntarily sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the Property or the Project, or any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  10 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

portion thereof (other than for individual tenant use as contemplated hereunder), without 
obtaining the prior written consent of the Trust.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and 
agreed that any sale, transfer or other disposition of the Property or the Project in 
violation of this Section 7 shall be null, void and without effect, shall cause a reversion of 
title to the Borrower and shall be ineffective to relieve the Borrower of its obligations 
under this Agreement.  Any transfer of the Property or the Project to any entity, whether 
or not affiliated with the Borrower, shall be subject to the provisions of this Section 7. 
 
8. Term. This Agreement and all and each of the provisions hereof shall become 
effective upon its execution and delivery, shall remain in full force and effect for the 
period provided herein and in the Loan Agreement, and, shall terminate in its entirety at 
the expiration of the Qualified Project Period, it being expressly agreed and understood 
that the provisions hereof are intended to survive the discharge of the Loan and 
termination of the Loan Agreement.  In the event that the Conversion Date, as defined in 
the Loan Agreement, does not occur and the Qualified Project period does not 
commence, as set forth in the Loan Agreement, the restrictions of this Agreement shall 
have no effect and the Trust shall provide the Borrower with a release of this Agreement. 
 
9. Covenants to Run with the Land.  
 

(a) All conditions, covenants, and restrictions contained in this Agreement 
shall be covenants running with the land, and shall, in any event, and without regard to 
technical classification or designation, legal or otherwise, be, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law and equity, binding for the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by 
Trust, its successors and assigns, against Borrower, its successors and assigns, to or of the 
Project or any portion thereof or any interest therein, and any party in possession or 
occupancy of said Project or portion thereof. 
 

(b) In amplification and not in restriction of the provisions set forth 
hereinabove, it is intended and agreed that Trust shall be deemed a beneficiary of the 
agreements and covenants provided hereinabove both for and in its own right and also for 
the purposes of protecting the interests of the community.  All covenants without regard 
to technical classification or designation shall be binding for the benefit of the Trust and 
such covenants shall run in favor of the Trust for the entire period during which such 
covenants shall be in force and effect, without regard to whether the Trust is or remains 
an owner of any land or interest therein to which such covenants relate. The Trust shall 
have the right, in the event of any breach of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise 
all the rights and remedies, and to maintain any action at law or suit in equity or other 
proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or covenant. 
 

(c) The Trust and its successors and assigns, and Borrower and the permitted 
successors and assigns of Borrower in and to all or any part of the fee title to the Project, 
shall jointly have the right upon written agreement signed by both parties to consent and 
agree to changes in, or to eliminate in whole or in part, any of the covenants, easements, 
or restrictions contained in this Agreement without the consent of any tenant, lessee, 
easement holder, licensee, mortgagee, trustee, beneficiary under a deed of trust, or any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  11 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

other person or entity having any interest less than a fee in the Project.  The covenants 
contained in this Agreement, without regard to technical classification shall not benefit or 
be enforceable by any owner of any other real property within or outside the Project, or 
any person or entity having any interest in any other such realty. 
 

(d) No breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall impair, defeat 
or render invalid the lien of any mortgage, deed of trust or like encumbrance made in 
good faith and for value encumbering the Property or the Project or any portion thereof. 
 
10. Burden and Benefit.  The Trust and the Borrower hereby declare their 
understanding and intent that the burden of the covenants set forth herein touch and 
concern the Property and the Project in that the Borrower's legal interest in the Project is 
rendered less valuable thereby.  The Trust and the Borrower hereby further declare their 
understanding and intent that the benefit of such covenants touching and concerning the 
land is the enhancement and increased enjoyment and use of the Project by Qualified 
Tenants, the intended beneficiaries of such covenants, reservations and restrictions, and 
by the furthering of public purposes for which the Loan was made. 
 
11. Uniformity; Common Plan.  The covenants, reservations and restrictions hereof 
shall apply uniformly to the entire Project in order to establish and carry out a common 
plan for the use, development and improvement of the Project. 
 
12. Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" by 

Borrower under this Agreement: 
 

(a) Failure to Make Payments.  Borrower fails to make any payment of due 
the Trust under this Agreement within ten (10) days after receiving written notice for said 
payment from the Trust; 
 

(b) Non-Monetary Failure to Perform.  Borrower fails to timely perform, 
comply with or observe any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement 
(other than those provisions elsewhere referred to in this Section 12) and such failure 
continues uncured or without Borrower commencing to diligently cure for thirty (30) 
days after notice thereof in writing is given by the Trust to Borrower; 
 

(c) Mortgage Loan Document Breach.  Any default or breach of Borrower 
which continues uncured after the expiration of any applicable cure period under the 
Loan Agreement (including, but not limited to, the obligations of the Borrower under 
Article VI of the Loan Agreement), any Loan Document or any other loan document 
including, but not limited to, the Mortgage Loan Documents, as defined and set forth in 
the Loan Agreement;  
 

(d) Voluntary Suspension.  The voluntary suspension of Borrower's business 
or the dissolution or termination of the partnership (if any) constituting Borrower; 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  12 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

(e) Unauthorized Transfer.  Borrower’s sale or other transfer of the Project in 
violation of this Agreement; 
 

(f) Fraud or Material Misstatement or Omissions.  Any fraudulent act or 
omission of Borrower pertaining to or made in connection with the Loan, Loan 
Documents or the Project;  
 

(g) Insolvency.  A court having jurisdiction shall have made or entered any 
decree or order (i) adjudging Borrower to be bankrupt or insolvent, (ii) approving as 
properly filed a petition seeking reorganization of Borrower or seeking any arrangement 
for Borrower under the bankruptcy law or any other applicable debtor's relief law or 
statute of the United States or any state or other jurisdiction, (iii) appointing a receiver, 
trustee, liquidator, or assignee of Borrower in bankruptcy or insolvency or for any of their 
properties, or (iv) directing the winding up or liquidation of Borrower, if any such decree 
or order described in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive, shall have continued unstayed or 
undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days unless a lesser time period is permitted for 
cure under any other mortgage on the Property, in which event such lesser time period 
will apply under this subsection 12(g) as well; or Borrower shall have admitted in writing 
its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or shall have voluntarily submitted to or filed 
a petition seeking any decree or order of the nature described in clauses (i) to (iv), 
inclusive.  The occurrence of any of the events of default in this paragraph shall act to 
accelerate automatically, without the need for any action by the Trust, the indebtedness 
evidenced by the Note; or 
 

(h) Project Monies.  Borrower’s misapplication or embezzlement of Project 
monies. 
 
13. Remedies.  The occurrence of any Event of Default shall, either at the option of 
the Trust or automatically where so specified, relieve the Trust of any obligation to make 
or continue the Loan and shall give the Trust the right to proceed with any and all 
remedies set forth in this Agreement and the Loan Documents or otherwise available at 
law or in equity or by statute (and all of the Trust's rights and remedies shall be 
cumulative), including but not limited to the following: 
 

(a) Acceleration of Note.  The Trust shall have the right to cause all 
indebtedness of the Borrower to the Trust under the Note, together with any accrued 
interest thereon, to become immediately due and payable.  The Borrower waives all right 
to presentment, demand, protest or notice of protest, or dishonor.  The Trust may proceed 
to enforce payment of the indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to the 
Trust as a creditor and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial 
Code, including foreclosure under the Deed of Trust.  The Borrower shall be liable to pay 
the Trust on demand all expenses, costs and fees (including, without limitation, attorneys' 
fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the Trust in connection with the collection of the 
Loan and the preservation, maintenance, protection, sale, or other disposition of the 
security given for the Loan. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  13 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

(b) Specific Performance.  The Trust shall have the right to mandamus or other 
suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform its obliga-
tions and covenants under this Agreement and/or the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts 
on things, which may be unlawful, or in violation of the provisions of this Agreement 
and/or the Loan Documents. 
 

(c) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The Trust shall have the right to 
cure any monetary default by Borrower under this Agreement.  The Borrower agrees to 
reimburse the Trust for any funds advanced by the Trust to cure a monetary default by 
Borrower upon demand therefore, together with interest thereon at the rate of twelve 
percent (12%) per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever rate is lesser, 
from the date of expenditure until the date of reimbursement. 
 

(d) Remedies Cumulative.  No right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by 
the terms of this Agreement or the Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of any 
other right, power, or remedy; and each and every such right, power, or remedy shall be 
cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by 
the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute or otherwise against Borrower and any 
other person.  Neither the failure nor any delay on the part of the Trust to exercise any 
such rights and remedies shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial 
exercise by the Trust of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise 
of such right or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 
 

(e) Waiver of Terms and Conditions.  No waiver of any default or breach by 
Borrower hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the Trust to take action on 
account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall 
affect any default other than the default specified in the waiver, and such waiver shall be 
operative only for the time and to the extent therein stated.  Waivers of any covenant, 
term, or condition contained herein shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent 
breach of the same covenant, term, or condition.  The consent or approval by the Trust to 
or of any act by Borrower requiring further consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary the consent or approval to or of any subsequent similar act.  
The exercise of any right, power, or remedy shall in no event constitute a cure or a waiver 
of any default under this Agreement or the Loan Documents, nor shall it invalidate any 
act done pursuant to notice of default, or prejudice the Trust in the exercise of any right, 
power, or remedy hereunder or under the Loan Documents, unless in the exercise of any 
such right, power, or remedy all obligations of Borrower to the Trust are paid and 
discharged in full. 
 
14. Recording and Filing. The Borrower shall cause this Agreement, and all 
amendments and supplements hereto and thereto, to be recorded and filed in the real 
property records of the County of Orange and in such other places as the Trust may 
reasonably request.  The Borrower shall pay all fees and charges incurred in connection 
with any such recording. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  14 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the 
sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange 
County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the 
jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394 
 
16. Amendments. This Agreement shall be amended only by a written instrument 
executed by the parties hereto, or their successors in title and duly recorded in the real 
property records of the County of Orange. 
 
17. Notices.   
 

(a) Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be made in writing and 
shall be given by personal delivery, certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, at the addresses specified below, or at such other addresses as may be 
specified in writing by the parties hereto: 
 
 
 
 Borrower:  [BORROWER TO PROVIDE] 
 
 

Trust:   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

 
The Trust shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to Borrower to the 
following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the validity of any 
otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 
 
    [courtesy notices] 
 
Notice shall be deemed given three business days after the date of mailing. 
     
18. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining portions hereof 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
19.  Additional Terms.    
 

(a) Indemnity.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Trust and its elected officials, officers, 
governing members, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified 
Parties"), from and against any and all losses, damages, claims, actions, liabilities, costs 
and expenses of any and every conceivable nature, kind or character (including, without 
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, litigation and court costs, amounts paid in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  15 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

settlement and amounts paid to discharge judgments) to which the Indemnified Parties, or 
any of them, may become subject to under any statutory law (including federal or state 
securities laws) or at common law or otherwise, arising out of or based upon or in any 
way relating to: 
 

i. this Agreement or the execution or amendment thereof in 
connection with the transactions contemplated thereby; 
 

ii. Borrower’s ownership or operation of the Property and the Project 
or any act or omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees or licensees in connection with the Property and the Project, the operation of 
the Project, or the condition, environmental or otherwise, occupancy, use, possession, 
conduct or management of work done in or about, or from the planning, design, 
acquisition, installation, operation or rehabilitation of, the Project or any part thereof; 
 

iii. any lien or charge upon payments by the Borrower to the Trust, or 
any taxes (including, without limitation, all ad valorem taxes and sales taxes), 
assessments, impositions and other charges imposed on the Trust in respect of any 
portion of the Project; 
 

iv. any violation of any environmental law, rule or regulation with 
respect to, or the release of any toxic substance from, the Property or the Project or any 
part thereof; 
 

v. any untrue statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue 
statement or alleged misleading statement of a material fact by the Borrower contained in 
any Loan Document or any of the documents or instruments relating to said Loan 
Documents that the Trust relied upon in making the Loan; except to the extent such 
damages are caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified 
Party. In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party 
with respect to which indemnity may be sought hereunder, the Borrower, upon written 
notice from the Indemnified Party, shall assume the investigation and defense thereof, 
including the employment and payment for of counsel selected by the Indemnified Party, 
and shall assume the payment of all expenses related thereto, with full power to litigate, 
compromise or settle the same; provided that the Indemnified Party shall have the right to 
review and approve or disapprove any such compromise or settlement. 
 

(b) Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 

(c) Construction.  Except where the context otherwise requires, words 
imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, words 
imparting persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships and corporations, and 
words of either gender shall include the other gender. 

 
(d) Waiver of Jury Trial.   Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, 

each party to this Agreement hereby expressly waives any right to trial by jury of any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  16 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

claim, demand, action or cause of action arising under any Loan Document or in any way 
connected with or related or incidental to the dealings of the parties hereto or any of them 
with respect to any Loan Document, or the transactions related thereto, in each case 
whether now existing or hereafter arising, and whether sounding in contract or tort or 
otherwise; and each party hereby agrees and consents that any such claim, demand, 
action or cause of action shall be decided by court trial without a jury, and that any party 
to this Agreement may file an original counterpart or a copy of this section with any court 
as written evidence of the consent of the parties hereto to the waiver of their right to trial 
by jury. 

 
(e) Nonliability.  By accepting or approving anything required to be 

performed or given to Trust under this Agreement, Trust shall not be deemed to have 
warranted or represented the sufficiency or legal effect of the same, and no such 
acceptance or approval shall constitute a warranty or representation by Trust to anyone. 
 

(f) Obligations Unconditional and Independent.  Notwithstanding the 
existence at any time of any obligation or liability of Trust to Borrower, or any claim by 
Borrower against Trust, in connection with this Agreement or otherwise, Borrower 
hereby waives any right it might otherwise have (a) to offset any such obligation, liability 
or claim against Borrower’s obligations under this Agreement or (b) to claim that the 
existence of any such obligation, liability or claim excuses the nonperformance by 
Borrower of any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
(g) Department of Housing and Community Development Underwriting 

Standards. The Trust attests that the underwriting standards being utilized for this 
transaction are those that have been submitted and approved by the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
and year first above written. 
 

Signature Pages to Follow 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Signature Page Follows 

 
    BORROWER:  
 
    [PLEASE PROVIDE SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
 
    By: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

TRUST: 
 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 

 
           
           
    By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Trust Manager  
     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
 
 
By____________________________ 
 Trust Counsel 
 
Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  Exhibit A 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement Legal Description 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[PLEASE PROVIDE LEGAL DESCRIPTION]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ]  Exhibit B 
OCHFT Regulatory Agreement 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
[PLEASE PROVIDE] 

      
EXTREMELY LOW INCOMEQUALIFIED TENANT/UNIT MIX 

[LOCATION], California 
 
 

RENT & AFFORDABILITY SCHEDULE   
 
 

Number of 
Restricted 
Units 

Number of 
Bedrooms 

* Gross 
Restricted 
Rental Rate 

**Utility 
Allowance 

Net 
Restricted 
Rental 
Rate 

Income 
Limit based 
on Area 
Median 
Income 
(AMI) 

Age 
Restriction (if 
any) 

Project 
Based 
Section 8 
Units 

Number of 
Years 
Restricted 

         
         
         
         
Total        Total  0  

 
 
 

*  Restricted Rental Rate is based on the current Area Median Income (AMI) published by HUD annually and does not include the 
utility allowance deduction. 

 
* * Utility allowance is based on the current utility schedule published by the Orange County Housing Authority annually.   
 
*** Income Limit may be adjusted in accordance with Section 2(g) in the event that Project Based Section 8 rental subsidies are no 

longer available for the Project. 
 

Rent increases shall be limited to (i) the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually 
published Rent Adjustment factor for the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the lower of rent established as 
affordable based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set forth above, which is 
adjusted annually by HUD and published by the State of California, or as required by California Health & Safety 
Code section 50053, as referenced in the Loan Agreement Section 4.1 (a). 
 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 1  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

RECORDING REQUESTED BY      
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 
 

         

 

DEED OF TRUST, ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 

THIS DEED OF TRUST, ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 
(“Deed of Trust”) is made as of this ___ day of ________, 2020,  by [BORROWER TO 
CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY]., (“Trustor”), to_________________, as trustee 
(“Trustee”), for the benefit of the ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 
as beneficiary (“Beneficiary”). 

 FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, including the indebtedness herein 
recited and the trust herein created, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Trustor hereby 
irrevocably grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to Trustee, IN TRUST, WITH POWER OF 
SALE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY AND POSSESSION, for the benefit and security of 
Beneficiary, under and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Trustor’s fee 
interest in the property located in Orange County, State of California, that is described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), on which Trustor 
intended to construct and operate an apartment complex commonly known as [PROJECT 
NAME]. 

 TOGETHER WITH all interest, estates or other claims, both in law and in equity which 
Trustor now has or may hereafter acquire in the Property and the rents;  

 TOGETHER WITH all easements, rights-of-way and rights used in connection therewith 
or as a means of access thereto, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all 
tenements, hereditament and appurtenances thereof and thereto;  

 TOGETHER WITH any and all buildings, improvements and landscaping of every kind 
and description now or hereafter erected thereon, and all property of the Trustor now or hereafter 
affixed to or placed upon the Property (sometimes collectively referred to as the 
“Improvements”); 

 TOGETHER WITH all building materials and equipment now or hereafter delivered to 
said Property and intended to be installed therein; 

 TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Trustor, now owned or hereafter 
acquired, in and to any land lying within the right-of-way of any street, open or proposed, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 2  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

adjoining the Property, and any and all sidewalks, alleys, strips and gores of land adjacent to or 
used in connection with the Property and/or Improvements; 

 TOGETHER WITH all estate, interest, right, title, other claim or demand, of every 
nature, in and to such property, including the Property, both in law and in equity, including, but 
not limited to, all oil, gas and mineral rights (including royalty and leasehold rights relating 
thereto), all water and water rights and shares of stock relating thereto, all leases of all or any 
portion of the Property or Improvements entered into by Trustor as lessor or lessee, all options to 
purchase or lease all or any portion of the Property and/or Improvements, all deposits made with 
or other security given by Trustor to third parties including, utility companies, the proceeds from 
any or all of such property, including the Property, claims or demands with respect to the 
proceeds of insurance in effect with respect thereto, which Trustor now has or may hereafter 
acquire, any and all awards made for the taking by eminent domain or by and proceeding or 
purchase in lieu thereof of the whole or any part of such property; and 

 TOGETHER WITH all articles of personal property or fixtures now or hereafter attached 
to, located on, installed in or used in and about the Property and/or Improvements, including 
without limitation, all partitions, generators, screens, boilers, furnaces, pipes, plumbing, 
elevators, cleaning and sprinkler systems, fire extinguishing machinery and equipment, water 
tanks, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and air cooling machinery and, equipment, gas and 
electric machinery and equipment and other appliances, machinery and equipment and other 
fixtures of every nature, all of which shall remain real property, and all renewals or replacements 
thereof or articles in substitution therefor, whether or not the same are, or shall be attached to the 
Property in any manner. 

 TOGETHER WITH all present and future accounts, general intangibles, chattel paper, 
deposit accounts, investment property, instruments and documents as those terms are defined in 
the California Commercial Code, now or hereafter relating or arising with respect to the Property 
and/or Improvements and/or the use thereof or any improvements thereto, including without 
limitation: (i) all rights to the payment of money, including escrow proceeds arising out of the 
sale or other disposition of all or any portion of the Property and/or Improvements; (ii) all 
deposit accounts and other accounts and funds created under or pursuant to the Loan Agreement 
(as defined below), and the other Loan Documents, all amounts now or hereafter on deposit  
herein, and all interest and other earnings thereon; (iii) all use permits, occupancy permits, 
construction and building permits, and all other permits and approvals required by any 
governmental or quasi-governmental authority in connection with the development, construction, 
use, occupancy or operation of the Property and/or Improvements; (iv) any and all agreements 
relating to the occupancy and/or operation of the Property and/or Improvements, including 
without limitation  service, property management, landscaping, gardening , consulting and other 
contracts of every nature (to the extent the same are assignable); (v) all lease or rental 
agreements; (vi) all names under which the Property and/or Improvements are now or hereafter 
known and all rights to carry on business under any such names or any variant thereof; (vii) all 
trademarks relating to the Property and/or Improvements and/or the use, occupancy or operation 
thereof; (viii) all goodwill relating to the Property and/or Improvements and/or the use, 
occupancy or operation thereof; (ix) all insurance proceeds and condemnation awards arising out 
of or incidental to the ownership, use, occupancy or operation of the Property and/or 
Improvements; (x) all reserves, deferred payments, deposits, refunds, cost savings, bonds, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 3  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

insurance policies and payments of any kind relating to the Property and/or Improvements; (xi) 
all water stock, if any, relating to any Property and/or Improvements; (xii) all supplements, 
modifications and amendments to the foregoing and all present and future accessions, additions, 
attachments, replacements and substitutions of or to any or all of the foregoing; and (xiii) all cash 
and noncash proceeds and products of any or all of the foregoing, including without limitation all 
monies, deposit accounts, insurance proceeds and other tangible or intangible property received 
upon a sale or other disposition of any of the foregoing, whether voluntary or involuntary; and 

 TOGETHER WITH all present and future goods, equipment and inventory, as those 
terms are defined in the California Commercial Code, and all other present and future personal 
property of any kind or nature whatsoever, now or hereafter located at, upon or about the 
Property and/or Improvements, or used or to be used in connection with or relating or arising 
with respect to the Property and/or Improvements, the use thereof or any improvements thereto. 

 All of the foregoing, together with the Property, is herein referred to as the “Security”.  
To have and to hold the Security together with acquittances to the Trustee, its successors and 
assigns forever. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECURING: 

(a) Payment of and performance of all indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary as set 
forth in the Loan Agreement (defined in Section 1.5 below) and the Note (defined in Section 1.6 
below) in the original principal amount of [AMOUNT OF LOAN] ($XXX) until paid or 
canceled.  Said principal and other payments shall be due and payable as provided in the Loan 
Agreement and the Note.  The Loan Agreement and the Note and all their terms are incorporated 
herein by reference, and this conveyance shall secure any and all extensions thereof, however 
evidenced;  

(b) Payment and performance of any sums advanced by Beneficiary to protect the 
Security pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Deed of Trust with interest thereon as 
provided herein;  

(c) Payment and performance of every other obligation, covenant or agreement of 
Trustor contained in this Deed of Trust and in the other “Loan Documents” (as such term is 
defined in the Loan Agreement);  

(d) Payment and performance of all renewals, extensions, supplements, amendments 
and other modifications of any of the foregoing, including without limitation modifications that 
are evidenced by new or additional documents or that change the rate of interest on any 
obligation. 

 All of the foregoing obligations are referred to collectively herein as the “Obligations”. 

AND TO PROTECT THE SECURITY OF THIS DEED OF TRUST, TRUSTOR 
COVENANTS AND AGREES: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 4  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Deed of Trust, the following terms shall 
have the following meanings in this Deed of Trust: 

Section 1.1.  The term “Debt Instrument” means any debt, loan, mortgage, deed of trust, 
regulatory agreement or security instrument relating to the Property or the Security, including, 
but not limited to, the Loan Documents.Section 1.2.  The term “Hazardous Substance” means: 

(a) any oil, flammable substance, explosive, radioactive material, hazardous 
waste or substance, toxic waste or substance or any other waste, material, or pollutant that 

(i) poses a hazard to the Property or to persons on the Property or 

(ii) causes the Property to be in violation of any Hazardous Substance 
Law; 

(b) asbestos in any form; 

(c) urea formaldehyde foam insulation; 

(d) transformers or other equipment that contain dielectric fluid containing 
levels of polychlorinated biphenyls; 

(e) radon gas; 

(f) any chemical, material, or substance defined as or included in the 
definition of “hazardous substance,” “hazardous substances,” “hazardous wastes,” “hazardous 
materials,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” or “toxic substances” or 
words of similar import under any applicable local, state, or federal law or under the regulations 
adopted or publications promulgated pursuant to those laws, including, but not limited to, any 
Hazardous Substance Law, Code of Civil Procedure § 564, as amended from time to time, Code 
of Civil Procedure § 726.5, as amended from time to time, Code of Civil Procedure §736, as 
amended from time to time, and Civil Code § 2929.5, as amended from time to time; 

(g) any other chemical, material, or substance, exposure to which is 
prohibited, limited, or regulated by any governmental authority or which may pose a hazard to 
the health and safety of the occupants of the Property or the owners or occupants of property 
adjacent to or surrounding the Property, or any other person coming on the Property or any 
adjacent property; and 

(h) any other chemical, material, or substance that may pose a hazard to the 
environment. 

Section 1.3.  The term “Hazardous Substance Claim” means any enforcement, cleanup, 
removal, remedial, or other governmental, regulatory, or private actions, agreements, or orders 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 5  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

threatened, instituted, or completed pursuant to any Hazardous Substance Law together with all 
claims made or threatened by any third party against Trustor or the Property relating to damage, 
contribution, cost-recovery compensation, loss, or injury resulting from the presence, release or 
discharge of any Hazardous Substance. 

Section 1.4.  The term “Hazardous Substance Law” means any federal, state, or local 
law, ordinance, regulation, or policy relating to the environment, health, and safety, any 
Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the use, handling, transportation, 
production, disposal, discharge, or storage of the substance), industrial hygiene, soil, 
groundwater, and indoor and ambient air conditions or the environmental conditions on the 
Property, including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 [42 USCS §§ 9601 et seq.], as amended from time to 
time; the Hazardous Substances Transportation Act [49 USCS §§ 1801 et seq.], as amended from 
time to time; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act [42 USCS §§ 6901 et seq.], as 
amended from time to time; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act [33 USCS §§ 1251 et seq.], 
as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Substance Account Act [Health and Safety Code 
§§ 25300 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Waste Control Law [Health and 
Safety Code §§ 25100 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Medical Waste Management 
Act [Health and Safety Code §§ 25015 et seq.], as amended from time to time; and the Porter-
Cologne Water Quality Control Act [Water Code §§ 13000 et seq.], as amended from time to 
time.  

 Section 1.5.  The term “Loan Agreement” means that certain Loan Agreement, which 
terms and provision are incorporated into this Deed of Trust by reference, of even date herewith 
between Trustor and Beneficiary.   

 Section 1.6.  The term “Note” means that certain promissory note of even date herewith 
executed by the Trustor, the payment of which is secured by this deed of Trust. 

 Section 1.7.  The term “Principal” means the aggregate of all principal and interest due 
under the Note. 

 Section 1.8.  The term “Release” means any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, 
emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing into the 
environment, including continuing migration, of Hazardous Substances that goes into the soil, 
surface water, or groundwater of the Property, whether or not caused by, contributed to, 
permitted by, acquiesced to, or known to Trustor. 

 

ARTICLE II 
 

GENERAL COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR REGARDING 
THE PROPERTY, IMPROVEMENTS AND SECURITY 

 

Section 2.1.  Payment of Secured Obligations. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 6  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

 Trustor shall duly and punctually pay and perform all Obligations, including but not 
limited to all terms, covenants, conditions and agreements set forth in the Debt Instruments, the 
Loan Agreement, the Note and any other agreement of any nature whatsoever now or hereafter 
involving or affecting the Security or any part thereof. 

Section 2.2.  Maintenance, Repair and Modification. 

(a) The Trustor agrees that at all times prior to full payment of the sum owed under 
the Note, the Trustor will, at the Trustor’s own expense, maintain, preserve and keep the Security 
or cause the Security to be maintained and preserved in good condition and repair and in a 
prudent and businesslike manner.  The Trustor will from time to time make or cause to be made 
all repairs, replacements and renewals to the Security, which are necessary or appropriate.  The 
Beneficiary shall have no responsibility in any of these matters or for the making of 
improvements or additions to the Security. 

(b) Trustor shall not remove, demolish or substantially alter any of the Improvements, 
other than to make repairs in the ordinary course of business of a non-structural nature which 
serve to preserve or increase the value of the Security without Beneficiary’s prior written 
consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld so long as Trustor provides 
reasonable evidence to Beneficiary that, following such demolition and restoration and/or 
alteration, the Improvements shall have a fair market value at least equal to their fair market 
value prior to such demolition and restoration and/or alteration; Trustor shall complete promptly 
and in a good and workmanlike manner any Improvement which may now or hereafter be 
constructed and promptly restore in like manner any Improvement which may be damaged or 
destroyed thereon from any cause whatsoever, and pay when due all claims for labor performed 
and materials furnished therefor; Trustor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, covenants, conditions, restrictions and orders of any governmental authority now or 
hereafter affecting the conduct or operation of Trustor’s business or the security or any part 
thereof or requiring any alteration or improvement to be made thereon; Trustor shall not commit, 
suffer or permit any act to be done in, upon or to the Security or any part thereof in violation of 
any such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders, or any covenant, condition or restriction 
now or hereafter affecting the Security; Trustor shall not commit or permit any waste or 
deterioration of the Security, and shall keep and maintain abutting grounds, sidewalks, roads, 
parking and landscape areas in good and neat order and repair; Trustor will not take (or fail to 
take) any action, which if taken (or not so taken) would increase in any way the risk of fire or 
other hazard occurring to or affecting the Security or otherwise would impair the security of 
Beneficiary in the Security; Trustor shall comply with the provisions of all leases, if any, 
constituting a portion of the Security; Trustor shall not abandon the Security or any portion 
thereof or leave the Security unprotected, unguarded, vacant or deserted; Trustor shall not 
initiate, join in or consent to any change in any zoning ordinance, general plan, specific plan, 
private restrictive covenant or other public or private restriction limiting the uses which may be 
made of the Security by Trustor or by the owner thereof; Trustor shall secure and maintain in full 
force all permits necessary for the use, occupancy and operation of the Security; except as 
otherwise prohibited or restricted by the Loan Agreement and the other instruments and 
documents executed in connection with the transaction to which the Loan Agreement pertains or 
any of them, Trustor shall do any and all other acts which may be reasonably necessary to protect 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 7  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

or preserve the value of the Security and the rights of Trustee and Beneficiary with respect 
thereto. 

 Section 2.3.  Granting of Easements. 

 Trustor may not grant easements, licenses, rights-of-way or other rights or privileges in 
the nature of easements with respect to any property or rights included in the Security except 
those required or desirable for installation and maintenance of public utilities including, without 
limitation, water, gas, electricity, sewer, telephone and telegraph, or those required by law. 

Section 2.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. 

 In the event of any Event of Default (as defined below) hereunder, and if the Beneficiary 
should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of amounts due or the 
enforcement of performance or observance of an obligation or agreement on the part of the 
Trustor in this Deed of Trust, the Trustor agrees that it will, on demand therefor, pay to the 
Beneficiary the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so paid by 
the Beneficiary; and any such amounts paid by the Beneficiary shall be added to the 
indebtedness secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust, and shall bear interest from the date such 
expenses are paid at the Agreed Rate (as defined in Section 3.1(d) below). 

Section 2.5.  Payment of the Principal. 

The Trustor shall pay to the Beneficiary the Principal and any other payments as set forth 
in the Note in the amounts and by the times set out therein. 

Section 2.6.  Fixture Filing and Security Agreement. 

(a) To the maximum extent permitted by law, the personal property subject to this 
Deed of Trust shall be deemed to be fixtures and part of the real property and this Deed of Trust 
shall constitute a fixture filing under the California Commercial Code.  As to any personal 
property not deemed or permitted to be fixtures, this Deed of Trust shall constitute a security 
agreement under the California Commercial Code and Trustor hereby grants to Beneficiary a 
security interest in all of Trustor’s right, title and interest, whether now existing or hereafter 
arising, in and to any portion of the Property which constitutes personal property (the “Personal 
Property”). 

(b) Trustor hereby represents and warrants to Beneficiary that: (1) Trustor is the 
owner of the Personal Property and no other person has any right, title, claim or interest (by way 
of security interest or other lien or charge or otherwise) in, against or to the Personal Property 
other than any senior lender or lien holder approved in writing by Beneficiary; (2) the Personal 
Property is free from all liens, security interests, encumbrances and adverse interests, except 
Permitted Encumbrances (hereinafter defined); (3) no financing statement or similar filing 
covering any of the Personal Property, and naming any secured party other than Beneficiary and 
the holders of Permitted Encumbrances, is on file in any public office; (4) each account, general 
intangible, chattel paper, deposit account, instrument, document, agreement, contract or right to 
the payment of money constituting Personal Property (collectively, the "Rights to Payment"), if 
any, is genuine and enforceable in accordance with its terms against the party obligated to pay 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 8  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

the same and (5) the Personal Property is not used nor was the Personal Property purchased for 
personal or family use by Trustor. 

 
(c) Trustor hereby agrees: (1) to pay, prior to delinquency, all taxes, assessments, 

charges, encumbrances and liens now or hereafter imposed upon or affecting all or any part of 
the Personal Property; (2) not to amend, modify, supplement, terminate or cancel any of the 
Personal Property; (3) without the prior written consent of Beneficiary, not to remove all or any 
part of the tangible Personal Property from the Property; (4) to give Beneficiary thirty (30) days' 
prior written notice of any change in Trustor's residence, principal place of business, chief 
executive office or trade names or styles; (5) to appear in and defend any action or proceeding 
which may affect the Personal Property (including, without limitation, actions, proceedings and 
claims which may affect Trustor's title to the Personal Property or the validity or priority of 
Beneficiary's security interest in the Personal Property); (6) to indemnify Beneficiary against all 
claims, demands and liabilities of every kind caused by the Personal Property; and (7) to permit 
Beneficiary to enter Trustor's premises to inspect the Personal Property. Trustor further agrees 
(8) to fully and timely perform all of its obligations under and with respect to all Rights of 
Payment and to diligently enforce all of the obligations of each obligor thereunder; (9) not to 
amend, modify, supplement, cancel or terminate any of the Rights to Payment in any material 
respect without the prior written consent of Beneficiary; (10) to keep the Rights to Payment and 
all proceeds free and clear of all defaults, defenses, rights of offset and counterclaim; (11) to take 
or bring, in Beneficiary's name or in the name of Trustor, as Beneficiary may require, all actions, 
suits or proceedings deemed reasonably necessary or desirable by Beneficiary to effect collection 
or to realize upon Rights to Payment; and (12) not to commingle Rights to Payment or 
collections thereunder with other property. 

 
(d) As soon as practicable, and in any event within ten (10) days, Trustor shall notify 

Beneficiary of: (1) any attachment or other legal process levied against any of the Personal 
Property; (2) any information received by Trustor which may in any manner materially and 
adversely affect the value of the Personal Property or the rights and remedies of Beneficiary with 
respect thereto; and (3) the removal of any of the Personal Property to a new location other than 
in the ordinary course of business and the removal of any records of Trustor relating to the 
Personal Property to any location other than the Land and Improvements.  

 
(e) Trustor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Beneficiary as its attorney-in-fact 

to, after the occurrence and during the occurrence of an Event of Default: (1) perform any 
obligation of Trustor hereunder in Trustor's name or otherwise; (2) give notice of Beneficiary's 
rights in the Rights to Payment, to enforce the same, and make extension agreements with 
respect thereto; (3) release persons liable on the Rights to Payment and to give receipts and 
acquittances and compromise disputes in connection therewith; (4) release security for the Rights 
to Payment; (5) resort to security for the Rights to Payment in any order; (5) prepare, execute, 
file, record or deliver notes, assignments, schedules, designation statements, financing 
statements, continuation statements, termination statements, and other documents to perfect 
preserve or release Beneficiary's interest in the Rights to Payment; and (6) do all acts and things 
and execute all documents in the name of Trustor or otherwise, deemed by Beneficiary as 
necessary, proper and convenient in connection with the preservation, perfection or enforcement 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 9  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

of its rights hereunder.  The power of attorney granted hereunder is coupled with an interest and 
is irrevocable. 

Section 2.7.  Financing Statement. 

The Trustor shall execute and deliver to the Beneficiary such financing statements 
pursuant to the appropriate statutes, and any other documents or instruments as are required to 
convey to the Beneficiary a valid perfected security interest in the Security.  The Trustor agrees 
to perform all acts that the Beneficiary may reasonably request so as to enable the Beneficiary to 
maintain such valid perfected security interest in the Security in order to secure the payment of 
the Note in accordance with its terms.  The Beneficiary is authorized to file a copy of any such 
financing statement in any jurisdiction(s) as it shall deem appropriate from time to time in order 
to protect the security interest established pursuant to this instrument. 

Section 2.8.  Operation of the Security. 

The Trustor agrees and covenants to operate the Security in full compliance with the 
Loan Agreement and the Debt Instruments. 

Section 2.9.  Inspection of the Security. 

The Trustor covenants and agrees that at any and all reasonable times, the Beneficiary 
and its duly authorized agents, attorney’s experts, engineers, accountants and representatives, 
shall have the right, without payment of charges or fees, to inspect all or any portion of the 
Security, including, but not limited to, the right to inspect and copy all reports and records 
pertaining thereto. 

Section 2.10.  Nondiscrimination. 

The Trustor herein covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and 
assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that there shall be no discrimination 
against or segregation of, any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, national origin, ancestry or disability in the 
sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Security, nor shall the 
Trustor itself or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use 
or occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or vendees in the Security.  The 
foregoing covenants shall run with the land. 

Section 2.11.  Subrogation and Waiver of Offset. 

(a) Trustor waives any and all right to claim or recover against Beneficiary, its 
officers, employees, agents and representatives, for loss of or damage to Trustor, the Security, 
Trustor’s property or the property of others under Trustor’s control from any cause insured 
against or required to be insured against by the provisions of this Deed of Trust; provided, 
however, that this waiver of subrogation shall not be effective with respect to any policy of 
insurance permitted or required by this Deed of Trust if  (i)  such policy prohibits, or if coverage 
thereunder would be reduced as a result of, such waiver of subrogation and (ii) Trustor is unable 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 10  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

to obtain from a carrier issuing such insurance a policy that, by special endorsement or 
otherwise, permits such a waiver of subrogation. 

(b) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all amounts payable by Trustor 
pursuant to this Deed of Trust shall be paid without notice, demand, counterclaim, setoff, 
deduction or defense and without abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution or reduction, 
and the obligations and liabilities of Trustor hereunder shall in no way be released, discharged or 
otherwise affected (except as expressly provided herein) by reason of:  (i) any damage to or 
destruction of or any condemnation or similar taking of the Security or any part thereof;  (ii) any 
restriction or prevention of or interference by any third party with any use of the Security or any 
part thereof;  (iii) any title defect or encumbrance or any eviction from the Security or any part 
thereof by title paramount or otherwise; (iv) any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
composition, adjustment, dissolution, liquidation or other like proceeding relating to Beneficiary, 
or any action taken with respect to this Deed of Trust by any trustee or receiver of Beneficiary, 
or by any court, in any such proceeding;  (v) any claim which Trustor has or might have against 
Beneficiary;  (vi) any default or failure on the part of Beneficiary to perform or comply with any 
of the terms hereof or of any other agreement with Trustor; or (vii) any other occurrence 
whatsoever, whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing.  Except as expressly provided herein, 
Trustor waives all rights now or hereafter conferred by statute or otherwise to any abatement, 
suspension, deferment, diminution or reduction of any sum secured hereby and payable by 
Trustor. 

Section 2.12.  Utilities. 

Trustor shall pay or cause to be paid when due all utility charges which are incurred for 
the benefit of the Security or which may become a charge or lien against the Security for gas, 
electricity, water, sewer services or other fees and charges for utilities furnished to the Security 
and all other assessments or charges of a similar nature, whether public or private, affecting or 
related to the Security or any portion thereof, whether or not such taxes, assessments or charges 
are or may become liens thereon. 

Section 2.13.  Actions by Beneficiary to Preserve Property. 

If Trustor fails to make any payment or to do any act as and in the manner provided in 
this Deed of Trust, Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, each in its own discretion, without 
obligation to do so, without releasing Trustor from any Obligation, and subject only to the notice 
and cure provisions of the Loan Agreement, may make or do the same in such manner and to 
such extent as either may deem necessary to protect the security hereof.  In connection therewith 
(without limiting their general and other powers, whether conferred herein, in another Loan 
Document or by law), Beneficiary and Trustee shall each and are hereby given the right, but not 
the obligation: (i) to enter upon and take possession of the Security; (ii) to make additions, 
alterations, repairs and improvements to the Security which either of them consider necessary or 
proper to keep the Security in good condition and repair; (iii) to appear and participate in any 
action or proceeding which may affect the security hereof or the rights or powers of Beneficiary 
or Trustee; (iv) to pay, purchase, contest or compromise any encumbrance, claim, charge, lien or 
debt which in the judgment of either may affect the security of this Deed of Trust or be prior or 
superior hereto; and (v) in exercising such powers to pay necessary expenses, including 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 11  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

employment of counsel or other necessary or desirable consultants.  Trustor shall reimburse 
Beneficiary on demand for all costs incurred by Beneficiary in connection with actions which 
Beneficiary deems advisable to protect its interest under the Loan Agreement and all such 
amounts shall bear interest at the Agreed Rate following demand and be secured hereby. 

Section 2.14.  Transfer of Property by Trustor. 

Prior to repayment of the Note, Trustor agrees that Trustor shall not sell or transfer the 
Security or any interest therein or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets of Trustor or 
any of them except as may be provided in the Loan Agreement. 

Section 2.15.  Additional Security. 

No other security now existing, or hereafter taken, to secure the Obligations secured 
hereby or the liability of any maker, surety guarantor or endorser with respect to such 
Obligations, or any of them, shall be impaired or affected by the execution of this Deed of Trust; 
and all additional security shall be taken, considered and held as cumulative.  The taking of 
additional security, execution of partial releases of the Security, or any extension of the time of 
payment of the indebtedness shall not diminish the force, effect or lien of this Deed of Trust and 
shall not affect or impair the liability of any maker, surety, guarantor or endorser for the payment 
of said indebtedness.  In the event Beneficiary at any time holds additional security for any of the 
Obligations secured hereby, it may enforce the sale thereof or otherwise realize upon the same, at 
its option, either before, concurrently, or after a sale is made hereunder. 

Section 2.16.  Liens. 

Trustor shall not cause, incur suffer or permit to exist or become effective any lien, 
encumbrance or charge upon all or any part of the Property, the Improvements or any interest 
therein other than (a) easements, rights of way, covenants, conditions, restrictions, liens and 
other title limitations approved in writing by Beneficiary prior to the execution of this Deed of 
Trust, and (b) immaterial easements and rights of way which are required by governmental 
authorities as a condition to the use and operation of the Improvements which are approved in 
writing by Beneficiary after the execution of this Deed of Trust (the “Permitted 
Encumbrances”). Trustor shall pay and promptly discharge, at Trustor’s cost and expense, all 
liens, encumbrances and charges upon the Security, or any part thereof or interest therein other 
than the Permitted Encumbrances; provided, that the existence of any mechanic’s, laborer’s, 
materialman’s, supplier’s or vendor’s lien or right thereto shall not constitute a violation of this 
Section if payment is not yet due under the contract which is the foundation thereof.  Trustor 
shall have the right to contest in good faith the validity of any such lien, encumbrance or charge, 
provided Trustor shall first deposit with the Beneficiary a bond or other security satisfactory to 
Beneficiary in such amounts as Beneficiary shall reasonably require, but not more than one 
hundred fifty percent (150%) of the amount of the claim or shall post a bond authorized by 
statute in lieu thereof, and provided further that Trustor shall thereafter diligently proceed to 
cause such lien, encumbrance or charge to be removed and discharged.  If Trustor shall fail to 
remove and discharge any such lien, encumbrance, or charge, then, in addition to any other right 
or remedy of Beneficiary, Beneficiary may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge the same, 
without inquiring into the validity of such lien, encumbrance or charge nor into the existence of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 12  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

any defense or offset thereto, either by paying the amount claimed to be due, or by procuring the 
discharge of such lien, encumbrance or charge by depositing in court a bond or the amount 
claimed, or otherwise giving security for such claim, in such manner as is or may be prescribed 
by law.  Trustor shall, immediately upon demand therefor by Beneficiary, pay to Beneficiary an 
amount equal to all costs and expenses incurred by Beneficiary in connection with the exercise 
by Beneficiary of the foregoing right to discharge any such lien, encumbrance or charge, together 
with interest thereon from the date of such expenditure at the Agreed Rate and, until paid, such 
sums shall be secured hereby. 

Section 2.17.  Beneficiary’s Powers. 

Without affecting the liability of any other person liable for the payment of any 
Obligation herein mentioned, and without affecting the lien or charge of this Deed of Trust upon 
any portion of the Security not then or theretofore released as security for the full amount of all 
unpaid Obligations, Beneficiary may, from time to time and without notice: (a) release any 
person so liable, (b) extend the maturity or alter any of the terms of any such Obligation (to the 
extent that Beneficiary is so allowed under the Loan Agreement), (c) grant other indulgences, (d) 
release or reconvey, or cause to be released or reconveyed at any time at Beneficiary's option any 
parcel, portion or all of the Security, (e) take or release any other or additional security for any 
Obligation herein mentioned, or (f) make compositions or other arrangements with debtors in 
relation thereto.  By accepting payment or performance of any Obligation secured by this Deed 
of Trust after the payment or performance thereof is due or after the filing of notice of default 
and election to sell (other than satisfaction in full of the Obligations), Beneficiary shall not have 
thereby waived its right to require prompt payment or performance, when due, of all other 
Obligations secured hereby, or to declare a default for failure so to pay or perform, or to proceed 
with the sale under any notice of default and election to sell theretofore given by Beneficiary, or 
with respect to any unpaid balance of the indebtedness secured hereby.  The acceptance by 
Beneficiary of any sum in an amount less than the sum then due shall not constitute a waiver of 
the obligation of Trustor to pay the entire sum then due.  Trustor’s failure to pay the entire sum 
then due shall continue to be a default, notwithstanding the acceptance of partial payment, and, 
until the entire sum then due shall have been paid, Beneficiary or Trustee shall at all times be 
entitled to declare a default and to exercise all the remedies herein conferred, and the right to 
proceed with a sale under any notice of default and election to sell shall in no way be impaired, 
whether or not such amounts are received prior or subsequent to such notice.  No delay or 
omission of Trustee or Beneficiary in the exercise of any other right or power hereunder shall 
impair such right or power or any other right or power nor shall the same be construed to be a 
waiver of any default or any acquiescence therein. 

Section 2.18. Suits to Protect Property.  Trustor agrees to appear in and defend any 
action or proceeding purporting to affect the security of this Deed of Trust or any additional or 
other security for the obligations secured, the interest of Beneficiary of the rights, powers and 
duties of Trustee, and to pay all costs and expenses, including without limitation, cost of 
evidence of title and attorneys’ fees, in any action or proceeding in which Beneficiary or Trustee 
may appear to be made a party, including, but not limited to, foreclosure or other proceeding 
commenced by those claiming a right to any part of the Property under subordinate liens, in any 
action to partition or condemn all or part of the Property, whether pursued to final judgment, and 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 13  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

in any exercise of the power of sale in this Deed of Trust, whether the sale is actually 
consummated. 

ARTICLE III 

TAXES AND INSURANCE; ADVANCES 

 Section 3.1.  Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. 

(a) Trustor shall pay, prior to delinquency, all real property taxes and assessments, 
general and special, and all other charges of any kind, including without limitation non-
governmental levies or assessments such as maintenance charges, levies or other charges 
resulting from covenants, conditions and restrictions affecting the Security, which are assessed or 
imposed upon the Security or upon Trustor as owner or operator of the Security, or become due 
and payable, and which create or may create a lien upon the Security, or any part thereof, or 
upon any personal property, equipment or other facility used in the operation or maintenance 
thereof (all the above collectively hereinafter referred to as “Impositions”); provided, however, 
that if, by law, any Imposition is payable, or may at the option of the taxpayer be paid, in 
installments, Trustor may pay the same in installments (together with any interest charged) as the 
same become due and before any fine, penalty or cost may be added thereto for the nonpayment 
of any such installment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trustor shall have the right to diligently 
contest, in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, the validity of any Imposition, so long as 
Trustor demonstrates to Beneficiary that Trustor is maintaining sufficient reserves for the 
payment of all contested liabilities and so long as the security and value of Beneficiary’s interest 
under this Deed of Trust are not impaired as a result of such contest. 

(b) If at any time after the date hereof there shall be assessed or imposed (1) a tax or 
assessment on the Security in lieu of or in addition to the Impositions payable by Trustor 
pursuant to this Section 3.1 hereof, or (2) a license fee, tax or assessment imposed on Beneficiary 
and measured by or based in whole or in part upon the amount of the outstanding Obligations 
secured hereby, then all such taxes, assessments or fees shall be deemed to be included within 
the term “Impositions” as defined in this Section and Trustor shall pay and discharge the same as 
herein provided with respect to the payment of Impositions.  If Trustor fails to pay such 
Impositions prior to delinquency or if Trustor is prohibited by law from paying such Impositions, 
Beneficiary may at its option declare all Obligations secured hereby, together with all accrued 
interest thereon, immediately due and payable.  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
Trustor shall have no obligation to pay any franchise, estate, inheritance, income, excess profits 
or similar tax levied on Beneficiary or on the Obligations secured hereby. 

(c) Trustor shall deliver to Beneficiary within thirty (30) days after the date upon 
which any such Imposition is due and payable by Trustor official receipts of the appropriate 
taxing authority, or other proof satisfactory to Beneficiary, evidencing the payment thereof.  
Trustor shall not suffer, permit or initiate the joint assessment of any real and personal property 
which may constitute all or a portion of the Security and the personal property or suffer, permit 
or initiate any other procedure whereby the lien of real property taxes and the lien of personal 
property taxes shall be assessed, levied or charged to the Security as a single Lien.  Trustor shall 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 14  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

cause to be furnished to Beneficiary a tax reporting service, covering the Property, of a type and 
duration, and with a company, reasonably satisfactory to Beneficiary. 

(d) In the event that Trustor shall fail to pay any of the foregoing items required by 
this Section to be paid by Trustor, Beneficiary may (but shall be under no obligation to) pay the 
same, after the Beneficiary has notified the Trustor of such failure to pay and the Trustor fails to 
fully pay such items within seven (7) business days after receipt of such notice.  Any amount so 
advanced therefor by Beneficiary, together with interest thereon from the date of such advance at 
the greater of twelve percent (12%) per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law 
(hereinafter the “Agreed Rate”), shall become an additional Obligation of Trustor to the 
Beneficiary and shall be secured hereby, and Trustor agrees to pay all such amounts. 

 Section 3.2.  Insurance. 

(a) Trustor agrees to provide insurance conforming in all respects to that required 
under the Loan Agreement at all times until all amounts secured by this Deed of Trust have been 
paid and all other Obligations secured hereunder fulfilled, and this Deed of Trust reconveyed.  
All such insurance policies and coverages shall be maintained at Trustor’s sole cost and expense. 

(b) All said insurance shall have attached thereto a lender’s loss payable endorsement 
for the benefit of Beneficiary in form satisfactory to the Beneficiary and/or shall name 
Beneficiary as an additional insured, as Beneficiary may require, and shall contain an 
endorsement or agreement by the insurer that any loss shall be payable in accordance with the 
terms of such policies notwithstanding any act or negligence of Trustor or any party holding 
under Trustor which might otherwise result in forfeiture of said insurance and the further 
agreement of the insurer waiving all rights of setoff, counterclaim and deduction against Trustor.  
At Beneficiary’s option, Trustor shall furnish Beneficiary with an original of all required policies 
of insurance and/or a certificate of insurance with all required endorsements for each required 
policy setting forth the coverage, the limits of liability, the deductible, if any, the name of the 
carrier, the policy number, and the period of coverage, which certificates and endorsements shall 
be executed by authorized officials of the companies issuing such insurance, or any agents or 
attorneys-in-fact authorized to issue said certificates and endorsements (in which event each such 
certificate and endorsements shall be accompanied by a notarized affidavit, agency agreement or 
power of attorney evidencing the authority of the signatory to issue such certificate on behalf of 
the insurer named therein), accompanied by a certificate from Trustor that the insurance satisfies 
the requirements of the Loan Agreement, and that Beneficiary may conclusively rely on such 
certificates.  If Beneficiary consents, Trustor may provide any of the required insurance through 
blanket policies carried by Trustor and covering more than one location; provided, however, all 
such policies shall be in form and substance and issued by companies satisfactory to Beneficiary. 

(c) At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of each required policy, Trustor 
shall deliver to Beneficiary evidence satisfactory to Beneficiary of the payment of premium and 
the renewal or replacement of such policy continuing insurance in form as required by this Deed 
of Trust or the Loan Agreement.  All such policies shall contain a provision that, notwithstanding 
any contrary agreement between Trustor and the insurance company, such policies will not be 
canceled, allowed to lapse without renewal, surrendered or materially amended (which term shall 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 15  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

include any reduction in the scope, or limits of coverage) without at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to Beneficiary. 

(d) In the event of foreclosure of this Deed of Trust or other transfer of title or 
assignment of the Property in extinguishment, in whole or in part, of the debt secured hereby, all 
right, title and interest of Trustor in and to all policies of insurance required by Section 3.2 
hereof and any unearned premiums paid thereon shall, without further act, be assigned to and 
shall inure to the benefit of and pass to the successor in interest to Trustor or the purchaser or 
grantee of the Property, and Trustor hereby appoints Beneficiary its lawful attorney-in-fact to 
execute an assignment thereof and any other document necessary to effect such transfer. 

 Section 3.3.  Advances. 

 In the event the Trustor shall fail to maintain the full insurance coverage required by this 
Deed of Trust or shall fail to keep the Security in accordance with the Loan Agreement, the 
Beneficiary, after at least twenty (20) days prior written notice to Trustor, may (but shall be 
under no Obligation to) take out the required policies of insurance and pay the premiums on the 
same or may make such repairs or replacements as are necessary and provide for payment 
thereof; and all amounts so advanced therefor by the Beneficiary shall become an additional 
Obligation of the Trustor to the Beneficiary (together with interest as set forth below) and shall 
be secured hereby, which amounts the Trustor agrees to pay on the demand of the Beneficiary, 
and if not so paid, shall bear interest from the date of the advance at the Agreed Rate. 

ARTICLE IV 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION OR CONDEMNATION 

 Section 4.1.  Casualties. 

 Trustor shall give prompt written notice to Beneficiary upon the occurrence of casualty to 
or in connection with the Security or any part thereof, whether or not covered by insurance.  In 
the event of such casualty Trustor hereby absolutely and unconditionally assigns to Beneficiary 
all insurance proceeds which it may be entitled to receive and such proceeds shall be delivered to 
and held by Beneficiary to be applied to Beneficiary’s expenses in settling, prosecuting or 
defending any insurance claim, and then to the restoration of any portion of the Security that has 
been damaged or destroyed to the same condition, character and value as existed prior to such 
damage or destruction so long as the following conditions are satisfied: (i) Trustor is not in 
default hereunder (other than any default resulting from such casualty), (ii) Beneficiary’s 
security is not materially impaired, (iii) all income (from the Security or otherwise) required to 
pay all debt service and operating expenses of the Security during such restoration and thereafter 
will be equal to or greater than the income which was required to pay such debt service and 
operating expenses prior to the casualty, (iv) Trustor evidences to the satisfaction of Beneficiary 
that the insurance required to be maintained hereunder will be available to the Trustor during 
restoration and thereafter, (v) Beneficiary shall have approved the plans and specifications for 
such restoration, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and (vi) in the 
event that in Beneficiary’s sole judgment the insurance proceeds and any amounts deposited with 
a senior lender are not sufficient to accomplish restoration, Trustor deposits with the Beneficiary 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 16  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

or senior lender, as required by that senior lender pursuant to the terms of the senior Debt 
Instrument, within five days of demand by Beneficiary, the additional amounts necessary to 
accomplish restoration.  Proceeds disbursed for restoration will be released to Trustor in 
accordance with Beneficiary’s then current customary disbursement procedures.  In the event 
any of the conditions set forth above are not satisfied or if the insurance proceeds shall not be 
applied to the restoration of the Security within thirty days after receipt of such proceeds by 
Beneficiary, Beneficiary may release such proceeds to Trustor without such release being 
deemed a payment of any indebtedness secured hereby, rather than apply such proceeds to the 
restoration of the Security.  Such application or release shall not cure or waive any default or 
notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done pursuant to such notice.  If the Security is 
restored at a cost less than the available insurance proceeds, then such excess proceeds shall, if 
Trustor is not then in default hereunder, be paid over to Trustor.  Beneficiary may commence, 
appear in, defend or prosecute any assigned claim or action, and may adjust, compromise, settle 
and collect all claims, proceeds and awards assigned to Beneficiary, but shall not be responsible 
for any failure to collect any claim, proceeds or award, regardless of the cause of the failure. 

 Section 4.2.  Condemnation. 

 Immediately upon its obtaining knowledge of the institution or the threatened institution 
of any proceeding for the condemnation or other taking for public or quasi-public use of the 
Security or any part thereof, or if the same be taken or damaged by reason of any public 
improvement or condemnation proceeding, or in any other manner, or should Trustor receive any 
notice or other information regarding such proceedings, action, taking or damage, Trustor shall 
promptly notify Trustee and Beneficiary of such fact.  Trustor shall then, if requested by 
Beneficiary, file or defend its right thereunder and prosecute the same with due diligence to its 
final disposition and shall cause any award or settlement to be paid to Beneficiary in accordance 
with the provisions of the Loan Agreement.  At Beneficiary’s option, Beneficiary or Trustor may 
be the nominal party in such proceeding but in any event Beneficiary shall be entitled, without 
regard to the adequacy of its security, to participate in, appear in, prosecute and settle, jointly 
with Trustor to control the same and to be represented therein by counsel of its choice, and 
Trustor will deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Beneficiary such instruments as may be 
requested by it from time to time to permit such participation.  Trustor and Beneficiary agree to 
act in good faith with respect to any consent, settlement, or award arising out of said prosecution.  
If the Security or any part thereof is taken or diminished in value, or if a consent settlement is 
entered, by or under threat of such proceedings, all compensation, awards, damages, rights of 
action proceeds and settlements payable to Trustor by virtue of its interest in the security shall be 
and hereby are assigned, transferred and set over into Beneficiary to be held by it, in trust, 
subject to the lien and security interest of this Deed of Trust.  All such proceeds shall be first 
applied to reimburse Trustee and Beneficiary, for all costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with the collection of such award or settlement, and then 
to the restoration of any portion of the Security that has been taken to the similar condition, 
character and value as existed prior to such taking so long as the following conditions are 
satisfied: (i) Trustor is not in default hereunder, (ii) Beneficiary’s security is not materially 
impaired, (iii) all income (from the Security or otherwise) required to pay all debt service and 
operating expenses of the Security during such restoration and thereafter will be equal to or 
greater than the income which was required to pay such debt service and operating expenses 
prior to the casualty, (iv) Trustor evidences to the satisfaction of Beneficiary that the insurance 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 17  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

required to be maintained hereunder will be available to the Trustor during restoration and 
thereafter, (v) Beneficiary shall have approved the plans and specifications for such restoration, 
and (vi) in the event that in Beneficiary’s sole judgment the insurance proceeds and any amounts 
deposited with a senior lender are not sufficient to accomplish restoration, Trustor deposits with 
the Beneficiary or senior lender, as required by that senior lender pursuant to the terms of the 
senior Debt Instrument, within five days of demand by Beneficiary, the additional amounts 
necessary to accomplish restoration.  Application or release of proceeds as provided herein shall 
not cure or waive any default or notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done pursuant 
to such notice. 

ARTICLE V 

ENVIRONMENTAL COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR 

 Section 5.1.  Disclosures By Trustor. Except as disclosed in writing to, and 
acknowledged and accepted in writing by Beneficiary, Trustor represents and warrants that: 

(a) during the period of Trustor’s ownership of the Property 

(1) there has been no use, generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, 
disposal, discharge, Release, or threatened Release of any Hazardous Substance by any person 
on or around the Property except in such small quantities as are customary and usual in the 
ordinary course of constructing, using and operating a residential housing business on the 
Property and in strict compliance with all Hazardous Substances Laws, and 

(2) there have been no Hazardous Substances transported over or 
through the Property; 

(b) after diligent inquiry, Trustor has no knowledge of, or reason to believe 
that, there has been: 

(1) any use, generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, disposal, 
Release, or threatened Release of any hazardous waste or substance by any prior owners or prior 
occupants of the Property or by any third parties onto the Property, or 

(2) any actual or threatened litigation or claims of any kind by any 
person relating to these matters; 

(c) no Hazardous Substances in excess of permitted levels or reportable 
quantities under applicable Hazardous Substance Laws are present in or about the Property or 
any nearby real property that could migrate to the Property; 

(d) no Release or threatened Release exists or has occurred; 

(e) no underground storage tanks of any kind are or ever have been located in 
or about the Property; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 18  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

(f) the Property and all operations and activities at, and the use and 
occupancy of, the Property comply with all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws; 

(g) Trustor is now in strict compliance with, every permit, license, and 
approval required by all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws for all activities and operations 
at, and the use and occupancy of, the Property; 

(h) to the best of Trustor’s knowledge, after diligent inquiry, there are no 
Hazardous Substance Claims pending or threatened with regard to Property or against Trustor; 

(i) to its knowledge the Property has not been nor is it within 2,000 feet of 
any other property designated as “hazardous waste property” or “border zone property” pursuant 
to Health and Safety Code §§ 25220 et seq., and no proceedings for a determination of this 
designation are pending or threatened; 

(j) to the best of its knowledge after diligent inquiry, there exists no 
occurrence or condition on any real property adjoining or within 2,000 feet of the Property that 
would cause the Property or any part of it to be designated as “hazardous waste property” or 
“border zone property” under the provisions of Health and Safety Code §§ 25220 et seq., and any 
regulation adopted in accordance with that section; 

(k) that the use of the Property shall be residential housing; 

(l) any written disclosure submitted by or on behalf of Trustor to Beneficiary 
concerning any Release or threatened Release, past or present compliance by Trustor or other 
person of any Hazardous Substance Laws applicable to the Property, the past and present use and 
occupancy of the Property, and any environmental concerns relating to the Property, was true 
and complete when submitted and continues to be true and complete as of the date of this Deed 
of Trust. 

 Section 5.2  Covenants of Trustor. Trustor agrees, except in the ordinary course of 
business and in strict compliance with all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws, as follows: 

(a) not to cause or permit the property to be used as a site for the use, 
generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, Release, discharge, disposal, transportation, or 
presence of any Hazardous Substance; 

(b) not to cause, contribute to, permit, or acquiesce in any Release or 
threatened Release; 

(c) not to change or modify the use of the Property without the prior written 
consent of Beneficiary; 

(d) to comply with and to cause the Property and every invitee or occupant of 
the Property to comply with all Hazardous Substance Laws; 

(e) to immediately notify Beneficiary in writing of and to provide Beneficiary 
with a reasonably detailed description of: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 19  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

(1) any noncompliance of the Property with any Hazardous Substance 
Laws; 

(2) any Hazardous Substance Claim; 

(3) any Release or Threatened Release; 

(4) not engage in any of the activities enumerated in Cal. Health & 
Safety Code section 25227 on land that is subject to a recorded land use restriction pursuant to 
former Health & Safety Code Section 25229, 25230, or 25398.7, as those sections read on 
January 1, 2012, or pursuant to Sections 25202.5, 25221, or 25355.5 of the same, unless the 
person obtains a specific approval in writing as required pursuant to Section 25227. 

(f) if Trustor discovers a Release or the presence of any Hazardous Substance 
on or about the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law, to: 

(1) notify Beneficiary of that discovery together with a reasonably 
detailed description; 

(2) engage promptly after a request by Beneficiary, a qualified 
environmental engineer reasonably satisfactory to Beneficiary to investigate these matters and 
prepare and submit to Beneficiary a written report containing the findings and conclusions 
resulting from that investigation, all at the sole expense of Trustor, and 

(3) take, at Trustor’s sole expense, all necessary actions to remedy, 
repair, clean up, or detoxify any Release or Hazardous Substance, including, but not limited to, 
any remedial action required by any Hazardous Substance Laws or any judgment, consent, 
decree, settlement, or compromise in respect of any Hazardous Substance Claims, these actions 
to be performed: 

A. in accordance with Hazardous Substance Laws, 

B. in a good and proper manner, 

C. under the supervision of a qualified environmental engineer 
approved in writing by Beneficiary, 

D. in accordance with plans and specifications for these actions 
approved in writing by Beneficiary, and 

E.  using licensed and insured qualified contractors approved in 
writing by Beneficiary; 

(g) immediately furnish to Beneficiary copies of all written communications 
received by Trustor from any governmental authority or other person or given by Trustor to any 
person and any other information Beneficiary may reasonably request concerning any Release, 
threatened Release, Hazardous Substance Claim, or the discovery of any Hazardous Substance 
on or about the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law; and 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 20  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

(h) keep Beneficiary generally informed regarding any Release, threatened 
Release, Hazardous Substance Claim, or the discovery of any Hazardous Substance on or about 
the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law. 

 Section 5.3  Rights of Beneficiary. Upon Beneficiary’s reasonable belief of the existence 
of a past or present Release or threatened Release not previously disclosed by Trustor in 
connection with the making of the Loan or the execution of this Deed of Trust or upon 
Beneficiary’s reasonable belief that Trustor has failed to comply with any environmental 
provision of this Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document and upon reasonable prior notice 
(except in the case of an emergency) to Trustor, Beneficiary or its representatives, employees, 
and agents, may from time to time and at all reasonable times (or at any time in the case of an 
emergency) enter and inspect the Property and every part of it (including all samples of building 
materials, soil, and groundwater and all books, records, and files of Trustor relating to the 
Property) and perform those acts and things that Beneficiary deems necessary or desirable to 
inspect, investigate, assess, and protect the Security of this Deed of Trust, for the purpose of 
determining: 

(a) the existence, location, nature, and magnitude of any past or present 
Release or threatened Release, 

(b) the presence of any Hazardous Substances on or about the Property in 
violation of any Hazardous Substance Law, and 

(c) the compliance by Trustor of every environmental provision of this Deed 
of Trust and every other Loan Document. 

 In furtherance of the purposes above, without limitation of any of its other rights, 
Beneficiary may: 

(1) obtain a court order to enforce Beneficiary’s right to enter and 
inspect the Property under Civil Code § 2929.5; and 

(2) have a receiver appointed under Code of Civil Procedure § 564 to 
enforce Beneficiary’s right to enter and inspect the Property for the purpose set forth above. 

 All costs and expenses incurred by Beneficiary with respect to the audits, tests, 
inspections, and examinations that Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, or employees may 
conduct, including the fees of the engineers, laboratories, contractors, consultants, and attorneys, 
will be paid by Trustor.  All costs or expenses incurred by Trustee and Beneficiary pursuant to 
this Section (including without limitation court costs, consultant’s fees, and attorney fees, 
whether incurred in litigation and whether before or after judgment) will bear interest at the 
Agreed Rate from the date they are incurred until those sums have been paid in full.  Except as 
provided by law, any inspections or tests made by Beneficiary or its representatives, employees, 
and agents will be for Beneficiary’s purposes only and will not be construed to create any 
responsibility or liability on the part of Beneficiary to Trustor or to any other person.  
Beneficiary will have the right, but not the obligation, to communicate with any governmental 
authority regarding any fact or reasonable belief of Beneficiary that constitutes or could 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 21  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

constitute a breach of any of Trustor’s obligations under any environmental provision contained 
in this Deed of Trust or any Loan Document. 

 Section 5.4 Waiver and Indemnity.  Trustor: 

(a) releases and waives any future claims against Beneficiary for indemnity or 
contribution in the event Trustor becomes liable for cleanup or other costs under any Hazardous 
Substance Laws or under any Hazardous Substance Claim; 

(b) agrees to reimburse Beneficiary, on demand, for all costs and expenses 
incurred by Beneficiary in connection with any review, approval, consent, or inspection relating 
to the environmental provisions in this Deed of Trust together with interest, after demand, at the 
Agreed Rate; and 

(c) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Beneficiary and Trustee harmless 
from all losses, costs, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities, causes of action, judgments, court 
costs, attorney fees and other legal expenses, costs of evidence of title, cost of evidence of value, 
and other expenses (collectively, “Expenses”), including, but not limited to, any Expenses 
incurred or accruing after the foreclosure of the lien of this Deed of Trust, which either may 
suffer or incur and which directly or indirectly arises out of or is in any way connected with the 
breach of any environmental provision either in this Deed of Trust or in any Loan Document or 
as a consequence of any Release or threatened Release on the presence, use, generation, 
manufacture, storage, disposal, transportation, Release, or threatened Release of any Hazardous 
Substance on or about the Property, including the soils and groundwater, caused or permitted by 
Trustor, any prior owner or operator of the Property, any adjoining landowner or any other party, 
including, without limitation, the cost of any required or necessary repair, cleanup, remedy, or 
detoxification of any hazardous Substance and the preparation of any closure, remedial action, or 
other required plans, whether that action is required or necessary by reason of acts or omissions 
occurring prior to or following the recordation of this Deed of Trust.  Trustor’s obligations will 
survive the satisfaction, release, or cancellation of the indebtedness, the release and 
reconveyance or partial release and reconveyance of this Deed of Trust, and the foreclosure of 
the lien of this Deed of Trust or deed in lieu of the Deed of Trust. 

 Section 5.5 Additional Covenants of Trustor.   

(a) Trustor and Beneficiary agree that: 

(1) this Section is intended as Beneficiary’s written request for 
information and Trustor’s written response concerning the environmental condition of the 
Property as provided by Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5; and 

(2) each representation, warranty, covenant, or indemnity made by 
Trustor in this Article or in any other provision of this Deed of Trust or any Loan Document that 
relates to the environmental condition of the Property is intended by Trustor and Beneficiary to 
be an “environmental provision” for purposes of Code of Civil Procedure § 736 and will survive 
the payment of the indebtedness and the termination or expiration of this Deed of Trust and will 
not be affected by Lender’s acquisition of any interest in the Property, whether by full credit bid 
at foreclosure, deed in lieu of that, or otherwise.  If there is any transfer of any portion of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 22  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

Trustor’s interest in the Property, any successor-in-interest to Trustor agrees by its succession to 
that interest that the written request made pursuant to this Article will be deemed remade to the 
successor-in-interest without any further or additional action on the part of Beneficiary and that 
by assuming the debt secured by this Deed of Trust or by accepting the interest of Trustor subject 
to the lien of this Deed of Trust, the successor remakes each of the representations and 
warranties in this Deed of Trust and agrees to be bound by each covenant in this Deed of Trust, 
including, but not limited to, any indemnity provision. 

(b) Even though Trustor may have provided Beneficiary with an 
environmental site assessment or other environmental report together with other relevant 
information regarding the environmental condition of the Property, Trustor acknowledges and 
agrees that Beneficiary is not accepting the Property as security for the Loan based on that 
assessment, report, or information.  Rather, Beneficiary has relied on the representations and 
warranties of Trustor in this Deed of Trust, and Beneficiary is not waiving any of its rights and 
remedies in the environmental provisions of this Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document. 

(c) Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, and employees may seek a 
judgment that Trustor has breached its covenants, representations, or warranties in Article II of 
this Deed of Trust or any other covenants, representations, or warranties that are deemed to be 
“environmental provisions” pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 736 (each an 
“Environmental Provision”), by commencing and maintaining an action or actions in any court 
of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 736, whether commenced prior 
to or after foreclosure of the lien of this Deed of Trust.  Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, 
and employees may also seek an injunction to cause Trustor to abate any action in violation of 
any Environmental Provision and may seek the recovery of all costs, damages, expenses, fees, 
penalties, fines, judgments, indemnification payments to third parties, and other out-of-pocket 
costs or expenses actually incurred by Beneficiary (collectively, “Environmental Costs”) 
incurred or advanced by Beneficiary relating to the cleanup, remedy, or other response action 
required by any Hazardous Substances Law or any Hazardous Substance Claim, or which 
Beneficiary believes necessary to protect the Property.  It will be conclusively presumed between 
Beneficiary and Trustor that all Environmental Costs incurred or advanced by Beneficiary 
relating to the cleanup, remedy, or other response action of or to the Property were made by 
Beneficiary in good faith.  All Environmental Costs incurred by Beneficiary under this Section 
(including without limitation court costs, consultant fees, and attorney fees, whether incurred in 
litigation and whether before or after judgment) will bear interest at the Agreed Rate from the 
date of expenditure until those sums have been paid in full.  Beneficiary will be entitled to bid, at 
any trustee’s or foreclosure sale of the Property, the amount of the costs, expenses, and interest 
in addition to the amount of other indebtedness. 

(d) Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, and employees may waive its 
lien against the Property or any portion of it, including but not limited to the Improvements, to 
the extent that the Property or any portion of the Security is found to be environmentally 
impaired in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, and to exercise all rights and 
remedies of an unsecured creditor against Trustor and all of Trustor’s assets and property for the 
recovery of any deficiency and Environmental Costs, including, but not limited to, seeking an 
attachment order under Code of Civil Procedure  § 483.010.  As between Beneficiary and 
Trustor, for purposes of Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, Trustor will have the burden of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 23  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

proving that Trustor or any related party (or any affiliate or agent of Trustor or any related party) 
was not in any way negligent in permitting the Release or threatened Release of the Hazardous 
Substances. 

ARTICLE VI 

ASSIGNMENTS OF RENTS, ISSUES AND PROFITS 

Section 6.1.  Assignment. 

Trustor hereby absolutely, irrevocably and unconditionally assigns to Beneficiary, as 
security for the Obligations, all rents, profits, deposits, royalties, income and other issues and 
similar benefits derived from the Security (collectively, the “Rents”), and hereby confers upon 
Beneficiary the right, power and authority to collect such Rents.  Trustor irrevocably appoints 
Beneficiary its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, at the option of Beneficiary, at any time and from 
time to time, to demand, receive and enforce payment, to give receipts, releases and satisfactions, 
and to sue, in its name or in the name of Trustor, for all Rents, and apply the same to the 
Obligations secured hereby; provided, however, that Trustor shall have the right, as between 
Trustor and Beneficiary, to collect the Rents but not more than one (1) month in advance of the 
date due unless the written approval of Beneficiary has first been obtained, with the exception of 
security deposits and “first and last months’ rent” collected from tenants in connection with 
Trustor’s ordinary leasing of residential apartments within the Property), and to retain and enjoy 
the same, so long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred hereunder and be continuing. 

Section 6.2.  Collection Upon Default. 

While any Event of Default remains uncured, Beneficiary may, at any time without 
notice, either in person, by agent or by a receiver appointed by a court, and without regard to the 
adequacy of any security for the Obligations hereby secured, enter upon and take possession of 
the Security, or any part thereof, and, with or without taking possession of the Security or any 
part thereof, in its own name sue for or otherwise collect such Rents (including those past due 
and unpaid, and all prepaid Rents and all other monies which may have been or may hereafter be 
deposited with Trustor by any tenant to secure the payment of any Rent or for any services 
thereafter to be rendered by Trustor for any other obligation of any tenant to Trustor arising 
under any lease, and Trustor agrees that, upon the occurrence of any Event or Default hereunder, 
Trustor shall promptly deliver all Rents and other moneys to Beneficiary), and Beneficiary may 
apply the same, less costs and expenses of operation and collection, including, without 
limitation, attorneys fees, whether or not suit is brought or prosecuted to judgment, against any 
indebtedness or Obligation of Trustor secured hereby, and in such order as Beneficiary may 
determine notwithstanding that said indebtedness or the performance of said Obligation may not 
then be due.  The collection of Rents, or the entering upon and taking possession of the Security, 
or the application thereof as aforesaid, shall not cure or waive any default or notice of default 
hereunder or invalidate any act done in response to such default or pursuant to such notice of 
default or be deemed or construed to make Beneficiary a mortgagee-in-possession of the 
Security or any portion thereof. 

Section 6.3.  Further Assignments. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 24  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

Upon demand of Beneficiary, Trustor shall, from time to time hereafter, execute, and 
deliver to Beneficiary recordable assignments of Trustor’s interest in any or all leases, subleases, 
contracts, rights, licenses and permits now or hereafter affecting the Security or any portion 
thereof.  Such assignments shall be made by instruments in form and substance satisfactory to 
Beneficiary; provided, however, that no such assignment shall be construed as imposing upon 
Beneficiary any obligation with respect thereto.  Beneficiary may, at its option, exercise its rights 
hereunder or under any such specific assignment and such exercise shall not constitute a waiver 
of any right hereunder or under any such specific assignment. 

ARTICLE VII 

DEFAULTS 

Section 7.1.  Events of Default. 

Each of the following shall constitute Events of Default: (1) the occurrence of an “Event 
of Default” as defined in the Loan Agreement or as defined in any Debt Instrument; or (2) the 
failure to make any payment or perform any of Trustor’s other Obligations now or hereafter 
secured by this Deed of Trust (subject to any applicable cure period). 

Section 7.2.  Acceleration of Maturity. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, then at the option of the 
Beneficiary, the amount of any payment related to the Event of Default, the unpaid Principal of 
the Note and any other indebtedness and other Obligations secured hereby shall immediately 
become due and payable without presentment, protest notice or demand, all of which are hereby 
expressly waived, upon written notice by the Beneficiary to the Trustor and no omission on the 
part of the Beneficiary to exercise such option when entitled to do so shall be construed as a 
waiver of such right. 

Section 7.3.  The Beneficiary’s Right to Enter and Take Possession. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Beneficiary may: 

(a) Either in person or by agent, with or without bringing any action or 
proceeding, or by a receiver appointed by a court, and without regard to the adequacy of its 
security, enter upon the Security and take possession thereof (or any part thereof) and of any of 
the Security, in its own name or in the name of Trustee, and do any acts which it deems 
necessary or desirable to preserve the value or marketability of the Security, or part thereof or 
interest therein, increase the income therefrom or protect the security thereof and, with or 
without taking possession of the Security, sue for or otherwise collect the Rents, including those 
past due and unpaid, and apply the same, less costs and expenses of operation and collection 
including without limitation attorneys fees, against any indebtedness secured hereby, all in such 
order as Beneficiary may determine.  The entering upon and taking possession of the Security the 
collection of such Rents and the application thereof as aforesaid shall not cure or waive any 
Event of Default or notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done in response to such 
Event of Default or pursuant to such notice of default, and, notwithstanding the continuance in 
possession of the Security, Beneficiary shall be entitled to exercise every right provided for in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 25  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

this Deed of Trust, or by law upon occurrence of any Event of Default, including the right to 
exercise the power of sale; 

(b) Commence an action to foreclose this Deed of Trust as a mortgage, 
appoint a receiver, or specifically enforce any of the covenants hereof; 

(c) Deliver to Trustee a written declaration of default and demand for sale, 
and a written notice of default and election to cause Trustor’s interest in the Security to be sold, 
which notice Trustee or Beneficiary shall cause to be duly filed for record in the Official Records 
of Orange County; or 

(d) Exercise all other rights and remedies provided herein, in the instruments 
by which the Trustor acquires title to any Security, or in any other document or agreement now 
or hereafter evidencing, creating or securing all or any portion of the Obligations secured hereby, 
or provided by law. 

Section 7.4.  Foreclosure by Power of Sale. 

Should the Beneficiary elect to foreclose by exercise of the power of sale herein 
contained, the Beneficiary shall notify Trustee and shall deposit with Trustee this Deed of Trust, 
the Loan Agreement and the Note which is secured hereby (and the deposit of which shall be 
deemed to constitute evidence that the unpaid Principal amount of the Note is immediately due 
and payable), and such receipts and evidence of any expenditures made that are additionally 
secured hereby as Trustee may require. 

(a) Upon receipt of such notice from the Beneficiary (“Notice of Default”), 
Trustee shall cause to be recorded, published and delivered to Trustor such Notice of Default and 
election to sell as then required by law and by this Deed of Trust.  Trustee shall, without demand 
on Trustor, after lapse of such time as may then be required by law and after recordation of such 
Notice of Default and after notice of sale having been given as required by law (“Notice of 
Sale”), sell the Security, at the time and place of sale fixed by it in said Notice of Sale, whether 
as a whole or in separate lots or parcels or items as Trustee shall deem expedient and in such 
order as it may determine unless specified otherwise to the Trustor according to California Civil 
Code Section 2924g(b), at public auction to the highest bidder, for cash in lawful money of the 
United States payable at the time of sale.  Trustee shall deliver to such purchaser or purchasers 
thereof its good and sufficient deed or deeds conveying the property so sold, but without any 
covenant or warranty, express or implied.  The recitals in such deed or any matters of facts shall 
be conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof.  Any person, including, without limitation, 
Trustor, Trustee or Beneficiary, may purchase at such sale. 

(b) After deducting all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of Trustee, 
including costs of evidence of title in connection with such sale, Trustee shall apply the proceeds 
of sale to payment of: (1) the unpaid Principal amount of the Note; (2) all other sums then 
secured hereby; and (3) the remainder, if any, to Trustor. 

(c) Trustee may postpone sale of all or any portion of the Security by public 
announcement at such time and place of sale, and from time to time thereafter, and without 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 26  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

further notice make such sale at the time fixed by the last postponement, or may, in its discretion, 
give a new notice of sale.  

Section 7.5.  Receiver 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, Beneficiary, as a matter of 
right and without further notice to Trustor or anyone claiming under the Security, and without 
regard to the then value of the Security or the interest of Trustor therein, shall have the right to 
apply to any court having jurisdiction to appoint a receiver or receivers of the Security (or a part 
thereof), and Trustor hereby irrevocably consents to such appointment and waives further notice 
of any application therefor.  Any such receiver or receivers shall have all the usual powers and 
duties of receivers in like or similar cases, and all the powers and duties of Beneficiary in case of 
entry as provided herein, and shall continue as such and exercise all such powers until the date of 
confirmation of sale of the Security, unless such receivership is sooner terminated. 

Section 7.6.  Application of Funds After Default. 

Except as otherwise herein provided, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default 
hereunder, Beneficiary may, at any time without notice, apply any or all sums or amounts 
received and held by Beneficiary to pay insurance premiums, Impositions, or either of them, or 
as Rents or income of the Security, or as insurance or condemnation proceeds, and all other sums 
or amounts received by Beneficiary from or on account of Trustor or the Security, or otherwise, 
against any indebtedness or Obligation of the Trustor secured hereby, in such manner and order 
as Beneficiary may elect.  The receipt, use or application of any such sum or amount shall not be 
construed to affect the maturity of any indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust, or any of the 
rights or powers of Beneficiary under the terms of the Loan Agreement, this Deed of Trust or the 
Note, or any of the Obligations of Trustor or any guarantor under any other instruments or 
documents now or hereafter delivered in connection with the Loan Agreement or to cure or 
waive any default or notice of default under the Loan Agreement or any such instruments or 
documents; or to invalidate any act of Trustee or Beneficiary. 

Section 7.7.  Costs of Enforcement. 

If any Event of Default occurs, Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, may employ 
an attorney or attorneys to protect their rights hereunder.  Trustor promises to pay to Beneficiary, 
on demand, the fees and expenses of such attorneys and all other costs of enforcing the 
Obligations secured hereby, including, without limitation, recording fees, the expense of a 
trustee, sale guarantee, Trustee’s fees and expenses, receivers fees and expenses, and all other 
expenses, of whatever kind or nature, incurred by Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, in 
connection with the enforcement of the Obligations secured hereby, whether or not such 
enforcement includes the filing of a lawsuit.  Until paid, such sums shall be secured hereby and 
shall bear interest at the Agreed Rate. 

Section 7.8.  Remedies Cumulative. 

No right, power or remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Beneficiary by this Deed of 
Trust is intended to be exclusive of any other right, power or remedy, but each and every such 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 27  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

right, power and remedy shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to any other 
right, power and remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

Section 7.9.  No Waiver. 

(a) No delay or omission of the Beneficiary to exercise any right, power or 
remedy accruing upon any Event of Default shall exhaust or impair any such right, power or 
remedy, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or acquiescence 
therein; and every right, power and remedy given by this Deed of Trust to the Beneficiary may 
be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expeditious by the Beneficiary.  
No consent or waiver, expressed or implied, by the Beneficiary to or any breach by the Trustor in 
the performance of the Obligations hereunder shall be deemed or construed to be a consent to or 
waiver of Obligations of the Trustor hereunder.  Failure on the part of the Beneficiary to 
complain of any act or failure to act or to declare an Event of Default, irrespective of how long 
such failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by the Beneficiary of its right hereunder or 
impair any rights, power or remedies consequent on any Event of Default by the Trustor. 

(b) If the Beneficiary (1) grants forbearance or an extension of time for the 
payment of any sums secured hereby, (2) takes other or additional security or the payment of any 
sums secured hereby,  3) waives or does not exercise any right granted in the Loan Agreement, 
(4) releases any part of the Security from the lien of this Deed of Trust, or otherwise changes any 
of the terms, covenants, conditions or agreements in the Loan Agreement, (5) consents to the 
granting of any easement or other right affecting the Security, or (6) makes or consents to any 
agreement subordinating the lien hereof, any such act or omission shall not release, discharge, 
modify, change or affect the original liability under this Deed of Trust, or any other obligation of 
the Trustor or any subsequent purchaser of the Security or any part thereof, or any maker, co-
signer, endorser, surety or guarantor (unless expressly released); nor shall any such act or 
omission preclude the Beneficiary from exercising any right, power or privilege herein granted 
or intended to be granted in any Event of Default then made or of any subsequent Event of 
Default, nor, except as otherwise expressly provided in an instrument or instruments executed by 
the Beneficiary shall the lien of this Deed of Trust be altered thereby. 

Section 7.10.  Suits to Protect the Security. 

The Beneficiary shall have power to: (1) institute and maintain such suits and 
proceedings as it may deem expedient to prevent any impairment of the Security and the rights of 
the Beneficiary as may be unlawful or any violation of this Deed of Trust, (2) preserve or protect 
its interest (as described in this Deed of Trust) in the Security, and (3) restrain the enforcement of 
or compliance with any legislation or other governmental enactment, rule or order that may be 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, if the enforcement for compliance with such enactment, 
rule or order would impair the Security thereunder or be prejudicial to the interest of the 
Beneficiary. 

Section 7.11.  Trustee May File Proofs of Claim. 

In the case of any receivership, insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
adjustment, composition or other proceedings affecting the Trustor, its creditors or its property, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 28  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

the Beneficiary, to the extent permitted by law, shall be entitled to file such proofs of claim and 
other documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Beneficiary 
allowed in such proceedings and for any additional amount which may become due and payable 
by the Trustor hereunder after such date. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 8.1.  Amendments. 

This instrument cannot be waived, changed, discharged or terminated orally, but only by 
an instrument in writing signed by Beneficiary and Trustor. 

Section 8.2.  Reconveyance by Trustee. 

Upon written request of Beneficiary stating that all sums secured hereby have been paid, 
and upon surrender of this Deed of Trust to Trustee for cancellation and retention, and upon 
payment by Trustor of Trustee’s reasonable fees, Trustee shall reconvey, without warranty, the 
Security to Trustor, or to the person or persons legally entitled thereto. 

Section 8.3.  Notices. 

(a) If at any time after the execution of this Deed of Trust it shall become 
necessary or convenient for one of the parties hereto to serve any notice, demand or 
communication upon the other party, such notice, demand or communication shall be in writing 
and shall be served personally or by depositing the same in the registered United States mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid and:  

 

(1) if intended for Beneficiary shall be addressed to: 

Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

 

and   (2) if intended for Trustors shall be addressed to: 

 

[TRUSTOR TO PROVIDE] 

 

Any notice, demand or communication shall be deemed given, received, made or 
communicated on the date personal delivery is effected or, if mailed in the manner herein 
specified, on the delivery date or date delivery is refused by the addressee, as shown on the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 29  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

return receipt.  Either party may change its address at any time by giving written notice of such 
change to Beneficiary or Trustor as the case may be, in the manner provided herein, at least ten 
(10) days prior to the date such change is desired to be effective. 

(b) County shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to Borrower 
to the following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the validity 
of any otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 

[courtesy notices] 

 Section 8.4.  Successors and Joint Trustors. 

 All Obligations of Trustor secured by this Deed of Trust, shall also apply to and bind any 
permitted transferee or successors in interest.  Where the terms of the Deed of Trust have the 
effect of creating an Obligation of the Trustor and a transferee, such Obligation shall be deemed 
to be a joint and several Obligation of the Trustor and such transferee.  Where Trustor is more 
than one entity or person, all Obligations of Trustor shall be deemed to be a joint and several 
Obligation of each and every entity and person comprising Trustor. 

 Section 8.5.  Captions. 

 The captions or headings at the beginning of each Section hereof are for the convenience 
of the parties and are not a part of this Deed of Trust. 

 Section 8.6.  Invalidity of Certain Provisions. 

 Every provision of this Deed of Trust is intended to be severable.  In the event any term 
or provision hereof is declared to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever by a court or 
other body of competent jurisdiction, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the balance of 
the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and provisions shall remain binding and 
enforceable.  If the lien of this Deed of Trust is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the 
debt, or if the lien is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the Security, the unsecured or 
partially secured portion of the debt, and all payments made on the debt, whether voluntary or 
under foreclosure or other enforcement action or procedure, shall be considered to have been 
first paid or applied to the full payment of that portion of the debt which is not secured or 
partially secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust. 

 Section 8.7.  Governing Law and Venue. 

 This Deed of Trust shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Deed of Trust, the 
sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, 
California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, 
notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

 Section 8.8.  Gender and Number. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 30  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

 In this Deed of Trust the singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall include 
the feminine and neuter and vice versa, if the context so requires. 

 Section 8.9.  Deed of Trust, Mortgage. 

 Any reference in this Deed of Trust to a mortgage shall also refer to a deed of trust and 
any reference to a deed of trust shall also refer to a mortgage. 

 Section 8.10. Actions. 

 Trustor agrees to appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the 
Security. 

 Section 8.11.  Substitution of Trustee. 

 Beneficiary may from time to time substitute a successor or successors to any Trustee 
named herein or acting hereunder to execute this Trust.  Upon such appointment, and without 
conveyance to the successor trustee, the latter shall be vested with all title, powers, and duties 
conferred upon any Trustee herein named or acting hereunder.  Each such appointment and 
substitution shall be made by written instrument executed by Beneficiary, containing reference to 
this Deed of Trust and its place of record, which, when duly recorded in the proper office of the 
county or counties in which the Security is situated, shall be conclusive proof of proper 
appointment of the successor trustee. 

 Section 8.12.  Acceptance by Trustee. 

 Trustee accepts this Trust when this Deed of Trust, duly executed and acknowledged, is 
made public record as provided by law.  Except as otherwise provided by law the Trustee is not 
obligated to notify any party hereto of pending sale under this Deed of Trust or of any action of 
proceedings in which Trustor, Beneficiary, or Trustee shall be a party unless brought by Trustee. 

 Section 8.13.  Conflicts. 

 If any term or provision of this Deed of Trust conflicts with any term of provision of the 
Loan Agreement, the term or provision of the Loan Agreement shall control to the extent of such 
conflict. 

 Section 8.14.  Statements by Trustor. 

 Trustor shall, at its cost, within ten (10) days after notice thereof from Beneficiary, 
deliver to Beneficiary a written statement setting forth to the best of its knowledge and 
information, the amounts then unpaid and secured by this Deed of Trust and stating whether 
Trustor is aware of any offset or defense against such amounts. 

 Section 8.15.  Beneficiary Statements. 

 For any statement or accounting requested by Trustor or any other entitled person 
pursuant to Section 2943 or Section 2954 of the California Civil Code or pursuant to any other 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 31  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

provision of applicable law, or for any other document or instrument furnished to Trustor by 
Beneficiary, Beneficiary may charge the maximum amount permitted by law at the time of the 
request therefor, or if there be no such maximum, then in accordance with Beneficiary’s 
customary charges therefor or the actual cost to Beneficiary therefor, whichever is greater. 

 Section 8.16.  Statute of Limitations. 

 Except insofar as now or hereafter prohibited by law, the right to plead, use or assert any 
statute of limitations as a plea or defense or bar of any kind, or for any purpose, to any debt, 
demand or obligation secured or to be secured hereby, or to any complaint or other pleading or 
proceeding filed, instituted or maintained for the purpose of enforcing this Deed of Trust or any 
rights hereunder, is hereby waived by Trustor.  

Section 8.17.  Trust Irrevocable; No Offset. 

 The Trust created hereby is irrevocable by Trustor.  No offset or claim that Trustor now 
has or may in the future have against Beneficiary shall relieve Trustor from paying the 
indebtedness or performing any other Obligation contained herein or secured hereby. 

 Section 8.18.  Corrections. 

 Trustor shall, upon request of Beneficiary, promptly correct any defect, error or omission 
which may be discovered in the contents hereof or in the execution or acknowledgment hereof, 
and will execute, acknowledge and deliver such further instruments and do such further acts as 
may be necessary or as may be reasonably requested by Beneficiary to carry out more effectively 
the purposes thereof, to subject to, the lien and security interest hereby created any of Trustor’s 
properties, rights or interests covered or intended to be covered hereby, or to perfect and 
maintain such lien and security interest. 

 Section 8.19.  Further Assurance. 

 Trustor, Beneficiary and Trustee agree to do or cause to be done such further acts and 
things and to execute and deliver or to cause to be executed and delivered such additional 
assignments, agreements, powers and instruments, as any of them may reasonably require or 
deem advisable to keep valid and effective the charges and liens hereof, to carry into effect the 
purposes of this Deed of Trust or to better assure and confirm unto any of them their rights, 
powers and remedies hereunder; and, upon request by Beneficiary, shall supply evidence of 
fulfillment of each of the covenants herein contained concerning which a request for such 
evidence has been made. 

 Section 8.20.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  

  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, each party acknowledges that it is 
aware of and has had the advice of counsel of its choice with respect to its rights to trial by jury, 
and each party, for itself and its successors and assigns, does hereby expressly and knowingly 
waive and release all such rights to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim 
brought by any party hereto against the other (and/or against its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, or subsidiary or affiliated entities) on or with regard to any matters whatsoever arising 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 32  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

out of or in any way connected with this Deed of Trust and/or any claim of injury or damage to 
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

Section 8.21.  Department of Housing and Community Development Underwriting 
Standards 

 The Beneficiary attests that the underwriting standards being utilized for this transaction 
are those that have been submitted and approved by the Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

ARTICLE IX 
WAIVERS 

 
 Section 9.1.  Waivers and Related Matters 

(a) To the fullest extent allowed by law, Trustor hereby waives: (i) 
presentment, demand, protest, notice of dishonor, notice of protest and all other notices and 
demands of every kind, and all suretyship defenses of every kind that would otherwise be 
available in connection with this Deed of Trust, and  (ii) all rights of redemption, valuation, 
appraisement, stay of executive, notice of election to mature or declare due the whole of the 
Obligation and marshaling in the event of foreclosure of the liens hereby created. 

(b) Trustor hereby authorizes Beneficiary, at any time and from time to time 
without notice and without affecting this Deed of Trust in any way, to: (i) accept new or 
additional instruments, documents, agreements, security or guaranties in connection with all or 
any part of the Obligations; (ii) accept partial payments on the Obligations; and (iii) waive, 
release, reconvey, terminate, abandon, subordinate, exchange, substitute, transfer, compound, 
compromise, liquidate and enforce all or any part of the Obligations and any security or 
guaranties therefor, and apply any such security and direct the order or manner of sale thereof 
and bid and purchase at any such sale. 

(c) Trustor hereby waives any right to require Beneficiary to  (i) proceed 
against any person;  (ii) proceed or exhaust any collateral held from any person; or  (iii) pursue 
any other remedy in Beneficiary’s power.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, 
Beneficiary is hereby expressly given the right, at its option, to proceed in the enforcement of 
this Deed of Trust, independently of any other remedy or security Beneficiary may at any time 
hold in connection with the Obligations, and Beneficiary shall not in any way be obligated or 
otherwise required to proceed upon or against and/or exhaust any other security or remedy before 
proceeding to enforce this Deed of Trust. 

(d) Trustor hereby waives any defense arising by reason of: (i) any disability 
or other defense of Trustor or any other person;  (ii) the cessation from any cause whatsoever, 
other than full payment and performance of the Obligations, of the Obligations of Trustor or any 
other person; or  (iii) any act or omission by Beneficiary which directly or indirectly results in or 
aids in the discharge or release of Trustor, or any other person, any Obligation, or any collateral 
by operation of law or otherwise. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] 33  
OCHFT Deed of Trust   

 The waivers set forth in this Article 9 shall also apply, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law to all other real and/or personal property of Trustor now or hereafter assigned to Beneficiary 
as security for the Obligations.  Trustor warrants and agrees that each, of the waivers set forth 
above are made with Trustor’s full knowledge of their significance and consequences, with the 
understanding that events giving rise to any defense waived may diminish, destroy or otherwise 
adversely affect rights which Trustor otherwise may have against Beneficiary or others, or 
against collateral, and that under the circumstances, the waivers are reasonable and not contrary 
to public policy or law.  If any of the waivers are determined to be contrary to any applicable law 
or public policy, such waivers shall be effective to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trustor has executed this Deed of Trust as of the day and year first 
above written. 

Signature to Follow 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 

TRUSTOR:  

    By: [NEED SIGNATURE BLOCK]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 

     

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
  
  
By____________________________ 
           Trust Counsel 
  
Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[            ] Exhibit A  
OCHFTDeed of Trust   
 
 

 

Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 1 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

ASSIGNMENT OF LESSOR'S INTEREST IN LEASES, RENTS AND PROFITS 
 

 
 
 THIS ASSIGNMENT (“Assignment”) is dated for reference purposes only as of 
[MONTH] _____, 2020 and is made by the ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") and [XXX] [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG 
IDENTITY], (the "Borrower"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Borrower proposes to borrow from the Trust the principal sum of the Loan as 
such term is defined in that separate Loan Agreement between Borrower and the Trust of even 
date herewith. The Loan is evidenced by a Promissory Note  ("Note") executed by Borrower 
payable to the Trust in the principal amount of the Loan and is secured by, among other things, a 
Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement ("Deed of Trust"), encumbering 
certain real property and improvements currently on such property or which are to be constructed 
thereon, described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
("Property"), by the security interests granted under this Assignment and by other security 
instruments specified in the Note, Deed of Trust or other Loan Documents entered into relating 
to the Loan.  Unless otherwise noted, all defined terms used in this Assignment shall have the 
same meaning ascribed to them under said Loan Agreement.   
 

B. Borrower has entered into and will hereafter be entering, into Leases, as defined 
hereafter, regarding the Property.  
 

C. The Trust Note and Deed of Trust, as well as all rights interests and remedies with 
respect to Leases, Rents and other collateral described in this Assignment shall at all times be 
subject and subordinate to the senior collateral rights and interest in such items as provided for in 
the Permanent Deed of Trust (as defined in the Loan Agreement). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Trust's agreement to make the Loan, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Borrower covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

1. Assignment.  Borrower absolutely and unconditionally grants and assigns to the 
Trust as of the date hereof: 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 2 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

(a) all of Borrower's right, title and interest in, to and under all leases, licenses 
and other rental agreements of any kind relating to the use or occupancy of the Property and any 
portion thereof, which are currently if effect for the Property or are entered into on or after the 
date of this Assignment (collectively referred to as "Leases" and each individually as a "Lease").  
The Leases shall include (i) all guarantees of and security for lessees' performance under any and 
all Leases and (ii) all amendments, extensions, renewals or modifications thereto which are 
permitted hereunder; and 
 

(b) all rents (and payments in lieu of rents), and tenant expense 
reimbursements at any time payable under any and all Leases, any and all security deposits 
received or to be received by Borrower pursuant to any and all Leases, and all rights and benefits 
accrued or to accrue to Borrower under any and all Leases (collectively, "Rent"). 
 

2. Obligations Secured.  This Assignment secures the payment and performance of 
all present and future obligations of Borrower to the Trust under the Note, the Deed of Trust, any 
Loan Documents that are executed by Borrower and under any other agreement, which recites 
that, it is secured hereby. 
 

3. License.  This Assignment shall constitute a present and absolute assignment to 
the Trust.  However, Borrower shall have the right under a license (the “License”) granted 
hereby to collect and use at the time of, but not prior to, the date provided for payment, all of the 
Rent and to retain and use the same in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Note, 
Deed of Trust, and other Loan Documents; provided, that such license shall be revoked 
automatically upon the occurrence of a Default as defined below.  The Trust shall not revoke the 
License prior to an Event of Default. 
 

4. Covenants.  Borrower covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

(a) at Borrower's sole cost to: (i) perform the duties and obligations of lessor 
under the Leases and to enforce performance by the lessees of the obligations contained in the 
Leases; (ii) enforce all remedies available to Borrower in case of default by the lessees under any 
of the Leases and prosecute and defend any action, arbitration or other controversy relating to 
any of the Leases or to Borrower's interest in any of the Leases in the ordinary course of 
Borrower's business; (iii) give the Trust prompt notice of any material default by Borrower 
which occurs with respect to any of the Leases, and complete copies of any notice of default; (iv) 
exercise Borrower's best efforts to keep all portions of the Property designated as lease property 
leased at all times; (v) upon the Trust's request, deliver to the Trust a fully executed photocopy 
and a counterpart original of each and every Lease; (vi) execute and record such additional 
assignments of any Lease, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Trust, as the Trust 
may request; and (vii) execute and deliver such additional documents and instruments as the 
Trust may reasonably request from time to time to carry out the purpose of this Assignment; and 
 

(b) except with the Trust's prior written consent, which consent will not be 
arbitrarily withheld, not to either orally or in writing: (i) enter into any Leases after the date of 
this Assignment which are not in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Loan 
Agreement, Regulatory Agreement and other Loan Documents; (ii) execute any other assignment 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 3 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

relating to any of the Leases or collect the rent in advance, other than to collect one (1) month in 
advance of the time when it becomes due; (iii) terminate, modify or amend any of the terms of 
the Leases or in any manner release or discharge any lessee from any obligations thereunder; (iv) 
consent to any assignment or subletting by any lessee of the Leases; or (v) do or permit anything 
to be done to impair the validity or enforceability of any of the Leases.  Any such attempted 
action in violation of the provisions of this Paragraph 4(b) shall be null and void. 
 

(c)  to duly observe, perform, and discharge the obligations, terms, covenants, 
conditions and warranties of the Loan Agreement, Note and Deed of Trust or other Loan 
Documents entered into relating to the Loan. 
 

5. Representations and Warranties.  Borrower hereby represents and warrants 
 

(a) Borrower is and will be the sole owner of lessor's interest in each Lease; 
 

(b) each Lease, when executed and delivered, will be valid and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, will constitute the entire agreement between the lessee named therein 
and Borrower, and there will be no amendments, written or oral, to such agreements except in 
the ordinary course of business, without the Trust's prior written consent; and 
 

(c) none of the lessor's interests in, and no Rent under, any of the Leases has 
been transferred or assigned except as expressly provided for in the Loan Agreement; and 
 

(d) Borrower is the owner of the Property, and has good title to the Leases, 
any contracts of sale that exist or may be made relating to the sale of a portion of the Property, 
and any Rent, money, rights or claims under the Leases or contracts of sale, and no other person 
firm, or corporation has any right, title, or interest in them. 
 

6. Default.  "Default" shall mean (i) the failure to perform any obligation hereunder 
or the failure to be true of any representation or warranty of Borrower herein, or (ii) the existence 
of any "Event of Default" as defined in and under the Note, Deed of Trust, or any of the other 
Loan Documents.  Any breach or Default by Borrower under this Assignment shall constitute an 
Event of Default under the Note, Deed of Trust, and related Loan Documents. 
 

7. Remedies.  In addition to the remedies contained in the Note, Deed of Trust, and 
other Loan Documents, the Trust shall have the following rights and remedies upon Default: 
 

(a) to demand, receive and enforce all Rent and other amounts arising or 
accruing under the Leases, and any and all amendments to each Lease, or from the Property; 
 

(b) to collect, sue for, settle, compromise and give acquittances or releases for 
all of the rent and pursue all remedies for the enforcement of the Leases and Borrower's rights in 
and under the Leases as Borrower might have pursued, but for this Assignment; 
 

(c) to take possession of the Property, and have, hold, manage, lease and 
operate the same on such terms and for such period of time as the Trust may deem proper and, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 4 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

either with or without taking possession of the Property, in its own name, make from time to 
time all alterations, renovations, repairs or replacements thereto as the Trust deems proper. 
 
The Trust may exercise the foregoing rights and remedies (i) at Borrower's cost and expense, and 
in the name of Borrower or the Trust as the latter may determine in its sole discretion; (ii) prior 
to, simultaneously with or subsequent to the exercise of any rights or remedies under the Note, 
Deed of Trust, or any of the other Loan Documents; (iii) either in person or by its agent; (iv) with 
or without bringing any action or proceeding or having a receiver appointed; (v) without regard 
to the adequacy of any security held by the Trust for the obligations secured hereby; (vi) without 
notice or remand on Borrower except as otherwise provided herein; and (vii) without releasing 
Borrower from any obligations under this Assignment, the Note, Deed of Trust, or any of the 
other Loan Documents. 
 

8. Tenants Entitled to Rely on the Trust's Requests.  Borrower hereby 
irrevocably authorizes and directs each tenant and any successor to the interest of each tenant 
under the Leases, upon receipt of any written request of the Trust stating that a Default or Event 
of Default exists in the payments due under, or in the performance of any of the terms, covenants 
or conditions of, this Assignment, the Note, the Deed of Trust, or any other Loan Document to 
pay to the Trust the rents, royalties, issues and profits due and to become due under the Leases.  
Borrower agrees that such tenant shall have the right to rely upon any such statement and request 
by the Trust that such tenant shall pay such rents, royalties, issues and profits to the Trust 
without any obligation or right to inquire as to whether such Default or Event of Default actually 
exists notwithstanding any notice from or claim of Borrower to the contrary and that Borrower 
shall have no right or claim against such tenant for any such rents, royalties, issues and profits so 
paid by such tenant to the Trust.  Upon the curing of all Defaults and Events of Default, the Trust 
shall give written notice thereof to such tenant and thereafter, until the possible receipt of any 
further similar written request of the Trust, such tenant shall pay the rents, royalties, issues and 
profits to Borrower. 
 

9. Proceeds.  The Trust shall apply any and all Rent collected by it, and any and all 
sums, which the Trust may receive or collect pursuant to this Assignment, in the following 
manner: 
 

(a) First, to pay the portion of the obligations secured by this Assignment 
attributable to the costs and expenses of operation and collection; 
 

(b) Second, to pay all other obligations secured by this Assignment in any 
order and proportions as the Trust in its sole discretion may choose; and 
 

(c) Third, to remit the remainder, if any, to the person or persons entitled to it.  
the Trust shall have no liability for any funds, which it does not actually receive. 
 

10. Indemnification and Reimbursement.  Borrower hereby indemnifies, defends 
and agrees to hold the Trust harmless from and against any and all costs, expenses and attorneys' 
fees, including allocated costs for services of the Trust's in-house professionals, arising out of: 
(a) any liability the Trust may incur under any Lease or by reason of this Assignment; (b) the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 5 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

Trust's defense of any claims or demands arising under any Lease or by reason of this 
Assignment; or (c) actions taken by the Trust which it deems necessary to conserve the value of 
the Property. 
 

11. Effect of Assignment.  This Assignment shall not cause the Trust to be: (a) a 
mortgagee in possession; (b) responsible or liable for the control, care, management or repair of 
the Property or for performing any of the terms, agreements, undertakings, obligations, 
representations, warranties, covenants and conditions of the Leases; or (c) responsible or liable 
for any waste committed on the Property by the lessees or any other parties, any dangerous or 
defective condition of the Property, any environmental condition or occurrence on or affecting 
the Property, or any negligence in the management, upkeep, repair or control of the Property 
resulting in loss or injury or death to any lessee, licensee, employee, invitee or other person.  the 
Trust shall not directly or indirectly be liable to Borrower or any other person as a consequence 
of: (i) the exercise of the rights, remedies or powers granted to the Trust in this Assignment; (ii) 
the failure or refusal of the Trust to perform or discharge any obligation, duty or liability of 
Borrower arising under the Leases or this Assignment; or (iii) any loss sustained by Borrower or 
any third party resulting from the Trust's failure to lease the Property after the occurrence of a 
Default or Event of Default or from any other act or omission of the Trust in managing the 
Property after the occurrence of a Default or Event of Default unless such loss is caused by the 
gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith of the Trust, and no such liability shall be 
asserted against or imposed upon the Trust, all such liability being expressly waived and released 
by Borrower. 
 

12. Foreclosure.  Upon issuance of any deed pursuant to any judicial or nonjudicial 
foreclosure of the Deed of Trust or any deed in lieu of foreclosure, all right, title and interest of 
Borrower in and to the Leases and the rents shall, by virtue of this Assignment, vest in and 
become the absolute Property of the grantee or grantees of any such deed without any further act 
or assignment by Borrower.  Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints the Trust, and its successors 
and assigns, as its attorney-in-fact, to: (i) execute all instruments of assignment or further assur-
ance in favor of any such grantee of any deed, as may be necessary or desirable for such purpose; 
and (ii) after a Default under this Assignment, take any other action permitted under Paragraph 7 
hereof; provided, however, that the Trust as such attorney-in-fact shall only be accountable for 
such funds as are actually received by the Trust.  Nothing contained in this Assignment shall 
prevent the Trust at the Trust's sole discretion from terminating any subordinate Lease through 
such foreclosure. 
 

13. Release.  The Trust may take or release security for the performance of the 
obligations referred to in Paragraph 2 and the Trust may release any party primarily or 
secondarily liable for the performance of any such obligations, all without prejudice to any of the 
Trust's rights under this Assignment. 
 

14. Definitions.  The terms "lessor" and "lessors" as used in this Assignment shall 
include all owners, landlords, licensors and other parties in a similar position with respect to the 
Leases.  The terms "lessee" and "lessees" shall include any tenants, licensees, occupants and any 
other parties in a similar position and shall also include any guarantors of or other obligors under 
the Leases.  Any reference in this Assignment to "Lease" or "Leases" shall be construed as 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] 6 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

including any extension, renewals, amendments or modifications thereto.  The term "including" 
shall mean "including but not limited to." 
 

15. Integration.  This Assignment and the other Loan Documents contain the entire 
agreement of the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations.  In the event of any 
conflict between the terms of this Assignment and the terms of the Deed of Trust, the Deed of 
Trust shall control. 
 

16. Waiver.  No delay or omission to exercise any power or remedy accruing to the 
Trust upon any breach or Default of Borrower under this Assignment shall impair any such right, 
power or remedy of the Trust, nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any 
such breach or Default or an acquiescence therein or in any similar breach or Default thereafter 
occurring; nor shall any waiver of any single breach or Default be deemed a waiver of any other 
previous or subsequent breach or Default.  Any waiver, permit, consent or approval of any kind 
or character on the part of the Trust of any provision or condition of this Assignment must be in 
writing and shall be effective only to the extent specifically set forth in the writing.  All 
remedies, either under this Assignment, by law or otherwise, afforded to the Trust, shall be 
cumulative and not alternative. 
 

17. Term.  This Assignment shall become effective as of the date of its recordation in 
the Official Records of Orange County and shall remain in effect until it is terminated in writing 
by the Trust or the Loan is repaid in full, whichever occurs first. 
 

18. Successors and Assigns.  This Assignment is binding on Borrower, its heirs, 
successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Trust, its successors and assigns.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Assignment is subject to restrictions on assignment by 
Borrower as set forth in the Loan Documents. 
 

19. Prevailing Law.  This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to the choice of law rules of 
that state.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Assignment, the sole and 
exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, California, 
and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, 
notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 
 

20. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party acknowledges that it is aware of and has had 
the advice of counsel of its choice with respect to its rights to trial by jury, and each party, for 
itself and its successors and assigns, does hereby expressly and knowingly waive and release all 
such rights to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim brought by any party hereto 
against the other (and/or against its officers, directors, employees, agents, or subsidiary or 
affiliated entities) on or with regard to any matters whatsoever arising out of or in any way 
connected with this Assignment and/or any claim of injury or damage to the fullest extent 
permitted by applicable law. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Assignment as of the date first 
above written.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx]  
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

 
BORROWER:  
 

[BORROWER SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
     
 
    By:  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx]  
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

TRUST: 
 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California 
public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code 
section 6500 et. seq. 

 
           
           
   By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Housing Manager  
     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  
 
  
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
  
  
By____________________________ 
           Trust Counsel 
  

Dated_________________________  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[xxx] Exhibit A 
County Permanent Loan  
Assignment of Leases 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 1 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

PROMISSORY NOTE SECURED BY DEED OF TRUST, 
 
 
 
($[XXXXX])           _________________, 2020 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned [XXXXXXXXX][BORROWER TO 
CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY] (“Borrower”) promises to pay to the ORANGE 
COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to 
California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") or order at Santa Ana, 
California or such other place as the Trust may designate in writing, the principal sum of 
[AMOUNT SPELLED OUT] ($XXX) plus interest on the terms specified below. 
 

1. Agreement.  This Note is given in accordance with that certain Loan Agreement 
executed by and between the Trust and the Borrower of even date herewith (the “Loan 
Agreement”), and in connection with that certain Regulatory Agreement executed by and 
between the Trust and the Borrower dated as of the same date as this Note (the “Regulatory 
Agreement”).  The obligations of the Borrower under this Note shall be subject to the terms of 
the Loan Agreement, the Deed of Trust of even date herewith which secures performance under 
this Note, the Assignment of Leases, the Regulatory Agreement, and the other Loan Documents, 
all of which are hereby incorporated by reference.  Capitalized terms used but not defined herein 
shall have the meaning as set forth in the Loan Agreement. 
 

2. Interest and Repayment. 
 

(a) Borrower promises to pay simple interest recalculated annually based 
upon the outstanding principal amount at the rate of three percent (3%) per annum.  Such simple 
interest shall begin to accrue the date escrow closes on Loan Agreement. 
 

(b) Borrower promises to repay the indebtedness during the Permanent Term 
(defined in the Loan Agreement) of the Loan as follows: 

 
(1) Commencing on the date six (6) months after closing of the 

Borrower’s previous year’s books and every one year anniversary date thereafter during the 
Permanent Term, Borrower shall make annual payments to Trust of the then available Residual 
Receipts (hereinafter defined), but only to the extent said Residual Receipts are available; and 

 
(2) At the expiration of the Permanent Term, as set forth in the Loan 

Agreement, the then outstanding principal amount of this Note together with all accrued, but 
unpaid interest thereon shall become all due and payable. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Paragraph 2, 

during the Permanent Term for so long as Borrower (i) timely makes the payments required 
under this Note, (ii) is not in breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Note, and 
(iii) there is no uncured Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or any other Loan 
Document, Trust agrees that then available Residual Receipts otherwise payable in their entirety 
to the Trust shall be [XXXXXXX] percent ([XX]%). This Paragraph 2(c) shall have no further 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 2 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

force or effect immediately (x) upon an occurrence of any failure by Borrower to make timely 
payments hereunder, (y) a breach of any term, covenant or condition hereunder or (z) an Event of 
Default under any Loan Document which continues to remain uncured after the expiration of any 
cure period.  In the event the Loan is timely reinstated in full as permitted under California law 
prior to foreclosure with all outstanding monies, costs, and expenses owed to the Trust paid in 
full, then in such event the Residual Receipts sharing agreement stated hereinabove in this 
Paragraph 2 (c) shall also be reinstated. 

 
(d) In the event that the Trust is dissolved prior to the repayment of the Loan 

in full, repayment of the LHTF Program Funds, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be made 
to the California Department of Housing and Community Development in accordance with the 
Loan Agreement. 

 
(e) For purposes of this Note, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 

 
(1) “Residual Receipts” means the Annual Project Revenue less (A) 

Annual Operating Expenses (hereinafter defined), (B) obligated debt service on the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Loan (as defined in the Loan Agreement) and on any other loan(s) for 
the Project senior to the Trust’s Loan approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, 
(C) payment obligations (e.g. partnership management fees, and deferred developer fees) 
approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, (D) scheduled deposits to reserves 
approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, and (E) required deposits under the 
Loan Agreement for Operating Reserves and Replacement Reserves. 

 
(2) “Annual Project Revenue” means all annual revenue generated 

by the Project, including, but not limited to, rent payments, governmental assistance housing 
payments, laundry and other vending machine and pay telephone income. 

 
(3) “Annual Operating Expenses” means all regular and customary 

annual expenses incurred in relation to the operation of the Project as reflected on the annual 
budget for the Project that Borrower shall prepare and abide by each year during the Term (as 
defined in the Loan Agreement) of this Loan.  Said Annual Operating Expenses shall include 
reasonable property management and administrative fee, as approved by the Trust, utility 
charges, operating and maintenance expenses, Project property taxes, Project insurance 
premiums and the Trust annual loan monitoring fees, as set forth in the Loan Agreement.  
Director reserves the right to at any time to review and approve each or any annual budget during 
the Term hereof and any changes to any said annual budget requested by the Trust Manager shall 
be promptly implemented by Borrower.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Annual 
Operating Expenses include any costs, fees, fines, charges, penalties, awards, judgments or 
expenses (including, but not limited to legal and accounting fees and expenses) which are due to 
or arising out of the Borrower’s (A) breach or default of this Loan, any Loan Document or any 
Mortgage Loan Document (B) fraudulent acts or willful misconduct or (C) breach or default 
under any other contract, lease or agreement pertaining to the Project.  Annual Operating 
Expenses shall also not include other expenses not related to the Project’s operations such as 
depreciation, amortization, accrued principal and interest expense on deferred payment debt and 
capital improvement expenditures. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 3 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

 
3. Payments.   

 
(a) All amounts due and payable under the Note are payable at the address 

provided to the Borrower by the Trust, or at such other place or places as the Trust may 
designate to the Borrower in writing from time to time.  Any payment under this Note shall be 
paid in advance, on the first day of the month in currency of the United States of America, which 
at the time of payment is lawful for the payment of public and private debts and which on the 
respective dates on which such payments are due shall be in immediately available funds.  

 
(b) All payments and prepayments received by the Trust pursuant to the terms 

hereof shall be applied in the following manner: first, to the payment of all expenses, charges, 
costs and fees incurred by or payable to the Trust by Borrower pursuant to the terms of the Loan 
Documents; second to the payment of all interest accrued to the date of such payment; and third, 
to the payment of the outstanding principal until paid in full.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained herein, after the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of 
Default (as such term is defined in the Loan Agreement), all amounts received by the Trust from 
any party shall be applied in such order as the Trust, in its sole discretion, may elect. 
 

4. Prepayments.  Borrower may prepay all or part of the principal balance and 
accrued interest due under this Note without penalty. 

 
5. Term.  The term shall be 55 years or more to match the term of the Regulatory 

Agreement on rental properties 
 

6. Security. This Note is secured by, among other things, a Deed of Trust covering 
real and personal property including, but not limited to, the Property and the Project (as such 
terms are defined in the Loan Agreement). 
 

7. Waivers. 
 

(a) Borrower expressly agrees that this Note or any payment hereunder may 
be extended from time to time at the Trust’s sole discretion and that the Trust may accept 
security in consideration for any such extension or release any security for this Note at its sole 
discretion all without in any way affecting the liability of Borrower. 
 

(b) No extension of time for payment of this Note or any installment hereof 
made by agreement by the Trust with any person now or hereafter liable for payment of this Note 
shall operate to release, discharge, modify, change, or affect the original liability of Borrower 
under this Note, either in whole or in part. 
 

(c) The obligations of Borrower under this Note shall be absolute and 
Borrower waives any and all rights: 
 

(1) to offset, deduct, or withhold any payments or charges due under 
this Note for any reasons whatsoever; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 4 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

 
(2) of presentment for payment, demand, protest and notices of 

dishonor and protest; and 
 

(3) of diligence in taking any action to collect any sums owing under 
this Note or in proceeding against any of the rights and interests in and to properties securing 
payment of this Note. 
 

8. Attorney Fees and Costs.  Borrower agrees that if any amounts due under this 
Note are not paid when due, to pay in addition, all costs and expenses of collection and 
reasonable attorney fees paid or incurred in connection with the collection or enforcement of this 
Note, whether or not suit is filed. 
 

9. Joint and Several Obligations.  This Note is the joint and several obligation of all 
makers, sureties, guarantors, and endorsers, and shall be binding upon them and their successors 
and assigns. 

 
10. Acceleration.  If any of the payments required by the terms hereof shall not be 

paid when the same becomes due, or if the payment due on the maturity date of this Note is not 
paid when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, or if an Event of Default (as defined in the 
Loan Agreement) occurs under the Loan Agreement or other default under any other Loan 
Document occurs, then, or at any time thereafter, the whole of the unpaid principal and interest 
owing on this Note shall, at the option of the Trust and without notice, become immediately due 
and payable.  This option may be exercised at any time after any such event and the acceptance 
of one or more installments or other payments from any person thereafter shall not constitute a 
waiver of the Trust’s option.  The Trust’s failure to exercise said option in connection with any 
particular event or series of events shall not be construed as a waiver of the provisions hereof as 
regards that event or any subsequent event.  The Loan Agreement and other Loan Documents 
may also contain provisions, which provide for the automatic acceleration of amounts owing 
under this Note upon the occurrence of certain specified events.  The Trust shall have, and be 
entitled to exercise, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default or other event described above, 
all rights and remedies available to the Trust under the Loan Agreement, this Note, the other 
Loan Documents or at law or in equity.  All such rights and remedies shall be cumulative.    
 

11. Prohibition Against Transfer of Interest.  The Borrower shall not make any sale, 
assignment or conveyance, or transfer in any other form, nor any further pledge, encumbrance, or 
mortgaging of the Property and/or the Project or any part thereof or of any of its interest therein, 
other than in accordance with the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory 
Agreement, the Deed of Trust and the other Loan Documents. 
 

12. Default Interest; Default Under Other Loan Documents.  All covenants, 
conditions, and agreements contained in this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory 
Agreement, the Deed of Trust and the other Loan Documents are hereby made a part of this 
Note, and the Borrower agrees that the unpaid balance of the then principal amount of this Note, 
together with all accrued interest thereon and charges owing, shall, at the option of the Trust 
hereof, become immediately due and payable, and thereafter until paid bear interest at the rate of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 5 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

twelve percent (12%) per annum (which rate shall in no event exceed the highest interest rate 
then permitted at law and if it does, it will be reduced to said lower amount) (the “Default Rate”), 
compounded annually upon the failure of the Borrower to make any payment hereunder as and 
when due (after expiration of any cure period); upon the failure of the Borrower to perform or 
observe any other term or provision of this Note; or upon the occurrence of any event (whether 
termed default, event of default, or similar term) which (after the expiration of any cure period) 
under the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust 
or other Loan Document shall entitle the Trust to exercise rights or remedies thereunder. 
 

13. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not defined in this Note shall have the same 
meanings as defined in the Loan Agreement, the terms of which are incorporated into this Note 
by this reference. 
 

14. Governing Law.  This Note shall be construed in accordance with and be 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 

15. Severability.  If any provision of this Note shall be judicially determined to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

16. Captions.  The captions and headings in this Note are merely for convenience and 
substantively are not part of this Note. 
 

17. JURY TRIAL WAIVER; VENUE.  UNLESS PROHIBITED BY FEDERAL, 
STATE OR LOCAL LAWS, IN ANY JUDICIAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING 
FROM OR RELATING TO THE LOAN OR THE LOAN DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING ANY 
ACTION OR PROCEEDING INVOLVING A CLAIM BASED ON OR ARISING FROM AN 
ALLEGED TORT, BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT OR THEY MAY 
HAVE TO REQUEST OR DEMAND A TRIAL BY JURY.  VENUE FOR ANY ACTION 
RELATED TO THE LOAN OR LOAN DOCUMENTS SHALL BE IN AN APPROPRIATE 
COURT IN ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA SELECTED BY COUNTY TO WHICH 
BORROWER HEREBY CONSENTS. 
 

18. Joint and Several Liability.  If Borrower consists of more than one person or 
entity, each shall be jointly and severally liable for the performance of Borrower’s obligations 
under this Note. 
 

19. Notices.  All notices to be given pursuant to this Note shall be given as provided 
in the Loan Agreement. 
 

20. Calculation of Interest.  Interest hereunder shall be calculated on the basis of a 
three hundred sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each, 
except that interest due and payable for a period less than a full month shall be calculated by 
dividing (a) the product of (i) the actual number of days elapsed in such period, (ii) the 
outstanding principal balance hereunder during that period and (iii) the Note interest rate in 
effect hereunder during that period by (b) 360. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 6 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

 
21. Number and Gender.  In this Note the singular shall include the plural and the 

masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa, if the context so 
requires. 
 

22. Time.  Time is of the essence in this Note. 
 

23. No Waiver by the Trust.  No waiver of any breach, default, or failure of condition 
under the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust 
or any other Loan Document or the obligations secured thereby shall be implied from any failure 
of the Trust to take, or any delay by the Trust in taking, action with respect to such breach, 
default or failure, or any form of previous waiver of any similar or unrelated breach, default or 
failure; and waiver of any term of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the 
Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document or any of the obligations secured thereby must be 
made in writing and shall be limited to the express written terms of such waiver. 
 

24. Amendments and Modifications.  This Note may not be changed orally, but only 
by an amendment in writing signed by Borrower and the Trust. The parties agree and 
acknowledge that the Trust must obtain the approval of any amendments or modifications to this 
Note from the California Department of Housing and Community Development prior to signing 
any such amendments. 
 

25. Non-Recourse.   The Trust will neither seek nor obtain judgment against the 
Borrower for payment of principal or interest under the Note or for other obligations under the 
Loan Documents following a judicial foreclosure (or to the extent permitted by law, a 
nonjudicial foreclosure of the Deed of Trust), and the Trust’s sole recourse against the Borrower 
for any default in the payment of principal or interest is limited to the Property and the Project 
and any other collateral of the Loan; provided, however, nothing in this Paragraph 24 will be 
deemed to limit or prejudice the rights of the Trust to: 
 

(a) foreclose the Deed of Trust or enforce any of its other rights or remedies under 
the Loan Documents; or 

 
(b) name the Borrower or the general partners of Borrower as a party defendant in 

any action, proceeding or arbitration, subject to the limitations of this Section; or 
 

(c) assert any unpaid amounts on the Loan as a defense or offset to or against any 
claim or cause of action arising out of or pertaining to the Project made or alleged against the 
Trust by the Borrower or any of its general partners; or  

 
(d) exercise self-help remedies such as set off or nonjudicial foreclosure against or 

sale of any real or personal property collateral or security; or 
 

(e) proceed against any entity or person, including Borrower and the general partners 
of Borrower with respect to the enforcement of any leases, bonds, policies of insurance, or other 
agreements (other than the Loan Documents); or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 7 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

 
 

(f) recover damages against Borrower or the general partners of Borrower for fraud, 
breach of warranty, failure to maintain insurance, waste, or material misrepresentation; or 

 
(g) recover any condemnation proceeds or insurance proceeds or other similar funds 

or payments attributable to the Property and/or the Project that under the terms of the Loan 
Documents should have been paid to Lender; or 

 
(h) recover any tenant security deposits, prepaid rents, or other similar sums paid to 

or held by Borrower or any other entity or person in connection with the Property and the 
Project; or 
 

(i) recover the value of any personalty or fixtures removed by Borrower from the 
Project after the occurrence of an Event of Default 

 
(j) recover the rents and profits of the Property and the Project accruing from and 

after the occurrence of an Event of Default that have not been applied to pay any portion of the 
Loan, operating, and maintenance expenses of the Property and/or the Project, insurance, 
premiums, impositions, deposits into a reserve for replacement, or other sums required by the 
Loan Documents; or 

 
(k) recover any amounts owing to the Trust under indemnity provisions (including 

indemnity provisions pertaining to Hazardous Materials as such term is defined in the Loan 
Agreement) in the Loan Documents; or 
 

(l) recover funds to reimburse the Trust for sums expended by the Trust for the 
protection or preservation of the Property, the Project or the Trust’s interest therein (including, 
without limitation, payment of any real property taxes, assessments or other charges which 
would create liens on any portion of the Property or Project 

 
The limitation of liability set forth in this Section 24 shall be deemed void and have no 

force or effect if Borrower or any general partner of Borrower attempts to materially delay any 
foreclosure of or on the Deed of Trust or any other collateral for the Loan, or if the Borrower or 
any of its general partners claim that this Agreement or any related documents are invalid or 
unenforceable to an extent that would preclude foreclosure.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary set forth in the immediately preceding sentence, in the event Borrower contests any 
foreclosure proceeding in good faith and Borrower prevails in such action, or in the event 
Borrower and the Trust agree to a settlement of any such action which gave rise to the 
foreclosure proceeding, the Loan shall remain nonrecourse.  Any liability of Borrower or any of 
the general partners of Borrower for any obligations arising in connection with the matters set 
forth in clauses (a) through (l) inclusive will be personal liability, and may be asserted against 
and recovered from its or their interest in the Property and/or Project as well as against any of its 
and their other assets.  Nothing contained in this Section impairs the validity of this Note or any 
related documents or any lien or security interest created or perfected by it. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[  ] 8 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

Signature Page to follow  
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[   ] Signature Page 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Promissory Note as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

    BORROWER:  
 
    [NEED SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
 
    By:  
     
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



[   ] Trust Counsel Approval 
OCHFT Promissory Note 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
 
 
By____________________________ 

Trust Counsel 
 
Dated__________________________         
      

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT C OCHCA MHSA SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Mental Health Services Act 
Expression of Interest 

 
 
 
 
 

FOR FUNDS TO ACQUIRE, CONSTRUCT, AND/OR 
REHABILITATE PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 

FOR HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS WITH SERIOUS MENTAL 
ILLNESS WHO ARE HOMELESS, CHRONICALLY 
HOMELESS OR AT-RISK OF HOMELESSNESS 

 
 
 
 

February 2023 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT ONE (1): ORANGE COUNTY MHSA Expression of Interest 
DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY FORM 

 

Developer: 
 
 
Sponsor: 
 
 
Name of Project: 
 
 
Project Address (including parcel #): 
 
 
 

Supervisor/Council District: 
 
 
Form of Site Control: 
 
 

Entitlement Status and Time Estimate to complete Entitlements: 
 
 
 
 

Anticipated Construction Start Date: 
 
 

Anticipated Date of Certificate of Occupancy: 
 
 
 
Community Planning Group: 
 
 
Any Contact made yet with local neighbors or planning group? If yes, 
please specify meeting dates and times. 
 
 
 
 

Community Process Plan including potential meeting dates with 
community groups

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE TWO OF TWO 
 
Total number of units and bedroom types: 
 
 
 
 

 
Total number of MHSA units and bedroom types: 

 
 
 
 

 
Square footage by bedroom of MHSA units: 

 
 
 
 

 

Type of Development    New Construction  Acquisition/Rehab 
 
Total Cost of the Development: 
 
 
Total Cost of MHSA Units: 

 
 
MHSA Capital Request: 
 

 
 
 

Will you be requesting non-MHSA funded operating subsidies, such as 
project-based vouchers? (Please check one)   Yes  No 
 

If so, what type and from which agency?        
 

Other Funding Sources: 
 4% or  9% Tax Credit – Round _____, 20____ 
 Other: Land donation, City funds, etc.        

Additional Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Information: 
 

Name:  
 
Company:  
 
Phone:       Fax:  
 
Email: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



 

 

ATTACHMENT TWO (2): CONTACTS FOR FORM SUBMITTAL 
 

Please send an e-mail with Expression of Interest information to: 
 

Michelle Zdeba 
Housing Development Manager, OCCR/Housing & Community Development 
michelle.zdeba@occr.ocgov.com 

 
 (714) 480-2994 

 
 

Submit a copy to: 
 

Marcy Kovacevich 
Health Care Agency  

MKovacevich@ochca.com 
(714) 796-0200 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A

mailto:michelle.zdeba@occr.ocgov.com
mailto:MKovacevich@ochca.com


 

 

 
Project Requirements and Desirable Features 

 

Orange County continues to update it’s planning for Project Requirements and Desirable 
features, including feedback heard from clients and peers. As needed, the County will issue 
updated guidance for applications for MHSA Program funds. In order to ensure that the 
projects developed with MHSA Program funds in Orange County meet the needs expressed 
by people with lived experience, the following requirements will be applicable to projects: 

 
 

• All units must incorporate full kitchens, full baths, and adequate storage and closet 
space within each apartment. 

• Buildings shall be well designed and well maintained, include on-site laundry services, 
and have cable access and internet/computer access. Projects must be located close 
to transportation, shopping and services.1 

• To meet consumer need for safety and security, projects applying for funds will be 
required to document how they incorporate considerations for the safety of tenants on 
the property and surrounding neighborhood. 

• Buildings shall include security design features such as architectural and landscape 
security design configurations, cameras in common areas, and/or security services. 

• Project designs shall be non-institutional in feeling and blend in with the community. 
Designs shall include a case management office and adequate space for resident 
activities. The size of the community/resident activity space and case management 
office is particularly important for projects with unit sizes that are smaller. 

• Services shall be available either on or accessible off site. 
• Projects shall include dedicated services space and community rooms, with kitchens if 

possible. 
• All units shall include air conditioning. 
• All units shall have microwave ovens. 
• At least 5% of units must be accessible to the physically disabled and at least 2% of 

units must be accessible to the sensory disabled. 
• All units shall be furnished with standard furnishings applicable to the unit type. 

 
In addition, the following recommended amenities or features are encouraged to better meet 
the needs of the target population: 

 

• Clients prefer to reside one-bedroom apartments. 
• There should be planned smoking areas for projects that have non-smoking units. 
• Units are encouraged to be at least 450 square feet, with the consideration for tenant 

space needs such as service animals, space to store a bike within the unit, and 
accessibility needs for aging clients/tenants. 

 
 

1 At minimum, public transit that comes with reasonable frequency must be accessible within 0.5 mile. It is preferred 
that, where possible, other services be walkable within 0.5 mile (e.g. not including physical barriers that prevent 
access by foot or public transit). 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT D MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) 
FUNDING TERM SHEET 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

 

1 January 3, 2023 

 

 

 

 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) FUNDING 

TERM SHEET 

General Loan Terms and Conditions 
All of the policies and lending practices set forth within the NOFA shall apply to all projects funded 
with MHSA funds. The following additional requirements shall apply to all of the MHSA funded 
units: 

• The population to be served shall include extremely low income (30% of Area Median 
Income for Orange County), homeless individuals who has a serious mental disorder as 
defined in WIC 5600.3, verified by a State Licensed Mental Healthcare Professional and 
has been deemed to meet the MHSA Housing Program eligibility (MHSA Certified) by 
Health Care Agency MHSA Housing Program staff. 

• Restricted rents for the MHSA funded units shall not exceed 30% of the HUD-published 
30% Area Median Income (AMI) levels for Orange County, adjusted for designated 
household size (less a utility allowance unless included in the rent) with the tenants rent 
portion not to be more than 30% of their Social Security Income/Social Security Pension 
(SSI/SSP) or not more than 30% of their total gross household income (if additional 
income beyond SSI/SSP is received). If federally funded Project Based Vouchers are 
provided, the developer shall comply with the federal regulations for maximum rent and 
tenant rent portions.  

• To the greatest extent feasible, the Developer shall utilize the local coordinated entry 
system to identify referrals for the MHSA Units.  

• Housing units and building features must meet the needs of the MHSA tenants to be 
served at the development, including privacy, housing activities and community 
interaction. There shall be no requirement for non-related, single, adult tenants to share 
bedrooms. There shall be adequate number of bedrooms to accommodate the housing 
composition.  Units are encouraged to have at least one-bedroom and be at least 450 
square feet. 

• Rental homes must have an identifiable and private living area, sleeping area, full kitchen 
area and a full bathroom, including air conditioning. The kitchen area shall at a minimum 
include a full size sink, full size refrigerator, cupboard/cabinet space for storage, counter 
area for food preparation, microwave or oven, and a two burner stove or built-in cook 
top. 

• All units should be furnished with standard furnishings applicable to the unit type. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

 

2 January 3, 2023 

• Developers are encouraged to provide units that are pre-wired for high technology and 
internet access.  

• The building must include common space, such as a community room that can 
accommodate a variety of activities and where tenants can choose to interact with one 
another.  

• The building must include a designated office space to provide services to MHSA tenants.   
• The design and operation of the housing shall incorporate features designed to increase 

efficiency and reduce ongoing expenses.   
• The housing shall incorporate appropriate and feasible green design practices, such as the 

use of ENERGY STAR rated energy-efficient appliances and water-conserving fixtures and 
products.   

• The housing must also utilize durable materials chosen to reduce future maintenance 
costs and renewable building supplies.  

• Tenants shall be provided with information to assist them to participate in 
environmentally friendly practices such as energy and water conservation, recycling and 
use of non-toxic household products.   

Required Operating, Replacement and Subsidy Reserves 
All developments using MHSA funds must provide for the following reserves: 

Capitalized operating expense reserve, at a minimum, shall equal 25% of the first year’s 
approved operating and reserve budget.  

Capitalized replacement reserve for rehabilitation projects shall be based on a physical needs 
assessment and/or one or more Building Inspection Reports and a Replacement Reserve Needs 
Analysis. New construction projects shall have a capitalized replacement reserve of at least $500 
per unit/annually for all units in a project, increasing by 5% every five years.   

Capitalized operating subsidy reserve (“COSR”) shall be required for projects without rental 
assistance vouchers (or other rental subsidies) to subsidize operating costs for the MSHA 
Regulated Units. COSR’s must be funded to allow for operating cost subsidies for a minimum of 
17 full years.  

Tenant Rent & Utility Reserve may be required by the Trust to be funded by the Developer by 
Certificate of Occupancy for the development.  This Reserve is used to assist MHSA eligible clients 
with rent and utility payments while waiting to get approved for SSI/SSP and/or rental assistance.  
The Reserve should provide 2 to 3 years rental income for the MHSA-assisted units (assuming 
rents that include utilities at 30% of SSI/SSP). This Reserve is held by Borrower as a revolving fund 
and is intended to be replenished over time from tenant rent back payments once the tenants 
qualify for SSI/SSP.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

 

3 January 3, 2023 

Developer/Borrower is required to continually seek future commitments of rental or operating 
subsidies for the MHSA Regulated Units (e.g., project-based Section 8 vouchers) for the life of the 
MHSA Loan.  

MHSA Expression of Interest 

The initial step in the Orange County process for developers interested in applying for MHSA 
funding and project-based rental assistance (Section 8 vouchers) is to submit an Expression of 
Interest (EOI).   
The preliminary EOI information consists of the following items: 

• The Development Summary Form (Attachment One) 
• A narrative description of the proposed project and the experience of the sponsor 

and must provide a thorough discussion of the project, including, at a minimum, 
the service goals of the project, characteristics of tenants to be served, the type of 
housing that will be provided, how the building(s) in which housing and services will 
be provided (location, building type, layout, features, etc.) will meet the housing 
and service needs of the tenants, the primary service provider(s) and other 
project/development partners, and project financing. 

• Site plan, floor plans, elevations and renderings, if available 
• A current project budget/proforma 

Submit one (1) copy of the information listed above to Michelle Zdeba at 
michelle.zdeba@occr.ocgov.com AND one (1) copy to Marcy Kovacevich 
atMKovacevich@ochca.com, no later than February 22, 2023.    
 

Once the applicant submits the E O I  a n d  r e q u i r e d  i n f o r m a t i o n , HCA/Housing and 
Supportive Services and OCCR/Housing & Community Development will do any or all of the 
following: 

• OCCR/Housing & Community Development staff will arrange a meeting between the 
developer, HCA/Housing and Supportive Services and OCCR/ Housing & Community 
Development to discuss the project concept/proposed development and determine if 
the project could meet County priorities and objectives; 

• Provide input and suggested revisions intended to improve the proposed 
development and application; 

• Request that the applicant make certain revisions to the proposal in order to 
reconsider providing a supportive services commitment for the application submission. 

 
Application and Loan Commitment Notes 
Upon review of the borrower application and a decision to loan MHSA funds, the following will 
be determined by the Trust and set forth in a commitment letter: 1) the per regulated unit loan 
amount; 2) the percent of MHSA regulated units as it relates to the entire Project; 3) the size of 
the regulated units to best meet MHSA client needs (bedroom count); 4) any permissible 
occupancy preferences (adults; seniors; transition age youth); 5) the maximum COSR (if 
applicable) to carry the project through the first 17 years of operations; 6) any permissible 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

 

4 January 3, 2023 

developer fees for non-tax credit transactions; and 9) permissible overlaying occupancy, rent or 
income restrictions from other financing or tax credit sources.  
 
Supportive services provisions and a Social Services Plan and operating budget from the primary 
or lead service provider(s) shall be provided as part of the application for Trust Funds. 

All units assisted with MHSA funding through this NOFA shall additionally include supportive 
services provided by the Orange County Health Care Agency.  The developer shall work with 
HCA/Housing and Supportive Services to develop and provide a supportive services plan that 
meet and address the needs of the MSHA tenants for the term of the Trust Loan.  

Primary supportive services shall be provided on site to meet the specific needs of the population 
to be served. 

All MHSA tenants must be MHSA Certified by HCA MHSA Housing Program staff as outlined in 
the MHSA Certification and Referral Process. It is important to note that in no event shall a person 
be required to be a client of the Orange County Behavioral Health department or a recipient of 
mental health or other services in order to qualify for or to remain in an Assisted MHSA Unit. 

 

NOTE:  This term sheet is subject to change. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT E UNDERWRITING ASSUMPTIONS 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

  Rev 01/2022 

 
 

Loan Application Underwriting Criteria 

• Max project loan amount:  
o $2,500,000. 

• Maximum loan amount per non-MHSA unit: 
o Zero-bedroom: $110,000.00. 
o One-bedroom: $125,000.00. 
o Two-bedroom+: $135,000.00. 

• Maximum loan amount per MHSA unit: 
o Zero-bedroom: $184,230. 
o One-bedroom: $184,230. 
o Two-bedroom+: $184,230. 

• Maximum marketing costs:  
o $1,500/unit. 

• Maximum common area furnishing cost:  
o $1,000/unit. 

• Maximum contractor overhead, profits, and general requirements:  
o 14% of total construction costs. 

• Developer fee 
o within TCAC limits for tax credit projects or in accordance with HCD 2017 UMR 

for projects without tax credits. 
• Maximum Partnership Management Fees (combined, all partners) 

o $15,000/year 
• Capitalized operating subsidy reserve for MHSA units.  

o Minimum 17 years of operating costs or rental subsidy (Project Based Vouchers 
or another rental subsidy). 

• Replacement reserve:  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

  Rev 01/2022 

o $350/unit/year (non-MHSA units), $500/unit/year increasing 5% every 5 years 
(MHSA units). 

• Vacancy rate:  
o 5%. 

• Rent inflation rate:  
o 2.5%. 

• Misc. income inflation rate:  
o 3.0%. 

• Expense inflation rate:  
o 3.5%. 

• Debt coverage ratio:  
o between 1.1 and 1.2. 

• Residual receipts  
o to repay loan over loan term. 

• Appraisal to support the cost of land. 
• Min projected operating expenses. 

o Total Operating Expenses (not including property taxes or the approved costs of 
on-site service coordination) shall not be less than those specifically listed in 
California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Section 10327 as minimum Operating 
Expenses (without the reduction allowed by those regulations for bond-financed 
projects). The OCHFT may project higher Operating Expenses where warranted 
by the experience of comparable properties and particular building 
characteristics, such as the nature of the tenant population or the level of 
rehabilitation. Prior to loan closing, the OCHFT may approve total Operating 
Expenses that are less than those specified in Section 10327, supra, only if the 
Project has Uniform Multifamily Regulations 11/15/2017 Page 18 of 35 an 
extraordinary design feature, such as its own electrical generation system, which 
results in a quantifiable operating cost savings as documented by a qualified 
third party.  

o All Operating Expenses, including property management fees, shall be within the 
normal market range, as periodically determined by the OCHFT in surveys or 
based on costs observed in its portfolio. 

• Contingency 
o Where OCHFT is providing construction-period financing, the minimum budgeted 

construction contingency shall be 5 percent of construction costs for new 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



   
 

  Rev 01/2022 

construction projects and 7.5 percent of construction costs for rehabilitation and 
conversion projects. 

 
• Positive cash flow 

o The Project must demonstrate a positive cash flow for 15 years, using income 
and expenses increase rate assumptions specified in California Code of 
Regulations, Title 4, Section 10327. If projected Project income includes rental 
assistance or operating subsidy payments under a renewable contract, the 
OCHFT may assume that this contract will be renewed, where the renewal of the 
rental assistance or operating subsidy is likely. 

• Subordination Policy 
o OCHFT may execute and cause to be recorded a subordination agreement 

subordinating the OCHFT lien so long as the subordination does not increase the 
OCHFT’s risk beyond that contemplated in the Program loan or grant 
commitment, as may be amended from time to time, and so long as the 
subordination would further the interest of the Program. 

• Senior lender loan types and junior lender loan types 
o Balloon payments are not allowed on senior debt. Balloon payments are allowed 

on junior debt during the term of the Trust’s loan only where the Trust 
determines that the balloon payment will not jeopardize project feasibility. 

• Leasehold security requirements 
o The Regulatory Agreement, Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases, and any 

subordination agreements shall be recorded against both the Sponsor’s interest 
in the Project and the fee interest in the land, and the lease shall have a term 
remaining at the time of recordation at least equal to the term of the Trust’ loan. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT F ONLINE APPLICATION FORM REFERENCE 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



ATTACHMENT F   ONLINE APPLICATION FORM REFERENCE

Below is a printscreen of the online application tool for the 2023 OCHFT NOFA. Please use this reference to 
help understand the application requirements prior to begining the application.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



  

ATTACHMENT G LEVINE ACT STATEMENT 
 
***PRIME APPLICANT AND SUBAPPLICANTS MUST SUBMIT A SIGNED LEVINE ACT 
STATEMENT*** 
 
California Government Code § 84308, commonly referred to as the “Levine Act,” precludes an 
officer of a local government agency from participating in the award of a contract if he or she receives 
any political contributions totaling more than $250 in the 12 months preceding the pendency of the 
contract award, and for three months following the final decision, from the person or company 
awarded the contract. This prohibition applies to contributions to the officer or received by the officer 
on behalf of any other officer, or on behalf of any candidate for office or on behalf of any committee. 
The Levine Act also requires a member of the Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board of 
Directors who has received such a contribution to disclose the contribution on the record of the 
proceeding. 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board of Directors as of the date of this Notice of Funding 
Availability are as follows: 
, Don Barnes, Doug Chaffee, Stephen Faessel, Jamey Federico, Shari Freidenrich, Natalie Moser, 
Jessie Lopez, __________, and__________. 
 
1. Have you or your company, or any agent on behalf of you or your company, made any 
political contributions of more than $250 to any Orange County Housing Finance Trust Director 
in the 12 months preceding the date of the issuance of this Notice of Funding Availability? 

   YES  NO 
If yes, please identify the Director:       

2. Do you or your company, or any agency on behalf of you or your company, anticipate or plan 
to make any political contributions of more than $250 to any Orange County Housing Finance 
Trust Director in the three months following the award of the contract? 

   YES  NO 
 
If yes, please identify the Director:       
 
Answering yes to either of the two questions above does not preclude Orange County Housing 
Finance Trust from awarding a contract to your firm. It does, however, preclude the identified 
Director from participating in the contract award process for this contract. 
 
 
 
 

DATE (SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL) 
 
 
 
 

(TYPE OR WRITE APPROPRIATE NAME, TITLE)  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment A



1 League #62335 
Irvine,  CA  92602 

2022 2023  
PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE AND 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
NOTICE OF FUNDING AVAILABILITY 

DUE DATE: 5:00 P.M. - MARCH 22, 20222023 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Table of Contents 
  Introduction ................................................................................................. 1 
  Program Description .................................................................................. 2 

2.01  Funds Available ............................................................................................ 2 
2.02  Funding Reallocation .................................................................................... 2 
2.03  Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Allocation ......................................... 2 
2.04  Service Planning Area Allocation ................................................................. 2 
2.05  Eligible Projects ............................................................................................ 3 
2.06  Eligible Applicants........................................................................................ 3 
2.07  Eligible Activities ......................................................................................... 3 
2.08  Eligible Costs ................................................................................................ 3 
2.09  Affordability Covenant ................................................................................. 4 
2.10  Loan Award Terms & Conditions................................................................. 4 
2.11  Maximum Loan Amount/Subsidy Limits ..................................................... 6 
2.12  Developer Fee Limit ..................................................................................... 6 
2.13  NOFA Schedule Milestones ......................................................................... 7 
2.14  Application Review Committee .................................................................... 7 
2.15  Form of Loan Documents ............................................................................. 7 

  Threshold Requirements ............................................................................ 8 
3.01  Coordinated Entry System ............................................................................ 8 
3.02  Income Limits ............................................................................................... 8 
3.03  Supportive Services ...................................................................................... 8 
3.04  Reserves ........................................................................................................ 8 
3.05  Compliance Monitoring Fee ......................................................................... 9 
3.06  Financial Commitments ................................................................................ 9 
3.07  Underwriting Assumptions ........................................................................... 9 

  Scoring ....................................................................................................... 10 
4.01  Project Readiness ........................................................................................ 10 
4.02  Developer Experience & Financial Strength .............................................. 10 
4.03  Service Enriched Location .......................................................................... 10 
4.04  Development Pipeline ................................................................................. 11 
4.05  Tie Breaker .................................................................................................. 11 

  Application................................................................................................. 12 
5.01  General Application Form .......................................................................... 12 
5.02  Project Narrative ......................................................................................... 12 
5.03  Project Vicinity Map ................................................................................... 12 
5.04  Project Proforma ......................................................................................... 12 
5.05  Financial Notes and Assumptions ............................................................... 13 
5.06  Project SCHEDULE ................................................................................... 13 
5.07  Development Team Members ..................................................................... 13 
5.08  Applicant Experience .................................................................................. 13 
5.09  Applicant Financial Strength ...................................................................... 13 
5.10  Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter .......................................... 13 
5.11  Social Services Plan .................................................................................... 14 
5.12  Social Services Operating Budget .............................................................. 14 
5.13  Levine Act Statement .................................................................................. 15 

 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



1  

 INTRODUCTION 
This 2022 2023 Permanent Supportive and Affordable Housing Notice of Funding Availability 
(NOFA) announces the availability of ten eighteen million, fiveone-hundred ninety-oneeighty-eight 
thousand, nine-hundred ten eighty-seven dollars and twenty cents ($10,591,91018,188,987,20) in 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust (OCHFT) (the “Trust”) funds to promote the new 
construction or acquisition/rehabilitation of Permanent Supportive and Affordable Housing for 
Orange County’s extremely low-income households, and those experiencing homelessness by 
providing below market rate financing. Interested and qualified developers who can successfully 
demonstrate their ability to acquire, build or substantially rehabilitate, and operate Permanent 
Supportive and Affordable Housing are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The initial NOFA application deadline shall be approximately 50 days after the release of this NOFA. 
All applications submitted within the NOFA application period shall be reviewed by Trust staff to 
ensure compliance with all threshold requirements and shall be competitively scored. Applications 
received after the NOFA application period will be considered if funding is still available from the 
initial round of applications. 
 
The Trust is committed to serving the County’s needs for Permanent Supportive and Affordable 
Housing. Projects in each County Service Planning Area (North, Central, and South) shall compete 
only against other projects within their Service Planning Area, with the goal of each Service Planning 
Area receiving an equal amount of funding through this NOFA. If all the funds are not committed in 
each Service Planning Area, then any remaining funds shall be made available to the other Service 
Planning Areas if there is remaining demand for funds. 
 
The sources of capital funds made available for this NOFA are the following: 

1. 2023 County Mental Health Services Act  ...................... $4,841,9102,438,987.20 
1.2.Contingent County Mental Health Services Act1 .......................... $10,000,000 
2.3.County General Fund  ...................................................................... $1,000,000 
3.4.State of California - Local Housing Trust Fund Program2* ............ $4,750,000 
TOTAL .............................................................................. $10,591,91018,188,987.20 

 
*NOTES:   

1. The Trust is currently working with the County for additional Mental Health 
Services Act (MHSA) funds. It is anticipated that an amendment to the Grant 
Agreement for MHSA funds will be considered by the Board of Supervisors and 
Trust Board in the first half of 2023. 

1.2.The Trust will be applying for funding from the State of California – Local Housing 
Trust Funds in 20222023. These funds are contingent upon actual award from the 
State in the winter of 20222023.  

 
The Trust reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount in this NOFA at the direction of the 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



2  

 PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
2.01 FUNDS AVAILABLE 
Up to eighteen million, one-hundred eighty-eight thousand, nine-hundred eighty-seven dollars and 
twenty centsten million, five hundred ninety-one thousand, nine-hundred ten dollars 
($18,188,987.2010,591,910) is made available from Trust. Of that, four million, seven-hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($4,750,000) is from the Local Housing Trust Fund (LHTF) Program, which 
requires a local match to receive. To maximize the Orange County Housing Finance Trust’s award 
under this program, the Trust must award at least $5 million from other funding sources. The only 
other funding sources available to the Trust are $1 million from the County of Orange General Fund 
and over $5.8412.4 million in Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds. 
 
Funding will be made available to projects with and without MHSA units. Up to one million, nine-
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($1,950,000) will be made available to projects without MHSA units. 
Up to eight sixteen million, sixtwo-hundred forty-one thirty-eight thousand, nine-hundred ten eight-
seven dollars and twenty cents ($16,238,987.208,641,910) will be made available for funding of 
projects that include MHSA units. Funds originating from the LHTF program may be used for non-
MHSA units within projects receiving MHSA funds through the Trust.  
 
2.02 FUNDING REALLOCATION 
In the event that the Trust does not receive the maximum award from the LHTF Program for which 
it is eligible, or the Trust does not receive the additional $10 million in MHSA funds from the County, 
the amount of funds available through this NOFA will be decreased. If the LHTF Program award is 
less than what is anticipated, or the Trust does not receive the additional MHSA funds from the 
County, at the time of Trust Board approval of project funding, the Trust will reduce the funding of 
each project awarded funds by a proportional amount to the reduction in LHFT and/or MHSA 
funding. The purpose of this even proportional reduction to all projects is to ensure that no single 
project, or subset of projects, receives the majority of the funding cut, and to ensure that all projects 
funded by the Trust remain viable. By applying for funding under this NOFA, Applicants agree and 
understand that the funding awards for projects funded with LHFT funding may be lower than 
initially awarded. 
 
2.03 MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) ALLOCATION 
Projects seeking MHSA funds must be reviewed by the Orange County Health Care Agency. 
Applicants are encouraged to submit their projects to the Health Care Agency, as soon as possible, 
and must meet with the Health Care Agency no later than March 8, 2022 2023 to initiate the Health 
Care Agency’s review process. More information regarding this requirement can be found in Section 
5.10, Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter. 
 
2.04 SERVICE PLANNING AREA ALLOCATION 
The County of Orange has divided the County into three County Service Planning Areas (SPAs), 
North, Central, and South. The Orange County Housing Finance Trust shall use the SPAs to ensure 
equal distribution of Trust loan money across the County. Each SPA will be allocated one-third 
(1/3rd) of the funding available under this NOFA. In the event there are not enough eligible projects in 
each SPA to use the full allocation, those funds may be allocated to fund other projects in other SPAs 
at the discretion of the Trust Board. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



3  

2.05 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 
Projects eligible under this NOFA must be located within unincorporated County of Orange or within 
Trust member cities (See Attachment A). The only exception is for projects seeking only MHSA 
funding from this NOFA, which is required to be available county wide, including non-member 
cities. To be eligible for LHTF funds, projects must be in cities that are in compliance with State 
housing law, as determined by the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) as of the date the Trust applies for LHTF funds. HCD has not yet specified the deadline for 
this year’s LHTF application, but it is anticipated to be towards the end of May 2023. At the time of 
issuance of this NOFA, the Trust member cities in compliance with State housing law are:

 Dana Point; 
 Fountain Valley; 
 Irvine; 
 Newport Beach; 
 San Juan Capistrano; 

 Santa Ana; 
 Stanton; 
 Tustin; and 
  Yorba Lina.  

 
It is encouraged that applicants with projects in member cities not in compliance with State housing 
law at the time of issuance of this NOFA contact the city’s planning department to determine if the 
city will be in compliance by May 2023 prior to applying for LHTF funds through this NOFA.  
 
Projects must include a minimum of five (5) units which are assisted under this NOFA and must 
provide permanent supportive or affordable housing restricted to persons or families who qualify as 
extremely low income. Proposals must include a plan and eventual funding for the provision of 
supportive services appropriate to the needs of the designated population, if supportive services are 
being proposed. 
 
Applicants who are awarded LHTF funds through this NOFA must comply with the State of 
California Housing and Community Development (HCD) 2017 Uniform Multifamily Regulations 
(UMR). The 2017 UMR can be found on HCD’s website at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-
funding/uniform-multifamily-regulationshttps://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/already-have-
funding/uniform-multifamily-regulations.shtml.  
 
2.06 ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Proposals will be accepted from non-profit and for-profit organizations, joint ventures, or 
partnerships that serve extremely low-income households, and those experiencing homelessness. 
 
2.07 ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
Funds shall be used to develop permanent supportive or affordable rental housing through new 
construction, acquisition/rehabilitation and/or conversion of commercial and light industrial to 
residential use on a case-by-case basis. 
 
2.08 ELIGIBLE COSTS 
Under this NOFA, funds may be used for construction loan financing and/or permanent loan 
financing. To the extent that all sources of project funding has been secured and are a part of either the 
construction loan and/or the permanent loan the following costs are eligible: “hard” costs of 
construction or rehabilitation of housing, “soft” costs associated with acquisition, financing, and/or 
rehabilitation. “Soft” costs include marketing costs (not to exceed $1,500 per unit), appraisals, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



4  

architectural and engineering fees, individual apartment furnishings, certain common area 
furnishings (not to exceed $1,000 per unit), building permit fees, credit reports, environmental 
assessments, impact fees, legal and accounting costs, private lender origination fees, recording fees, 
surety fees, and title insurance. An overall cost limitation of fourteen percent (14%) of the cost of 
construction shall apply to contractor overhead, profit, and general requirements, excluding 
contractor’s general liability insurance. For purposes of contractor overhead and profit, the cost of 
construction includes site work, structures, prevailing wages, and general requirements. For purposes 
of general requirements, the cost of construction includes offsite improvements, demolition and site 
work, structures, and prevailing wages. 
 
2.09 AFFORDABILITY COVENANT 
Restricted units must remain affordable for the remaining life of the project, which shall be no less than 
fifty-five (55) years. A restrictive covenant will be recorded against the property to ensure 
affordability during the term of the agreement. All projects shall be required to agree to maintain the 
project’s affordability for the term of the restrictive covenant, regardless of whether the loan is fully 
repaid. 
 
The annual reporting requirements will be outlined in the Regulatory Agreement. Projects receiving 
funds from the Trust shall report annually certifying that they are in compliance with the occupancy 
and affordability requirements of the Regulatory Agreement. 
 
Program Compliance shall utilize a two-step monitoring process that provides for monitoring of all 
affordable housing developments financed with funds from the Trust. Monitoring of each 
development will occur in two phases: Phase 1: In-house review of annual reports, and Phase 2: 
Annual on-site monitoring visit, which shall include monitoring of tenant files in accordance with the 
affordability and income restrictions of the restrictive covenant and a Housing Quality Standards 
(HQS) inspection. 
 
2.10 LOAN AWARD TERMS & CONDITIONS 
Applicants shall agree to the Loan Award Terms and Conditions detailed in this section, and included 
in Attachment E, Loan Application Underwriting Criteria, as part of any funding award. Failure to 
accept these Loan Award Term and Conditions will result in forfeiture of any funding award.  

2.10.1 Funding Timing: Loan funds will be made available at the closing of the 
construction loan and/or closing of the permanent loan and is subject to the 
timing of HCD final approval of the Loan documents. However, no loan 
funds, or hard loan commitments, will be made available prior to the award 
of funds to the Trust through the LHTF Program. The Trust will not bifurcate 
award funding in order to meet closing dates occurring before additional 
funding is awarded through the LHTF Program. 

2.10.2 Interest Rate: Loans will bear an interest rate of three percent (3%) simple 
interest. Interest will be calculated based on a 360-day year and the actual 
number of days elapsed. The Orange County Housing Finance Trust reserves 
the right to renegotiate this rate for the benefit of the Trust and the project. 

2.10.3 Term: Loans will be for a term of fifty-five (55) years, from the date of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



5  

Certificate of Occupancy. 
2.10.4 Loan Repayment: The Trust loan will be repaid through residual receipts. 

An amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of Net Operating Income (as defined 
in Section 2.10.5, Residual Receipts Loans, below), if any, will be paid to the 
Trust and other public agencies (if any) providing residual receipts loans, and 
fifty percent (50%) to the developer. The 50% of cash flow payable to public 
agencies shall be shared by agencies in an amount proportional to the loan 
provided by such agencies. The value of non-loan contributions by other 
agencies (i.e. ground lease, project-based vouchers) shall not be considered 
as part of the loan value when calculating the Trust’s share of the residual 
receipts split. 

2.10.5 Residual Receipts Loans: The following is the definition of a residual 
receipts loan, which will be used by the Trust to underwrite projects: 

 
The loan for the project will be repaid from the Net Operating Income (NOI), 
if any, from the project as calculated ninety (90) days after the close of each 
fiscal year. NOI shall mean all of the rental revenue from the residential 
portion of the project (the “Annual Project Revenue”) less (i) operating 
expenses of the project as approved by the Trust (the “Annual Operating 
Expenses”) in an annual audit submitted by the developer and approved by 
the Trust; (ii) obligated debt service payments on the Project as approved by 
the Trust; (iii) scheduled deposits to reserves, as approved by the Trust; (iv) 
deferred developer fees, as approved by the Trust; and (v) partnership 
management or asset management fees as approved by the Trust. 

 
 Annual Project Revenue shall not include tenant security deposits, capital 

contributions, insurance or condemnation proceeds, income received for the 
purpose of completing the project, or funding received for the purpose of 
social services to the residents. 

 
By applying to this NOFA, Applicant understands and agrees to the 
definitions stated above and must use these assumptions in the further 
underwriting of their project. 

 
 Exclusions to NOI: It is the policy of the Trust that the following costs, fees, 

charges, penalties, judgments and the like shall not be deducted from the 
Annual Project Revenue by the developer thereby reducing the amount of NOI 
available to pay the Trust’s loan, including those arising out of: (i) a breach or 
default of the Trust’s loan or any other mortgage loan on the project, (ii) the 
fraud, negligence or willful misconduct of developer, (iii) the failure to make 
timely payments under any loan secured by the project, (iv) the breach or 
default by developer under any other contract, lease or agreement pertaining 
to the project; and (v) any other cost, expense, fee or the like which is not first 
approved by the Trust. The approved Operating Expenses of the project shall 
also not include other expenses such as intra-partnership or other internal 
loans of the operating entity, depreciation, amortization, accrued principal and 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



6  

interest expense on the deferred payment debt and capital improvement 
expenditures unless approved by the Trust. 

 
2.10.6 Security: The loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note and secured by 

a deed of trust. 
2.10.7 Subordination: The Orange County Housing Finance Trust may, at its sole 

discretion, subordinate repayment, security positions, and affordability 
covenants to a conventional lender or other public agency lenders such as the 
State of California HCD, County of Orange, city loans, and CalHFA or AHP 
loans. 

 
2.11 MAXIMUM LOAN AMOUNT/SUBSIDY LIMITS 
The maximum loan/subsidy amounts shall be calculated on the basis of the number of units assisted by 
the Trust and shall vary by unit size. However, in no case shall the Trust’s investment in a single 
development exceed two-million five-hundred thousand dollars ($2,500,000). This cap may be 
waived at the sole discretion of the Trust Board. Final award amounts shall be at the discretion of the 
Trust Board. The maximum unit subsidy limits are shown below: 
 

Unit Size Maximum Loan Amount 
Non-MHSA Units MHSA Units 

0 Bedroom $110,000 $184,230177,
145 

1 Bedroom $125,000 $184,230177,
145 

2 Bedroom or larger $135,000 $184,230177,
145 

 
Under no circumstances may a development exceed a total MHSA subsidy per unit regardless of 
sources of MHSA funds. In the event that a project has already been awarded the maximum loan 
amount per unit in MHSA funds, that project will not be eligible for additional MHSA funds from 
the Trust. If a project has received an award of MHSA funds less than the maximum loan amount 
per unit, the applicant may apply for additional MHSA funds to bring their total award up to the 
maximum loan amount per unit.  

2.12 DEVELOPER FEE LIMIT 
The maximum Developer Fee shall be the same as the maximum allowed under the State Tax Credit 
Allocation Committee regulations for those projects that have been or will be awarded Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credits, as adopted at the time this NOFA was issued. For projects not receiving Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, the maximum Developer Fee shall be the same as the maximum 
allowed under the State of California Housing and Community Development 2017 Uniform 
Multifamily Regulations. 
 
2.13 PARTNERSHIP MANAGEMENT FEE LIMIT 
The maximum combined partnership management fee for all members of the borrower shall not 
exceed $15,000 per year.  
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



7  

2.132.14 NOFA SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust is committed to helping Permanent Supportive and 
Affordable Housing units be occupied as quickly as possible. The Trust will strive to meet the 
following milestones: 

1. NOFA Issuance – February 86, 20222023 
2. NOFA Question & Answer Session for applicants – February 23, 2022 2023 – 310:00-

11:00am4:30pm 
(a) Location: Zoom teleconference: Email aeliason@ochft.org to request meeting 

invitation. 
3. Health Care Agency Meeting Deadline – March 8, 2022 2023 (make sure to schedule 

this with the HCA at least one week prior to the deadline). 
4. Initial Applications Deadline – March 22, 20222023, 5:00pm 
5. Initial Application Review Committee meeting April 20222023 
6. Trust Board Meeting and approval of initial NOFA awards – May 1817, 20222023 

 
Applications accepted after the Initial Application Deadline will be considered on a first-come, first-
served basis, if there is funding remaining after the Trust Board makes its initial NOFA awards. The 
Trust will evaluate and refer applications to the Trust Board for approval as quickly as practical. Any 
application submitted received after the Initial Application Deadline shall be submitted no less than 
four weeks prior to a Board meeting, to be considered for funding award at that the next Board 
meeting. The first Board meeting at which applications submitted after the Initial Application 
Deadline shall be considered will be held in July 20222023. The Trust will close the online 
application form once all available funds have been allocated.  
 
2.142.15 APPLICATION REVIEW COMMITTEE 
After the close of the NOFA application period, the Orange County Housing Finance Trust will 
convene an Application Review Committee to review and score the applications. The Application 
review Committee may include: 

 OCHFT’s financial consultant 
 County Health Care Agency Staff Member 
 OCHFT Manager 
 County of Orange Affordable Housing Development Manager 
 Private sector representative with experience in homelessness 

 
2.152.16 FORM OF LOAN DOCUMENTS 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust’s standard loan document is included with this NOFA as 
Attachment B. These loan documents will be modified and negotiated on a project by project basis. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



8  

 THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS 
3.01 COORDINATED ENTRY SYSTEM 
To be eligible to live in units assisted with Orange County Housing Finance Trust funding through 
this NOFA, each potential tenant must be referred by and go through the County of Orange 
Coordinated Entry System (a process developed to ensure that a fair and equal access to housing are 
quickly identified, assessed for, referred, and connected to housing and assistance based on their 
strengths and needs). Trust funded units shall not have additional residency restrictions placed on 
tenancy by local municipalities. 
 
3.02 INCOME LIMITS 
All units assisted with Orange County Housing Finance Trust funding through this NOFA will be 
required to be restricted to households whose income does not exceed Thirty Percent (30%) Area 
Median Income, as adjusted for household size with rents that are affordable to such households. 
Utility costs shall be deducted from the tenants rent so that rent and utilities combined remain at an 
affordable level. Projects receiving funding through the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development’s (HCD’s) Local Housing Trust Fund Program must meet the income 
limits as published by HCD (https://www.hcd.ca.gov/docs/grants-and-
funding/inc2k22.pdfhttps://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/income-limits/state-and-federal-
income-limits/docs/Income-Limits-2021.pdf). 
 
3.03 SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
MHSA units funded by the Trust shall include supportive services to ensure the maximum possible 
self-sufficiency by the tenants. Applicants must meet with the Orange County Health Care Agency 
prior to March 8th, 2022 2023 to ensure the project meets all of the requirements for MHSA funding. 
Requirements for submission to the Health Care Agency can be found in Attachment C.  
See Attachment D – Mental Health Services Act Funding Term Sheet for loan terms and conditions 
applicable to all MHSA funded units. 
 
For projects not applying for MHSA funds through this NOFA, a Social Services Plan and budget is 
required to document anticipated services that will be provided for all other supportive and non-
supportive units in the proposed project. This Social Services Plan shall identify a lead service 
provider and other service providers who will be working with residents. A list of services should be 
included for each population that will be served at the property. 
 
3.04 RESERVES 
Projects funded by the Trust shall include a Capitalized Operating Reserve. Projects that have 
project-based rental assistance, such as Project Based Section 8 or Veterans Affairs Supportive 
Housing (VASH) Vouchers, may forego the Capitalized Operating Reserve. The Capitalized 
Operating Reserve shall provide for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the project and the 
provision of required supportive services throughout the term of the of the loan agreement. 
 
In addition to the Capitalized Operating Reserve, projects shall provide for a Replacement Reserve to 
cover replacement of capitalized cost items. Projects not requesting MHSA funds through the Trust 
shall provide Replacement Reserve at no less than $350/unit/year. Projects requesting MHSA funds 
through the Trust shall provide Replacement Reserves at no less than $500/unit/year, increasing 5% 
every five years. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



9  

 
3.05 COMPLIANCE MONITORING FEE 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust shall charge all projects an annual compliance 
monitoring fee of $95 103 per unit per year, increasing annually in accordance with the Consumer 
Price Index for Los Angeles – Anaheim – Riverside (All Urban Consumers – All Items) (CPI). 
 
3.06 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 
Projects must have all financing committed within 18 months of the Trust’s award letter or risk losing 
their project funding. The Trust reserves the right to extend this time limit at its sole discretion. 
 
3.07 UNDERWRITING ASSUMPTIONS 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust has developed a set of underwriting assumptions to 
evaluate the financial feasibility of each project. These underwriting assumptions as based on the 
requirements of the Trust’s funding sources and industry best practices. The underwriting 
assumptions can be found in Attachment E. Applicants are encouraged to use these underwriting 
assumptions in their project proforma that will be submitted as part of their application to this NOFA. 
Further underwriting requirements are contained in the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development Uniform Multifamily Regulations located at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/uniform-multifamily-
regulationshttps://hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/already-have-funding/uniform-multifamily-
regulations.shtml 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



10  

 SCORING 
Applications will be competitively scored and ranked against other projects requesting the same type 
of funding and located within the same County Service Planning Area (SPA). Scoring serves as a 
basis to compare applications but ultimately the decision to award funds is based upon the Trust 
Board approval. 
 
Project scoring shall be based on the following categories: 

1. Project readiness; 
2. Developer experience; and, 
3. Service enriched location; 
4. Development Pipeline; and, 
3.5.Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing. 

 
Projects that have identical scores based on the project scoring will be ranked by a tie-breaker 
detailed below in Section 4.04, Tiebreaker. 
 
4.01 PROJECT READINESS 
Projects shall be scored on how quickly they will have units ready for occupancy. Projects will 
receive a maximum of 35 points for project readiness. For acquisition/rehab projects, projects will be 
deducted one point for each month past June 1, 2023 for its scheduled loan closing. For new 
construction projects, projects will be deducted one point for each month past December 1, 2023 for 
its scheduled loan closing. 
 
4.02 DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & FINANCIAL STRENGTH 
A maximum of 40 points will be available for applicants based on their prior development experience 
and financial strength. One point will be awarded for every ten (10) units of Permanent Supportive 
and Affordable Housing that the applicant developed and currently operates. Discretionary scoring 
may adjust this number downward based upon the financial strength of the applicant. 
 
4.03 SERVICE ENRICHED LOCATION 
Projects will be awarded a maximum of 25 points based on proximity to nearby amenities.  Distances 
must be measured using a standardized radius from the development site to the target amenity, unless 
that line crosses a significant physical barrier or barriers. Such barriers include highways, railroad 
tracks, regional parks, golf courses, or any other feature that significantly disrupts the pedestrian 
walking pattern between the development site and the amenity. The radius line may be struck from 
the corner of development site nearest the target amenity, to the nearest corner of the target amenity 
site. However, a radius line shall not be struck from the end of an entry drive or on-site access road 
that extends from the central portion of the site itself by 250 feet or more. Rather, the line shall be 
struck from the nearest corner of the site’s central portion. Where an amenity such as a grocery store 
resides within a larger shopping complex or commercial strip, the radius line must be measured to 
the amenity exterior wall, rather than the site boundary. The resulting distance shall be reduced in 
such instances by 250 feet to account for close-in parking. 
 
Amenity definitions and criteria mentioned below shall have the same definition as the California 
Tax Credit Allocation Committee Regulations in effect at the time this NOFA was issued. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



11  

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/ctcac/programreg/2021/20210616/2021-regulations-clean.pdf 
 
4.03.1 Grocery Store 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.25 miles of a full-scale grocery store. Projects 
will be awarded 2 points if they are within 0.50 miles of a grocery store.  
 
4.03.2 Medical Care 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a hospital. Projects will be awarded 
3 points if they are within 0.5 miles of an urgent care facility or qualifying medical clinic with a 
physician, physician’s assistant, or nurse practitioner onsite for a minimum of 40 hours each week 
(not merely a private doctor’s office).  A qualifying medical clinic must accept Medi-Cal payments, 
or Medicare payments or have an equally comprehensive subsidy program for low-income patients. 
 
4.03.3 Community Center 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a public library or community center 
that is open at least 5 days a week to the general public. 
 
4.03.4 Public Park 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a public park.   
 
4.03.5 Transit 
Projects will be awarded 5 points if they are within 0.5 miles of a bus station, or bus stop that provides 
service at least every 30 minutes during the hours of 7-9 a.m. and 4-6 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
If frequency and hours cannot be met but the project is still within 0.5 miles, 3 points will be awarded. 
 
4.04 DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE 
Projects will be awarded 10 points if they are included on the Trust’s Development Pipeline no later 
than December 1, 20212022. New projects can be added to the Trust’s Development Pipeline at any 
time on the Trust’s website at https://ochft.org/development-pipeline. Applicants do not need to show 
evidence of project inclusion on the Trust’s Development Pipeline as part of their application.  
 
4.05 AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING 
Projects will be awarded 8 points if they are located in a High or Highest Resource area designated 
on the 2022 TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Map (https://belonging.berkeley.edu/2022-
tcacopportunity-map). 
 
4.054.06 TIE BREAKER 
Projects receiving identical scores based on the project scoring will be ranked based on a tie breaker. 
The tie breaker is intended to determine the efficiency of each project’s use of Trust funds. The tie 
breaker is a calculation of the requested Trust loan amount per unit in the project. (Total project 
request / total number of affordable units in the project = Trust dollars/unit.) The total number of 
affordable units in the project includes all affordable units, not limited to the number of units the 
applicant is requesting be funded through this NOFA. If a project includes multiple phases, the total 
number of affordable units in the project shall only include the number of units being proposed as 
part of the phase of the project that is being considered as part of the application to this NOFA. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



12  

 APPLICATION 
This NOFA has an online application that is available at 
(https://forms.gle/q51pkrqnntXJwmdX7https://forms.gle/BY24DSFtkXYQkFt49). Applications 
must be submitted through this website no later than 5:00pm, March 22, 20222023. All submissions 
will be automatically date and time stamped. The application will consist of several parts, which are 
described below. 
 
The online application form cannot be saved as a work-in-progress, and can only be saved once fully 
complete. A copy of the entire application form is provided as Attachment F to this NOFA. 
 
5.01 GENERAL APPLICATION FORM 
The General Application Form includes basic information about the project and the applicant. Project 
information will include project name, address, and type of project. Applicant information will 
include the applicant name, contact information, and the legal structure of the applicant. 
 
5.02 PROJECT NARRATIVE 
A narrative description of the project is required. The project narrative must include: 

1. The purpose and the scope of the project. 
2. Identify the neighborhood the project will serve. 
3. Summarize the condition of the housing stock in the neighborhood. 
4. Document neighborhood services (public transportation, schools, shopping, etc.) 
5. Discuss the process and timing to receive entitlement approvals. 

 
The project’s narrative description will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the online 
application form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however applicants are 
encouraged to be concise and brief in describing the project.  
 
5.03 PROJECT VICINITY MAP 
A map showing the project site is required. The map should clearly show the project site boundaries 
and the surrounding neighborhood. In addition, the vicinity map must clearly show all service 
enriched amenities for which the applicant is seeking points for project scoring. The map should 
include the project boundary and numbered location markers showing the location of each amenity 
being used as part of the project scoring points calculation. In the map legend, include the name of 
each amenity and its corresponding numbered location marker, as well as the distance from the 
project site to the amenity. In addition to the one-page map, the applicant shall provide a schedule 
for any transit amenities being claimed as part of the project scoring. The file size for the PDF is 
limited to 100 megabytes.  
 
5.04 PROJECT PROFORMA 
The Orange County Housing Finance Trust will provide all applicants with a blank project proforma 
in Excel for them to fill out and submit as part of their application. The project proforma must be 
summitted in an Excel format. 
 
In the event that the project proforma does not show any repayment of the Trust’s loan within the 
first fifteen years of project operation, a 55-year cashflow project will need to be included as part of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



13  

the project proforma. 
 
5.05 FINANCIAL NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Provide a brief narrative regarding each of the expected funding sources and their expected timing 
and other details indicating likelihood of award. 
 
The project’s financial notes and assumptions will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the 
online application form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however 
applicants are encouraged to be concise and brief in detailing their financial assumptions. Any and 
all residual receipts assumptions must include the criteria listed in 2.10.5. 
 
5.06 PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Provide a project schedule that includes funding milestones (anticipated application and award dates 
for all other funding sources), anticipated construction loan closing date, construction duration, and 
anticipated placed in service date.   
 
The project schedule will be accepted as a PDF. The file size for the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 
 
5.07 DEVELOPMENT TEAM MEMBERS 
Provide the name, address, contact person, telephone number, e-mail address, and resumes for 
members of the proposed project team. Include the developer principals and project manager, 
architect, civil engineer, contractor, and social services provider (if applicable). 
 
The list of development team members and their resumes will be accepted as a PDF. Limit the resume 
of each team member to two pages each. Please exclude any marketing material from all team 
members. The file size for the PDF is limited to 100 megabytes. 
 
5.08 APPLICANT EXPERIENCE 
Provide a brief description of the applicant’s experience developing the type of housing that is being 
proposed. 
 
The applicant’s experience will be submitted as a long-form text entry field in the online application 
form. There is no specific character limit for this text entry field, however applicants are encouraged 
to be concise and brief in detailing their experience.  
 
5.09 APPLICANT FINANCIAL STRENGTH 
Provide the most recent audited financial statements and a schedule of real estate owned. A template 
for the schedule of real estate owned is provided on the Orange County Housing Finance Trust's 
website at https://ochft.org/20222023-notice-of-funding-availability, other formats that include 
similar information will be accepted. 
 
The audited financial statements and schedule of real estate owned will be submitted as separate 
PDFs. The file size for each PDF is limited to 100 megabytes.  
 
5.10 HEALTH CARE AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT LETTER 
Applicants seeking MHSA funding for their project must submit the project to the Orange County 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



14  

Health Care Agency and meet with them prior to March 8th, 2022 2023 to be considered for this 
NOFA. The Health Care Agency requirements for submission are included as Attachment C. The 
Health Care Agency will provide the applicant with a letter of acknowledgement that they are 
working with the applicant to develop a Social Service Plan and that the project meets the 
requirements for MHSA funding.  
 
The Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter will be uploaded as a PDF through the application 
form. The size of the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 
 
5.11 SOCIAL SERVICES PLAN 
All applications shall include a Social Services Plan demonstrating how social services appropriate to 
the needs of the residents will be provided. The Plan shall include provisions specified in Section 3.03 
of this NOFA and provide a description of the proposed social services to be provided, including: 
 

 Target Population 
 Types of Services to be provided 
 Agency which will provide the services and their experience 
 Location of the services (on or off-site, and if off-site, where and provide travel plan for 

clients) 
 Proposed source of funding for services 
 Status of funding for services 
 Any fees to be charged for services 

 
The Social Services Plan should address all populations that will reside in the proposed project. The 
applicant and the Orange County Health Care Agency will work together to develop a Social Services 
Plan for MHSA units funded through this NOFA. That portion of the Social Services Plan does not 
need to be included in this NOFA application, as long as the Health Care Agency has provided an 
Acknowledgement Letter in accordance with 5.10, Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter. 
 
All applicants must identify a qualified service provider that will provide supportive services to the 
residents occupying units assisted under this NOFA. For MHSA units funded through this NOFA, the 
Orange County Health Care Agency shall be the service provider, and will develop the Social Services Plan 
for those units with the applicant. The applicant will be required to arrange for the provision of 
supportive services for the term of the assistance provided under this NOFA. 
 
The social services plan will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The size of the PDF 
is limited to 100 megabytes. 
 
5.12 SOCIAL SERVICES OPERATING BUDGET 
If the applicant is proposing to fund services for the people experiencing homelessness through 
project revenues, or a funding source that is specific to the project, provide a budget for the social 
services. A budget is not required where services are proposed to be provided by third party agencies 
from existing revenue sources. 
 
The social services operating budget will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The 
size of the PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



15  

 
5.13 LEVINE ACT STATEMENT 
An authorized agent of the applicant must review and execute the Levine Act Statement (Attachment 
G). 
 
The Levine Act Statement will be uploaded as a PDF through the application form. The size of the 
PDF is limited to 10 megabytes. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT A LIST OF TRUST MEMBERS 
 

1. Aliso Viejo 
2. Anaheim 
3. Buena Park 
4. Costa Mesa 
5. County of Orange 
6. Dana Point 
7. Fountain Valley 
8. Fullerton 
9. Garden Grove 
10. Huntington Beach 
10.11. Irvine 
11.12. Lake Forest 
12.13. Laguna Beach 
13.14. Laguna Hills 
14.15. Laguna Niguel 
15.16. La Habra 
16.17. Mission Viejo 
17.18. Newport Beach 
18.19. Orange 
19.20. Placentia 
20.21. San Juan Capistrano 
22. Santa Ana 
21.23. Seal Beach 
22.24. Stanton 
23.25. Tustin 
26. Westminster 
24.27. Yorba Linda 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT B LOAN DOCUMENT TEMPLATE 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 

 

 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 

 

 

ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, 

a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq 

 

AND 

 

 

BORROWER 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS LOAN AGREEMENT ("the Agreement") is entered into as of this _____ 
day of _________________, 20[XX], by and between the ORANGE COUNTY 
HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (“OCHFT” or the “Trust”), and [BORROWER] 
("Borrower"), with reference to the following: 

 

RECITALS 

1. Borrower intends to construct a housing project on that certain real 
property located within [unincorporated/the City of [XXXXX], County of Orange, State 
of California, and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Property").  The Borrower further intends to operate a [number 
of units] ([XX]) unit residential development consisting of [insert facts] which shall be 
constructed by Borrower on the Property (collectively, the “Project”). 

2. The Borrower has submitted to the Trust an application for funding of a 
project, described herein, under its 20[XX] Permanent Supportive Housing Notice of 
Funding Availability (“20[XX] PSH NOFA”). 

3. The Trust desires to provide a loan during the construction period (which 
will convert to a permanent loan upon completion of construction of the Project, as set 
forth herein) to Borrower subject to the Borrower’s agreement, amongst other things, to 
encumber the Borrower’s [fee simple/leasehold] interest in the Property with certain 
rental restrictions, all as more particularly set forth in this Loan Agreement and the 
Regulatory Agreement. 

4. The Trust Board of Directors approved a loan to the Borrower from Trust 
funds for permanent financing on [DATE].  

5. Borrower is financing the construction of the improvements and related 
costs and expenses through the following sources: 

[FINANCING SOURCES TO BE OUTLINED FORTHWITH] 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the respective meanings 
assigned to them in this Article I unless the context in which they are used clearly 
requires otherwise: 

1.1. "20[XX] PSH NOFA" shall mean the 20[XX] XXXXX Notice of Funding 
Availability issued by the Trust on [DATE]. 

1.2. "Adjusted Income" shall mean the adjusted income of all persons who intend to 
reside in one residential unit, calculated in the manner which complies with 
determinations of income for low income families under the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 Program of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended. 

1.3. "Agreement" shall mean this Loan Agreement. 

1.4. "Annual Project Revenue" shall mean all of the rental revenue from the 
residential portion of the project but shall not include tenant security deposits, 
capital contributions, insurance or condemnation proceeds, income received for 
the purpose of completing the project, or funding received for the purpose of 
social services to the residents. 

1.5. "Architect" shall mean [NAME OF ARCHITECT], or any other architect 
designated by Borrower and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld conditioned or delayed, as the architect for the Project. 

1.6. "Architect’s Agreement" shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.4, 
hereafter, in which the Borrower has entered into with the Architect. 

1.7. "Area" shall mean Orange County, California.  

1.8. "Assignment of Leases" shall mean that certain Assignment of Lessor’s Interest 
in Leases, Rents and Profits executed by Borrower of even date herewith. 

1.9. "Borrower" shall mean [NAME OF BORROWER] 

1.10. "Close of Escrow" shall mean the date on which the Loan is funded by the Trust 
through the Escrow Holder and the Deed of Trust together with the other Loan 
Documents set up for recording are in fact recorded. 

1.11. "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to 
time hereafter, or any successor statute thereto. 

1.12. "Commencement of Construction" shall mean the date upon which the Senior 
Construction Deed of Trust is fully executed and recorded as a lien upon the 
Property.  

1.13. "Completion of Construction" shall mean the date on which the Borrower has 
submitted to the Trust and the Trust has approved the recorded Notice of 
Completion and the final certificate of occupancy or jurisdictional equivalent, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



and shall, among other things (as set forth in Article VI, herein) be deemed the 
commencement of the Qualified Project Period, as defined hereafter. 

1.14. "Construction Agreement" shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.3, 
hereafter, in which the Borrower has entered into with the Contractor. 

1.15. "Construction Period" shall mean the period beginning with the 
Commencement of Construction and ending upon the Completion of 
Construction, which is estimated to last no more than [number of years] ([X]) 
years.  

1.16. "Contractor" shall mean [NAME OF CONTRACTOR], or any other contractor 
designated by Borrower and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld conditioned or delayed, as the contractor for the Project.  

1.17. "Conversion Date" shall mean the date on which the Construction Period shall 
end and the Qualified Project Period shall begin, on this date the County’s 
construction loan shall convert to a permanent loan as long as all of the 
conditions set forth in Article VI of this Agreement are fulfilled. 

1.18. "Deed of Trust" shall mean that certain Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and 
Security Agreement executed by the Borrower in favor of the Trust of even date 
herewith. 

1.19. "Due Date" shall mean the date which is fifty-five (55) years following the 
Conversion Date, on which all principal and interest due on the Loan shall be 
fully paid. 

1.20. "Escrow Holder" shall mean the escrowholder approved by the Trust for the 
escrow established to facilitate the Close of Escrow. 

1.21. "Extremely Low Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose 
incomes do not exceed the qualifying limits for extremely low income families 
as defined in and California Health & Safety Code section 50106. 

1.22. "Financing Plan" shall mean the financing plan described in Section 5.1 below. 

1.23. "Financing Statement" shall mean the UCC-1 form to be prepared and executed 
by Borrower, in a form satisfactory to the Trust, and delivered to the Trust, the 
filing of which shall give the Trust a perfected security interest in Borrower's 
tangible personal property and fixtures located on or about the Project. 

1.24. "Hazardous Materials" or "hazardous materials" shall mean:  

(a) any oil, flammable substance, explosive, radioactive material, 
hazardous waste or substance, toxic waste or substance or any other waste, 
material, or pollutant that: 

(i) poses a hazard to the Project or to persons on the Project or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(ii) causes the Project to be in violation of any Hazardous 
Substance Law; 

(b) asbestos in any form; 

(c) urea formaldehyde foam insulation; 

(d) transformers or other equipment that contain dielectric fluid 
containing levels of polychlorinated biphenyls; 

(e) radon gas; 

(f) any chemical, material, or substance defined as or included in the 
definition of “hazardous substance,” “hazardous substances,” “hazardous 
wastes,” “hazardous materials,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted 
hazardous waste,” or “toxic substances” or words of similar import under any 
applicable local, state, or federal law or under the regulations adopted or 
publications promulgated pursuant to those laws, including, but not limited to, 
any Hazardous Substance Law, Code of Civil Procedure § 564, as amended from 
time to time, Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, as amended from time to time, 
Code of Civil Procedure §736, as amended from time to time, and Civil Code § 
2929.5, as amended from time to time; 

(g) any other chemical, material, or substance, exposure to which is 
prohibited, limited, or regulated by any governmental authority or which may 
pose a hazard to the health and safety of the occupants of the Project or the 
owners or occupants of property adjacent to or surrounding the Project, or any 
other person coming on the Project or any adjacent property; and 

(h) any other chemical, material, or substance that may pose a hazard 
to the environment flammable materials, explosives, radioactive materials, 
hazardous wastes, toxic substances and similar substances and materials, 
including all substances and materials defined as hazardous or toxic wastes, 
substances or materials under any applicable law, including, without limitation 
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et. seq., as 
amended.  

1.25. "Hazardous Substance Law" means any federal, state, or local law, ordinance, 
regulation, or policy relating to the environment, health, and safety, any 
Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the use, handling, 
transportation, production, disposal, discharge, or storage of the substance), 
industrial hygiene, soil, groundwater, and indoor and ambient air conditions or 
the environmental conditions on the Project, including, without limitation, the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
1980 [42 USCS §§ 9601 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous 
Substances Transportation Act [49 USCS §§ 1801 et seq.], as amended from 
time to time; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act [42 USCS §§ 6901 et 
seq.], as amended from time to time; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act [33 
USCS §§ 1251 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Substance 
Account Act [Health and Safety Code §§ 25300 et seq.], as amended from time 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



to time; the Hazardous Waste Control Law [Health and Safety Code §§ 25100 et 
seq.], as amended from time to time; the Medical Waste Management Act 
[Health and Safety Code §§ 25015 et seq.], as amended from time to time; and 
the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act [Water Code §§ 13000 et seq.], as 
amended from time to time. 

1.26. "HCD" shall mean the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

1.27. "Loan" shall mean the Loan in the amount of [LOAN AMOUNT] ($XXXXX) 
by the Trust to the Borrower, which Loan is the subject of this Agreement.  

1.28. "Loan Documents" shall mean the following documents evidencing the Loan:  
(a) the Note; (b) the Deed of Trust; (c) the Financing Statement; (d) the 
Regulatory Agreement; (e) Request for Notice of Default; (f) the Assignment of 
Rents and Leases; and (g) this Loan Agreement. 

1.29. "Local Housing Trust Fund Program" or "LHTF Program" shall mean the 
Local Housing Trust Fund Matching Grant Program as defined in California 
Health and Safety Code Sections 50842.1 through 50843.5, administered through 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development. 

1.30. "Lower Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose income 
does not exceed the qualifying limits for lower income families as defined in 
California Health & Safety Code section 50079.5. 

1.31. "Management Plan" shall mean that management plan submitted to and 
approved by the Trust pursuant to Section 5.1 below. 

1.32. "Marketing Plan" shall mean that certain Marketing Plan submitted to and 
approved by the Trust pursuant to Section 9.8 hereof. 

1.33. "Median Income for the Area" shall mean the median income for the Area as 
most recently determined by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (“HUD”) and published by the State of California.  In the 
event that such income determinations are no longer published, or are not 
updated for a period of at least eighteen (18) months, the Trust shall provide the 
Borrower with other income determinations which are reasonably similar with 
respect to methods of calculation to those previously published by HUD and The 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 

1.34. "Mortgage Loan" shall mean any of the following loans secured by a mortgage 
or deed of trust on the Project: 

(a) The Loan evidenced by the Note and the balance of the Loan 
Documents. 

(b) Any other loan secured by a mortgage or deed of trust on the 
Project, either senior or junior to the Loan. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



1.35. "Mortgage Loan Documents" shall mean all documents executed by the 
Borrower endorsing or securing a Mortgage Loan. 

1.36. "Mortgagee" shall mean the mortgagee or beneficiary under a mortgage or a 
deed of trust executed in connection with a Mortgage Loan.  

1.37. "Net Operating Income"  or "NOI" shall mean all of the Annual Project 
Revenue of the project less (i) operating expenses of the project as approved by 
the Trust in an annual audit submitted by the Borrower and approved by the 
Trust; (ii) obligated debt service payments on the Project as approved by the 
Trust; (iii) scheduled deposits to reserves, as approved by the Trust; (iv) deferred 
developer fees, as approved by the Trust; and (v) partnership management or 
asset management fees as approved by the Trust.  

1.38. "Note" shall mean the promissory note in the principal amount of Loan 
evidencing the monies borrowed by Borrower from the Trust. 

1.39. "Operating Reserves" shall mean reserves maintained during the Qualified 
Project period and funded out of Residual Receipts, loan advances, equity, or 
other sources and set aside for taxes and assessments, insurance premiums, 
operating expenses, and debt service.  Projects that have project-based rental 
assistance, such as Project Based Section 8 Vouchers, may forego the 
Capitalized Operating Reserve. The Capitalized Operating Reserve shall provide 
for the ongoing operation and maintenance of the project and the provision of 
required supportive services throughout the term of the of the loan agreement.  

1.40. "Parties" shall mean the Trust and the Borrower. 

1.41. "Partnership" shall mean [NAME OF PARTNERSHIP CREATED, IF ANY]. 

1.42. "Permanent Lender" shall mean the permanent lender designated by Borrower 
and approved in advance by the Trust as the Permanent Lender for the Project. 

1.43. "Permanent Term" shall mean the period beginning on the Conversion Date and 
ending on the date that is fifty-five (55) years after the Conversion Date. 

1.44. "Persons and families of low or moderate income" shall mean persons and 
families whose income does not exceed 120 percent of area median income, 
adjusted for family size as further defined in California Health & Safety Code 
section 50093.  

1.45. "Plans and Specifications" shall mean the final set of architectural, structural, 
mechanical, electrical, grading, sewer, water, street and utility plans and 
specifications for the Project, including all supplemental, amendments and 
modifications. 

1.46. "Project" means collectively the Property and the structures and related 
buildings and other improvements now or hereafter located on the Property from 
time to time together with all fixtures and other property owned by the Borrower 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



and located on, or used in connection with, such buildings, structures and other 
improvements. 

1.47. "Property" means the real property legally described on Exhibit "A", which is 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and all rights and 
appurtenances thereunto appertaining. 

1.48. "Qualified Project Period" shall mean the period beginning upon the 
Conversion Date and ending on the date which is fifty-five (55) years after the 
Conversion Date. 

1.49. "Qualified Tenant" or "Qualified Tenants" shall collectively mean the 
individual or individuals occupying the Restricted Units with the Adjusted 
Incomes more particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  The income of individuals shall be determined in a manner 
consistent with determinations of lower income households under Section 8 of 
the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended (or, if such program is 
terminated, in a manner consistent with such determinations under such program 
as is in effect immediately before such termination).  In no event, however, will 
the occupant of a Restricted Unit be considered to be a Qualified Tenant if the 
occupant is a student, and is not entitled to file a federal income tax return. 

1.50. "Regulations" shall mean the Income Tax Regulations promulgated by the 
United States Department of the Treasury pursuant to the Code from time to 
time. 

1.51. "Regulatory Agreement" shall mean that certain Regulatory Agreement and 
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants between the Trust and the Borrower of 
even date herewith.  

1.52. "Replacement Reserves" shall mean reserves maintained during the Qualified 
Project period and funded out of Residual Receipts, loan advances, equity, or 
other sources and set aside for replacement of roofing, furniture, fixtures, 
equipment and other capital expenditures.  The annual amount set aside shall 
provide for a Replacement Reserve to cover replacement of capitalized cost 
items at no less than three hundred and fifty dollars ($350) per unit per year, ,or 
such higher amount as may be required by a tax credit investor or senior 
Mortgagee and approved by Trust. 

1.53. "Request for Notice of Default" shall mean a request for notice of default to be 
recorded against the Property in a form approved by the Trust.  

1.54.  "Residual Receipts" shall mean Net Operating Income (NOI), if any, from the 
project as calculated ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal year, a portion 
of which shall be used to repay the Loan (as required under the Loan 
Documents) and other subordinated loans to the Borrower.  

1.55. "Restricted Unit" or "Restricted Units" means the dwelling units in the Project 
identified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein required to be 
rented to, or held available for occupancy by, Qualified Tenants pursuant to the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



terms, covenants and conditions of the Regulatory Agreement, this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the rental restrictions and other matters set forth in 
said Exhibit "B" and the other Loan Documents. 

1.56. "Tax Credit Investor" shall mean the tax credit investor designated by Borrower 
and approved in advance by the Trust as the Tax Credit Investor for the Project. 

1.57. "Term" shall mean the Construction Period, and the Permanent Term, as 
applicable, for a total possible term of up to fifty-eight (58) years 

1.58. "Trust" shall mean the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California 
public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. 
seq. 

1.59. "Trust Manager" shall mean the Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
Manager or her or his designee. 

1.60. "Underwriting Standards" shall mean those standards approved by the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development for this loan. 

"Very Low Income Households" shall mean persons and families whose incomes do 
not exceed the qualifying limits for very low income families as defined in California 
Health & Safety Code section 50105. 

 

ARTICLE II 

LOAN 

2.1. Amount.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Trust hereby agrees to lend 
and the Borrower hereby agrees to borrow, the Loan, evidenced by the Note, the 
proceeds of which shall be used for construction of the Project and upon 
fulfillment of certain conditions, as set forth herein, to permanently finance the 
Project and for the other purposes set forth herein. 

2.2. Repayment of Loan.  Borrower shall repay the Loan, with interest, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Note and this Agreement.  Except as otherwise 
provided, all payments shall be applied first to interest and then to principal. 

In the event that the Trust is dissolved prior to full repayment of the Loan, 
Borrower shall repay the loan portion comprised of the LHTF Program Funds to 
HCD. 

2.3. Prepayment.  Borrower may pay the principal and any interest due the Trust under 
the Note prior to or in advance of the time for payment thereof as provided in the 
Note, without penalty; provided, however, that Borrower acknowledges the 
provisions of this Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement will be applicable to 
the Project throughout the Qualified Project Period, even though Borrower may 
have prepaid the Note. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



2.4. Assumption.  Subject to the provisions of Section 8.7 hereof, the Note shall not be 
assumable by successors and assigns of Borrower, either voluntarily or by 
operation of law, without the prior written discretionary consent of the Trust and 
any such assignment or assumption without said prior consent of the Trust shall 
be void. 

2.5. Loan Disbursement.  Upon satisfaction of the conditions to disbursement set forth 
in Section 5.1 below and pursuant to the disbursement procedures set forth in 
Section 5.2 below, the Trust, through the approved Escrow Holder, will cause the 
disbursement of the Loan as provided for in Section 5.2. 

2.6. Security for Loan.  The Loan shall be secured by the Deed of Trust, Regulatory 
Agreement, the Financing Statement, Assignment of Leases and the Request for 
Notice of Default which shall be in [XXXXX] priority during the Construction 
Period and in [XXXXX] priority during the Qualified Project Period. 

2.7. Approval of Additional Financing.  Except as to the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust and as otherwise described herein, the 
Borrower shall not place or permit (either voluntarily or involuntarily) to be 
placed any encumbrances, including, but not limited to any additional liens or 
financing of any kind on the Project without the prior written discretionary 
consent of the Trust. 

2.8. Subordination of Deed of Trust.  

(a) Construction Period.  Upon Commencement of Construction, and until the 
beginning of the Qualified Project Period (as long as the conditions set forth 
in Article VI, herein, are fulfilled), the Trust agrees that the Deed of Trust 
may be subordinate to the lien of a permanent loan secured by the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust (and any refinancing of said 
construction loan secured by that Senior Construction/Permanent Deed of 
Trust) securing financing in an amount not to exceed $[XXXXXX] so long as 
(i) the documentation for said loan is approved by the Trust, (ii) said loan is 
otherwise provided for and approved by the Trust in the Financing Plan and 
(iii) the maximum draw on said loan shall not exceed $[XXXXXX] without 
the prior written consent of the Trust. 

(b) Qualified Project Period.  During the Qualified Project Period, as long as the 
conditions set forth in Article VI, herein, are fulfilled and the Conversion 
Date, in addition to the subordination provided for in Section 2.8, the Trust 
agrees that the Deed of Trust may be subordinate to the lien of: a permanent 
loan secured by the Senior Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust (and any 
refinancing of said permanent loan secured by that Senior 
Construction/Permanent Deed of Trust) securing financing in an amount not 
to exceed $[XXXXXXX] so long as (i) the documentation for said loan is 
approved by the Trust and (ii) said loan is otherwise provided for and 
approved by the Trust in the Financing Plan. 

(c) The Trust has approved the [Senior financing], as set forth hereinabove, each 
to which the Trust Deed of Trust is subordinate, [as well as the [junior 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



financing,] Tax Credit Equity and the Deferred Developer Fee.]  Any other 
financing, refinancing or encumbrance of the Project is prohibited without the 
Trust’s prior written consent which consent the Trust may withhold in the 
exercise of its discretion.  

(d) In order to affect the subordinations described above and elsewhere in this 
Agreement, the Trust and Borrower agree to execute and acknowledge for 
recordation a subordination agreement (in a form acceptable to the Trust) in 
favor of the senior lender, as requested by such senior lender.  

 

ARTICLE III 

CONSTRUCTION 

3.1. Construction.  Borrower will diligently proceed with construction of the Project 
and related improvements in accordance with the Plans and Specifications as 
approved by the Trust and the construction lender without delay subsequent to 
the Commencement of Construction.  It is anticipated that the Construction 
Period shall be no more than [number of months] (X) months from 
Commencement of Construction. 

3.2. Force Majeure.  The time within which construction of the Project must be 
completed may be extended for a period of time equal to the period of any delay 
directly affecting construction which is caused by fire, earthquake or other acts 
of God, strike, lockout, acts of public enemy, riot insurrection or governmental 
regulation of the sale or transportation of materials, supplies or labor; provided 
however, that (i) Borrower shall furnish to Trust written notice satisfactory to 
Trust evidencing any such delay within ten (10) business days from the 
occurrence of any such delay, and (ii) the delay shall in no event cause an event 
of default beyond any applicable notice and cure period under, or threaten the 
availability of, the other construction funding or permanent funding for the 
Project.  

3.3. Construction Agreement.  Borrower and Contractor have entered, or will soon 
enter into a Construction Agreement, as approved by the Trust, pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of which Contractor is to construct the Project.  Borrower 
shall require Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms of the 
Construction Agreement and, except with respect to change orders approved 
under Section 3.5 below, shall not amend, modify or alter the responsibilities of 
Contractor under the Construction Agreement without the Trust’s prior written 
consent.  Borrower shall execute, upon the Trust’s written request, an assignment 
of Borrower’s rights under the Construction Agreement to Trust as security for 
Borrower’s performance and obligations under this Agreement and the other 
Loan Documents and shall cause Contractor to consent to any such assignment, 
as necessary. 

3.4. Architect’s Agreement.  Borrower and Architect have entered, or will soon enter 
into an Architect’s Agreement, as approved by the Trust, pursuant to the terms 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



and conditions of which Architect is to design the Project.  Borrower shall 
require Architect to perform in accordance with the terms of the Architect’s 
Agreement and shall not amend, modify or alter the responsibilities of Architect 
under the Architect’s Agreement without the Trust’s prior written consent.  
Borrower shall execute, upon the Trust’s written request, an assignment of the 
Architect’s Agreement and the Plans and Specifications to Trust as additional 
security for Borrower’s performance and obligations under this Agreement and 
the other Loan Documents and shall cause Architect to consent to any such 
assignment, as necessary. 

3.5. Plans and Specifications. 

(a) Changes; Trust Consent.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, 
Borrower shall not make any changes in the Plans and Specifications without 
Trust’s prior written consent if such change: (i) constitutes a material change in 
the building material or equipment specifications, or in the architectural or 
structural design, value or quality of the Project; (ii) would result in an increase of 
construction costs in excess of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for any 
single change, or in excess of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) for all 
such changes; (iii) would affect the structural integrity, quality or building 
materials, or overall efficiency of operating systems of the Project; or (iv) requires 
the approval of the Permanent Lender, Tax Credit Investor or any other third 
party.  Without limiting the above, the Trust agrees that Borrower may make 
minor changes in the Plans and Specifications without Trust’s prior written 
consent, provided that such changes do not violate any of the conditions specified 
herein, and provided that Borrower obtains the consent of the Permanent Lender 
and Tax Credit Investor to all such changes to the extent required by the 
permanent loan documents or any applicable partnership documents.  Borrower 
shall at all times maintain, for inspection by Trust, a full set of working drawings 
of the Project. 

(b) Changes; Submission Requirements.  If Trust’s consent to a change is 
required hereunder, then Borrower shall submit any proposed change in the Plans 
and Specifications to Trust at least ten (10) days prior to the commencement of 
construction relating to such proposed change; otherwise, Borrower shall submit 
plans and changes, which do not require Trust’s consent, with Borrower’s 
subsequent draw request.  Requests for any change which requires consent shall 
be accompanied by working drawings and/or specifications sheet and a written 
description of the proposed change, submitted on a change order form acceptable 
to the Trust, signed by Borrower and, if required by Trust, also by the Architect 
and Contractor.  At its option, Trust may require Borrower to provide: (i) 
evidence satisfactory to Trust of the cost and time necessary to complete the 
proposed change; (ii) a deposit in the amount of any increased costs into 
Borrower’s construction account; and (iii) a complete set of “as built” Plans and 
Specification for the completed Project, including any changes. 

(c) Consent Process.  Borrower acknowledges that Trust’s review of any 
changes and required consents may result in non-material delays in construction 
and hereby consents to any such non-material delays, so long as such non-

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



material delays do not result in penalties or fines imposed on Borrower (e.g., 
liquidated damages under the construction contract, etc.), and the Borrower 
notifies Trust of the possibility of such penalties or fines; provided, however, that 
Trust shall use commercially reasonable efforts to review such changes in a 
timely manner.  Trust shall review and respond to any proposed change order that 
requires Trust’s consent hereunder within ten (10) business days of receipt of the 
requested change order.  If Trust fails to timely respond to a change order request, 
then Borrower may submit to Trust a second request for review and approval, 
which request will include a bolded and capitalized statement that “THIS IS A 
SECOND REQUEST FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CHANGE 
ORDER – FAILURE TO RESPOND WITHIN FIVE (5) BUSINESS DAYS 
SHALL CONCLUSIVELY BE DEEMED TRUST CONSENT THERETO.”  
If Trust fails to respond to the second request for said change order within five (5) 
business days of receipt of the second request, then the applicable change order 
shall be conclusively deemed approved by the Trust. 

(d) Final Plans and Specifications.  Upon Completion of Construction, 
Borrower shall deliver to Trust within thirty (30) days a set of final Plans and 
Specifications. 

3.6. Contractor/Construction Information.  Within ten (10) days of Trust’s written 
request, Borrower shall deliver to Trust from time to time in a form acceptable to 
Trust: (a) a list detailing the name, address and phone number of each contractor, 
subcontractor and material supplier to be employed or used for construction of 
the Project together with the dollar amount, including changes, if any, of each 
contract and subcontract, and the portions, thereof, if any, paid through the date 
of such list; (b) copies of each contact and subcontract identified in such list, 
including changes thereto; (c) a cost breakdown of the projected total cost of 
constructing the Project, and that portion, if any, of each cost item which has 
been incurred; and (d) a construction progress schedule detailing the progress of 
construction and the projected sequencing and completion time for the 
uncompleted work, all as of the date of such schedule. 

3.7. Prohibited Contracts.  Without Trust’s prior written consent, Borrower shall not 
contract for any materials, furnishings, equipment, fixtures or other parts or 
components of the Project, if any third party shall retain any ownership interest 
(other than lien rights created by operation of law) in such items after funds have 
been disbursed to pay for such items.  Borrower shall have five (5) days to effect 
the removal of any such retained interest. 

3.8. Liens and Stop Notices.  If a claim of lien is recorded which affects the Property 
or the Project, or a bonded stop notice is served upon Trust or Borrower, 
Borrower shall, within twenty (20) calendar days of such recording or service or 
within five (5) business days of Trust’s demand, whichever occurs first: (a) pay 
or discharge the claim of lien or bonded stop notice; (b) effect the release thereof 
by recording or delivering to Trust a surety bond in sufficient form and amount; 
or (c) provide Trust with other assurances which Trust deems, in its sole 
discretion,  to be satisfactory for the payment of such claim of lien or bonded 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



stop notice and for the full and continuous protection of Trust for the effect of 
such lien or bonded stop notice. 

3.9. Construction Responsibilities.  Borrower shall construct the Project in a 
workmanlike manner in accordance with the approved Plans and Specification 
and the recommendations of any soils or engineering reports approved by Trust.  
Borrower shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
building restrictions, recorded covenants and restrictions (as approved by the 
Trust), requirements of all regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Property and Project.  Borrower shall be solely responsible for all aspects of 
Borrower’s business and conduct in connection with the Property and Project, 
including, without limitation, for the quality and suitability of the Plans and 
Specification and their compliance with all governmental requirements, the 
supervision of the work of construction, the qualifications, financial conditions 
and performance of all architects, engineers, contractors, material suppliers, 
consultants and property managers, and the accuracy of all applications for 
payment and the proper application of all disbursements. Trust is not obligated to 
supervise, inspect or inform Borrower or any third party of any aspect of the 
construction of the Project or any other matter referred to above. 

3.10. Assessments and Community Facilities Districts.  Without Trust’s prior written 
consent, Borrower shall not cause or allow to become effective or otherwise 
consent to the formation of any assessment district or community facilities 
district which includes all or any part of the Property and Project pursuant to: (a) 
the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982; (b) the Municipal 
Improvement Act of 1913; or (c) any other comparable or similar statute or 
regulation.  Nor shall Borrower cause or otherwise consent to the levying of 
special taxes or assessments against the Property or Project by any such 
assessment district or community facilities district. 

3.11. Delay.  Borrower shall promptly notify Trust in writing of any event causing 
delay or interruption of construction, or the timely Completion of Construction.  
The notice shall specific the particular work delayed, and the cause and period of 
each delay. 

3.12. Inspections.  Trust, or Trust’s authorized representative, shall have the right to 
enter upon the Property at all reasonable times to inspect the Project and the 
construction work to verify information disclosed or required pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any inspection or review of the Project by the Trust is solely to 
determine whether the Borrower is properly discharging its obligations to Trust 
under this Agreement and may not be relied upon by Borrower or any third party 
as a representation or warranty of compliance with this Agreement or any other 
agreement.  Trust owes no duty of care to Borrower or any third party with 
regard to any negligent, faulty, inadequate or defective design or construction of 
the Project as determined by Trust. 

3.13. Surveys.  Upon Trust’s written request, Borrower shall promptly deliver to Trust: 
(a) a perimeter survey of the property; (b) upon completion of the foundations of 
the Project, a survey showing the location of the improvements constituting the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Project on the Property and confirming that the Project is located entirely within 
the Property and does not encroach upon any easement or breach or violate any 
governmental requirement; and (c) upon Completion of the Construction, an “as 
built” survey as set forth in Section 6.1(d) below.  All such surveys shall be 
performed and certified by a licensed engineer or surveyor acceptable to the title 
insurer. 

3.14. Letter of Credit.  Borrower’s contractor on the Project has provided a letter of 
credit in compliance with the Senior Mortgage Loan Document. If requested by 
Trust, within five (5) calendar days of such request, Borrower shall deliver to 
Trust evidence of such letter of credit.  If requested, by Trust, Borrower shall 
record said letter of credit, the Plans and Specifications and the Construction 
Agreement, if any, in the Office of the County Recorder. 

3.15. Trust’s Cessation of Construction.  If Trust reasonably determines at any time that 
the Project is not being constructed in accordance with the Plans and 
Specification and all governmental requirements, Trust may immediately cause 
all construction to cease on any of the Project improvements affected by the 
condition of nonconformance.  Borrower shall thereafter not allow any 
construction work, other than corrective work, to be performed on any of the 
Project affected by the condition of nonconformance until such time as the Trust 
notified the Borrower in writing that the nonconforming condition has been 
corrected to Trust’s reasonable satisfaction. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

QUALIFIED PROJECT PERIOD 

4.1. Use and Rent Restrictions. 

(a) During the Qualified Project Period, the Project shall be “Affordable” as 
defined in 24 CFR Part 92.252 and LHFT Program Guidelines Section 
105(c)(d)(e) as published by HCD, and in compliance with Trust policies 
associated with the 20[XX] PSH NOFA for a period of not less than fifty-five 
(55) years.   

(b) In accordance with the provisions of the Regulatory Agreement, this Loan 
Agreement and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein, the 
Borrower has agreed to rent the Restricted Units of the Project to Qualified 
Tenants for the Qualified Project Period at the rents described in said Exhibit “B.” 

(c) Borrower agrees to provide to Qualified Tenants notice of all rent 
increases pursuant to applicable California law. 

(d) Borrower agrees to limit rent increases to (i) the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually published Rent Adjustment factor for 
the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the rent established as affordable 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set 
forth in Exhibit “B”, which is adjusted annually by HUD and published by the 
State of California.  

4.2. Income Determination.  For the purposes of this section, the income of individuals 
and families and the area median gross income shall be determined in a manner 
consistent with determinations of lower income families and the Median Income 
for the Area under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as 
amended (or, if such program is terminated, in a manner consistent with such 
determinations under such program as is in effect immediately before such 
termination).  Determinations under the preceding sentence shall include 
adjustments for household size. 

4.3. Certifications.  With respect to those Restricted Units subject to the rental 
restrictions described above, during the Qualified Project Period the Borrower 
will comply with the Qualified Tenant certifications and recertifications in the 
same manner as prescribed under the Regulatory Agreement. Said certifications 
and recertifications shall include, but not be limited to, client name, address, and 
verifiable income level (as documented by income tax returns, employee payroll 
records, retirement statements, etc. or other third party documentation approved 
by the Trust for determining eligibility).  Such information shall be made 
available to Trust monitors, or their designees, for review upon request. 

4.4. Records. 

(a) The Borrower will maintain complete and accurate records as required by 
Federal Regulations specified in 24 CFR 92.508, which shall contain a description 
of each activity undertaken, records pertaining to the Restricted Units, records 
documenting compliance with fair housing and equal opportunity components, 
financial records as required by 24 CFR 92.508 (a)(5), other records to document 
compliance with Subpart K of 24 CFR 92, and records documenting the continued 
affordability and income restrictions outlined in Exhibit “B”.   

(b) The Borrower will permit any duly authorized representatives of the Trust 
to inspect and copy the books and records of the Borrower pertaining to the 
Project, including those books and records pertaining to the occupancy of the 
Restricted Units provided that the Trust will make a reasonable effort to provide 
notice of at least forty-eight (48) hours to inspect, examine, or make copies of 
such information. 

(c) Borrower will retain such records for a period of five (5) years after the 
termination of all activities funded under this Agreement. 

 
4.5. Leases.  Each lease pertaining to a Restricted Unit shall contain provisions to the 

effect that the Borrower has relied on the income certification and supporting 
information supplied by the Qualified Tenant in determining qualification for 
occupancy of the Restricted Unit, and that any material misstatement in such 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



certification (whether or not intentional) will be cause for immediate termination 
of such lease. Trust reserves the right to require additional non-financial terms or 
clauses that are reasonably related to such qualifications (including, but not 
limited to additional disclosure clauses) that the Trust may from time to time 
deem appropriate or necessary to be included in said leases. 

 

ARTICLE V 

DISBURSEMENT OF LOAN 

5.1. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement of Loan Proceeds.  The Trust shall cause 
Loan proceeds to be disbursed through escrow to the Borrower as set forth in this 
Article V.  No disbursement shall be made until all of the following conditions 
precedent are satisfied: 

(a) Execution and Delivery of Documents.  Borrower shall have executed and 
delivered to the Trust (i) this Agreement, the Note, the Deed of Trust, the 
Financing Statement, the Regulatory Agreement, and the Assignment of Leases, 
(ii) all resolutions and certificates necessary or appropriate in the opinion of the 
Trust to evidence the Borrower's authority to enter into the Loan and be bound by 
the Loan Documents, and (iii) all other documents and instruments required by 
the Trust to be executed and delivered, all in form and substance satisfactory to 
the Trust. 

(b) Insurance.  Borrower shall have furnished the Trust with certificates of 
insurance for all policies required under this Agreement. 

(c) Phase One Environmental Assessment Report.  Borrower shall have 
provided the Trust with a Phase One Environmental Assessment Report on the 
Property prepared by a licensed and registered environmental engineer or other 
qualified party satisfactory to Trust, along with any other information the Trust 
may require, in each case stating that no hazardous substances are present in, on, 
under or around the Property and that no condition or circumstances warranting 
further investigation now exists. 

(d) Phase Two Environmental Assessment Report.  If the Phase One 
Environmental Assessment Report recommends further investigation, the 
Borrower shall provide a Phase Two Environmental Assessment Report on the 
Property prepared by a licensed and registered environmental engineer or other 
qualified party satisfactory to Trust, along with any other information the Trust 
may require, in each case stating that no hazardous substances are present in, on, 
under, or around the Property and that no condition or circumstances warranting 
further investigation now exists or prevent the construction and habitation of the 
Project. 

(e) Compliance with Applicable Requirements.  The Borrower shall have 
submitted to the Trust evidence that the Property and its intended use are in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



compliance with all applicable building, zoning and other requirements of 
applicable public authorities. 

(f) Financing Plan.  The Borrower shall have submitted and the Trust shall 
have approved the Borrower's plan for the permanent financing of the Project 
("Financing Plan"). 

(g) Title Policy.  Borrower shall, at its sole expense, have delivered to the 
Trust an ALTA loan policy-2006, with ALTA endorsement Form 1 coverage, 
amended 6/1/87, without further revision or amendment, issued by an insurer 
satisfactory to the Trust, together with an unconditional CLTA 100 endorsement, 
a CLTA 103.7 endorsement, a CLTA 116.1 endorsement, an ALTA Form 8.1 
endorsement and all other endorsements and binders required by the Trust, 
naming the Trust as the insured, in a policy amount of not less than the Loan, 
showing Borrower as the owner of the Property [OR showing the County/City as 
the owner of the Property with evidence of a long-term ground lease by 
Borrower] and insuring the Deed of Trust to be a valid [number] lien on the 
Property during the Construction Period, subject only to printed exceptions and 
exclusions to the title policy and other Schedule “B” exceptions approved by the 
Trust, and exceptions approved by the Trust in Section 2.8 above. 

(h) Recordation.  The Regulatory Agreement, Deed of Trust, Assignment of 
Leases and Financing Statement shall have been recorded, in that order, in the 
Official Records of Orange County. 

(i) Senior Construction Deed of Trust.  The Mortgage Loan Documents for 
the Senior Construction Loan shall have been recorded in such order as directed 
by the said senior construction lender. 

(j) No Default.  There shall exist no condition, event or act which would 
constitute an Event of Default (as hereinafter defined) hereunder or which, upon 
the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would constitute an Event of 
Default. 

(k) Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower herein contained shall be true and correct. 

(l) Availability of Funds.  The Borrower has submitted to the Trust and the 
Trust has approved in the exercise of its discretion evidence that the funds 
identified as committed to the acquisition of the Property in the approved 
Financing Plan are in fact unconditionally and readily available to Borrower for 
the Property as of the Close of Escrow. 

(m) Priority of Regulatory Agreement.  The Regulatory Agreement has been 
executed and recorded as a lien senior to the Deed of Trust.  

5.2. Procedure for Disbursement of Loan Proceeds.  When all the conditions to 
disbursement have been satisfied, the Trust shall deposit the Loan with the 
Escrow Holder for disbursement upon the Close of Escrow in accordance with 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



the terms of separate written escrow instructions between the Trust and 
Borrower.  Said agreement shall be deposited into escrow. 

5.3. Waiver; Termination.  No waiver of any of the conditions to the Close of Escrow 
and disbursement of the Loan shall be permitted unless agreed to in writing by 
the Trust.  If any of the conditions to disbursement of the Loan are not satisfied 
within ninety (90) days following the date of this Agreement, Trust may 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Borrower.  Upon such 
termination, the parties shall have no further rights or obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

QUALIFIED PROJECT PERIOD 

6.1. Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Qualified Project Period.  Prior to the 
end of the Construction Period and as conditions precedent to the occurrence of 
the Conversion Date and commencement of the Qualified Project Period, all of 
the following conditions precedent must be satisfied: 

(a) Tax Credit Equity.  Borrower shall have secured the anticipated tax credit 
equity, as set forth in the Financing Plan. 

(b) Completion of Construction; Notice of Completion; Permits.  The 
Borrower shall have submitted to the Trust and the Trust shall have approved the 
recorded Notice of Completion, the final certificate of occupancy, or jurisdictional 
equivalent, and any other evidence required by Trust that the Project and its 
intended use are in compliance with all applicable building, zoning and other 
requirements of applicable public authorities. 

(c) Mechanic’s Liens.  The Borrower shall have submitted to Trust for Trust 
approval evidence that all construction costs have been paid in full and that the 
period for filing of mechanic’s liens has expired without the filing of any lien. 

(d) As-Built Survey.  Borrower shall have delivered and the Trust shall have 
approved a final, as-built ALTA survey for the Project showing the location of all 
improvements in and to the Project as well as: (i) all “setbacks” and other 
restrictions applicable to the Project pursuant to requirements of applicable public 
authorities, (ii) all easements, licenses and other rights of way, (iii) that no 
encroachments onto the Project or from the Project onto adjoining property and 
(iv) certifying the legal description of the Project as insured in the title policy. 

(e) Title Policy.  Borrower shall, at its sole expense, have delivered to Trust 
an ALTA loan policy-2006, with ALTA endorsement Form 1 coverage, amended 
6/1/87, without further revision or amendment, issued by an insurer satisfactory to 
Trust, together with an unconditional CLTA 100 endorsement, a CLTA 103.7 
endorsement, a CLTA 116.1 endorsement, an ALTA Form 8.1 endorsement and 
all other endorsements and binders required by Trust, naming Trust as the insured, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



in a policy amount of not less than the Loan, showing Borrower as the owner of 
the Property and insuring the Deed of Trust to be a valid [number] lien on the 
Property, subject only to printed exceptions and exclusions to the title policy and 
other Schedule “B” exceptions approved by the Trust, and exceptions approved 
by the Trust in Section 2.8(c) above. 

(f) No Default.  There shall exist no condition, event or act which would 
constitute an Event of Default (as hereinafter defined) hereunder or which, upon 
the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, would constitute an Event of 
Default.  

(g) Management Plan.  The Borrower shall have submitted and the Trust shall 
have approved a Management Plan ("Management Plan").  The Management Plan 
shall include a management contract with a manager approved in writing by the 
Trust for management of the Project and a plan for long-term marketing, 
operation, maintenance, repair and security of the Project, method of selection of 
tenants, and for rental policies in compliance with HUD and HOME 
requirements, policies and procedures and with the Regulatory Agreement, along 
with any other policies or procedures required by the Trust.  The Management 
Plan shall also include an initial budget for the Project.  

(h) Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower herein contained shall continue to be true and correct. 

(i) Availability of Funds.  The Borrower has submitted to the Trust and the 
Trust has approved in the exercise of its discretion evidence that the funds 
identified as committed to the Project in the approved Financing Plan are in fact 
unconditionally and readily available to Borrower for the Project as of the 
commencement of the Qualified Project Period. 

(j) Utilities.  All utility services, including gas, water, sewage, electrical and 
telephone, which are necessary or appropriate for the use and occupancy of the 
Project, are available, connected and functioning. 

6.2. Waiver.  No waiver of any of the conditions to commencement of the Qualified 
Project Period shall be permitted unless agreed to in writing by the Director.   

6.3. Conversion Date.  The Conversion Date shall be that date on which all of the 
conditions set forth in this Article VI are fulfilled and the Construction Period 
ends and the Qualified Project Period begins (whereby the Trust’s Loan shall 
convert to a permanent loan).  In the event that the Conversion Date does not 
occur upon the Completion of Construction, the Loan shall be immediately due 
and payable upon demand, as set forth herein and in the Note. 

6.4. Extension; Loan Repayment.  If any of the conditions precedent as set forth in this 
Article VI has not been completed by the end of the Construction Period, the 
Director may, in the sole and absolute discretion of Director, grant an extension 
as an addition to the Construction Period.  In the event such extension is not 
granted, the Loan shall immediately become due and payable upon written 
demand of the Director, as set forth herein and in the Note. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

ARTICLE VII 

LEASES 

7.1. Standard Form Leases.  On or before the commencement of the Qualified Project 
Period, Borrower shall submit to Trust for its written approval a standard form of 
residential lease to be used for leasing of the Project (the “Standard Lease”).  The 
Standard Lease shall be in compliance with all applicable laws and Borrower 
shall be obligated to revise said Standard Lease from time to time to comply with 
any changes in said applicable laws.  

7.2. Leasing Program.  Borrower shall market and lease the Project consistent with the 
Marketing Plan described in Section 9.8 hereof. 

7.3. Pro-Forma Schedules.  Attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” is 
the rental rate schedule for the Units at the Project approved by Trust. 

7.4. No Changes.  Borrower shall not materially modify the approved Standard Lease 
or materially deviate from the approved rental rate schedule for the Units without 
the Trust’s prior written consent in each instance, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

7.5. Landlord’s Obligations.  Borrower shall timely and in good faith, perform all 
obligations required to be performed by it as landlord under any lease affecting 
any part of the Project or any space within the Project.  If any tenant at any time 
claims any breach of landlord’s obligations and the amount of such claim (in 
excess of available insurance coverage) is $10,000 or more, Borrower shall 
promptly notify Trust of such claim. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER 

8.1. Representations and Warranties.  Borrower hereby makes the following 
representations and warranties to the Trust, each of which shall also be deemed a 
covenant and all of the following, Borrower agrees, shall continue to be true and 
accurate in all material respects so long as the Loan or any portion thereof 
remains outstanding: 

(a) Organization.  Borrower is duly organized, validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of the State of California and has the power and authority 
to own its property and carry on its business as now being conducted.  The copies 
of the documents evidencing the organization of Borrower delivered to the Trust 
are true and correct copies of the originals, as amended to the date of this 
Agreement, and Borrower will promptly provide the Trust with copies of any 
modifications thereto. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(b) Authority of Borrower.  Borrower has full power and authority to execute 
and deliver this Agreement and to make and accept the borrowings contemplated 
hereunder, to execute and deliver the Loan Documents and all other documents or 
instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to 
this Agreement, and to perform and observe the terms and provisions of all of the 
above. 

(c) Authority of Persons Executing Documents.  This Agreement and the 
Loan Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, 
or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement have been executed 
and delivered by persons who are duly authorized to execute and deliver the same 
for and on behalf of Borrower, and all actions required under Borrower's 
organizational documents and applicable governing law for the authorization, 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Loan Documents 
and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed 
and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, have been duly taken. 

(d) Valid Binding Agreements.  This Agreement and the Loan Documents and 
all other documents or instruments which have been executed and delivered 
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement constitute or, if not yet executed 
or delivered, will when so executed and delivered constitute, legal, valid and 
binding obligations of Borrower enforceable against the Borrower in accordance 
with their respective terms. 

(e) No Breach of Law or Agreement.  Neither the execution nor delivery of 
this Agreement and the Loan Documents or of any other documents or 
instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed or delivered, pursuant to 
this Agreement, nor the performance of any provision, condition, covenant or 
other term hereof or thereof, will conflict with or result in a breach of any statute, 
rule or regulation, or any judgment, decree or order of any court, board, commis-
sion or agency whatsoever binding on Borrower and in effect at the time of 
execution of this Agreement, or any provision of the organizational documents of 
Borrower or, if applicable, of its constituent partners, or will conflict with or 
constitute a breach of or a default under any agreement to which Borrower, or, if 
applicable, its constituent partners, is a party, or will result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien upon any assets or property of Borrower, other than liens 
established pursuant hereto. 

(f) Pending Proceedings.  Borrower is not in default under any law or 
regulation or under any order of any court, board, commission or agency 
whatsoever, and there are no claims, actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to 
the knowledge of Borrower, threatened against Borrower or the Property or 
Project, at law or in equity, before or by any court, board, commission or agency 
whatsoever which might, if determined adversely to Borrower, materially affect 
Borrower's ability to repay the Loan or impair the security to be given to the Trust 
pursuant hereto. 

(g) Compliance with Laws; Consents and Approvals.  The Project shall 
comply at all times with all applicable laws (including but not limited to all 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Hazardous Substances Laws), ordinances, rules and regulations of federal, state, 
and local governments and agencies, and with all applicable directions, rules and 
regulations of the fire marshal, health officer, building inspector, and other 
officers of any such government or agency.  All consents, permissions and 
licenses required by any federal, state, or local government or agency to which the 
Borrower, the Property or the Project is subject, which may be necessary in 
relation to this Agreement or the ownership or operation of the Project, have been 
or will be obtained. 

(h) Financial Statements.  The financial statements of the Borrower and its 
constituent partners, if any, and other financial data and information furnished by 
the Borrower for review by the Trust relating to the financial condition of 
Borrower or any of Borrower’s constituent partners or the Project, fairly present 
the information contained therein.  As of the date of Loan disbursement, there will 
not have been any adverse material change in the financial condition of the 
Borrower or its constituent partners from that shown by such financial statements 
and other data and information. 

(i) Adequacy of Loan.  The amount of the Loan, together with any funds to 
be provided by the Borrower or to the Borrower from any other sources, is 
adequate to pay all costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the 
Property and to enable the Borrower to satisfy the covenants contained in this 
Agreement. 

(j) Payment of Taxes.  All federal, state, county, and municipal taxes required 
to be paid by the Borrower or on account of the Property have been paid in full as 
of the date of this Agreement or will be paid in full by the Close of Escrow.  
Borrower knows of no basis for any additional assessment of taxes as of this date.  

(k) Regulatory Agreement.  The Project is, and will at all times remain, in 
compliance with all requirements of this Agreement and the Regulatory 
Agreement.  The units in the Project shall be rented or available for rental on a 
basis which satisfies the requirements of the Regulatory Agreement.  All leases 
will comply with all applicable laws and the Regulatory Agreement.     

 

ARTICLE IX 

CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWER 

9.1. Applicability.  For the longer of the entire Term, or so long as the Note remains 
outstanding, the Borrower shall comply with the provisions of this Article IX. 

9.2. Compliance with Loan Documents.  Borrower shall promptly comply with all the 
terms, covenants and provisions of the Loan Documents. 

9.3. Taxes and Assessments.  So long as Borrower owns the Property and the Project, 
Borrower shall pay all real and personal property taxes, assessments and charges, 
and all franchise, income, unemployment, old age benefit, withholding, sales, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



and other taxes assessed against it, or payable by it, at such times and in such 
manner as to prevent any delinquency or penalty from accruing, or any lien or 
charge from attaching to the Project; provided, however, that Borrower shall 
have the right to contest in good faith any such taxes, assessments, or charges.  In 
the event Borrower exercises its right to contest any tax, assessment, or charge 
against it, Borrower, on final determination of the proceeding or contest, shall 
immediately pay or discharge any decision or judgment rendered against it, 
together with all costs, charges, and interest. 

9.4. Indemnity.  

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to indemnify, 
hold harmless and defend the Trust and its elected officials, officers, governing 
members, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified 
Parties"), from and against any and all losses, damages, claims, actions, liabilities, 
reasonable costs and expenses of any and every conceivable nature, kind or 
character (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, litigation and 
court costs, amounts paid in settlement and amounts paid to discharge judgments) 
to which the Indemnified Parties, or any of them, may become subject to under 
any statutory law (including federal or state securities laws) or at common law or 
otherwise, arising out of or based upon or in any way relating to: 

(i) the Loan Documents or the execution or amendment thereof or in 
connection with the transactions contemplated thereby; 

(ii) Borrower’s ownership or operation of the Project or any act or 
omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees or licensees in connection with the Loan or the Project, the 
operation of the Project, or the condition, environmental or otherwise, 
occupancy, use, possession, conduct or management of work done in or 
about, or from the planning, design, acquisition, installation, operation or 
rehabilitation of, the Project or any part thereof; 

(iii) any lien or charge upon payments by the Borrower to the Trust, or 
any taxes (including, without limitation, all ad valorem taxes and sales 
taxes), assessments, impositions and other charges imposed on the Trust in 
respect of any portion of the Project; 

(iv) any violation of any environmental law, rule or regulation with 
respect to, or the release of any toxic substance from, the Project or any 
part thereof;  

(v) any untrue statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue 
statement or alleged misleading statement of a material fact by the 
Borrower contained in any Loan Document or any of the documents or 
instruments relating to said Loan Documents that the Trust relied upon in 
making the Loan except to the extent such damages are caused by the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Party. In the 
event that any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified 
Party with respect to which indemnity may be sought hereunder, the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Borrower, upon written notice from the Indemnified Party, shall assume 
the investigation and defense thereof, including the employment and 
payment for counsel selected by the Indemnified Party, and shall assume 
the payment of all reasonable expenses related thereto, with full power to 
litigate, compromise or settle the same; provided that the Indemnified 
Party shall have the right to review and approve or disapprove any such 
compromise or settlement. 

(vi) If judgment is entered against Borrower and Trust by a court of 
competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of 
Trust or Indemnified Parties, Borrower and Trust agree that liability will 
be apportioned as determined by the court.   Neither Party shall request a 
jury apportionment. 

9.5. Entry by the Trust.  Borrower shall permit the Trust, through its officers, agents, 
or employees, at all reasonable times to enter into or onto the Property or the 
Project and inspect the Project to determine that the same is in conformity with 
the Loan Documents and all the requirements hereof.  Borrower acknowledges 
that the Trust is under no obligation to supervise, inspect, or inform Borrower of 
the results of its said inspection(s) and Borrower shall not rely upon the Trust 
therefor.  Any inspection by the Trust is entirely for its purposes in determining 
whether Borrower is in default under this Agreement or the Loan Documents. 
Borrower shall rely entirely upon its own supervision and inspection. 

9.6. Entry by HCD.  As required by the HCD as a condition of the LHTF Program, 
Borrower shall permit HCD, through its officers, agents, or employees, at all 
reasonable times to enter into or onto the Property or the Project and inspect the 
Project to determine that the same is in conformity with the Loan Documents and 
all the requirements hereof.  Borrower acknowledges that HCD is under no 
obligation to supervise, inspect, or inform Borrower of the results of its said 
inspection(s) and Borrower shall not rely upon HCD therefor.  Any inspection by 
HCD is entirely for its purposes in determining whether Borrower is in default 
under this Agreement or the Loan Documents. Borrower shall rely entirely upon 
its own supervision and inspection. 

9.7. Hazardous Materials.  Borrower shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
Trust, and its respective elected and appointed officials, members, directors, 
officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from and against any loss, 
damage, cost, expense or liability directly or indirectly arising out of or 
attributable to the use, generation, storage, release, threatened release, discharge, 
disposal, or presence of hazardous materials on, under, or about the Project, 
including without limitation:  (a) all foreseeable consequential damages; (b) the 
costs of any required or necessary repair, cleanup or detoxification of the Project 
and the preparation and implementation of any closure, remedial or other 
required plans; and (c) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Trust or 
Trust in connection with clauses (a) and (b), including but not limited to 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



9.8. Signage During Construction.  As required by the HCD as a condition of the 
LHTF Program, during the Construction Period, if Borrower elects to place a 
sign or signs identifying the Project that is visible to the public, Borrower shall 
include the following language on the sign, “Funding provided by the Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust and the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development.” If the Borrower does not elect to place a sign on the 
Property identifying the Project, HCD may place one or more signs on the 
property stating that it is providing financing for the development. 

9.9. Transfers.  During the Term, Borrower shall not sell or otherwise transfer the 
Project or any portion thereof, and none of the constituent general partners of 
Borrower shall sell or otherwise transfer their interests in Borrower, and none of 
the constituent general partners in a partnership that is a partner in Borrower 
shall sell or otherwise transfer their interest in such partnership without first 
obtaining the approval of the Trust, which consent the Trust may withhold or 
grant in the exercise of its good faith discretion.  The Trust shall not approve any 
such transfer request if the Borrower is in default under any of the Loan 
Documents or the Management Plan. 

9.10. Management; Annual Marketing and Management Plans.  Any management 
company of the Project and the management agreement with such management 
company shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Trust.  The 
management agreement shall not be amended, modified, supplemented, 
terminated or canceled without the prior written consent of the Trust.  Borrower 
and the Trust (if it so elects) will cooperate in the marketing of the units on the 
Property pursuant to a marketing plan (the “Marketing Plan”) prepared by the 
Borrower and approved by the Trust.  Said Marketing Plan and the Management 
Plan described in Section 6.1 hereof shall be prepared by the Borrower and 
approved by the Trust on an annual basis; however, the Borrower shall provide 
quarterly written supplements to said approved plans (or more frequently if 
requested by the Trust).   

9.11. Operation and Maintenance of Project.   

(a) Operation.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall at all 
times operate on the Project an affordable housing rental facility in compliance 
with this Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement. 

(b) Maintenance.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower agrees to 
maintain all interior and exterior improvements, including landscaping (and all 
abutting ground, sidewalks, roads, parking and landscape areas) on the Project in 
good condition, repair and sanitary condition (and, as to landscaping, in a healthy 
condition) and in accordance with any Management Plan approved by the Trust 
under the Loan Agreement (including without limitation any landscape and 
signage plans), as the same may be amended from time to time, and all other 
applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and regulations of all federal, state, 
county, municipal, and other governmental agencies and bodies having 
jurisdiction and all their respective departments, bureaus, and officials.  Borrower 
acknowledges the great emphasis the Trust places on quality maintenance to 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



protect its investment and to provide quality low income housing for its 
constituents and to ensure that all Trust-subsidized affordable housing projects 
within the Trust are not allowed to deteriorate due to deficient maintenance.  In 
addition, Borrower shall keep the Project free from all graffiti and any 
accumulation of debris or waste material.  Borrower shall promptly make all 
repairs and replacements necessary to keep the Project in good condition and 
repair and shall promptly eliminate all graffiti and replace dead and diseased 
plants and landscaping with comparable approved materials.  Borrower shall not 
commit or permit any waste or deterioration of the Project, shall not abandon any 
portion of the Project, and shall not otherwise act, or fail to act, in such a way as 
to unreasonably increase the risk of damage to the Project. 

In the event that Borrower breaches any of the covenants contained in this Section 
9.9 and such default continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice 
from Trust (with respect to graffiti, debris, waste material, and general mainte-
nance) or thirty (30) days after written notice from Trust (with respect to 
landscaping and building improvements), then Trust, in addition to whatever other 
remedies it may have under this Agreement, the other Loan Documents or at law 
or in equity, shall have the right to enter upon the Project and perform or cause to 
be performed all such acts and work necessary to cure the default.  Pursuant to 
such right of entry, the Trust shall be permitted (but not required) to enter upon 
the Project and perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain and 
preserve the improvements and landscaped areas on the Project, in the amount of 
the expenditure arising from such acts and work of protection, maintenance, and 
preservation by Trust and/or reasonable costs of such cure, including a fifteen 
percent (15%) administrative charge, which amount shall be promptly paid by 
Borrower to Trust upon demand. 

(c) Removal of Personal Property.  During the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower shall not cause or permit the removal from the Project of any items of 
Borrower’s personal property (other than tools and equipment used in the 
operation of the Project) unless (i) no Event of Default remains uncured and (ii) 
Borrower promptly substitutes and installs on the Project other items of equal or 
greater value in the operation of the Project, all of which shall be free of liens and 
shall be subject to the liens of the Deed of Trust and the Financing Statement and 
executes and delivers to Trust all documents required by Trust in connection with 
the attachment of such liens to such items.  Borrower shall keep detailed records 
of such removal and shall make such records available to Trust upon written 
request from time to time. 

9.12. Status of Borrower.  Borrower shall at all times maintain its legal status and all 
material licenses, rights, franchises and privileges in the jurisdiction of its 
formation in good standing and comply with all laws, rules and regulations of 
California and the United States and of any political subdivision thereof 
applicable to it or its business. 

9.13. Insurance.  While any obligation of Borrower under any Loan Document remains 
outstanding, Borrower shall maintain at Borrower's sole expense, the following 
policies of insurance in form and substance as follows: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(a) Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and Employers’ Liability 
insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence; 

(b) Builder's all-risk insurance covering one hundred percent (100%) of the 
replacement cost of the Project during the course of any construction or 
reconstruction in the event of fire, lightning, windstorm, vandalism, malicious 
mischief, and all other risks normally covered by extended coverage policies in 
the locality where the Project is situated (including insurance against loss by flood 
if the Project is located in an area now or hereafter designated as subject to the 
danger of flood); 

(c) Fire and hazard "all risk" insurance with boiler and machinery coverage, 
covering one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost of the Project in the 
event of fire, lightning, windstorm, vandalism, malicious mischief and all other 
risks normally covered by "all risk" coverage policies in the locality where the 
Project is situated (including insurance against loss by flood if the Project is 
located in an area now or hereafter designated as subject to the danger of flood, 
but excluding insurance against loss by earthquake), which coverage shall also 
include Project fixtures, furniture and equipment owned by Borrower and 
business income of at least one (1) year ; 

(d) General liability insurance in an amount not less than $5,000,000 for 
combined single limit per occurrence to cover bodily injury and property damage 
and $5,000,000 in the aggregate; 

(e) All such insurance shall be endorsed to provide that said insurance may 
not be canceled or materially modified without 30 days' prior written notice to the 
Trust.  The policies required pursuant to subparagraphs (b) and (c), above, shall 
include a "lender's loss payable endorsement" (Form 438BFU) in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Trust assuring Trust that all proceeds shall be paid to 
Trust as provided in the Deed of Trust subject to the interests of the senior lenders 
on the Project.  The Trust shall be an additional insured as to the policies required 
pursuant to subparagraph  (d) above, and such insurance shall be primary and any 
insurance maintained by the Trust shall be excess and non-contributing.  All 
policies shall waive all rights of subrogation against the Trust, its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees.   The general liability policy 
shall contain a severability of interests endorsement. Certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for all of the above policies (and/or original policies, if required by 
the Trust from time to time), showing the same to be in full force and effect, shall 
be delivered to the Trust.  All policies insuring against damage to the Project shall 
contain an agreed value clause sufficient to eliminate any risk of co-insurance.  
Trust expressly retains the right to require Borrower when reasonable to increase 
or decrease insurance of any of the above insurance types throughout the term of 
this Loan. Any increase or decrease in insurance will be as deemed by Trust Risk 
Manager as appropriate to adequately protect Trust. 

(f) No such insurance shall include deductible amounts to which the Trust has 
not previously consented in writing.  All insurance policies required by this Loan 
Agreement shall declare any deductible or self-insured retention (SIR).  Amounts 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



in excess of $25,000 shall specifically be approved by the Trust’s Risk Manager, 
CEO/Risk Management. Borrower shall be solely responsible for the 
reimbursement of any deductible to the insurer. 

(g) The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer licensed 
to do business in the State of California (California Admitted Carrier).  Minimum 
insurance company ratings as determined by the most current edition of the Best’s 
Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or by ambest.com shall be A- 
(Secure Best’s Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category).  If the proposed carrier 
is a non-admitted carrier in the State of California, the Trust’s Risk Manager, 
Trust Risk Management reserves the right to approve or reject said proposed 
carrier after a review of said carrier’s performance and financial ratings. 

(h) Borrower shall file with the Trust, prior to the funding of the Loan, an 
original Certificate of Insurance together with all required endorsements 
evidencing that the coverage required under this Loan Agreement is in full force 
and effect. 

(i) All contractors performing work on behalf of Borrower shall be covered 
under Borrower’s insurance or shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms 
and conditions as set forth herein for Borrower, with the Trust named as an 
additional insured on all such policies. 

(j) The Trust retains the rights at any time to review the coverage, form and 
amount of the insurance required hereby.  If, in the opinion of the Trust, the 
insurance provisions in this Loan Agreement do not provide adequate protection 
for the Trust, the Trust may require Borrower to obtain insurance sufficient in 
coverage, form, and amount to provide adequate protection.  The Trust’s said 
additional requirements shall be reasonable and shall be designed to assure 
protection from and against the kind and extent of risks that exist at the time a 
change in insurance is required.   Trust shall notify Borrower in writing of 
changes in the insurance requirements.  If Borrower does not deposit copies of 
acceptable certificates of insurance and endorsements with the Trust incorporating 
such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, said failure shall 
constitute, at the option of Trust, an Event of Default (hereinafter defined in 
Article IX) this Loan Agreement without further notice to Borrower. 

(k) The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be 
construed to limit Borrower’s liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification 
provisions and requirements of this Loan Agreement. 

(l) The Trust shall also be named as an additional insured on any 
insurance polices required by the Senior Construction Deed of Trust or any 
related loan documents evidencing such construction loan. 

9.14. Alterations and Repair.  Except with the prior consent of the Trust, during the 
Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall not remove, demolish or materially alter 
any improvement constituting the Project, except to make non-structural repairs 
which preserve or increase the Project’s value, and shall promptly restore, in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



good and workmanlike manner, any said improvement (or other aspect of the 
Project) that is damaged or destroyed from any cause. 

9.15. Changes in Property Restrictions.  Borrower shall not initiate, join in or consent to 
any change in any applicable zoning ordinance, general plan or similar law, or to 
any private restrictive covenant or any similar public or private restriction on the 
use of the Project, except with the prior written consent of the Trust. 

9.16. Books, Records and Annual Statement.  Borrower shall maintain complete books 
of account and other records reflecting the construction and operation of the 
Project in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a 
consistent basis.  During the Qualified Project Period, the amount of the Residual 
Receipts (as defined in the Note) shall be determined on the basis of an annual 
audited financial statement (“Annual Statement”), for the preceding year, 
beginning with the first year of operation of all or any part of the Project, 
prepared at the Borrower’s expense by an independent certified public account 
firm acceptable to the Trust.  Such Annual Statement shall be prepared based on 
the guidelines, and taking into account the information, set forth on Exhibit “C,” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein.  During the Qualified Project Period, the 
Borrower shall submit the Annual Statement and any payment to the Trust not 
later than six (6) months after closing of the Borrower’s previous year’s books.  
The first Annual Statement submitted by the Borrower for the Loan shall include 
the period from the Completion of Construction to the close of that year’s books.  
The Trust shall review and approve such statement, or request revisions, within 
ninety (90) days after receipt.  In the event that as the result of Trust review, 
there is an increase in the amount of Residual Receipts, Borrower shall pay to the 
Trust the full amount of such increase within ten (10) days of notice of such 
increases.  The terms of this subsection shall not be the exclusive method by 
which the Trust may review Residual Receipts payments by the Borrower.  In the 
event that an increase in the amount of Residual Receipts for any annual period 
is discovered at any time subsequent to the ninety (90) day period for that year’s 
books, no previous action or inaction by the Trust shall prohibit the Trust from 
requesting repayment of those amounts at any time during the term of this 
Agreement or thereafter. The Borrower shall pay to the Trust the full amount of 
such increase within thirty (30) days of notice of such increase for periods prior 
to the previous year. 

9.17. Notices of Certain Matters.  Borrower shall give notice to Trust, within ten (10) 
days after Borrower receives actual knowledge thereof, of each of the following: 

(a) Any litigation or claim against the Borrower relating to the Property or the 
Project and involving an amount in excess of $25,000 and any litigation or claim 
that might subject Borrower or any constituent partner of Borrower to liability in 
excess of $50,000, whether covered by insurance or not;   

(b) Any dispute between Borrower and any governmental or public agency 
relating to the Property or the Project, the adverse determination of which might 
materially affect the Project; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(c) Any trade name hereafter used by Borrower and any change in Borrower’s 
principal place of business; 

(d) Any Event of Default or event, which, with the giving of notice or the 
passage of time, without ameliorative action, or both, would constitute an Event 
of Default; 

(e) Any default by Borrower or any other party under any Loan Document or 
Mortgage Document, or the receipt by Borrower of any notice of default under 
any Loan Document or Mortgage Document; 

(f) The creation or imposition of any mechanics’ lien or other lien against the 
Project; 

(g) The presence of any hazardous materials on, under or about the Property 
or the Project; any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other action or requirement 
of any local, state or federal governmental or quasi-governmental authority with 
jurisdiction relating to any such hazardous materials; and the existence of any 
occurrence of conditions on any property in the vicinity of the Project that could 
cause any portion of the Project to be classified as “border-zone property” under 
the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code or any related regulations, 
or that could cause the Project to be otherwise subject to any restrictions relating 
to hazardous materials; and 

(h) Any material adverse change in the financial condition of Borrower or any 
of its constituent general partners. 

9.18. Further Assurances.  Borrower shall execute and acknowledge (or cause to be 
executed and acknowledged) and deliver to Trust all documents, and take all 
actions, reasonably required by Trust from time to time to confirm the rights 
created or now or hereafter intended to be created under the Loan Documents, to 
protect and further the validity, priority and enforceability of the Loan 
Documents, to subject to the Loan Documents any property intended by the 
terms of any Loan Document to be covered by the Loan Documents, or 
otherwise to carry out the purpose of the Loan Documents and the transactions 
contemplated thereunder. 

9.19. Liens.  Borrower shall not cause or suffer to become effective any lien, restriction 
or other title limitation affecting any part of the Project other than the (a) 
Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust, the Financing Statement and the 
senior first deed of trust Mortgage Documents (including the Senior Acquisition 
Deed of Trust, Senior Construction Deed of Trust and the Senior Permanent 
Deed of Trust, as applicable) and (ii) taxes not delinquent. 

9.20. Payment of Expenses.  Borrower shall pay the Trust's costs and expenses incurred 
in connection with the making, disbursement and administration of the Loan and 
the conversion of the acquisition loan to a permanent loan, as well as any 
revisions, transfers, extensions, renewals, modifications, refinancing or 
"workouts," and providing estoppels or subordinations of the Loan, and in the 
exercise of any of Trust's rights or remedies under this Agreement.  The Trust 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



will receive from Borrower a nonrefundable fee in the amount of Five Hundred 
Dollars ($500) and Borrower shall reimburse Trust for all of the Trust’s 
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) 
incurred in the administration and review of such changes, to the extent such 
expenses exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500). Such costs and expenses may 
include title insurance, recording and escrow charges, survey charges, hazard 
insurance, premiums, fees for any appraisals and any appraisal reviews, 
architectural and engineering review, construction services and environmental 
and toxic services and reviews, zoning and entitlement services and reviews, 
mortgage taxes, legal fees and any other reasonable fees and costs for services, 
regardless of whether such services are furnished by the Trust's employees or 
agents or independent contractors. 

9.21. Loan Monitoring Fees.  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, the 
Borrower shall pay an annual loan monitoring fee during the Term.  Loan 
monitoring fees shall be incorporated into the operating pro forma. Orange 
County Housing Finance Trust shall charge all projects an annual compliance 
monitoring fee (“Annual Fee”) of sixty-five dollars ($95) per unit per year.  The 
Annual Fee will be payable to the Trust at the Close of Escrow. The Annual Fee 
will be due each subsequent year for the Qualified Project Period on or within 
thirty (30) days of the day and month that this Agreement was entered into as set 
forth on page one hereof.  Loan monitoring fees will be adjusted annually. The 
annual adjustment shall be in accordance with the change in the Consumer Price 
Index for Los Angeles – Anaheim – Riverside (All Urban Consumers – All 
Items) promulgated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U.S. Department of 
Labor.  This adjustment shall be calculated by means of the following formula: 

    A = B x C/D 

Where: A = Adjusted Annual Fee  

  B = Annual Fee (as such Annual Fee may have been previously 
adjusted) 

  C = Average monthly index for the most recent twelve-month 
period 

  D = Average monthly index for the twelve-month period preceding 
the date of this Loan Agreement.  

In the event that the Consumer Price Index (CPI) ceases to use 1982-84 = 100 as 
the basis of calculation, or if, in Trust’s sole judgment, a substantial change is 
made in the method used by the federal government to determine the CPI or the 
items used to calculate the CPI, then the CPI shall be converted to the figure that 
would have been calculated at (or as close to such figures as shall be practical) 
had the manner of calculating the CPI in effect at the date of this Loan Agreement 
not been altered. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



In the event that the CPI is not issued or published for the period for which 
such minimum Annual Fees are to be adjusted and computed hereunder, or in the 
event that the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor 
should cease to publish said index figures, then any similar index published by 
any other branch or department of the United States Government selected by 
Trust, shall be used and if none is so published, then another index general 
recognized as authoritative shall be substituted by Trust. 

9.22. Subcontracts.  

(a) Upon request of Trust, or their designated agent, Borrower shall submit 
any requested subcontract agreements to the Trust for review and consent.  Any 
requested Subcontracts shall be submitted to Trust within forty-eight (48) hours of 
such request. 
(b) Borrower shall assume responsibility for all subcontracted services to 
assure compliance with this Agreement. 
(c) Borrower shall cause all of the applicable provisions of this Agreement in 
its entirety to be included in and made a part of any subcontract executed in the 
performance of this Agreement. 

9.23. Relocation. Borrower shall, if applicable, in all matters relating to the Project: 

(a) Take all reasonable steps to minimize displacement by providing tenants a 
reasonable opportunity to lease and occupy dwelling units in the Project being 
improved, if applicable; 

(b) Submit to Trust a plan outlining financial and advisory assistance in 
securing temporary housing for any eligible tenant who is temporarily or 
permanently relocated due to the Project; and, 

(c) Comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and 49 CFR 24 in providing relocation 
assistance for persons displaced by the Project. 

(d) Has in effect, and follows a residential anti-displacement and relocation 
plan required under Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development 
Act of 1974, as amended, in conjunction with any activity assisted with funds 
under the subject program. 

9.24. Mental Health Services Act Requirements. The Borrower shall carry out the 
design, construction and operation of the Project, and operate the Program, in 
conformity with all applicable laws, regulations, and rules of governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction, including without limitation, the requirements set 
forth in California Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5771.1 et. seq. and, 
without limitation, the requirements found in Exhibit D attached to this 
Agreement.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



9.25. Lender Recognition.   The owner shall ensure recognition of the role of the Trust 
in providing funds through this Agreement.  All activities, facilities and items 
utilized pursuant to the Agreement shall be prominently labeled as to funding 
source.  

9.26. Labor Standards.  To the extent applicable, the Borrower agrees to comply with 
the requirements of the California Department of Industrial Relations Prevailing 
Wage Requirements and the Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-
Bacon Act as amended, the provisions of Contract Work Hours, the Safety 
Standards Act, the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 276, 327-333) and 
all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to 
labor standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this Agreement.  
The Borrower shall maintain documentation, which demonstrates compliance 
with hour, and wage requirements of this part.  Such documentation shall be 
made available to the Trust for review upon request. The Borrower agrees that, 
except with respect to the rehabilitation or construction of residential property 
designed for residential use for less than twelve (12) units, all contractors 
engaged under contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction, renovation or 
repair of any building or work financed in whole or in part with assistance 
provided under this Agreement, shall comply with federal requirements adopted 
by the Trust pertaining to such contracts and with the applicable requirements of 
the regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor, under 29 CFR, Parts 1, 3, 5, 7 
and 1926 governing the payment of wages and ratio of apprentices and trainees 
to journeymen; provided, that if wage rates higher than those required under the 
regulations are imposed by state or local law, nothing herein is intended to 
relieve the Borrower of its obligation, if any, to require payment of the higher 
rate.  The Borrower shall cause or require to be inserted in full, in all such 
contracts subject to such regulations, provisions meeting the requirements of this 
paragraph, for such contracts in excess of $10,000.00. 

9.27. Annual Audit. 

Following the Conversion Date and commencing on the date six (6) months after 
closing of the Borrower’s previous year’s books and every one year anniversary 
date thereafter during the Term, Borrower shall submit to Trust the following 
audit reporting package (the “Audit Reporting Package”). Trust reserves the right 
to revise the Audit Reporting Package requirements in accordance with changed 
Federal, State or County rules, regulations, ordinances, laws and statutes.  The 
Audit Reporting Package shall include the following: 

(a) Financial Statements for the Project preferably with a classified Balance 
Sheet identifying Current Assets and Current Liabilities; 

(b) Schedule of expenditures of Federal awards; 

(c) Independent Auditor’s report; 

(d) Summary schedule and prior audit findings, if applicable; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(e) Corrective action plan, if applicable; and  

(f) Management Letter.  

9.28. Operating Reserve. [REMOVE IF PROJECT HAS PROJECT BASED SECTION 
8 VOUCHERS] 

Borrower shall establish an interest bearing account to be known as the Operating 
Reserve Account.  Upon the Conversion Date shall deposit an amount into the 
Operating Reserve Account sufficient to pay three (3) months of operating 
expenses and three (3) months of mandatory debt service payments (“Target 
Balance”).  

Funds shall be invested subject to the prior written approval of the Trust, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, and any earnings shall become and 
remain a part of the Operating Reserve.  Funds may be drawn only when revenue 
is insufficient to pay operating expenses.  The Borrowers shall not draw funds 
from the Operating Reserve Account without the prior written approval of the 
Trust, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

If the balance in the Operating Reserve Account falls below the amount required 
to pay three (3) months of operating expenses and three (3) months of mandatory 
debt service payments, then Borrower shall apply Residual Receipts, when and if 
available, or other funds, to the replenishment of Operating Reserves until the 
Target Balance is achieved. 

In the event of a failure by the Borrower to pay operating expenses, mandatory 
debt service payments, or other payments required under the Loan Documents or 
Mortgage Loan Documents, or during the continuance of an event of default by 
Borrower under the Loan Documents or Mortgage Loan Documents that would 
provide for the acceleration of the Loan or Mortgage Loan, then Trust may, after 
delivery of notice to Borrower and the expiration of any applicable cure periods, 
apply the funds in the Operating Reserve Account to the Loan, a Mortgage Loan, 
or use such funds for the continued operation of the Project. 

9.29. Replacement Reserve. [WITHOUT MHSA THIS IS APPROPRIATE. WITH 
MHSA FUNDS $350 GOES TO $500 AND GO UP 5% EVERY 5 YEARS] 

At or before the Conversion Date, Borrower shall establish an interest bearing 
account to be known as the Replacement Reserve Account.  Annually prior to 
March 31 of each year, Borrower shall deposit into the Replacement Reserve 
Account an amount equal to three hundred and fifty dollars ($350) per unit or 
such higher amount as may be required by a tax creditor investor or senior 
Mortgagee and approved by Trust, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  The Funds shall be invested subject to the prior written approval of the 
Trust and any earnings shall become and remain a part of the Replacement 
Reserve.  The Borrowers shall not draw funds from the Replacement Reserve 
Account without the prior written approval of the Trust, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Funds may only be drawn from the Replacement Reserve Account to replace or 
maintain Project assets which have a useful life of more than one (1) year in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), and have 
been or will be depreciated on the Partnership Tax Return, Form 1040P, filed with 
the Internal Revenue Service by the Borrower’s accountant. 

In the event of a failure by the Borrower to adequately maintain the Project, or 
pay operating expenses, mandatory debt service payments, or other payments 
required under the Loan Documents or Mortgage Loan Documents, or during the 
continuance of an event of default by Borrower under the Loan Documents or 
Mortgage Loan Documents that would provide for the acceleration of the Loan or 
Mortgage Loan, then Trust may, after delivery of notice to Borrower and the 
expiration of any applicable cure periods, apply the funds in the Replacement 
Reserve Account to the Loan, a Mortgage Loan, or use such funds for the 
maintenance, improvement, or continued operation of the Project. 

 

ARTICLE X 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

10.1. Events of Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" by 
Borrower under this Agreement: 

(a) Failure to Make Note Payments.  Borrower fails to make any payment of 
principal and/or interest under the Note when due, after ten (10) days notice from 
Trust.  Any payment that falls due on a non-business day may be made the next 
succeeding business day without penalty and shall not be considered a past-due 
payment; 

(b) Failure to Make Other Payments.  Borrower fails to perform any other 
obligation for the payment of money (other than payments described in 
subparagraph (a) above) under any Loan Document within ten (10) days after 
Trust gives Borrower written notice that such obligation was not performed or 
paid for; 

(c) Non-Monetary Failure to Perform.  Borrower fails to timely perform, 
comply with or observe any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this 
Agreement or any other Loan Document (other than those provisions elsewhere 
referred to in this Section 10.1) and such failure continues uncured or without 
Borrower commencing to diligently cure for thirty (30) days after notice thereof 
in writing is given by the Trust to Borrower, provided that if Borrower has 
commenced cure but cannot complete such cure reasonably within thirty (30) 
days, Borrower shall have ninety (90) days from the date of notice to cure such 
failure without such failure constituting an event of default; 

(d) Mortgage Loan Document Breach.  Any default or breach of Borrower 
that continues uncured after the expiration of any applicable cure period under 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



any other loan document including, but not limited to, the Mortgage Loan 
Documents;  

(e) Voluntary Suspension.  The voluntary suspension of Borrower's business 
or the dissolution or termination of the partnership (if any) constituting Borrower; 

(f) Unauthorized Transfer.  Borrower’s sale or other transfer of the Property 
or the Project in violation of Section 9.7 above; 

(g) Fraud or Material Misstatement or Omissions.  Any fraudulent act or 
omission of Borrower's, or intentional misrepresentation of Borrower's, pertaining 
to or made in connection with the Loan, Loan Documents or the Project;  

(h) Insolvency.  A court having jurisdiction shall have made or entered any 
decree or order (i) adjudging Borrower to be bankrupt or insolvent, (ii) approving 
as properly filed a petition seeking reorganization of Borrower or seeking any 
arrangement for Borrower under the bankruptcy law or any other applicable 
debtor's relief law or statute of the United States or any state or other jurisdiction, 
(iii) appointing a receiver, trustee, liquidator, or assignee of Borrower in 
bankruptcy or insolvency or for any of their properties, or (iv) directing the 
winding up or liquidation of Borrower, if any such decree or order described in 
clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive, shall have continued unstayed or undischarged for a 
period of ninety (90) days unless a lesser time period is permitted for cure under 
any other mortgage on the Property, in which event such lesser time period will 
apply under this subsection 10.1(h) as well; or Borrower shall have admitted in 
writing its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or shall have voluntarily 
submitted to or filed a petition seeking any decree or order of the nature described 
in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive.  The occurrence of any of the events of default in 
this paragraph shall act to accelerate automatically, without the need for any 
action by the Trust, the indebtedness evidenced by the Note; or 

(i) Project Monies.  Borrower’s misapplication or embezzlement of Project 
monies. 

10.2. Remedies.  The occurrence of any Event of Default shall, either at the option of 
the Trust or automatically where so specified, relieve the Trust of any obligation 
to make or continue the Loan and shall give the Trust the right to proceed with 
any and all remedies set forth in this Agreement and the Loan Documents or 
otherwise available at law or in equity or by statute (and all of the Trust's rights 
and remedies shall be cumulative), including but not limited to the following: 

(a) Acceleration of Note.  The Trust shall have the right to cause all 
indebtedness of the Borrower to the Trust under this Agreement and the Note, 
together with any accrued interest thereon, to become immediately due and 
payable.  The Borrower waives all right to presentment, demand, protest or notice 
of protest, or dishonor.  The Trust may proceed to enforce payment of the 
indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to the Trust as a creditor 
and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial Code, 
including foreclosure under the Deed of Trust.  The Borrower shall be liable to 
pay the Trust on demand all expenses, costs and fees (including, without 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the Trust in 
connection with the collection of the Loan and the preservation, maintenance, 
protection, sale, or other disposition of the security given for the Loan. 

(b) Specific Performance.  The Trust shall have the right to mandamus or 
other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform 
its obligations and covenants under the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts on 
things that may be unlawful or in violation of the provisions of the Loan 
Documents. 

(c) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The Trust shall have the right to 
cure any monetary default by Borrower under a loan other than the Loan.  The 
Borrower agrees to reimburse the Trust for any funds advanced by the Trust to 
cure a monetary default by Borrower upon demand therefore, together with 
interest thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum (which rate shall in 
no event exceed the maximum rate permitted by law and if it does, said rate shall 
be reduced to the maximum rate then permitted by law), from the date of 
expenditure until the date of reimbursement. 

10.3. Remedies Cumulative.  No right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by the 
terms of this Agreement or the Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of 
any other right, power, or remedy; and each and every such right, power, or 
remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, or 
remedy given to the Trust by the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute 
or otherwise against Borrower and any other person.  Neither the failure nor any 
delay on the part of the Trust to exercise any such rights and remedies shall 
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Trust 
of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise of such right 
or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 

10.4. Waiver of Terms and Conditions.  No waiver of any default or breach by 
Borrower hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the Trust to take 
action on account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no 
express waiver shall affect any default other than the default specified in the 
waiver, and such waiver shall be operative only for the time and to the extent 
therein stated.  Waivers of any covenant, term, or condition contained herein 
shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 
covenant, term, or condition.  The consent or approval by the Trust to or of any 
act by Borrower requiring further consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary the consent or approval to or of any subsequent 
similar act.  The exercise of any right, power, or remedy shall in no event 
constitute a cure or a waiver of any default under this Agreement or the Loan 
Documents, nor shall it invalidate any act done pursuant to notice of default, or 
prejudice the Trust in the exercise of any right, power, or remedy hereunder or 
under the Loan Documents, unless in the exercise of any such right, power, or 
remedy all obligations of Borrower to Trust are paid and discharged in full. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



ARTICLE XI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

11.1. Approvals Under Agreement.  Where this Agreement requires an approval or 
consent of the Trust, such approval or consent may be given on behalf of the 
Trust by the Trust Manager or his or her designee. 

11.2. Time.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

11.3. Notices.  Any notice requirement set forth herein shall be in writing and delivered 
to the appropriate party at the address listed in this subparagraph.  Addresses for 
notice may be changed from time to time by written notice to the other party.  
All communications shall be effective when actually received; provided, 
however, that nonreceipt of any communication as the result of a change in 
address of which the sending party was not notified or as the result of a refusal to 
accept delivery shall be deemed receipt of such communication. 

Borrower:  [BORROWER TO PROVIDE] 

 Trust:   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

(a) Trust shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to 
Borrower to the following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the 
validity of any otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 

    [courtesy notices] 

    

Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other party given in the same 
manner as provided above. 

11.4. No Third Parties Benefitted.  This Agreement is made and entered into for the 
sole protection and benefit of the Trust, its successors and assigns, and Borrower, 
its permitted successors and assigns, and no other person or persons shall have 
any right of action hereon. 

11.5. Trust to File Notices.  Borrower irrevocably appoints, designates, and authorizes 
the Trust as its agent (said agency being coupled with an interest) to file for 
record any notice that the Trust deems necessary or desirable to protect its 
interest hereunder and under the Loan Documents. 

11.6. Actions.  The Trust shall have the right to commence, appear in, or defend any 
action or proceeding purporting to affect the rights, duties, or liabilities of the 
parties hereunder, or the disbursement of any proceeds of the Loan. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



11.7. Successors and Assigns.  The terms hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto; provided, however, 
that no assignment of Borrower's rights hereunder shall be made, voluntarily or 
by operation of law, without the prior written consent of the Trust as specified in 
Section 9.7 above, and that any such assignment without said consent shall be 
void. 

11.8. Construction of Words.  Except where the context otherwise requires, words 
imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, 
words imparting persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships and 
corporations, and words of either gender shall include the other gender. 

11.9. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be declared invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired. 

11.10. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement and the Loan Documents and other 
instruments given pursuant hereto shall be construed in accordance with and be 
governed by the laws of the State of California.  In the event of any legal action 
to enforce or interpret this Agreement or any of the Loan Documents, the sole 
and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange 
County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the 
jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

11.11. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be changed orally, but only by an 
agreement in writing signed by Borrower and the Trust. In the event of 
amendments to these loan documents, the Trust shall submit copies of all Trust 
fund loan guidelines and underwriting standards and procedures for review and 
approval by the Department of Housing and Community Development. 

11.12. Approvals.  Where an approval or submission is required under this Agreement, 
such approval or submission shall be valid for purposes of this Agreement only if 
made in writing. 

11.13. Captions and Headings.  Captions and headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only, and are not to be considered in construing the 
Agreement. 

11.14. Nonliability.  By accepting or approving anything required to be performed or 
given to Trust under the Loan Documents, including any certificate, financial 
statement, survey, or insurance policy, Trust shall not be deemed to have 
warranted or represented the sufficiency or legal effect of the same, and no such 
acceptance or approval shall constitute a warranty or representation by Trust to 
anyone. 

11.15. Obligations Unconditional and Independent.  Notwithstanding the existence at 
any time of any obligation or liability of Trust to Borrower, or any claim by 
Borrower against Trust, in connection with the Loan or otherwise, Borrower 
hereby waives any right it might otherwise have (a) to offset any such obligation, 
liability or claim against Borrower’s obligations under the Loan Documents or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(b) to claim that the existence of any such obligation, liability or claim excuses 
the nonperformance by Borrower of any of its obligations under the Loan 
Documents. 

11.16. Survival of Representations and Warranties.  All representations and warranties of 
Borrower in the Loan Documents shall survive the making of the Loan and have 
been or will be relied on by Trust notwithstanding any investigation made by 
Trust. 

11.17. Prior Agreements.  This Agreement (together with the other Loan Documents) 
contains the entire agreement between Trust and Borrower with respect to the 
Loan and all prior negotiations, understandings and agreements (including, but 
not limited to, any commitment letter issued by Trust to Borrower) are 
superseded by this Agreement and such Loan Documents. 

11.18. Conflicts.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 
and those of any other Loan Document, this Agreement shall prevail; provided, 
however, that with respect to any matter addressed in both such documents, the 
fact that one document provides for greater, lesser or different rights or 
obligations than the other shall not be deemed a conflict unless the applicable 
provisions are inconsistent and could not be simultaneously enforced or 
performed. 

11.19. Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury.  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local 
laws, each party to this Agreement hereby expressly waives any right to trial by 
jury of any claim, demand, action or cause of action arising under any Loan 
Document or in any way connected with or related or incidental to the dealings 
of the parties hereto or any of them with respect to any Loan Document, or the 
transactions related thereto, in each case whether now existing or hereafter 
arising, and whether sounding in contract or tort or otherwise; and each party 
hereby agrees and consents that any such claim, demand, action or cause of 
action shall be decided by court trial without a jury, and that any party to this 
Agreement may file an original counterpart or a copy of this section with any 
court as written evidence of the consent of the parties hereto to the waiver of 
their right to trial by jury.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the date and year first above written. 

 

    BORROWER:  

 

    [PLEASE PROVIDE SIGNATURE BLOCK] 

 

    By:   

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



TRUST: 

 

ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 

 

           
           
    By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Trust Manager  

     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  

 

 

  

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

TRUST COUNSEL 

  

  

By____________________________ 

           Trust Counsel 

  

Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

EXHIBIT B 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

       

LOW AND VERY LOW QUALIFIED TENANT/UNIT MIX 

[XXXXXX], California 

 

 

11.20. RENT & AFFORDABILITY SCHEDULE   

 

Number 
of 
Restricted 
Units 

Number 
of 
Bedrooms 

* Gross 
Restricted 

ARTICLE XI
Rental 
Rate 

**Utility 
Allowance 

Net 

Restricted 

Rental 

Rate 

Income 
Limit 
based on 
Area 
Median 
Income 
(AMI) 

Age 
Restriction 
(if any) 

Project 
Based 
Sectio
n 8 
Units 

Number 
of Years 
Restricted 

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

Total         Total   
0 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



*  Restricted Rental Rate is based on the current Area Median Income (AMI) published by HUD annually and does not include the 
utility allowance deduction. 

 

* * Utility allowance is based on the current utility schedule published by the Orange County Housing Authority annually.   

*** Income Limit may be adjusted in accordance with Section 2(g) of the Regulatory Agreement in the event 
that Project Based Section 8 rental subsidies are no longer available for the Project. 

 

Rent increases shall be limited to (i) the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually 
published Rent Adjustment factor for the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the lower of rent established as 
affordable based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set forth above, which is 
adjusted annually by HUD and published by the State of California, or as required by California Health & Safety 
Code section 50053, as referenced in the Loan Agreement Section 4.1 (a).

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

EXHIBIT C 

Annual Statement Guidelines 

Gross Revenue 
Rental Income (including Project Based Vouchers) 
Laundry & Miscellaneous 
 
Expenses 
Obligated debt service on the Senior Permanent Loans  
Operating reserves 
Replacement reserves ($XXX per unit) 
Deferred developer fee  
Trust annual loan monitoring fee 
Asset management and property management fee  
Utility fees 
Property taxes 
Insurance premiums 
Operating and maintenance expenses 
Supportive/Resident services 
 
Debt Service 
First Trust Deed  
Second Trust Deed 
Third Trust Deed 
 
Partnership and Management Fees 
Partnership management related charges and fees  
 
Cash Flow Available for Distribution as further described in the Promissory Note 
 

X.XX%   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



EXHIBIT D 

Mental Health Services Act Requirements 

1. Population. The population to be served shall include extremely low 
income (30% of Area Median Income for Orange County), homeless individuals with 
documentation of a serious mental disorder completed by a qualified mental health 
worker. 

2. Rent Restrictions. Restricted rents for the MHSA funded units shall not 
exceed 30% of the HUD-published 30% Area Median Income (AMI) levels for Orange 
County, adjusted for designated household size (less a utility allowance unless included 
in the rent) with the tenants rent portion not to be more than 30% of their Social Security 
Income/Social Security Pension (SSI/SSP) or not more than 30% of their total gross 
household income (if additional income beyond SSI/SSP is received). If federally funded 
Project Based Vouchers are provided, the developer shall comply with the federal 
regulations for maximum rent and tenant rent portions.  

3. Coordinated Entry System. To the greatest extent feasible, the 
Developer shall utilize the local coordinated entry system to screen for eligible residents 
currently experiencing homelessness and with a documented serious mental disorder. 

4. Housing Unit General Requirements. Housing units and building 
features must meet the needs of the MHSA tenants to be served at the development, 
including privacy, housing activities and community interaction. There shall be no 
requirement for non-related, single, adult tenants to share bedrooms. There shall be 
adequate number of bedrooms to accommodate the housing composition.  Units are 
encouraged to have at least one-bedroom and be at least 450 square feet. 

5. Housing Unit Living Requirements. Housing units must have an 
identifiable and private living area, sleeping area, full kitchen area and a full bathroom. 
The kitchen area shall at a minimum include a sink, full size refrigerator, cupboard space, 
counter area, microwave or oven, and a two burner stove or built-in cook top. 

6. Furnishings. All units should be furnished with standard furnishings 
applicable to the unit type. 

7. Technology. Developers are encouraged to provide units that are pre-
wired for high technology and internet access.  

8. Common Space. The building must include common space, such as a 
community room that can accommodate a variety of activities and where tenants can 
choose to interact with one another.  

9. Office Space. The building must include a designated office space to 
provide services to MHSA tenants.   

10. Efficiency Requirements. The design and operation of the Project shall 
incorporate features designed to increase efficiency and reduce ongoing expenses. The 
Project shall incorporate appropriate and feasible green design practices, such as the use 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



of ENERGY STAR rated energy-efficient appliances and water-conserving fixtures and 
products. The Project must also utilize durable materials chosen to reduce future 
maintenance costs and renewable building supplies.  

Environmental Information. Tenants shall be provided with information to assist them 
to participate in environmentally friendly practices such as energy and water 
conservation, recycling and use of non-toxic household products. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

 REGULATORY AGREEMENT 
AND DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

 
By and Between 

 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, 

a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq 

 
and 

 
 [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
 REGULATORY AGREEMENT 

AND DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 
 
 THIS REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF 
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS (the "Regulatory Agreement" or "Agreement") is made 
and entered into as of _________________2020, by and between the ORANGE 
COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to 
California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") and [XXXXX] 
[BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY] (the "Borrower"). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Borrower intends to construct a housing project on that certain real property located 

within [unincorporated/the City of [CITY]], County of Orange, State of California, 
and more particularly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated 
herein (the "Property").  The Borrower further intends to construct and operate a 
[number of units] (#) unit residential development consisting of [insert facts] which 
shall be constructed by Borrower on the Property (collectively, the “Project”). 

B. The Borrower has submitted to the Trust an application for funding of a project, 
described herein, under its 20[XX] Permanent Supportive Housing Notice of Funding 
Availability (“20[XX] PSH NOFA”). 

C. The Trust desires to provide a loan during the construction period (which will convert 
to a permanent loan upon completion of construction of the Project, as set forth 
herein) to Borrower subject to the Borrower’s agreement, amongst other things, to 
encumber the Borrower’s [leasehold/fee simple] interest in the Property with certain 
rental restrictions, all as more particularly set forth in this Regulatory Agreement and 
the Loan Agreement. 

D. The Trust Board of Directors approved a loan to the Borrower from Trust funds on 
[DATE].  

E. Borrower is financing the construction of the improvements and related costs and 
expenses through the following sources: 

[Add funding sources] 

F. Relevant to this Agreement, the Trust has agreed to loan Borrower the sum of 
$[XXXX] in Trust Funds, the repayment of which is to be secured by the Project and 
will be evidenced by, among other documents, a promissory note secured by a 
[XXXXX] priority deed of trust during the Construction Period and a [XXXXX] 
priority deed of trust during the Qualified Project Period. 

G. The Trust and the Borrower now desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their 
agreement regarding the affordable housing restrictions for the Project and to cause 
said affordable housing restrictions to run with the land. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Trust and the Borrower hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein or in the Loan Agreement (as such 

term is defined below), capitalized terms used in this Regulatory Agreement shall 
have the respective meanings assigned to them in this Section 1: 

 
1.1. "Act" means Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 33750) of Part 1 of Division 

24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, as amended. 
 

1.2. "Adjusted Income" shall mean the adjusted income of all persons who intend to 
reside in one residential unit, calculated in the manner which complies with 
determinations of income for low income families under the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 Program of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended. 

 
1.3. "Area" means Orange County, California. 
 
1.4. “Borrower” means [XXXXX] [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND 

ORG IDENTITY]. 
 
1.5. "Code" means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 

hereafter, or any successor statute thereto. 
 
1.6. “Trust” means the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California public 

agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 
 
1.7. “Trust Manager” means the Orange County Housing Finance Trust Manager or 

their designee. 
 
1.8. “Housing Act" means the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, or its 

successor. 
 
1.9. "Loan" means the loan made by the Trust to the Borrower pursuant to the Loan 

Agreement for the purpose of financing the acquisition, construction and 
development of the Project. 

 
1.10. "Loan Agreement" means that certain Loan Agreement between the Trust and 

the Borrower of even date herewith as it may be amended from time to time, the 
terms of which are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
1.11. "Median Income for the Area" shall mean the median income for the Area as 

most recently determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”) and published by the State of California.  In the event that 
such income determinations are no longer published, or are not updated for a 
period of at least eighteen (18) months, the Trust shall provide the Borrower with 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



other income determinations which are reasonably similar with respect to methods 
of calculation to those previously published by HUD and the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. 

 
1.12. “Parties” shall mean the Trust and the Borrower. 
 
1.13. "Project" means collectively the Property and the structures and related 

buildings and other improvements located on the Property from time to time 
together with all fixtures and other property owned by the Borrower and located 
on, or used in connection with, such buildings, structures and other improve-
ments. 

 
1.14. "Property" means the real property legally described in Exhibit "A", which is 

attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, and all rights and 
appurtenances thereunto appertaining. 

 
1.15. "Qualified Project Period" shall mean the period beginning upon fulfillment of 

the conditions precedent set forth in Article VI of the Loan Agreement and ending 
on the date which is fifty-five (55) years after the beginning of the Qualified 
Project Period. 

 
1.16. “Qualified Tenant” or “Qualified Tenants” shall collectively mean the 

individuals occupying the Restricted Units with the Adjusted Incomes more 
particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
The income of individuals shall be determined in a manner consistent with deter-
minations of lower income households under Section 8 of the United States 
Housing Act of 1937, as amended (or, if such program is terminated, in a manner 
consistent with such determinations under such program as is in effect 
immediately before such termination) and by the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development in accordance with California Health and 
Safety Code Section 50052.5.  In no event, however, will the occupant of a 
Restricted Unit be considered to be a Qualified Tenant if the occupant is a 
student, and is not entitled to file a federal income tax return. 

 
1.17. "Regulations" means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated or proposed by 

the Department of the Treasury pursuant to the Code from time to time. 
 
1.18. “Regulatory Agreement” or “Agreement” means this Regulatory Agreement. 
 
1.19. “Restricted Unit” or “Restricted Units” means the dwelling units in the Project 

identified on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein required to be 
rented to, or held available for occupancy by Qualified Tenants pursuant to the 
terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 
the rental restrictions and other matters set forth in said Exhibit "B" and the other 
Loan Documents. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



1.20. “Term” is defined under Section 8 of this Agreement. 
 
2.  Trust Requirements as to Restricted Units. The Borrower hereby represents, 

warrants and covenants as follows: 
 

(a) Use of Restricted Units.  Borrower shall restrict the use, occupancy and 
rental of the Restricted Units of the Project to Qualified Tenants during the entire 
Qualified Project Period at the occupancy and rental rates provided for in Exhibit "B" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Borrower shall not rent nor permit the rental of 
any Restricted Unit in the Project except as provided in said Exhibit “B”. 
 

(b) Notifying Qualified Tenants.  Borrower shall adopt written tenant 
selection policies and criteria that meet all of the following requirements: 
 

i. Are consistent with the purpose of providing housing for Qualified 
Tenants and families. 
 

ii. Are reasonably related to program eligibility and the applicants' 
ability to perform the obligations of the lease. 
 

iii. Provide for: 
 

A. The selection of Qualified Tenants from a written waiting 
list in the chronological order of their application, insofar as is practicable; and 
 

B. The prompt written notification to any rejected applicant of 
the grounds for any rejection. 
 

iv. Carry out the affirmative marketing procedures of the Trust, to 
provide information and otherwise attract eligible persons from all racial, ethnic and 
gender groups in the housing market Area to the program.  Borrower and the Trust shall 
cooperate to effectuate this provision prior to the initial renting, upon occurrence of a 
vacancy, or upon the re-renting of any Restricted Unit. 
 

v. The Borrower agrees to provide to Qualified Tenants notice of all 
rent increases pursuant to applicable California law. 
 

 
(c) Qualified Tenant Protections.  The Restricted Units shall be rented to 

eligible and qualified Qualified Tenants in accordance with the following terms. 
 

i. Lease. The Lease between Borrower and a Qualified Tenant must 
be for not less than one (1) year, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both the 
Qualified Tenant and the Borrower. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



ii. Prohibited Lease Terms. The Lease between the Borrower and any 
Qualified Tenant may not contain any of the following provisions: 

 
A. Agreement to be sued.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

to be sued, to admit guilt or to a judgment in favor of the Borrower in a lawsuit brought 
in connection with the lease. 

 
B. Treatment of property.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

that the Borrower may take, hold, or sell personal property of household members 
without notice to the Qualified Tenant and a court decision on the rights of the parties.  
This prohibition, however, does not apply to an agreement by the Qualified Tenant 
concerning disposition of personal property remaining in the Restricted Unit after the 
Qualified Tenant has moved out of the Restricted Unit.  The Borrower may dispose of 
this personal property in accordance with applicable state law. 

 
C. Excusing owner from responsibility.  Agreement by the 

Qualified Tenant not to hold the Borrower or its agents legally responsible for any action 
or failure to act, whether intentional or negligent. 

 
D. Waiver of notice.  Agreement of the Qualified Tenant that 

the Borrower may evict the Qualified Tenant or household members without notice to the 
Qualified Tenant. 

 
E. Waiver of legal proceedings.  Agreement by the Qualified 

Tenant that the Borrower may evict the Qualified Tenant or household members without 
instituting a civil court proceeding in which the Qualified Tenant has the opportunity to 
present a defense, or before a court decision on the rights of the parties. 

 
F. Waiver of a jury trial.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant 

to waive any right to a trial by jury. 
 

G. Waiver of right to appeal court decision.  Agreement by the 
Qualified Tenant to waive the Qualified Tenant’s right to appeal, or to otherwise 
challenge in court, a court decision in connection with the lease. 

 
H. Qualified Tenant chargeable with cost of legal actions 

regardless of outcome.  Agreement by the Qualified Tenant to pay attorney’s fees or 
other legal costs even if the Qualified Tenant wins in a court proceeding by the Borrower 
against the Qualified Tenant.  The Qualified Tenant, however, may be obligated to pay 
costs if the Qualified Tenant loses. 

 
(d) Termination of Tenancy.  Borrower may not terminate the tenancy or 

refuse to renew the lease of a Qualified Tenant except for serious or repeated violation of 
the terms and conditions of the Lease; for violation of applicable federal, state, or local 
law; for completion of the transitional housing tenancy period (if the housing is 
transitional); or for other good cause.  Any termination or refusal to renew must be 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



preceded by not less than thirty (30) days by the Borrower’s service upon the Qualified 
Tenant of a written notice specifying the grounds for the action. 

 
(e) Nondiscrimination Covenant.  By acceptance hereof, the Borrower agrees, 

for itself, its successors and assigns, to refrain from restricting the rental, or lease of the 
Project on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, sex, marital status, national 
origin or age of any person.  All leases or contracts shall contain or be subject to 
substantially the following nondiscrimination or nonsegregation clauses:  “The lessee 
herein covenants by and for himself or herself, his or her heirs, executors, administrators 
and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, and this lease or sublease is 
made and accepted upon and subject to the following conditions:  That there be no 
discrimination against or segregation of, any person or group of persons, on account of 
race, color, creed, religion, handicap, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, marital 
status, age or ancestry in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use or enjoyment of the 
land herein leased or subleased, nor shall the lessee himself or herself, or any persons 
claiming under or through him or her, establish or permit any such practice or practices of 
discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or 
occupancy of tenants, lessees, subleases, or subtenants in the land herein leased.” 
 

(f) Non-Qualifying Adjusted Income.  Subject to the applicable requirements 
and provisions of, and changes to, Section 42 of the Code, if, upon recertification of the 
income of a Qualified Tenant of a Restricted Unit, the Borrower determines that a 
Qualified Tenant has an Adjusted Income exceeding 30% of Median Income for the 
Area, adjusted for household size in accordance with the Act, as defined in Section 1.2 
above, such Qualified Tenant may be permitted to continue to occupy the Restricted Unit 
at the rental rate as provided for in Exhibit B, until the Qualified Tenant chooses to 
vacate the Restricted Unit. After the Restricted Unit is vacated, the Restricted Unit shall 
be re-rented to a Qualified Tenant pursuant to the terms, covenants and conditions of this 
Agreement. 
 

(g) Loss of Project Based Voucher Subsidy.  
 

1. It is anticipated that during the Qualified Project Period the Project 
will maintain Project Based Voucher (“PBV”) Restricted Units, supported by Project-
Based Section 8 rental subsidy payments (the "Rental Subsidy").  If, during the 
Qualified Project Period, any change in federal law or regulations occurs, or any action 
(or inaction) by Congress or any federal or State agency occurs, which results in a 
reduction, termination, or nonrenewal of the Rental Subsidy through no fault of 
Borrower, such that the Rental Subsidy shown on the Financing Plan (as defined in the 
Loan Agreement) is no longer available (or available in a lesser amount), Borrower may 
request approval of the Trust to increase the rent on one or more of the PBV Restricted 
Units, to an adjusted income that does not exceed sixty percent (60%) of Area Median 
Income, adjusted for actual household. 

 
2. The rent increase is subject to the following requirements: (a) 

concurrently with the request, Borrower shall provide the Trust with evidence of the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



anticipated  reduction, termination, or nonrenewal of the Rental Subsidy, (b) a 
Management Plan (as defined in Section 1.19 of the Loan Agreement) for the Project for 
the Trust's approval pursuant to Sections 4.1 and 7.8 of the Loan Agreement, showing the 
impact of the loss or reduction of the Rental Subsidy, (c) a proposed operating budget 
reflecting the rent increases (the “Operating Budget”),  and (d) a description of efforts to 
obtain alternate sources of rent.  The number of PBV Restricted Units subject to the rent 
increase and the amount of the proposed increase may not be greater than the number or 
amount required to ensure that the Project generates sufficient income to cover its 
operating costs, required deposits to replacement reserves, and debt service on approved 
financing as shown on the Operating Budget, and as is necessary to maintain the financial 
stability of the Project.  In addition, upon a reduction, termination or nonrenewal of the 
Rental Subsidy as described above, Borrower hereby agrees to the following: 

 
i. Borrower shall use good faith efforts to obtain alternative 

sources of rental subsidies and shall provide the Trust with annual progress reports on 
efforts to obtain alternative sources of rental subsidies that would allow the rents to be 
reduced.  Upon receipt of any alternative rental subsidies, Borrower shall reduce the rents 
back to the original restrictions found in Exhibit B to the extent that the alternative rental 
subsidies provide sufficient income to cover the operating costs, required replacement 
reserves and debt service of the Project as shown on the Operating Budget.   

 
ii. Borrower shall provide Qualified Tenants in the PBV 

Restricted Units with notice of any rent increase pursuant to Section 2.(g)(4), below, and 
shall notify the Qualified Tenant that if they have received a tenant-based voucher from 
the Orange County Housing Authority they may use the tenant-based voucher for their 
Restricted Unit.  

 
3. All rent increases are subject to County approval pursuant to the 

terms of this Section 2 (g).  No later than sixty (60) days prior to the proposed 
implementation of any rent increase, Borrower shall submit to the County a schedule of 
any proposed increase in the rent.  The County will disapprove a rent increase allowed 
pursuant to Section 2(g)(1)  if it does not comply with the restrictions set forth in Section 
2(g)(2).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, rent increases for the PBV Restricted Units shall 
be subject to review and approval of the County.   

 
4. Borrower shall give Qualified Tenants of all PBV Restricted Units 

written notice at least sixty (60) days prior to any rent increase.   
 

3. Qualified Tenants; Records, Reports and Monitoring.  During the Qualified 
Project Period, the Borrower shall submit to the Trust (i) not later than July 15, of each 
year, a report showing the necessary information to allow the Trust to determine the 
Owner’s compliance with this Regulatory Agreement, and (ii) within fifteen (15) days 
after receipt of a written request, any other information or completed forms requested by 
the Trust in order to comply with reporting requirements of HUD, or the State of 
California.  Borrower agrees to fully comply with Trust’s requirements for monitoring 
the affordability of the Project. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
4. Management.  Borrower shall manage the Restricted Units in accordance with a 
management plan prepared by Borrower and approved by the Trust Manager, describing 
Borrower's standards for operating, managing and maintaining the Restricted Units, 
including, but not limited to, the components listed below (the “Management Plan”). The 
Management Plan shall provide for occupancy standards that are appropriate for the 
Restricted Units. Borrower shall manage the Restricted Units in accordance with the 
approved Management Plan, including such amendments as may be approved in writing 
from time to time by the Trust Manager, for the Qualified Project Period.  The 
components of the Management Plan shall include: 
 

(a) Management Agent.  During the Qualified Project Period, Borrower shall 
be the management agent or Borrower shall submit the name and qualifications of the 
proposed management agent.  If the management agent is not Borrower, the Trust shall 
approve or disapprove the proposed management agent in writing based on the 
experience and qualifications of the management agent. 
 

(b) Management Agreement.  At the outset of the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower shall submit a copy of the proposed management agreement specifying the 
amount of the management fee, and the relationship and division of responsibilities 
between Borrower and management agent. 
 

(c) Marketing Plan.  The marketing plan will apply to all of the units in the 
Project, including the Restricted Units, except the Manager’s Unit.  The Borrower shall 
submit a marketing plan for review and approval by the Trust Manager.  The marketing 
plan must contain procedures that ensure marketing of the Restricted Units to Qualified 
Tenants throughout Orange County (including both unincorporated areas and other 
incorporated cities).  Such procedures shall be applicable for initial rent-up and ongoing 
marketing of the units throughout the Qualified Project Period.  Borrower shall advertise 
vacancies of the Restricted Units in general distribution newspapers that circulate 
throughout the County.  Where the Borrower utilizes other forms of advertising, such 
advertising shall also be distributed throughout the County. 
 

(d) Annual Budget and Projected Cash Flows.  Concurrently with the 
beginning of the Qualified Project Period, and annually thereafter not later than seventy-
five (75) days after the close of each calendar year (December 31) thereafter, Borrower 
shall submit, in a form that is acceptable to the Trust, a projected operating budget and 
cash flow for the Project to the Trust.   
 

(e) Trust Right to Replace Management Agent.  If at any time the Trust 
determines that the Project is not being managed or maintained in accordance with the 
approved Management Plan, Borrower shall change the management agent or the 
practices complained of, upon receipt of written notice from the Trust.  The Trust may 
require Borrower to change management practices or to terminate the management 
contract and designate and retain a different management agent, to be approved by the 
Trust.  The management agreement shall provide that it is subject to termination by 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Borrower without penalty, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice, at the direction of 
the Trust. Within ten (10) days following a direction of the Trust to replace the 
management agent, Borrower shall select another management agent or make other 
arrangements satisfactory to the Trust for continuing management of the Project. 
 
5. Maintenance; Compliance with Law.  During the Qualified Project Period, 
Borrower agrees to maintain all interior and exterior improvements, including 
landscaping, on the Project in good condition, repair and sanitary condition (and, as to 
landscaping, in a healthy condition) and in accordance with any Management Plan 
approved by the Trust under this Agreement (including without limitation any 
landscaping and signage), as the same may be amended from time to time, and all other 
applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and regulations of all federal, state, county, 
municipal, and other governmental agencies and bodies having or claiming jurisdiction 
and all their respective departments, bureaus, and officials.  Borrower acknowledges the 
great emphasis the Trust places on quality maintenance to protect its investment and to 
provide quality low income housing for its constituents and to ensure that all Trust 
subsidized affordable housing projects within the County are not allowed to deteriorate 
due to deficient maintenance.  In addition, Borrower shall keep the Project free from all 
graffiti and any accumulation of debris or waste material.  Borrower shall promptly make 
all repairs and replacements necessary to keep the Project in good condition and repair 
and shall promptly eliminate all graffiti and replace dead and diseased plants and 
landscaping with comparable approved materials. 
 
 In the event that Borrower breaches any of the covenants contained in this Section 
5 and such default continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice from the 
Trust (with respect to graffiti, debris, waste material, and general maintenance) or thirty 
(30) days after written notice from the Trust (with respect to landscaping and building 
improvements), then the Trust, in addition to whatever other right or remedy it may have 
under the Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documents, this Regulatory Agreement or at 
law or in equity, shall have the right to enter upon the Project and perform or cause to be 
performed all such acts and work necessary to cure the default.  Pursuant to such right of 
entry, the Trust shall be permitted (but is not required) to enter upon the Project and 
perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain and preserve the improvements 
and landscaped areas on the Project.  Borrower shall promptly pay to the Trust, as 
applicable, the amount of the expenditure arising from such acts and work of protection, 
maintenance, and preservation by the Trust and/or costs of such cure, including a fifteen 
percent (15%) administrative charge. 
 
6. Consideration.  The Trust has made the Loan for the purpose, among others, of 
inducing the Borrower to provide affordable housing in the County of Orange.  In 
consideration of the Loan to the Borrower, the Borrower has entered into this Agreement 
and has agreed to restrict the Restricted Units of the Project on the terms and conditions 
set forth herein. 
 
7. Sale or Transfer of the Project.  The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees not 
to voluntarily sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the Property or the Project, or any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



portion thereof (other than for individual tenant use as contemplated hereunder), without 
obtaining the prior written consent of the Trust.  It is hereby expressly stipulated and 
agreed that any sale, transfer or other disposition of the Property or the Project in 
violation of this Section 7 shall be null, void and without effect, shall cause a reversion of 
title to the Borrower and shall be ineffective to relieve the Borrower of its obligations 
under this Agreement.  Any transfer of the Property or the Project to any entity, whether 
or not affiliated with the Borrower, shall be subject to the provisions of this Section 7. 
 
8. Term. This Agreement and all and each of the provisions hereof shall become 
effective upon its execution and delivery, shall remain in full force and effect for the 
period provided herein and in the Loan Agreement, and, shall terminate in its entirety at 
the expiration of the Qualified Project Period, it being expressly agreed and understood 
that the provisions hereof are intended to survive the discharge of the Loan and 
termination of the Loan Agreement.  In the event that the Conversion Date, as defined in 
the Loan Agreement, does not occur and the Qualified Project period does not 
commence, as set forth in the Loan Agreement, the restrictions of this Agreement shall 
have no effect and the Trust shall provide the Borrower with a release of this Agreement. 
 
9. Covenants to Run with the Land.  
 

(a) All conditions, covenants, and restrictions contained in this Agreement 
shall be covenants running with the land, and shall, in any event, and without regard to 
technical classification or designation, legal or otherwise, be, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law and equity, binding for the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by 
Trust, its successors and assigns, against Borrower, its successors and assigns, to or of the 
Project or any portion thereof or any interest therein, and any party in possession or 
occupancy of said Project or portion thereof. 
 

(b) In amplification and not in restriction of the provisions set forth 
hereinabove, it is intended and agreed that Trust shall be deemed a beneficiary of the 
agreements and covenants provided hereinabove both for and in its own right and also for 
the purposes of protecting the interests of the community.  All covenants without regard 
to technical classification or designation shall be binding for the benefit of the Trust and 
such covenants shall run in favor of the Trust for the entire period during which such 
covenants shall be in force and effect, without regard to whether the Trust is or remains 
an owner of any land or interest therein to which such covenants relate. The Trust shall 
have the right, in the event of any breach of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise 
all the rights and remedies, and to maintain any action at law or suit in equity or other 
proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or covenant. 
 

(c) The Trust and its successors and assigns, and Borrower and the permitted 
successors and assigns of Borrower in and to all or any part of the fee title to the Project, 
shall jointly have the right upon written agreement signed by both parties to consent and 
agree to changes in, or to eliminate in whole or in part, any of the covenants, easements, 
or restrictions contained in this Agreement without the consent of any tenant, lessee, 
easement holder, licensee, mortgagee, trustee, beneficiary under a deed of trust, or any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



other person or entity having any interest less than a fee in the Project.  The covenants 
contained in this Agreement, without regard to technical classification shall not benefit or 
be enforceable by any owner of any other real property within or outside the Project, or 
any person or entity having any interest in any other such realty. 
 

(d) No breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall impair, defeat 
or render invalid the lien of any mortgage, deed of trust or like encumbrance made in 
good faith and for value encumbering the Property or the Project or any portion thereof. 
 
10. Burden and Benefit.  The Trust and the Borrower hereby declare their 
understanding and intent that the burden of the covenants set forth herein touch and 
concern the Property and the Project in that the Borrower's legal interest in the Project is 
rendered less valuable thereby.  The Trust and the Borrower hereby further declare their 
understanding and intent that the benefit of such covenants touching and concerning the 
land is the enhancement and increased enjoyment and use of the Project by Qualified 
Tenants, the intended beneficiaries of such covenants, reservations and restrictions, and 
by the furthering of public purposes for which the Loan was made. 
 
11. Uniformity; Common Plan.  The covenants, reservations and restrictions hereof 
shall apply uniformly to the entire Project in order to establish and carry out a common 
plan for the use, development and improvement of the Project. 
 
12. Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" by 

Borrower under this Agreement: 
 

(a) Failure to Make Payments.  Borrower fails to make any payment of due 
the Trust under this Agreement within ten (10) days after receiving written notice for said 
payment from the Trust; 
 

(b) Non-Monetary Failure to Perform.  Borrower fails to timely perform, 
comply with or observe any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement 
(other than those provisions elsewhere referred to in this Section 12) and such failure 
continues uncured or without Borrower commencing to diligently cure for thirty (30) 
days after notice thereof in writing is given by the Trust to Borrower; 
 

(c) Mortgage Loan Document Breach.  Any default or breach of Borrower 
which continues uncured after the expiration of any applicable cure period under the 
Loan Agreement (including, but not limited to, the obligations of the Borrower under 
Article VI of the Loan Agreement), any Loan Document or any other loan document 
including, but not limited to, the Mortgage Loan Documents, as defined and set forth in 
the Loan Agreement;  
 

(d) Voluntary Suspension.  The voluntary suspension of Borrower's business 
or the dissolution or termination of the partnership (if any) constituting Borrower; 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(e) Unauthorized Transfer.  Borrower’s sale or other transfer of the Project in 
violation of this Agreement; 
 

(f) Fraud or Material Misstatement or Omissions.  Any fraudulent act or 
omission of Borrower pertaining to or made in connection with the Loan, Loan 
Documents or the Project;  
 

(g) Insolvency.  A court having jurisdiction shall have made or entered any 
decree or order (i) adjudging Borrower to be bankrupt or insolvent, (ii) approving as 
properly filed a petition seeking reorganization of Borrower or seeking any arrangement 
for Borrower under the bankruptcy law or any other applicable debtor's relief law or 
statute of the United States or any state or other jurisdiction, (iii) appointing a receiver, 
trustee, liquidator, or assignee of Borrower in bankruptcy or insolvency or for any of their 
properties, or (iv) directing the winding up or liquidation of Borrower, if any such decree 
or order described in clauses (i) to (iv), inclusive, shall have continued unstayed or 
undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days unless a lesser time period is permitted for 
cure under any other mortgage on the Property, in which event such lesser time period 
will apply under this subsection 12(g) as well; or Borrower shall have admitted in writing 
its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or shall have voluntarily submitted to or filed 
a petition seeking any decree or order of the nature described in clauses (i) to (iv), 
inclusive.  The occurrence of any of the events of default in this paragraph shall act to 
accelerate automatically, without the need for any action by the Trust, the indebtedness 
evidenced by the Note; or 
 

(h) Project Monies.  Borrower’s misapplication or embezzlement of Project 
monies. 
 
13. Remedies.  The occurrence of any Event of Default shall, either at the option of 
the Trust or automatically where so specified, relieve the Trust of any obligation to make 
or continue the Loan and shall give the Trust the right to proceed with any and all 
remedies set forth in this Agreement and the Loan Documents or otherwise available at 
law or in equity or by statute (and all of the Trust's rights and remedies shall be 
cumulative), including but not limited to the following: 
 

(a) Acceleration of Note.  The Trust shall have the right to cause all 
indebtedness of the Borrower to the Trust under the Note, together with any accrued 
interest thereon, to become immediately due and payable.  The Borrower waives all right 
to presentment, demand, protest or notice of protest, or dishonor.  The Trust may proceed 
to enforce payment of the indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to the 
Trust as a creditor and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial 
Code, including foreclosure under the Deed of Trust.  The Borrower shall be liable to pay 
the Trust on demand all expenses, costs and fees (including, without limitation, attorneys' 
fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the Trust in connection with the collection of the 
Loan and the preservation, maintenance, protection, sale, or other disposition of the 
security given for the Loan. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(b) Specific Performance.  The Trust shall have the right to mandamus or other 
suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform its obliga-
tions and covenants under this Agreement and/or the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts 
on things, which may be unlawful, or in violation of the provisions of this Agreement 
and/or the Loan Documents. 
 

(c) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The Trust shall have the right to 
cure any monetary default by Borrower under this Agreement.  The Borrower agrees to 
reimburse the Trust for any funds advanced by the Trust to cure a monetary default by 
Borrower upon demand therefore, together with interest thereon at the rate of twelve 
percent (12%) per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever rate is lesser, 
from the date of expenditure until the date of reimbursement. 
 

(d) Remedies Cumulative.  No right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by 
the terms of this Agreement or the Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of any 
other right, power, or remedy; and each and every such right, power, or remedy shall be 
cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, or remedy given to the Trust by 
the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute or otherwise against Borrower and any 
other person.  Neither the failure nor any delay on the part of the Trust to exercise any 
such rights and remedies shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial 
exercise by the Trust of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise 
of such right or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 
 

(e) Waiver of Terms and Conditions.  No waiver of any default or breach by 
Borrower hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the Trust to take action on 
account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall 
affect any default other than the default specified in the waiver, and such waiver shall be 
operative only for the time and to the extent therein stated.  Waivers of any covenant, 
term, or condition contained herein shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent 
breach of the same covenant, term, or condition.  The consent or approval by the Trust to 
or of any act by Borrower requiring further consent or approval shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary the consent or approval to or of any subsequent similar act.  
The exercise of any right, power, or remedy shall in no event constitute a cure or a waiver 
of any default under this Agreement or the Loan Documents, nor shall it invalidate any 
act done pursuant to notice of default, or prejudice the Trust in the exercise of any right, 
power, or remedy hereunder or under the Loan Documents, unless in the exercise of any 
such right, power, or remedy all obligations of Borrower to the Trust are paid and 
discharged in full. 
 
14. Recording and Filing. The Borrower shall cause this Agreement, and all 
amendments and supplements hereto and thereto, to be recorded and filed in the real 
property records of the County of Orange and in such other places as the Trust may 
reasonably request.  The Borrower shall pay all fees and charges incurred in connection 
with any such recording. 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the 
sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange 
County, California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the 
jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394 
 
16. Amendments. This Agreement shall be amended only by a written instrument 
executed by the parties hereto, or their successors in title and duly recorded in the real 
property records of the County of Orange. 
 
17. Notices.   
 

(a) Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be made in writing and 
shall be given by personal delivery, certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, at the addresses specified below, or at such other addresses as may be 
specified in writing by the parties hereto: 
 
 
 
 Borrower:  [BORROWER TO PROVIDE] 
 
 

Trust:   Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

 
The Trust shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to Borrower to the 
following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the validity of any 
otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 
 
    [courtesy notices] 
 
Notice shall be deemed given three business days after the date of mailing. 
     
18. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining portions hereof 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
19.  Additional Terms.    
 

(a) Indemnity.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Borrower agrees to 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Trust and its elected officials, officers, 
governing members, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified 
Parties"), from and against any and all losses, damages, claims, actions, liabilities, costs 
and expenses of any and every conceivable nature, kind or character (including, without 
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, litigation and court costs, amounts paid in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



settlement and amounts paid to discharge judgments) to which the Indemnified Parties, or 
any of them, may become subject to under any statutory law (including federal or state 
securities laws) or at common law or otherwise, arising out of or based upon or in any 
way relating to: 
 

i. this Agreement or the execution or amendment thereof in 
connection with the transactions contemplated thereby; 
 

ii. Borrower’s ownership or operation of the Property and the Project 
or any act or omission of the Borrower or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees or licensees in connection with the Property and the Project, the operation of 
the Project, or the condition, environmental or otherwise, occupancy, use, possession, 
conduct or management of work done in or about, or from the planning, design, 
acquisition, installation, operation or rehabilitation of, the Project or any part thereof; 
 

iii. any lien or charge upon payments by the Borrower to the Trust, or 
any taxes (including, without limitation, all ad valorem taxes and sales taxes), 
assessments, impositions and other charges imposed on the Trust in respect of any 
portion of the Project; 
 

iv. any violation of any environmental law, rule or regulation with 
respect to, or the release of any toxic substance from, the Property or the Project or any 
part thereof; 
 

v. any untrue statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue 
statement or alleged misleading statement of a material fact by the Borrower contained in 
any Loan Document or any of the documents or instruments relating to said Loan 
Documents that the Trust relied upon in making the Loan; except to the extent such 
damages are caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified 
Party. In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party 
with respect to which indemnity may be sought hereunder, the Borrower, upon written 
notice from the Indemnified Party, shall assume the investigation and defense thereof, 
including the employment and payment for of counsel selected by the Indemnified Party, 
and shall assume the payment of all expenses related thereto, with full power to litigate, 
compromise or settle the same; provided that the Indemnified Party shall have the right to 
review and approve or disapprove any such compromise or settlement. 
 

(b) Time. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 
 

(c) Construction.  Except where the context otherwise requires, words 
imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, words 
imparting persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships and corporations, and 
words of either gender shall include the other gender. 

 
(d) Waiver of Jury Trial.   Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, 

each party to this Agreement hereby expressly waives any right to trial by jury of any 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



claim, demand, action or cause of action arising under any Loan Document or in any way 
connected with or related or incidental to the dealings of the parties hereto or any of them 
with respect to any Loan Document, or the transactions related thereto, in each case 
whether now existing or hereafter arising, and whether sounding in contract or tort or 
otherwise; and each party hereby agrees and consents that any such claim, demand, 
action or cause of action shall be decided by court trial without a jury, and that any party 
to this Agreement may file an original counterpart or a copy of this section with any court 
as written evidence of the consent of the parties hereto to the waiver of their right to trial 
by jury. 

 
(e) Nonliability.  By accepting or approving anything required to be 

performed or given to Trust under this Agreement, Trust shall not be deemed to have 
warranted or represented the sufficiency or legal effect of the same, and no such 
acceptance or approval shall constitute a warranty or representation by Trust to anyone. 
 

(f) Obligations Unconditional and Independent.  Notwithstanding the 
existence at any time of any obligation or liability of Trust to Borrower, or any claim by 
Borrower against Trust, in connection with this Agreement or otherwise, Borrower 
hereby waives any right it might otherwise have (a) to offset any such obligation, liability 
or claim against Borrower’s obligations under this Agreement or (b) to claim that the 
existence of any such obligation, liability or claim excuses the nonperformance by 
Borrower of any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
(g) Department of Housing and Community Development Underwriting 

Standards. The Trust attests that the underwriting standards being utilized for this 
transaction are those that have been submitted and approved by the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
and year first above written. 
 

Signature Pages to Follow 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
    BORROWER:  
 
    [PLEASE PROVIDE SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
 
    By: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



TRUST: 
 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California 
Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 

 
           
           
    By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Trust Manager  
     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
 
 
By____________________________ 
 Trust Counsel 
 
Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[PLEASE PROVIDE LEGAL DESCRIPTION]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
[PLEASE PROVIDE] 

      
EXTREMELY LOW INCOMEQUALIFIED TENANT/UNIT MIX 

[LOCATION], California 
 
 

RENT & AFFORDABILITY SCHEDULE   
 
 

Number of 
Restricted 
Units 

Number of 
Bedrooms 

* Gross 
Restricted 
Rental Rate 

**Utility 
Allowance 

Net 
Restricted 
Rental 
Rate 

Income 
Limit based 
on Area 
Median 
Income 
(AMI) 

Age 
Restriction (if 
any) 

Project 
Based 
Section 8 
Units 

Number of 
Years 
Restricted 

         
         
         
         
Total        Total  0  

 
 
 

*  Restricted Rental Rate is based on the current Area Median Income (AMI) published by HUD annually and does not include the 
utility allowance deduction. 

 
* * Utility allowance is based on the current utility schedule published by the Orange County Housing Authority annually.   
 
*** Income Limit may be adjusted in accordance with Section 2(g) in the event that Project Based Section 8 rental subsidies are no 

longer available for the Project. 
 

Rent increases shall be limited to (i) the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) annually 
published Rent Adjustment factor for the Section 8 program, or (ii) no more than the lower of rent established as 
affordable based on the Median Income for the Area and the affordability restrictions set forth above, which is 
adjusted annually by HUD and published by the State of California, or as required by California Health & Safety 
Code section 50053, as referenced in the Loan Agreement Section 4.1 (a). 
 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



RECORDING REQUESTED BY      
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 
 

         

 

DEED OF TRUST, ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 

THIS DEED OF TRUST, ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS, AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 
(“Deed of Trust”) is made as of this ___ day of ________, 2020,  by [BORROWER TO 
CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY]., (“Trustor”), to_________________, as trustee 
(“Trustee”), for the benefit of the ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a 
California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. 
as beneficiary (“Beneficiary”). 

 FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, including the indebtedness herein 
recited and the trust herein created, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Trustor hereby 
irrevocably grants, transfers, conveys and assigns to Trustee, IN TRUST, WITH POWER OF 
SALE AND RIGHT OF ENTRY AND POSSESSION, for the benefit and security of 
Beneficiary, under and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Trustor’s fee 
interest in the property located in Orange County, State of California, that is described in Exhibit 
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”), on which Trustor 
intended to construct and operate an apartment complex commonly known as [PROJECT 
NAME]. 

 TOGETHER WITH all interest, estates or other claims, both in law and in equity which 
Trustor now has or may hereafter acquire in the Property and the rents;  

 TOGETHER WITH all easements, rights-of-way and rights used in connection therewith 
or as a means of access thereto, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all 
tenements, hereditament and appurtenances thereof and thereto;  

 TOGETHER WITH any and all buildings, improvements and landscaping of every kind 
and description now or hereafter erected thereon, and all property of the Trustor now or hereafter 
affixed to or placed upon the Property (sometimes collectively referred to as the 
“Improvements”); 

 TOGETHER WITH all building materials and equipment now or hereafter delivered to 
said Property and intended to be installed therein; 

 TOGETHER WITH all right, title and interest of Trustor, now owned or hereafter 
acquired, in and to any land lying within the right-of-way of any street, open or proposed, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



adjoining the Property, and any and all sidewalks, alleys, strips and gores of land adjacent to or 
used in connection with the Property and/or Improvements; 

 TOGETHER WITH all estate, interest, right, title, other claim or demand, of every 
nature, in and to such property, including the Property, both in law and in equity, including, but 
not limited to, all oil, gas and mineral rights (including royalty and leasehold rights relating 
thereto), all water and water rights and shares of stock relating thereto, all leases of all or any 
portion of the Property or Improvements entered into by Trustor as lessor or lessee, all options to 
purchase or lease all or any portion of the Property and/or Improvements, all deposits made with 
or other security given by Trustor to third parties including, utility companies, the proceeds from 
any or all of such property, including the Property, claims or demands with respect to the 
proceeds of insurance in effect with respect thereto, which Trustor now has or may hereafter 
acquire, any and all awards made for the taking by eminent domain or by and proceeding or 
purchase in lieu thereof of the whole or any part of such property; and 

 TOGETHER WITH all articles of personal property or fixtures now or hereafter attached 
to, located on, installed in or used in and about the Property and/or Improvements, including 
without limitation, all partitions, generators, screens, boilers, furnaces, pipes, plumbing, 
elevators, cleaning and sprinkler systems, fire extinguishing machinery and equipment, water 
tanks, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and air cooling machinery and, equipment, gas and 
electric machinery and equipment and other appliances, machinery and equipment and other 
fixtures of every nature, all of which shall remain real property, and all renewals or replacements 
thereof or articles in substitution therefor, whether or not the same are, or shall be attached to the 
Property in any manner. 

 TOGETHER WITH all present and future accounts, general intangibles, chattel paper, 
deposit accounts, investment property, instruments and documents as those terms are defined in 
the California Commercial Code, now or hereafter relating or arising with respect to the Property 
and/or Improvements and/or the use thereof or any improvements thereto, including without 
limitation: (i) all rights to the payment of money, including escrow proceeds arising out of the 
sale or other disposition of all or any portion of the Property and/or Improvements; (ii) all 
deposit accounts and other accounts and funds created under or pursuant to the Loan Agreement 
(as defined below), and the other Loan Documents, all amounts now or hereafter on deposit  
herein, and all interest and other earnings thereon; (iii) all use permits, occupancy permits, 
construction and building permits, and all other permits and approvals required by any 
governmental or quasi-governmental authority in connection with the development, construction, 
use, occupancy or operation of the Property and/or Improvements; (iv) any and all agreements 
relating to the occupancy and/or operation of the Property and/or Improvements, including 
without limitation  service, property management, landscaping, gardening , consulting and other 
contracts of every nature (to the extent the same are assignable); (v) all lease or rental 
agreements; (vi) all names under which the Property and/or Improvements are now or hereafter 
known and all rights to carry on business under any such names or any variant thereof; (vii) all 
trademarks relating to the Property and/or Improvements and/or the use, occupancy or operation 
thereof; (viii) all goodwill relating to the Property and/or Improvements and/or the use, 
occupancy or operation thereof; (ix) all insurance proceeds and condemnation awards arising out 
of or incidental to the ownership, use, occupancy or operation of the Property and/or 
Improvements; (x) all reserves, deferred payments, deposits, refunds, cost savings, bonds, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



insurance policies and payments of any kind relating to the Property and/or Improvements; (xi) 
all water stock, if any, relating to any Property and/or Improvements; (xii) all supplements, 
modifications and amendments to the foregoing and all present and future accessions, additions, 
attachments, replacements and substitutions of or to any or all of the foregoing; and (xiii) all cash 
and noncash proceeds and products of any or all of the foregoing, including without limitation all 
monies, deposit accounts, insurance proceeds and other tangible or intangible property received 
upon a sale or other disposition of any of the foregoing, whether voluntary or involuntary; and 

 TOGETHER WITH all present and future goods, equipment and inventory, as those 
terms are defined in the California Commercial Code, and all other present and future personal 
property of any kind or nature whatsoever, now or hereafter located at, upon or about the 
Property and/or Improvements, or used or to be used in connection with or relating or arising 
with respect to the Property and/or Improvements, the use thereof or any improvements thereto. 

 All of the foregoing, together with the Property, is herein referred to as the “Security”.  
To have and to hold the Security together with acquittances to the Trustee, its successors and 
assigns forever. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF SECURING: 

(a) Payment of and performance of all indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary as set 
forth in the Loan Agreement (defined in Section 1.5 below) and the Note (defined in Section 1.6 
below) in the original principal amount of [AMOUNT OF LOAN] ($XXX) until paid or 
canceled.  Said principal and other payments shall be due and payable as provided in the Loan 
Agreement and the Note.  The Loan Agreement and the Note and all their terms are incorporated 
herein by reference, and this conveyance shall secure any and all extensions thereof, however 
evidenced;  

(b) Payment and performance of any sums advanced by Beneficiary to protect the 
Security pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Deed of Trust with interest thereon as 
provided herein;  

(c) Payment and performance of every other obligation, covenant or agreement of 
Trustor contained in this Deed of Trust and in the other “Loan Documents” (as such term is 
defined in the Loan Agreement);  

(d) Payment and performance of all renewals, extensions, supplements, amendments 
and other modifications of any of the foregoing, including without limitation modifications that 
are evidenced by new or additional documents or that change the rate of interest on any 
obligation. 

 All of the foregoing obligations are referred to collectively herein as the “Obligations”. 

AND TO PROTECT THE SECURITY OF THIS DEED OF TRUST, TRUSTOR 
COVENANTS AND AGREES: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Deed of Trust, the following terms shall 
have the following meanings in this Deed of Trust: 

Section 1.1.  The term “Debt Instrument” means any debt, loan, mortgage, deed of trust, 
regulatory agreement or security instrument relating to the Property or the Security, including, 
but not limited to, the Loan Documents.Section 1.2.  The term “Hazardous Substance” means: 

(a) any oil, flammable substance, explosive, radioactive material, hazardous 
waste or substance, toxic waste or substance or any other waste, material, or pollutant that 

(i) poses a hazard to the Property or to persons on the Property or 

(ii) causes the Property to be in violation of any Hazardous Substance 
Law; 

(b) asbestos in any form; 

(c) urea formaldehyde foam insulation; 

(d) transformers or other equipment that contain dielectric fluid containing 
levels of polychlorinated biphenyls; 

(e) radon gas; 

(f) any chemical, material, or substance defined as or included in the 
definition of “hazardous substance,” “hazardous substances,” “hazardous wastes,” “hazardous 
materials,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” or “toxic substances” or 
words of similar import under any applicable local, state, or federal law or under the regulations 
adopted or publications promulgated pursuant to those laws, including, but not limited to, any 
Hazardous Substance Law, Code of Civil Procedure § 564, as amended from time to time, Code 
of Civil Procedure § 726.5, as amended from time to time, Code of Civil Procedure §736, as 
amended from time to time, and Civil Code § 2929.5, as amended from time to time; 

(g) any other chemical, material, or substance, exposure to which is 
prohibited, limited, or regulated by any governmental authority or which may pose a hazard to 
the health and safety of the occupants of the Property or the owners or occupants of property 
adjacent to or surrounding the Property, or any other person coming on the Property or any 
adjacent property; and 

(h) any other chemical, material, or substance that may pose a hazard to the 
environment. 

Section 1.3.  The term “Hazardous Substance Claim” means any enforcement, cleanup, 
removal, remedial, or other governmental, regulatory, or private actions, agreements, or orders 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



threatened, instituted, or completed pursuant to any Hazardous Substance Law together with all 
claims made or threatened by any third party against Trustor or the Property relating to damage, 
contribution, cost-recovery compensation, loss, or injury resulting from the presence, release or 
discharge of any Hazardous Substance. 

Section 1.4.  The term “Hazardous Substance Law” means any federal, state, or local 
law, ordinance, regulation, or policy relating to the environment, health, and safety, any 
Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the use, handling, transportation, 
production, disposal, discharge, or storage of the substance), industrial hygiene, soil, 
groundwater, and indoor and ambient air conditions or the environmental conditions on the 
Property, including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 [42 USCS §§ 9601 et seq.], as amended from time to 
time; the Hazardous Substances Transportation Act [49 USCS §§ 1801 et seq.], as amended from 
time to time; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act [42 USCS §§ 6901 et seq.], as 
amended from time to time; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act [33 USCS §§ 1251 et seq.], 
as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Substance Account Act [Health and Safety Code 
§§ 25300 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Hazardous Waste Control Law [Health and 
Safety Code §§ 25100 et seq.], as amended from time to time; the Medical Waste Management 
Act [Health and Safety Code §§ 25015 et seq.], as amended from time to time; and the Porter-
Cologne Water Quality Control Act [Water Code §§ 13000 et seq.], as amended from time to 
time.  

 Section 1.5.  The term “Loan Agreement” means that certain Loan Agreement, which 
terms and provision are incorporated into this Deed of Trust by reference, of even date herewith 
between Trustor and Beneficiary.   

 Section 1.6.  The term “Note” means that certain promissory note of even date herewith 
executed by the Trustor, the payment of which is secured by this deed of Trust. 

 Section 1.7.  The term “Principal” means the aggregate of all principal and interest due 
under the Note. 

 Section 1.8.  The term “Release” means any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, 
emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing into the 
environment, including continuing migration, of Hazardous Substances that goes into the soil, 
surface water, or groundwater of the Property, whether or not caused by, contributed to, 
permitted by, acquiesced to, or known to Trustor. 

 

ARTICLE II 
 

GENERAL COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR REGARDING 
THE PROPERTY, IMPROVEMENTS AND SECURITY 

 

Section 2.1.  Payment of Secured Obligations. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 Trustor shall duly and punctually pay and perform all Obligations, including but not 
limited to all terms, covenants, conditions and agreements set forth in the Debt Instruments, the 
Loan Agreement, the Note and any other agreement of any nature whatsoever now or hereafter 
involving or affecting the Security or any part thereof. 

Section 2.2.  Maintenance, Repair and Modification. 

(a) The Trustor agrees that at all times prior to full payment of the sum owed under 
the Note, the Trustor will, at the Trustor’s own expense, maintain, preserve and keep the Security 
or cause the Security to be maintained and preserved in good condition and repair and in a 
prudent and businesslike manner.  The Trustor will from time to time make or cause to be made 
all repairs, replacements and renewals to the Security, which are necessary or appropriate.  The 
Beneficiary shall have no responsibility in any of these matters or for the making of 
improvements or additions to the Security. 

(b) Trustor shall not remove, demolish or substantially alter any of the Improvements, 
other than to make repairs in the ordinary course of business of a non-structural nature which 
serve to preserve or increase the value of the Security without Beneficiary’s prior written 
consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld so long as Trustor provides 
reasonable evidence to Beneficiary that, following such demolition and restoration and/or 
alteration, the Improvements shall have a fair market value at least equal to their fair market 
value prior to such demolition and restoration and/or alteration; Trustor shall complete promptly 
and in a good and workmanlike manner any Improvement which may now or hereafter be 
constructed and promptly restore in like manner any Improvement which may be damaged or 
destroyed thereon from any cause whatsoever, and pay when due all claims for labor performed 
and materials furnished therefor; Trustor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, covenants, conditions, restrictions and orders of any governmental authority now or 
hereafter affecting the conduct or operation of Trustor’s business or the security or any part 
thereof or requiring any alteration or improvement to be made thereon; Trustor shall not commit, 
suffer or permit any act to be done in, upon or to the Security or any part thereof in violation of 
any such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders, or any covenant, condition or restriction 
now or hereafter affecting the Security; Trustor shall not commit or permit any waste or 
deterioration of the Security, and shall keep and maintain abutting grounds, sidewalks, roads, 
parking and landscape areas in good and neat order and repair; Trustor will not take (or fail to 
take) any action, which if taken (or not so taken) would increase in any way the risk of fire or 
other hazard occurring to or affecting the Security or otherwise would impair the security of 
Beneficiary in the Security; Trustor shall comply with the provisions of all leases, if any, 
constituting a portion of the Security; Trustor shall not abandon the Security or any portion 
thereof or leave the Security unprotected, unguarded, vacant or deserted; Trustor shall not 
initiate, join in or consent to any change in any zoning ordinance, general plan, specific plan, 
private restrictive covenant or other public or private restriction limiting the uses which may be 
made of the Security by Trustor or by the owner thereof; Trustor shall secure and maintain in full 
force all permits necessary for the use, occupancy and operation of the Security; except as 
otherwise prohibited or restricted by the Loan Agreement and the other instruments and 
documents executed in connection with the transaction to which the Loan Agreement pertains or 
any of them, Trustor shall do any and all other acts which may be reasonably necessary to protect 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



or preserve the value of the Security and the rights of Trustee and Beneficiary with respect 
thereto. 

 Section 2.3.  Granting of Easements. 

 Trustor may not grant easements, licenses, rights-of-way or other rights or privileges in 
the nature of easements with respect to any property or rights included in the Security except 
those required or desirable for installation and maintenance of public utilities including, without 
limitation, water, gas, electricity, sewer, telephone and telegraph, or those required by law. 

Section 2.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. 

 In the event of any Event of Default (as defined below) hereunder, and if the Beneficiary 
should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of amounts due or the 
enforcement of performance or observance of an obligation or agreement on the part of the 
Trustor in this Deed of Trust, the Trustor agrees that it will, on demand therefor, pay to the 
Beneficiary the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so paid by 
the Beneficiary; and any such amounts paid by the Beneficiary shall be added to the 
indebtedness secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust, and shall bear interest from the date such 
expenses are paid at the Agreed Rate (as defined in Section 3.1(d) below). 

Section 2.5.  Payment of the Principal. 

The Trustor shall pay to the Beneficiary the Principal and any other payments as set forth 
in the Note in the amounts and by the times set out therein. 

Section 2.6.  Fixture Filing and Security Agreement. 

(a) To the maximum extent permitted by law, the personal property subject to this 
Deed of Trust shall be deemed to be fixtures and part of the real property and this Deed of Trust 
shall constitute a fixture filing under the California Commercial Code.  As to any personal 
property not deemed or permitted to be fixtures, this Deed of Trust shall constitute a security 
agreement under the California Commercial Code and Trustor hereby grants to Beneficiary a 
security interest in all of Trustor’s right, title and interest, whether now existing or hereafter 
arising, in and to any portion of the Property which constitutes personal property (the “Personal 
Property”). 

(b) Trustor hereby represents and warrants to Beneficiary that: (1) Trustor is the 
owner of the Personal Property and no other person has any right, title, claim or interest (by way 
of security interest or other lien or charge or otherwise) in, against or to the Personal Property 
other than any senior lender or lien holder approved in writing by Beneficiary; (2) the Personal 
Property is free from all liens, security interests, encumbrances and adverse interests, except 
Permitted Encumbrances (hereinafter defined); (3) no financing statement or similar filing 
covering any of the Personal Property, and naming any secured party other than Beneficiary and 
the holders of Permitted Encumbrances, is on file in any public office; (4) each account, general 
intangible, chattel paper, deposit account, instrument, document, agreement, contract or right to 
the payment of money constituting Personal Property (collectively, the "Rights to Payment"), if 
any, is genuine and enforceable in accordance with its terms against the party obligated to pay 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



the same and (5) the Personal Property is not used nor was the Personal Property purchased for 
personal or family use by Trustor. 

 
(c) Trustor hereby agrees: (1) to pay, prior to delinquency, all taxes, assessments, 

charges, encumbrances and liens now or hereafter imposed upon or affecting all or any part of 
the Personal Property; (2) not to amend, modify, supplement, terminate or cancel any of the 
Personal Property; (3) without the prior written consent of Beneficiary, not to remove all or any 
part of the tangible Personal Property from the Property; (4) to give Beneficiary thirty (30) days' 
prior written notice of any change in Trustor's residence, principal place of business, chief 
executive office or trade names or styles; (5) to appear in and defend any action or proceeding 
which may affect the Personal Property (including, without limitation, actions, proceedings and 
claims which may affect Trustor's title to the Personal Property or the validity or priority of 
Beneficiary's security interest in the Personal Property); (6) to indemnify Beneficiary against all 
claims, demands and liabilities of every kind caused by the Personal Property; and (7) to permit 
Beneficiary to enter Trustor's premises to inspect the Personal Property. Trustor further agrees 
(8) to fully and timely perform all of its obligations under and with respect to all Rights of 
Payment and to diligently enforce all of the obligations of each obligor thereunder; (9) not to 
amend, modify, supplement, cancel or terminate any of the Rights to Payment in any material 
respect without the prior written consent of Beneficiary; (10) to keep the Rights to Payment and 
all proceeds free and clear of all defaults, defenses, rights of offset and counterclaim; (11) to take 
or bring, in Beneficiary's name or in the name of Trustor, as Beneficiary may require, all actions, 
suits or proceedings deemed reasonably necessary or desirable by Beneficiary to effect collection 
or to realize upon Rights to Payment; and (12) not to commingle Rights to Payment or 
collections thereunder with other property. 

 
(d) As soon as practicable, and in any event within ten (10) days, Trustor shall notify 

Beneficiary of: (1) any attachment or other legal process levied against any of the Personal 
Property; (2) any information received by Trustor which may in any manner materially and 
adversely affect the value of the Personal Property or the rights and remedies of Beneficiary with 
respect thereto; and (3) the removal of any of the Personal Property to a new location other than 
in the ordinary course of business and the removal of any records of Trustor relating to the 
Personal Property to any location other than the Land and Improvements.  

 
(e) Trustor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Beneficiary as its attorney-in-fact 

to, after the occurrence and during the occurrence of an Event of Default: (1) perform any 
obligation of Trustor hereunder in Trustor's name or otherwise; (2) give notice of Beneficiary's 
rights in the Rights to Payment, to enforce the same, and make extension agreements with 
respect thereto; (3) release persons liable on the Rights to Payment and to give receipts and 
acquittances and compromise disputes in connection therewith; (4) release security for the Rights 
to Payment; (5) resort to security for the Rights to Payment in any order; (5) prepare, execute, 
file, record or deliver notes, assignments, schedules, designation statements, financing 
statements, continuation statements, termination statements, and other documents to perfect 
preserve or release Beneficiary's interest in the Rights to Payment; and (6) do all acts and things 
and execute all documents in the name of Trustor or otherwise, deemed by Beneficiary as 
necessary, proper and convenient in connection with the preservation, perfection or enforcement 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



of its rights hereunder.  The power of attorney granted hereunder is coupled with an interest and 
is irrevocable. 

Section 2.7.  Financing Statement. 

The Trustor shall execute and deliver to the Beneficiary such financing statements 
pursuant to the appropriate statutes, and any other documents or instruments as are required to 
convey to the Beneficiary a valid perfected security interest in the Security.  The Trustor agrees 
to perform all acts that the Beneficiary may reasonably request so as to enable the Beneficiary to 
maintain such valid perfected security interest in the Security in order to secure the payment of 
the Note in accordance with its terms.  The Beneficiary is authorized to file a copy of any such 
financing statement in any jurisdiction(s) as it shall deem appropriate from time to time in order 
to protect the security interest established pursuant to this instrument. 

Section 2.8.  Operation of the Security. 

The Trustor agrees and covenants to operate the Security in full compliance with the 
Loan Agreement and the Debt Instruments. 

Section 2.9.  Inspection of the Security. 

The Trustor covenants and agrees that at any and all reasonable times, the Beneficiary 
and its duly authorized agents, attorney’s experts, engineers, accountants and representatives, 
shall have the right, without payment of charges or fees, to inspect all or any portion of the 
Security, including, but not limited to, the right to inspect and copy all reports and records 
pertaining thereto. 

Section 2.10.  Nondiscrimination. 

The Trustor herein covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and 
assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that there shall be no discrimination 
against or segregation of, any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, national origin, ancestry or disability in the 
sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Security, nor shall the 
Trustor itself or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use 
or occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or vendees in the Security.  The 
foregoing covenants shall run with the land. 

Section 2.11.  Subrogation and Waiver of Offset. 

(a) Trustor waives any and all right to claim or recover against Beneficiary, its 
officers, employees, agents and representatives, for loss of or damage to Trustor, the Security, 
Trustor’s property or the property of others under Trustor’s control from any cause insured 
against or required to be insured against by the provisions of this Deed of Trust; provided, 
however, that this waiver of subrogation shall not be effective with respect to any policy of 
insurance permitted or required by this Deed of Trust if  (i)  such policy prohibits, or if coverage 
thereunder would be reduced as a result of, such waiver of subrogation and (ii) Trustor is unable 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



to obtain from a carrier issuing such insurance a policy that, by special endorsement or 
otherwise, permits such a waiver of subrogation. 

(b) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all amounts payable by Trustor 
pursuant to this Deed of Trust shall be paid without notice, demand, counterclaim, setoff, 
deduction or defense and without abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution or reduction, 
and the obligations and liabilities of Trustor hereunder shall in no way be released, discharged or 
otherwise affected (except as expressly provided herein) by reason of:  (i) any damage to or 
destruction of or any condemnation or similar taking of the Security or any part thereof;  (ii) any 
restriction or prevention of or interference by any third party with any use of the Security or any 
part thereof;  (iii) any title defect or encumbrance or any eviction from the Security or any part 
thereof by title paramount or otherwise; (iv) any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
composition, adjustment, dissolution, liquidation or other like proceeding relating to Beneficiary, 
or any action taken with respect to this Deed of Trust by any trustee or receiver of Beneficiary, 
or by any court, in any such proceeding;  (v) any claim which Trustor has or might have against 
Beneficiary;  (vi) any default or failure on the part of Beneficiary to perform or comply with any 
of the terms hereof or of any other agreement with Trustor; or (vii) any other occurrence 
whatsoever, whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing.  Except as expressly provided herein, 
Trustor waives all rights now or hereafter conferred by statute or otherwise to any abatement, 
suspension, deferment, diminution or reduction of any sum secured hereby and payable by 
Trustor. 

Section 2.12.  Utilities. 

Trustor shall pay or cause to be paid when due all utility charges which are incurred for 
the benefit of the Security or which may become a charge or lien against the Security for gas, 
electricity, water, sewer services or other fees and charges for utilities furnished to the Security 
and all other assessments or charges of a similar nature, whether public or private, affecting or 
related to the Security or any portion thereof, whether or not such taxes, assessments or charges 
are or may become liens thereon. 

Section 2.13.  Actions by Beneficiary to Preserve Property. 

If Trustor fails to make any payment or to do any act as and in the manner provided in 
this Deed of Trust, Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, each in its own discretion, without 
obligation to do so, without releasing Trustor from any Obligation, and subject only to the notice 
and cure provisions of the Loan Agreement, may make or do the same in such manner and to 
such extent as either may deem necessary to protect the security hereof.  In connection therewith 
(without limiting their general and other powers, whether conferred herein, in another Loan 
Document or by law), Beneficiary and Trustee shall each and are hereby given the right, but not 
the obligation: (i) to enter upon and take possession of the Security; (ii) to make additions, 
alterations, repairs and improvements to the Security which either of them consider necessary or 
proper to keep the Security in good condition and repair; (iii) to appear and participate in any 
action or proceeding which may affect the security hereof or the rights or powers of Beneficiary 
or Trustee; (iv) to pay, purchase, contest or compromise any encumbrance, claim, charge, lien or 
debt which in the judgment of either may affect the security of this Deed of Trust or be prior or 
superior hereto; and (v) in exercising such powers to pay necessary expenses, including 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



employment of counsel or other necessary or desirable consultants.  Trustor shall reimburse 
Beneficiary on demand for all costs incurred by Beneficiary in connection with actions which 
Beneficiary deems advisable to protect its interest under the Loan Agreement and all such 
amounts shall bear interest at the Agreed Rate following demand and be secured hereby. 

Section 2.14.  Transfer of Property by Trustor. 

Prior to repayment of the Note, Trustor agrees that Trustor shall not sell or transfer the 
Security or any interest therein or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets of Trustor or 
any of them except as may be provided in the Loan Agreement. 

Section 2.15.  Additional Security. 

No other security now existing, or hereafter taken, to secure the Obligations secured 
hereby or the liability of any maker, surety guarantor or endorser with respect to such 
Obligations, or any of them, shall be impaired or affected by the execution of this Deed of Trust; 
and all additional security shall be taken, considered and held as cumulative.  The taking of 
additional security, execution of partial releases of the Security, or any extension of the time of 
payment of the indebtedness shall not diminish the force, effect or lien of this Deed of Trust and 
shall not affect or impair the liability of any maker, surety, guarantor or endorser for the payment 
of said indebtedness.  In the event Beneficiary at any time holds additional security for any of the 
Obligations secured hereby, it may enforce the sale thereof or otherwise realize upon the same, at 
its option, either before, concurrently, or after a sale is made hereunder. 

Section 2.16.  Liens. 

Trustor shall not cause, incur suffer or permit to exist or become effective any lien, 
encumbrance or charge upon all or any part of the Property, the Improvements or any interest 
therein other than (a) easements, rights of way, covenants, conditions, restrictions, liens and 
other title limitations approved in writing by Beneficiary prior to the execution of this Deed of 
Trust, and (b) immaterial easements and rights of way which are required by governmental 
authorities as a condition to the use and operation of the Improvements which are approved in 
writing by Beneficiary after the execution of this Deed of Trust (the “Permitted 
Encumbrances”). Trustor shall pay and promptly discharge, at Trustor’s cost and expense, all 
liens, encumbrances and charges upon the Security, or any part thereof or interest therein other 
than the Permitted Encumbrances; provided, that the existence of any mechanic’s, laborer’s, 
materialman’s, supplier’s or vendor’s lien or right thereto shall not constitute a violation of this 
Section if payment is not yet due under the contract which is the foundation thereof.  Trustor 
shall have the right to contest in good faith the validity of any such lien, encumbrance or charge, 
provided Trustor shall first deposit with the Beneficiary a bond or other security satisfactory to 
Beneficiary in such amounts as Beneficiary shall reasonably require, but not more than one 
hundred fifty percent (150%) of the amount of the claim or shall post a bond authorized by 
statute in lieu thereof, and provided further that Trustor shall thereafter diligently proceed to 
cause such lien, encumbrance or charge to be removed and discharged.  If Trustor shall fail to 
remove and discharge any such lien, encumbrance, or charge, then, in addition to any other right 
or remedy of Beneficiary, Beneficiary may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge the same, 
without inquiring into the validity of such lien, encumbrance or charge nor into the existence of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



any defense or offset thereto, either by paying the amount claimed to be due, or by procuring the 
discharge of such lien, encumbrance or charge by depositing in court a bond or the amount 
claimed, or otherwise giving security for such claim, in such manner as is or may be prescribed 
by law.  Trustor shall, immediately upon demand therefor by Beneficiary, pay to Beneficiary an 
amount equal to all costs and expenses incurred by Beneficiary in connection with the exercise 
by Beneficiary of the foregoing right to discharge any such lien, encumbrance or charge, together 
with interest thereon from the date of such expenditure at the Agreed Rate and, until paid, such 
sums shall be secured hereby. 

Section 2.17.  Beneficiary’s Powers. 

Without affecting the liability of any other person liable for the payment of any 
Obligation herein mentioned, and without affecting the lien or charge of this Deed of Trust upon 
any portion of the Security not then or theretofore released as security for the full amount of all 
unpaid Obligations, Beneficiary may, from time to time and without notice: (a) release any 
person so liable, (b) extend the maturity or alter any of the terms of any such Obligation (to the 
extent that Beneficiary is so allowed under the Loan Agreement), (c) grant other indulgences, (d) 
release or reconvey, or cause to be released or reconveyed at any time at Beneficiary's option any 
parcel, portion or all of the Security, (e) take or release any other or additional security for any 
Obligation herein mentioned, or (f) make compositions or other arrangements with debtors in 
relation thereto.  By accepting payment or performance of any Obligation secured by this Deed 
of Trust after the payment or performance thereof is due or after the filing of notice of default 
and election to sell (other than satisfaction in full of the Obligations), Beneficiary shall not have 
thereby waived its right to require prompt payment or performance, when due, of all other 
Obligations secured hereby, or to declare a default for failure so to pay or perform, or to proceed 
with the sale under any notice of default and election to sell theretofore given by Beneficiary, or 
with respect to any unpaid balance of the indebtedness secured hereby.  The acceptance by 
Beneficiary of any sum in an amount less than the sum then due shall not constitute a waiver of 
the obligation of Trustor to pay the entire sum then due.  Trustor’s failure to pay the entire sum 
then due shall continue to be a default, notwithstanding the acceptance of partial payment, and, 
until the entire sum then due shall have been paid, Beneficiary or Trustee shall at all times be 
entitled to declare a default and to exercise all the remedies herein conferred, and the right to 
proceed with a sale under any notice of default and election to sell shall in no way be impaired, 
whether or not such amounts are received prior or subsequent to such notice.  No delay or 
omission of Trustee or Beneficiary in the exercise of any other right or power hereunder shall 
impair such right or power or any other right or power nor shall the same be construed to be a 
waiver of any default or any acquiescence therein. 

Section 2.18. Suits to Protect Property.  Trustor agrees to appear in and defend any 
action or proceeding purporting to affect the security of this Deed of Trust or any additional or 
other security for the obligations secured, the interest of Beneficiary of the rights, powers and 
duties of Trustee, and to pay all costs and expenses, including without limitation, cost of 
evidence of title and attorneys’ fees, in any action or proceeding in which Beneficiary or Trustee 
may appear to be made a party, including, but not limited to, foreclosure or other proceeding 
commenced by those claiming a right to any part of the Property under subordinate liens, in any 
action to partition or condemn all or part of the Property, whether pursued to final judgment, and 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



in any exercise of the power of sale in this Deed of Trust, whether the sale is actually 
consummated. 

ARTICLE III 

TAXES AND INSURANCE; ADVANCES 

 Section 3.1.  Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. 

(a) Trustor shall pay, prior to delinquency, all real property taxes and assessments, 
general and special, and all other charges of any kind, including without limitation non-
governmental levies or assessments such as maintenance charges, levies or other charges 
resulting from covenants, conditions and restrictions affecting the Security, which are assessed or 
imposed upon the Security or upon Trustor as owner or operator of the Security, or become due 
and payable, and which create or may create a lien upon the Security, or any part thereof, or 
upon any personal property, equipment or other facility used in the operation or maintenance 
thereof (all the above collectively hereinafter referred to as “Impositions”); provided, however, 
that if, by law, any Imposition is payable, or may at the option of the taxpayer be paid, in 
installments, Trustor may pay the same in installments (together with any interest charged) as the 
same become due and before any fine, penalty or cost may be added thereto for the nonpayment 
of any such installment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Trustor shall have the right to diligently 
contest, in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, the validity of any Imposition, so long as 
Trustor demonstrates to Beneficiary that Trustor is maintaining sufficient reserves for the 
payment of all contested liabilities and so long as the security and value of Beneficiary’s interest 
under this Deed of Trust are not impaired as a result of such contest. 

(b) If at any time after the date hereof there shall be assessed or imposed (1) a tax or 
assessment on the Security in lieu of or in addition to the Impositions payable by Trustor 
pursuant to this Section 3.1 hereof, or (2) a license fee, tax or assessment imposed on Beneficiary 
and measured by or based in whole or in part upon the amount of the outstanding Obligations 
secured hereby, then all such taxes, assessments or fees shall be deemed to be included within 
the term “Impositions” as defined in this Section and Trustor shall pay and discharge the same as 
herein provided with respect to the payment of Impositions.  If Trustor fails to pay such 
Impositions prior to delinquency or if Trustor is prohibited by law from paying such Impositions, 
Beneficiary may at its option declare all Obligations secured hereby, together with all accrued 
interest thereon, immediately due and payable.  Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, 
Trustor shall have no obligation to pay any franchise, estate, inheritance, income, excess profits 
or similar tax levied on Beneficiary or on the Obligations secured hereby. 

(c) Trustor shall deliver to Beneficiary within thirty (30) days after the date upon 
which any such Imposition is due and payable by Trustor official receipts of the appropriate 
taxing authority, or other proof satisfactory to Beneficiary, evidencing the payment thereof.  
Trustor shall not suffer, permit or initiate the joint assessment of any real and personal property 
which may constitute all or a portion of the Security and the personal property or suffer, permit 
or initiate any other procedure whereby the lien of real property taxes and the lien of personal 
property taxes shall be assessed, levied or charged to the Security as a single Lien.  Trustor shall 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



cause to be furnished to Beneficiary a tax reporting service, covering the Property, of a type and 
duration, and with a company, reasonably satisfactory to Beneficiary. 

(d) In the event that Trustor shall fail to pay any of the foregoing items required by 
this Section to be paid by Trustor, Beneficiary may (but shall be under no obligation to) pay the 
same, after the Beneficiary has notified the Trustor of such failure to pay and the Trustor fails to 
fully pay such items within seven (7) business days after receipt of such notice.  Any amount so 
advanced therefor by Beneficiary, together with interest thereon from the date of such advance at 
the greater of twelve percent (12%) per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law 
(hereinafter the “Agreed Rate”), shall become an additional Obligation of Trustor to the 
Beneficiary and shall be secured hereby, and Trustor agrees to pay all such amounts. 

 Section 3.2.  Insurance. 

(a) Trustor agrees to provide insurance conforming in all respects to that required 
under the Loan Agreement at all times until all amounts secured by this Deed of Trust have been 
paid and all other Obligations secured hereunder fulfilled, and this Deed of Trust reconveyed.  
All such insurance policies and coverages shall be maintained at Trustor’s sole cost and expense. 

(b) All said insurance shall have attached thereto a lender’s loss payable endorsement 
for the benefit of Beneficiary in form satisfactory to the Beneficiary and/or shall name 
Beneficiary as an additional insured, as Beneficiary may require, and shall contain an 
endorsement or agreement by the insurer that any loss shall be payable in accordance with the 
terms of such policies notwithstanding any act or negligence of Trustor or any party holding 
under Trustor which might otherwise result in forfeiture of said insurance and the further 
agreement of the insurer waiving all rights of setoff, counterclaim and deduction against Trustor.  
At Beneficiary’s option, Trustor shall furnish Beneficiary with an original of all required policies 
of insurance and/or a certificate of insurance with all required endorsements for each required 
policy setting forth the coverage, the limits of liability, the deductible, if any, the name of the 
carrier, the policy number, and the period of coverage, which certificates and endorsements shall 
be executed by authorized officials of the companies issuing such insurance, or any agents or 
attorneys-in-fact authorized to issue said certificates and endorsements (in which event each such 
certificate and endorsements shall be accompanied by a notarized affidavit, agency agreement or 
power of attorney evidencing the authority of the signatory to issue such certificate on behalf of 
the insurer named therein), accompanied by a certificate from Trustor that the insurance satisfies 
the requirements of the Loan Agreement, and that Beneficiary may conclusively rely on such 
certificates.  If Beneficiary consents, Trustor may provide any of the required insurance through 
blanket policies carried by Trustor and covering more than one location; provided, however, all 
such policies shall be in form and substance and issued by companies satisfactory to Beneficiary. 

(c) At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of each required policy, Trustor 
shall deliver to Beneficiary evidence satisfactory to Beneficiary of the payment of premium and 
the renewal or replacement of such policy continuing insurance in form as required by this Deed 
of Trust or the Loan Agreement.  All such policies shall contain a provision that, notwithstanding 
any contrary agreement between Trustor and the insurance company, such policies will not be 
canceled, allowed to lapse without renewal, surrendered or materially amended (which term shall 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



include any reduction in the scope, or limits of coverage) without at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to Beneficiary. 

(d) In the event of foreclosure of this Deed of Trust or other transfer of title or 
assignment of the Property in extinguishment, in whole or in part, of the debt secured hereby, all 
right, title and interest of Trustor in and to all policies of insurance required by Section 3.2 
hereof and any unearned premiums paid thereon shall, without further act, be assigned to and 
shall inure to the benefit of and pass to the successor in interest to Trustor or the purchaser or 
grantee of the Property, and Trustor hereby appoints Beneficiary its lawful attorney-in-fact to 
execute an assignment thereof and any other document necessary to effect such transfer. 

 Section 3.3.  Advances. 

 In the event the Trustor shall fail to maintain the full insurance coverage required by this 
Deed of Trust or shall fail to keep the Security in accordance with the Loan Agreement, the 
Beneficiary, after at least twenty (20) days prior written notice to Trustor, may (but shall be 
under no Obligation to) take out the required policies of insurance and pay the premiums on the 
same or may make such repairs or replacements as are necessary and provide for payment 
thereof; and all amounts so advanced therefor by the Beneficiary shall become an additional 
Obligation of the Trustor to the Beneficiary (together with interest as set forth below) and shall 
be secured hereby, which amounts the Trustor agrees to pay on the demand of the Beneficiary, 
and if not so paid, shall bear interest from the date of the advance at the Agreed Rate. 

ARTICLE IV 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION OR CONDEMNATION 

 Section 4.1.  Casualties. 

 Trustor shall give prompt written notice to Beneficiary upon the occurrence of casualty to 
or in connection with the Security or any part thereof, whether or not covered by insurance.  In 
the event of such casualty Trustor hereby absolutely and unconditionally assigns to Beneficiary 
all insurance proceeds which it may be entitled to receive and such proceeds shall be delivered to 
and held by Beneficiary to be applied to Beneficiary’s expenses in settling, prosecuting or 
defending any insurance claim, and then to the restoration of any portion of the Security that has 
been damaged or destroyed to the same condition, character and value as existed prior to such 
damage or destruction so long as the following conditions are satisfied: (i) Trustor is not in 
default hereunder (other than any default resulting from such casualty), (ii) Beneficiary’s 
security is not materially impaired, (iii) all income (from the Security or otherwise) required to 
pay all debt service and operating expenses of the Security during such restoration and thereafter 
will be equal to or greater than the income which was required to pay such debt service and 
operating expenses prior to the casualty, (iv) Trustor evidences to the satisfaction of Beneficiary 
that the insurance required to be maintained hereunder will be available to the Trustor during 
restoration and thereafter, (v) Beneficiary shall have approved the plans and specifications for 
such restoration, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and (vi) in the 
event that in Beneficiary’s sole judgment the insurance proceeds and any amounts deposited with 
a senior lender are not sufficient to accomplish restoration, Trustor deposits with the Beneficiary 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



or senior lender, as required by that senior lender pursuant to the terms of the senior Debt 
Instrument, within five days of demand by Beneficiary, the additional amounts necessary to 
accomplish restoration.  Proceeds disbursed for restoration will be released to Trustor in 
accordance with Beneficiary’s then current customary disbursement procedures.  In the event 
any of the conditions set forth above are not satisfied or if the insurance proceeds shall not be 
applied to the restoration of the Security within thirty days after receipt of such proceeds by 
Beneficiary, Beneficiary may release such proceeds to Trustor without such release being 
deemed a payment of any indebtedness secured hereby, rather than apply such proceeds to the 
restoration of the Security.  Such application or release shall not cure or waive any default or 
notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done pursuant to such notice.  If the Security is 
restored at a cost less than the available insurance proceeds, then such excess proceeds shall, if 
Trustor is not then in default hereunder, be paid over to Trustor.  Beneficiary may commence, 
appear in, defend or prosecute any assigned claim or action, and may adjust, compromise, settle 
and collect all claims, proceeds and awards assigned to Beneficiary, but shall not be responsible 
for any failure to collect any claim, proceeds or award, regardless of the cause of the failure. 

 Section 4.2.  Condemnation. 

 Immediately upon its obtaining knowledge of the institution or the threatened institution 
of any proceeding for the condemnation or other taking for public or quasi-public use of the 
Security or any part thereof, or if the same be taken or damaged by reason of any public 
improvement or condemnation proceeding, or in any other manner, or should Trustor receive any 
notice or other information regarding such proceedings, action, taking or damage, Trustor shall 
promptly notify Trustee and Beneficiary of such fact.  Trustor shall then, if requested by 
Beneficiary, file or defend its right thereunder and prosecute the same with due diligence to its 
final disposition and shall cause any award or settlement to be paid to Beneficiary in accordance 
with the provisions of the Loan Agreement.  At Beneficiary’s option, Beneficiary or Trustor may 
be the nominal party in such proceeding but in any event Beneficiary shall be entitled, without 
regard to the adequacy of its security, to participate in, appear in, prosecute and settle, jointly 
with Trustor to control the same and to be represented therein by counsel of its choice, and 
Trustor will deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Beneficiary such instruments as may be 
requested by it from time to time to permit such participation.  Trustor and Beneficiary agree to 
act in good faith with respect to any consent, settlement, or award arising out of said prosecution.  
If the Security or any part thereof is taken or diminished in value, or if a consent settlement is 
entered, by or under threat of such proceedings, all compensation, awards, damages, rights of 
action proceeds and settlements payable to Trustor by virtue of its interest in the security shall be 
and hereby are assigned, transferred and set over into Beneficiary to be held by it, in trust, 
subject to the lien and security interest of this Deed of Trust.  All such proceeds shall be first 
applied to reimburse Trustee and Beneficiary, for all costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with the collection of such award or settlement, and then 
to the restoration of any portion of the Security that has been taken to the similar condition, 
character and value as existed prior to such taking so long as the following conditions are 
satisfied: (i) Trustor is not in default hereunder, (ii) Beneficiary’s security is not materially 
impaired, (iii) all income (from the Security or otherwise) required to pay all debt service and 
operating expenses of the Security during such restoration and thereafter will be equal to or 
greater than the income which was required to pay such debt service and operating expenses 
prior to the casualty, (iv) Trustor evidences to the satisfaction of Beneficiary that the insurance 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



required to be maintained hereunder will be available to the Trustor during restoration and 
thereafter, (v) Beneficiary shall have approved the plans and specifications for such restoration, 
and (vi) in the event that in Beneficiary’s sole judgment the insurance proceeds and any amounts 
deposited with a senior lender are not sufficient to accomplish restoration, Trustor deposits with 
the Beneficiary or senior lender, as required by that senior lender pursuant to the terms of the 
senior Debt Instrument, within five days of demand by Beneficiary, the additional amounts 
necessary to accomplish restoration.  Application or release of proceeds as provided herein shall 
not cure or waive any default or notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done pursuant 
to such notice. 

ARTICLE V 

ENVIRONMENTAL COVENANTS OF TRUSTOR 

 Section 5.1.  Disclosures By Trustor. Except as disclosed in writing to, and 
acknowledged and accepted in writing by Beneficiary, Trustor represents and warrants that: 

(a) during the period of Trustor’s ownership of the Property 

(1) there has been no use, generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, 
disposal, discharge, Release, or threatened Release of any Hazardous Substance by any person 
on or around the Property except in such small quantities as are customary and usual in the 
ordinary course of constructing, using and operating a residential housing business on the 
Property and in strict compliance with all Hazardous Substances Laws, and 

(2) there have been no Hazardous Substances transported over or 
through the Property; 

(b) after diligent inquiry, Trustor has no knowledge of, or reason to believe 
that, there has been: 

(1) any use, generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, disposal, 
Release, or threatened Release of any hazardous waste or substance by any prior owners or prior 
occupants of the Property or by any third parties onto the Property, or 

(2) any actual or threatened litigation or claims of any kind by any 
person relating to these matters; 

(c) no Hazardous Substances in excess of permitted levels or reportable 
quantities under applicable Hazardous Substance Laws are present in or about the Property or 
any nearby real property that could migrate to the Property; 

(d) no Release or threatened Release exists or has occurred; 

(e) no underground storage tanks of any kind are or ever have been located in 
or about the Property; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(f) the Property and all operations and activities at, and the use and 
occupancy of, the Property comply with all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws; 

(g) Trustor is now in strict compliance with, every permit, license, and 
approval required by all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws for all activities and operations 
at, and the use and occupancy of, the Property; 

(h) to the best of Trustor’s knowledge, after diligent inquiry, there are no 
Hazardous Substance Claims pending or threatened with regard to Property or against Trustor; 

(i) to its knowledge the Property has not been nor is it within 2,000 feet of 
any other property designated as “hazardous waste property” or “border zone property” pursuant 
to Health and Safety Code §§ 25220 et seq., and no proceedings for a determination of this 
designation are pending or threatened; 

(j) to the best of its knowledge after diligent inquiry, there exists no 
occurrence or condition on any real property adjoining or within 2,000 feet of the Property that 
would cause the Property or any part of it to be designated as “hazardous waste property” or 
“border zone property” under the provisions of Health and Safety Code §§ 25220 et seq., and any 
regulation adopted in accordance with that section; 

(k) that the use of the Property shall be residential housing; 

(l) any written disclosure submitted by or on behalf of Trustor to Beneficiary 
concerning any Release or threatened Release, past or present compliance by Trustor or other 
person of any Hazardous Substance Laws applicable to the Property, the past and present use and 
occupancy of the Property, and any environmental concerns relating to the Property, was true 
and complete when submitted and continues to be true and complete as of the date of this Deed 
of Trust. 

 Section 5.2  Covenants of Trustor. Trustor agrees, except in the ordinary course of 
business and in strict compliance with all applicable Hazardous Substance Laws, as follows: 

(a) not to cause or permit the property to be used as a site for the use, 
generation, manufacture, storage, treatment, Release, discharge, disposal, transportation, or 
presence of any Hazardous Substance; 

(b) not to cause, contribute to, permit, or acquiesce in any Release or 
threatened Release; 

(c) not to change or modify the use of the Property without the prior written 
consent of Beneficiary; 

(d) to comply with and to cause the Property and every invitee or occupant of 
the Property to comply with all Hazardous Substance Laws; 

(e) to immediately notify Beneficiary in writing of and to provide Beneficiary 
with a reasonably detailed description of: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(1) any noncompliance of the Property with any Hazardous Substance 
Laws; 

(2) any Hazardous Substance Claim; 

(3) any Release or Threatened Release; 

(4) not engage in any of the activities enumerated in Cal. Health & 
Safety Code section 25227 on land that is subject to a recorded land use restriction pursuant to 
former Health & Safety Code Section 25229, 25230, or 25398.7, as those sections read on 
January 1, 2012, or pursuant to Sections 25202.5, 25221, or 25355.5 of the same, unless the 
person obtains a specific approval in writing as required pursuant to Section 25227. 

(f) if Trustor discovers a Release or the presence of any Hazardous Substance 
on or about the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law, to: 

(1) notify Beneficiary of that discovery together with a reasonably 
detailed description; 

(2) engage promptly after a request by Beneficiary, a qualified 
environmental engineer reasonably satisfactory to Beneficiary to investigate these matters and 
prepare and submit to Beneficiary a written report containing the findings and conclusions 
resulting from that investigation, all at the sole expense of Trustor, and 

(3) take, at Trustor’s sole expense, all necessary actions to remedy, 
repair, clean up, or detoxify any Release or Hazardous Substance, including, but not limited to, 
any remedial action required by any Hazardous Substance Laws or any judgment, consent, 
decree, settlement, or compromise in respect of any Hazardous Substance Claims, these actions 
to be performed: 

A. in accordance with Hazardous Substance Laws, 

B. in a good and proper manner, 

C. under the supervision of a qualified environmental engineer 
approved in writing by Beneficiary, 

D. in accordance with plans and specifications for these actions 
approved in writing by Beneficiary, and 

E.  using licensed and insured qualified contractors approved in 
writing by Beneficiary; 

(g) immediately furnish to Beneficiary copies of all written communications 
received by Trustor from any governmental authority or other person or given by Trustor to any 
person and any other information Beneficiary may reasonably request concerning any Release, 
threatened Release, Hazardous Substance Claim, or the discovery of any Hazardous Substance 
on or about the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law; and 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(h) keep Beneficiary generally informed regarding any Release, threatened 
Release, Hazardous Substance Claim, or the discovery of any Hazardous Substance on or about 
the Property in violation of any Hazardous Substance Law. 

 Section 5.3  Rights of Beneficiary. Upon Beneficiary’s reasonable belief of the existence 
of a past or present Release or threatened Release not previously disclosed by Trustor in 
connection with the making of the Loan or the execution of this Deed of Trust or upon 
Beneficiary’s reasonable belief that Trustor has failed to comply with any environmental 
provision of this Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document and upon reasonable prior notice 
(except in the case of an emergency) to Trustor, Beneficiary or its representatives, employees, 
and agents, may from time to time and at all reasonable times (or at any time in the case of an 
emergency) enter and inspect the Property and every part of it (including all samples of building 
materials, soil, and groundwater and all books, records, and files of Trustor relating to the 
Property) and perform those acts and things that Beneficiary deems necessary or desirable to 
inspect, investigate, assess, and protect the Security of this Deed of Trust, for the purpose of 
determining: 

(a) the existence, location, nature, and magnitude of any past or present 
Release or threatened Release, 

(b) the presence of any Hazardous Substances on or about the Property in 
violation of any Hazardous Substance Law, and 

(c) the compliance by Trustor of every environmental provision of this Deed 
of Trust and every other Loan Document. 

 In furtherance of the purposes above, without limitation of any of its other rights, 
Beneficiary may: 

(1) obtain a court order to enforce Beneficiary’s right to enter and 
inspect the Property under Civil Code § 2929.5; and 

(2) have a receiver appointed under Code of Civil Procedure § 564 to 
enforce Beneficiary’s right to enter and inspect the Property for the purpose set forth above. 

 All costs and expenses incurred by Beneficiary with respect to the audits, tests, 
inspections, and examinations that Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, or employees may 
conduct, including the fees of the engineers, laboratories, contractors, consultants, and attorneys, 
will be paid by Trustor.  All costs or expenses incurred by Trustee and Beneficiary pursuant to 
this Section (including without limitation court costs, consultant’s fees, and attorney fees, 
whether incurred in litigation and whether before or after judgment) will bear interest at the 
Agreed Rate from the date they are incurred until those sums have been paid in full.  Except as 
provided by law, any inspections or tests made by Beneficiary or its representatives, employees, 
and agents will be for Beneficiary’s purposes only and will not be construed to create any 
responsibility or liability on the part of Beneficiary to Trustor or to any other person.  
Beneficiary will have the right, but not the obligation, to communicate with any governmental 
authority regarding any fact or reasonable belief of Beneficiary that constitutes or could 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



constitute a breach of any of Trustor’s obligations under any environmental provision contained 
in this Deed of Trust or any Loan Document. 

 Section 5.4 Waiver and Indemnity.  Trustor: 

(a) releases and waives any future claims against Beneficiary for indemnity or 
contribution in the event Trustor becomes liable for cleanup or other costs under any Hazardous 
Substance Laws or under any Hazardous Substance Claim; 

(b) agrees to reimburse Beneficiary, on demand, for all costs and expenses 
incurred by Beneficiary in connection with any review, approval, consent, or inspection relating 
to the environmental provisions in this Deed of Trust together with interest, after demand, at the 
Agreed Rate; and 

(c) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Beneficiary and Trustee harmless 
from all losses, costs, claims, damages, penalties, liabilities, causes of action, judgments, court 
costs, attorney fees and other legal expenses, costs of evidence of title, cost of evidence of value, 
and other expenses (collectively, “Expenses”), including, but not limited to, any Expenses 
incurred or accruing after the foreclosure of the lien of this Deed of Trust, which either may 
suffer or incur and which directly or indirectly arises out of or is in any way connected with the 
breach of any environmental provision either in this Deed of Trust or in any Loan Document or 
as a consequence of any Release or threatened Release on the presence, use, generation, 
manufacture, storage, disposal, transportation, Release, or threatened Release of any Hazardous 
Substance on or about the Property, including the soils and groundwater, caused or permitted by 
Trustor, any prior owner or operator of the Property, any adjoining landowner or any other party, 
including, without limitation, the cost of any required or necessary repair, cleanup, remedy, or 
detoxification of any hazardous Substance and the preparation of any closure, remedial action, or 
other required plans, whether that action is required or necessary by reason of acts or omissions 
occurring prior to or following the recordation of this Deed of Trust.  Trustor’s obligations will 
survive the satisfaction, release, or cancellation of the indebtedness, the release and 
reconveyance or partial release and reconveyance of this Deed of Trust, and the foreclosure of 
the lien of this Deed of Trust or deed in lieu of the Deed of Trust. 

 Section 5.5 Additional Covenants of Trustor.   

(a) Trustor and Beneficiary agree that: 

(1) this Section is intended as Beneficiary’s written request for 
information and Trustor’s written response concerning the environmental condition of the 
Property as provided by Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5; and 

(2) each representation, warranty, covenant, or indemnity made by 
Trustor in this Article or in any other provision of this Deed of Trust or any Loan Document that 
relates to the environmental condition of the Property is intended by Trustor and Beneficiary to 
be an “environmental provision” for purposes of Code of Civil Procedure § 736 and will survive 
the payment of the indebtedness and the termination or expiration of this Deed of Trust and will 
not be affected by Lender’s acquisition of any interest in the Property, whether by full credit bid 
at foreclosure, deed in lieu of that, or otherwise.  If there is any transfer of any portion of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Trustor’s interest in the Property, any successor-in-interest to Trustor agrees by its succession to 
that interest that the written request made pursuant to this Article will be deemed remade to the 
successor-in-interest without any further or additional action on the part of Beneficiary and that 
by assuming the debt secured by this Deed of Trust or by accepting the interest of Trustor subject 
to the lien of this Deed of Trust, the successor remakes each of the representations and 
warranties in this Deed of Trust and agrees to be bound by each covenant in this Deed of Trust, 
including, but not limited to, any indemnity provision. 

(b) Even though Trustor may have provided Beneficiary with an 
environmental site assessment or other environmental report together with other relevant 
information regarding the environmental condition of the Property, Trustor acknowledges and 
agrees that Beneficiary is not accepting the Property as security for the Loan based on that 
assessment, report, or information.  Rather, Beneficiary has relied on the representations and 
warranties of Trustor in this Deed of Trust, and Beneficiary is not waiving any of its rights and 
remedies in the environmental provisions of this Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document. 

(c) Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, and employees may seek a 
judgment that Trustor has breached its covenants, representations, or warranties in Article II of 
this Deed of Trust or any other covenants, representations, or warranties that are deemed to be 
“environmental provisions” pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 736 (each an 
“Environmental Provision”), by commencing and maintaining an action or actions in any court 
of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 736, whether commenced prior 
to or after foreclosure of the lien of this Deed of Trust.  Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, 
and employees may also seek an injunction to cause Trustor to abate any action in violation of 
any Environmental Provision and may seek the recovery of all costs, damages, expenses, fees, 
penalties, fines, judgments, indemnification payments to third parties, and other out-of-pocket 
costs or expenses actually incurred by Beneficiary (collectively, “Environmental Costs”) 
incurred or advanced by Beneficiary relating to the cleanup, remedy, or other response action 
required by any Hazardous Substances Law or any Hazardous Substance Claim, or which 
Beneficiary believes necessary to protect the Property.  It will be conclusively presumed between 
Beneficiary and Trustor that all Environmental Costs incurred or advanced by Beneficiary 
relating to the cleanup, remedy, or other response action of or to the Property were made by 
Beneficiary in good faith.  All Environmental Costs incurred by Beneficiary under this Section 
(including without limitation court costs, consultant fees, and attorney fees, whether incurred in 
litigation and whether before or after judgment) will bear interest at the Agreed Rate from the 
date of expenditure until those sums have been paid in full.  Beneficiary will be entitled to bid, at 
any trustee’s or foreclosure sale of the Property, the amount of the costs, expenses, and interest 
in addition to the amount of other indebtedness. 

(d) Beneficiary or its agents, representatives, and employees may waive its 
lien against the Property or any portion of it, including but not limited to the Improvements, to 
the extent that the Property or any portion of the Security is found to be environmentally 
impaired in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, and to exercise all rights and 
remedies of an unsecured creditor against Trustor and all of Trustor’s assets and property for the 
recovery of any deficiency and Environmental Costs, including, but not limited to, seeking an 
attachment order under Code of Civil Procedure  § 483.010.  As between Beneficiary and 
Trustor, for purposes of Code of Civil Procedure § 726.5, Trustor will have the burden of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



proving that Trustor or any related party (or any affiliate or agent of Trustor or any related party) 
was not in any way negligent in permitting the Release or threatened Release of the Hazardous 
Substances. 

ARTICLE VI 

ASSIGNMENTS OF RENTS, ISSUES AND PROFITS 

Section 6.1.  Assignment. 

Trustor hereby absolutely, irrevocably and unconditionally assigns to Beneficiary, as 
security for the Obligations, all rents, profits, deposits, royalties, income and other issues and 
similar benefits derived from the Security (collectively, the “Rents”), and hereby confers upon 
Beneficiary the right, power and authority to collect such Rents.  Trustor irrevocably appoints 
Beneficiary its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, at the option of Beneficiary, at any time and from 
time to time, to demand, receive and enforce payment, to give receipts, releases and satisfactions, 
and to sue, in its name or in the name of Trustor, for all Rents, and apply the same to the 
Obligations secured hereby; provided, however, that Trustor shall have the right, as between 
Trustor and Beneficiary, to collect the Rents but not more than one (1) month in advance of the 
date due unless the written approval of Beneficiary has first been obtained, with the exception of 
security deposits and “first and last months’ rent” collected from tenants in connection with 
Trustor’s ordinary leasing of residential apartments within the Property), and to retain and enjoy 
the same, so long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred hereunder and be continuing. 

Section 6.2.  Collection Upon Default. 

While any Event of Default remains uncured, Beneficiary may, at any time without 
notice, either in person, by agent or by a receiver appointed by a court, and without regard to the 
adequacy of any security for the Obligations hereby secured, enter upon and take possession of 
the Security, or any part thereof, and, with or without taking possession of the Security or any 
part thereof, in its own name sue for or otherwise collect such Rents (including those past due 
and unpaid, and all prepaid Rents and all other monies which may have been or may hereafter be 
deposited with Trustor by any tenant to secure the payment of any Rent or for any services 
thereafter to be rendered by Trustor for any other obligation of any tenant to Trustor arising 
under any lease, and Trustor agrees that, upon the occurrence of any Event or Default hereunder, 
Trustor shall promptly deliver all Rents and other moneys to Beneficiary), and Beneficiary may 
apply the same, less costs and expenses of operation and collection, including, without 
limitation, attorneys fees, whether or not suit is brought or prosecuted to judgment, against any 
indebtedness or Obligation of Trustor secured hereby, and in such order as Beneficiary may 
determine notwithstanding that said indebtedness or the performance of said Obligation may not 
then be due.  The collection of Rents, or the entering upon and taking possession of the Security, 
or the application thereof as aforesaid, shall not cure or waive any default or notice of default 
hereunder or invalidate any act done in response to such default or pursuant to such notice of 
default or be deemed or construed to make Beneficiary a mortgagee-in-possession of the 
Security or any portion thereof. 

Section 6.3.  Further Assignments. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Upon demand of Beneficiary, Trustor shall, from time to time hereafter, execute, and 
deliver to Beneficiary recordable assignments of Trustor’s interest in any or all leases, subleases, 
contracts, rights, licenses and permits now or hereafter affecting the Security or any portion 
thereof.  Such assignments shall be made by instruments in form and substance satisfactory to 
Beneficiary; provided, however, that no such assignment shall be construed as imposing upon 
Beneficiary any obligation with respect thereto.  Beneficiary may, at its option, exercise its rights 
hereunder or under any such specific assignment and such exercise shall not constitute a waiver 
of any right hereunder or under any such specific assignment. 

ARTICLE VII 

DEFAULTS 

Section 7.1.  Events of Default. 

Each of the following shall constitute Events of Default: (1) the occurrence of an “Event 
of Default” as defined in the Loan Agreement or as defined in any Debt Instrument; or (2) the 
failure to make any payment or perform any of Trustor’s other Obligations now or hereafter 
secured by this Deed of Trust (subject to any applicable cure period). 

Section 7.2.  Acceleration of Maturity. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, then at the option of the 
Beneficiary, the amount of any payment related to the Event of Default, the unpaid Principal of 
the Note and any other indebtedness and other Obligations secured hereby shall immediately 
become due and payable without presentment, protest notice or demand, all of which are hereby 
expressly waived, upon written notice by the Beneficiary to the Trustor and no omission on the 
part of the Beneficiary to exercise such option when entitled to do so shall be construed as a 
waiver of such right. 

Section 7.3.  The Beneficiary’s Right to Enter and Take Possession. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Beneficiary may: 

(a) Either in person or by agent, with or without bringing any action or 
proceeding, or by a receiver appointed by a court, and without regard to the adequacy of its 
security, enter upon the Security and take possession thereof (or any part thereof) and of any of 
the Security, in its own name or in the name of Trustee, and do any acts which it deems 
necessary or desirable to preserve the value or marketability of the Security, or part thereof or 
interest therein, increase the income therefrom or protect the security thereof and, with or 
without taking possession of the Security, sue for or otherwise collect the Rents, including those 
past due and unpaid, and apply the same, less costs and expenses of operation and collection 
including without limitation attorneys fees, against any indebtedness secured hereby, all in such 
order as Beneficiary may determine.  The entering upon and taking possession of the Security the 
collection of such Rents and the application thereof as aforesaid shall not cure or waive any 
Event of Default or notice of default hereunder or invalidate any act done in response to such 
Event of Default or pursuant to such notice of default, and, notwithstanding the continuance in 
possession of the Security, Beneficiary shall be entitled to exercise every right provided for in 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



this Deed of Trust, or by law upon occurrence of any Event of Default, including the right to 
exercise the power of sale; 

(b) Commence an action to foreclose this Deed of Trust as a mortgage, 
appoint a receiver, or specifically enforce any of the covenants hereof; 

(c) Deliver to Trustee a written declaration of default and demand for sale, 
and a written notice of default and election to cause Trustor’s interest in the Security to be sold, 
which notice Trustee or Beneficiary shall cause to be duly filed for record in the Official Records 
of Orange County; or 

(d) Exercise all other rights and remedies provided herein, in the instruments 
by which the Trustor acquires title to any Security, or in any other document or agreement now 
or hereafter evidencing, creating or securing all or any portion of the Obligations secured hereby, 
or provided by law. 

Section 7.4.  Foreclosure by Power of Sale. 

Should the Beneficiary elect to foreclose by exercise of the power of sale herein 
contained, the Beneficiary shall notify Trustee and shall deposit with Trustee this Deed of Trust, 
the Loan Agreement and the Note which is secured hereby (and the deposit of which shall be 
deemed to constitute evidence that the unpaid Principal amount of the Note is immediately due 
and payable), and such receipts and evidence of any expenditures made that are additionally 
secured hereby as Trustee may require. 

(a) Upon receipt of such notice from the Beneficiary (“Notice of Default”), 
Trustee shall cause to be recorded, published and delivered to Trustor such Notice of Default and 
election to sell as then required by law and by this Deed of Trust.  Trustee shall, without demand 
on Trustor, after lapse of such time as may then be required by law and after recordation of such 
Notice of Default and after notice of sale having been given as required by law (“Notice of 
Sale”), sell the Security, at the time and place of sale fixed by it in said Notice of Sale, whether 
as a whole or in separate lots or parcels or items as Trustee shall deem expedient and in such 
order as it may determine unless specified otherwise to the Trustor according to California Civil 
Code Section 2924g(b), at public auction to the highest bidder, for cash in lawful money of the 
United States payable at the time of sale.  Trustee shall deliver to such purchaser or purchasers 
thereof its good and sufficient deed or deeds conveying the property so sold, but without any 
covenant or warranty, express or implied.  The recitals in such deed or any matters of facts shall 
be conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof.  Any person, including, without limitation, 
Trustor, Trustee or Beneficiary, may purchase at such sale. 

(b) After deducting all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of Trustee, 
including costs of evidence of title in connection with such sale, Trustee shall apply the proceeds 
of sale to payment of: (1) the unpaid Principal amount of the Note; (2) all other sums then 
secured hereby; and (3) the remainder, if any, to Trustor. 

(c) Trustee may postpone sale of all or any portion of the Security by public 
announcement at such time and place of sale, and from time to time thereafter, and without 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



further notice make such sale at the time fixed by the last postponement, or may, in its discretion, 
give a new notice of sale.  

Section 7.5.  Receiver 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, Beneficiary, as a matter of 
right and without further notice to Trustor or anyone claiming under the Security, and without 
regard to the then value of the Security or the interest of Trustor therein, shall have the right to 
apply to any court having jurisdiction to appoint a receiver or receivers of the Security (or a part 
thereof), and Trustor hereby irrevocably consents to such appointment and waives further notice 
of any application therefor.  Any such receiver or receivers shall have all the usual powers and 
duties of receivers in like or similar cases, and all the powers and duties of Beneficiary in case of 
entry as provided herein, and shall continue as such and exercise all such powers until the date of 
confirmation of sale of the Security, unless such receivership is sooner terminated. 

Section 7.6.  Application of Funds After Default. 

Except as otherwise herein provided, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default 
hereunder, Beneficiary may, at any time without notice, apply any or all sums or amounts 
received and held by Beneficiary to pay insurance premiums, Impositions, or either of them, or 
as Rents or income of the Security, or as insurance or condemnation proceeds, and all other sums 
or amounts received by Beneficiary from or on account of Trustor or the Security, or otherwise, 
against any indebtedness or Obligation of the Trustor secured hereby, in such manner and order 
as Beneficiary may elect.  The receipt, use or application of any such sum or amount shall not be 
construed to affect the maturity of any indebtedness secured by this Deed of Trust, or any of the 
rights or powers of Beneficiary under the terms of the Loan Agreement, this Deed of Trust or the 
Note, or any of the Obligations of Trustor or any guarantor under any other instruments or 
documents now or hereafter delivered in connection with the Loan Agreement or to cure or 
waive any default or notice of default under the Loan Agreement or any such instruments or 
documents; or to invalidate any act of Trustee or Beneficiary. 

Section 7.7.  Costs of Enforcement. 

If any Event of Default occurs, Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, may employ 
an attorney or attorneys to protect their rights hereunder.  Trustor promises to pay to Beneficiary, 
on demand, the fees and expenses of such attorneys and all other costs of enforcing the 
Obligations secured hereby, including, without limitation, recording fees, the expense of a 
trustee, sale guarantee, Trustee’s fees and expenses, receivers fees and expenses, and all other 
expenses, of whatever kind or nature, incurred by Beneficiary and Trustee, and each of them, in 
connection with the enforcement of the Obligations secured hereby, whether or not such 
enforcement includes the filing of a lawsuit.  Until paid, such sums shall be secured hereby and 
shall bear interest at the Agreed Rate. 

Section 7.8.  Remedies Cumulative. 

No right, power or remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Beneficiary by this Deed of 
Trust is intended to be exclusive of any other right, power or remedy, but each and every such 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



right, power and remedy shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to any other 
right, power and remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

Section 7.9.  No Waiver. 

(a) No delay or omission of the Beneficiary to exercise any right, power or 
remedy accruing upon any Event of Default shall exhaust or impair any such right, power or 
remedy, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or acquiescence 
therein; and every right, power and remedy given by this Deed of Trust to the Beneficiary may 
be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expeditious by the Beneficiary.  
No consent or waiver, expressed or implied, by the Beneficiary to or any breach by the Trustor in 
the performance of the Obligations hereunder shall be deemed or construed to be a consent to or 
waiver of Obligations of the Trustor hereunder.  Failure on the part of the Beneficiary to 
complain of any act or failure to act or to declare an Event of Default, irrespective of how long 
such failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by the Beneficiary of its right hereunder or 
impair any rights, power or remedies consequent on any Event of Default by the Trustor. 

(b) If the Beneficiary (1) grants forbearance or an extension of time for the 
payment of any sums secured hereby, (2) takes other or additional security or the payment of any 
sums secured hereby,  3) waives or does not exercise any right granted in the Loan Agreement, 
(4) releases any part of the Security from the lien of this Deed of Trust, or otherwise changes any 
of the terms, covenants, conditions or agreements in the Loan Agreement, (5) consents to the 
granting of any easement or other right affecting the Security, or (6) makes or consents to any 
agreement subordinating the lien hereof, any such act or omission shall not release, discharge, 
modify, change or affect the original liability under this Deed of Trust, or any other obligation of 
the Trustor or any subsequent purchaser of the Security or any part thereof, or any maker, co-
signer, endorser, surety or guarantor (unless expressly released); nor shall any such act or 
omission preclude the Beneficiary from exercising any right, power or privilege herein granted 
or intended to be granted in any Event of Default then made or of any subsequent Event of 
Default, nor, except as otherwise expressly provided in an instrument or instruments executed by 
the Beneficiary shall the lien of this Deed of Trust be altered thereby. 

Section 7.10.  Suits to Protect the Security. 

The Beneficiary shall have power to: (1) institute and maintain such suits and 
proceedings as it may deem expedient to prevent any impairment of the Security and the rights of 
the Beneficiary as may be unlawful or any violation of this Deed of Trust, (2) preserve or protect 
its interest (as described in this Deed of Trust) in the Security, and (3) restrain the enforcement of 
or compliance with any legislation or other governmental enactment, rule or order that may be 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, if the enforcement for compliance with such enactment, 
rule or order would impair the Security thereunder or be prejudicial to the interest of the 
Beneficiary. 

Section 7.11.  Trustee May File Proofs of Claim. 

In the case of any receivership, insolvency, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
adjustment, composition or other proceedings affecting the Trustor, its creditors or its property, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



the Beneficiary, to the extent permitted by law, shall be entitled to file such proofs of claim and 
other documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Beneficiary 
allowed in such proceedings and for any additional amount which may become due and payable 
by the Trustor hereunder after such date. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 8.1.  Amendments. 

This instrument cannot be waived, changed, discharged or terminated orally, but only by 
an instrument in writing signed by Beneficiary and Trustor. 

Section 8.2.  Reconveyance by Trustee. 

Upon written request of Beneficiary stating that all sums secured hereby have been paid, 
and upon surrender of this Deed of Trust to Trustee for cancellation and retention, and upon 
payment by Trustor of Trustee’s reasonable fees, Trustee shall reconvey, without warranty, the 
Security to Trustor, or to the person or persons legally entitled thereto. 

Section 8.3.  Notices. 

(a) If at any time after the execution of this Deed of Trust it shall become 
necessary or convenient for one of the parties hereto to serve any notice, demand or 
communication upon the other party, such notice, demand or communication shall be in writing 
and shall be served personally or by depositing the same in the registered United States mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid and:  

 

(1) if intended for Beneficiary shall be addressed to: 

Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

 

and   (2) if intended for Trustors shall be addressed to: 

 

[TRUSTOR TO PROVIDE] 

 

Any notice, demand or communication shall be deemed given, received, made or 
communicated on the date personal delivery is effected or, if mailed in the manner herein 
specified, on the delivery date or date delivery is refused by the addressee, as shown on the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



return receipt.  Either party may change its address at any time by giving written notice of such 
change to Beneficiary or Trustor as the case may be, in the manner provided herein, at least ten 
(10) days prior to the date such change is desired to be effective. 

(b) County shall endeavor to provide a courtesy copy of any notice sent to Borrower 
to the following addressee, however, failure to do so shall not affect the validity 
of any otherwise proper, timely delivered notice to Borrower: 

[courtesy notices] 

 Section 8.4.  Successors and Joint Trustors. 

 All Obligations of Trustor secured by this Deed of Trust, shall also apply to and bind any 
permitted transferee or successors in interest.  Where the terms of the Deed of Trust have the 
effect of creating an Obligation of the Trustor and a transferee, such Obligation shall be deemed 
to be a joint and several Obligation of the Trustor and such transferee.  Where Trustor is more 
than one entity or person, all Obligations of Trustor shall be deemed to be a joint and several 
Obligation of each and every entity and person comprising Trustor. 

 Section 8.5.  Captions. 

 The captions or headings at the beginning of each Section hereof are for the convenience 
of the parties and are not a part of this Deed of Trust. 

 Section 8.6.  Invalidity of Certain Provisions. 

 Every provision of this Deed of Trust is intended to be severable.  In the event any term 
or provision hereof is declared to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever by a court or 
other body of competent jurisdiction, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the balance of 
the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and provisions shall remain binding and 
enforceable.  If the lien of this Deed of Trust is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the 
debt, or if the lien is invalid or unenforceable as to any part of the Security, the unsecured or 
partially secured portion of the debt, and all payments made on the debt, whether voluntary or 
under foreclosure or other enforcement action or procedure, shall be considered to have been 
first paid or applied to the full payment of that portion of the debt which is not secured or 
partially secured by the lien of this Deed of Trust. 

 Section 8.7.  Governing Law and Venue. 

 This Deed of Trust shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Deed of Trust, the 
sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, 
California, and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, 
notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

 Section 8.8.  Gender and Number. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 In this Deed of Trust the singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall include 
the feminine and neuter and vice versa, if the context so requires. 

 Section 8.9.  Deed of Trust, Mortgage. 

 Any reference in this Deed of Trust to a mortgage shall also refer to a deed of trust and 
any reference to a deed of trust shall also refer to a mortgage. 

 Section 8.10. Actions. 

 Trustor agrees to appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the 
Security. 

 Section 8.11.  Substitution of Trustee. 

 Beneficiary may from time to time substitute a successor or successors to any Trustee 
named herein or acting hereunder to execute this Trust.  Upon such appointment, and without 
conveyance to the successor trustee, the latter shall be vested with all title, powers, and duties 
conferred upon any Trustee herein named or acting hereunder.  Each such appointment and 
substitution shall be made by written instrument executed by Beneficiary, containing reference to 
this Deed of Trust and its place of record, which, when duly recorded in the proper office of the 
county or counties in which the Security is situated, shall be conclusive proof of proper 
appointment of the successor trustee. 

 Section 8.12.  Acceptance by Trustee. 

 Trustee accepts this Trust when this Deed of Trust, duly executed and acknowledged, is 
made public record as provided by law.  Except as otherwise provided by law the Trustee is not 
obligated to notify any party hereto of pending sale under this Deed of Trust or of any action of 
proceedings in which Trustor, Beneficiary, or Trustee shall be a party unless brought by Trustee. 

 Section 8.13.  Conflicts. 

 If any term or provision of this Deed of Trust conflicts with any term of provision of the 
Loan Agreement, the term or provision of the Loan Agreement shall control to the extent of such 
conflict. 

 Section 8.14.  Statements by Trustor. 

 Trustor shall, at its cost, within ten (10) days after notice thereof from Beneficiary, 
deliver to Beneficiary a written statement setting forth to the best of its knowledge and 
information, the amounts then unpaid and secured by this Deed of Trust and stating whether 
Trustor is aware of any offset or defense against such amounts. 

 Section 8.15.  Beneficiary Statements. 

 For any statement or accounting requested by Trustor or any other entitled person 
pursuant to Section 2943 or Section 2954 of the California Civil Code or pursuant to any other 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



provision of applicable law, or for any other document or instrument furnished to Trustor by 
Beneficiary, Beneficiary may charge the maximum amount permitted by law at the time of the 
request therefor, or if there be no such maximum, then in accordance with Beneficiary’s 
customary charges therefor or the actual cost to Beneficiary therefor, whichever is greater. 

 Section 8.16.  Statute of Limitations. 

 Except insofar as now or hereafter prohibited by law, the right to plead, use or assert any 
statute of limitations as a plea or defense or bar of any kind, or for any purpose, to any debt, 
demand or obligation secured or to be secured hereby, or to any complaint or other pleading or 
proceeding filed, instituted or maintained for the purpose of enforcing this Deed of Trust or any 
rights hereunder, is hereby waived by Trustor.  

Section 8.17.  Trust Irrevocable; No Offset. 

 The Trust created hereby is irrevocable by Trustor.  No offset or claim that Trustor now 
has or may in the future have against Beneficiary shall relieve Trustor from paying the 
indebtedness or performing any other Obligation contained herein or secured hereby. 

 Section 8.18.  Corrections. 

 Trustor shall, upon request of Beneficiary, promptly correct any defect, error or omission 
which may be discovered in the contents hereof or in the execution or acknowledgment hereof, 
and will execute, acknowledge and deliver such further instruments and do such further acts as 
may be necessary or as may be reasonably requested by Beneficiary to carry out more effectively 
the purposes thereof, to subject to, the lien and security interest hereby created any of Trustor’s 
properties, rights or interests covered or intended to be covered hereby, or to perfect and 
maintain such lien and security interest. 

 Section 8.19.  Further Assurance. 

 Trustor, Beneficiary and Trustee agree to do or cause to be done such further acts and 
things and to execute and deliver or to cause to be executed and delivered such additional 
assignments, agreements, powers and instruments, as any of them may reasonably require or 
deem advisable to keep valid and effective the charges and liens hereof, to carry into effect the 
purposes of this Deed of Trust or to better assure and confirm unto any of them their rights, 
powers and remedies hereunder; and, upon request by Beneficiary, shall supply evidence of 
fulfillment of each of the covenants herein contained concerning which a request for such 
evidence has been made. 

 Section 8.20.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  

  Unless prohibited by Federal, State or local laws, each party acknowledges that it is 
aware of and has had the advice of counsel of its choice with respect to its rights to trial by jury, 
and each party, for itself and its successors and assigns, does hereby expressly and knowingly 
waive and release all such rights to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim 
brought by any party hereto against the other (and/or against its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, or subsidiary or affiliated entities) on or with regard to any matters whatsoever arising 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



out of or in any way connected with this Deed of Trust and/or any claim of injury or damage to 
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

Section 8.21.  Department of Housing and Community Development Underwriting 
Standards 

 The Beneficiary attests that the underwriting standards being utilized for this transaction 
are those that have been submitted and approved by the Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

ARTICLE IX 
WAIVERS 

 
 Section 9.1.  Waivers and Related Matters 

(a) To the fullest extent allowed by law, Trustor hereby waives: (i) 
presentment, demand, protest, notice of dishonor, notice of protest and all other notices and 
demands of every kind, and all suretyship defenses of every kind that would otherwise be 
available in connection with this Deed of Trust, and  (ii) all rights of redemption, valuation, 
appraisement, stay of executive, notice of election to mature or declare due the whole of the 
Obligation and marshaling in the event of foreclosure of the liens hereby created. 

(b) Trustor hereby authorizes Beneficiary, at any time and from time to time 
without notice and without affecting this Deed of Trust in any way, to: (i) accept new or 
additional instruments, documents, agreements, security or guaranties in connection with all or 
any part of the Obligations; (ii) accept partial payments on the Obligations; and (iii) waive, 
release, reconvey, terminate, abandon, subordinate, exchange, substitute, transfer, compound, 
compromise, liquidate and enforce all or any part of the Obligations and any security or 
guaranties therefor, and apply any such security and direct the order or manner of sale thereof 
and bid and purchase at any such sale. 

(c) Trustor hereby waives any right to require Beneficiary to  (i) proceed 
against any person;  (ii) proceed or exhaust any collateral held from any person; or  (iii) pursue 
any other remedy in Beneficiary’s power.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, 
Beneficiary is hereby expressly given the right, at its option, to proceed in the enforcement of 
this Deed of Trust, independently of any other remedy or security Beneficiary may at any time 
hold in connection with the Obligations, and Beneficiary shall not in any way be obligated or 
otherwise required to proceed upon or against and/or exhaust any other security or remedy before 
proceeding to enforce this Deed of Trust. 

(d) Trustor hereby waives any defense arising by reason of: (i) any disability 
or other defense of Trustor or any other person;  (ii) the cessation from any cause whatsoever, 
other than full payment and performance of the Obligations, of the Obligations of Trustor or any 
other person; or  (iii) any act or omission by Beneficiary which directly or indirectly results in or 
aids in the discharge or release of Trustor, or any other person, any Obligation, or any collateral 
by operation of law or otherwise. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 The waivers set forth in this Article 9 shall also apply, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law to all other real and/or personal property of Trustor now or hereafter assigned to Beneficiary 
as security for the Obligations.  Trustor warrants and agrees that each, of the waivers set forth 
above are made with Trustor’s full knowledge of their significance and consequences, with the 
understanding that events giving rise to any defense waived may diminish, destroy or otherwise 
adversely affect rights which Trustor otherwise may have against Beneficiary or others, or 
against collateral, and that under the circumstances, the waivers are reasonable and not contrary 
to public policy or law.  If any of the waivers are determined to be contrary to any applicable law 
or public policy, such waivers shall be effective to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trustor has executed this Deed of Trust as of the day and year first 
above written. 

Signature to Follow 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

TRUSTOR:  

    By: [NEED SIGNATURE BLOCK]

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

     

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
  
  
By____________________________ 
           Trust Counsel 
  
Dated__________________________ 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

Exhibit A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust 
1 League #62335, Irvine, CA 92602 
Attn: Adam B. Eliason 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

ASSIGNMENT OF LESSOR'S INTEREST IN LEASES, RENTS AND PROFITS 
 

 
 
 THIS ASSIGNMENT (“Assignment”) is dated for reference purposes only as of 
[MONTH] _____, 2020 and is made by the ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code section 
6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") and [XXX] [BORROWER TO CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG 
IDENTITY], (the "Borrower"). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Borrower proposes to borrow from the Trust the principal sum of the Loan as 
such term is defined in that separate Loan Agreement between Borrower and the Trust of even 
date herewith. The Loan is evidenced by a Promissory Note  ("Note") executed by Borrower 
payable to the Trust in the principal amount of the Loan and is secured by, among other things, a 
Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement ("Deed of Trust"), encumbering 
certain real property and improvements currently on such property or which are to be constructed 
thereon, described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
("Property"), by the security interests granted under this Assignment and by other security 
instruments specified in the Note, Deed of Trust or other Loan Documents entered into relating 
to the Loan.  Unless otherwise noted, all defined terms used in this Assignment shall have the 
same meaning ascribed to them under said Loan Agreement.   
 

B. Borrower has entered into and will hereafter be entering, into Leases, as defined 
hereafter, regarding the Property.  
 

C. The Trust Note and Deed of Trust, as well as all rights interests and remedies with 
respect to Leases, Rents and other collateral described in this Assignment shall at all times be 
subject and subordinate to the senior collateral rights and interest in such items as provided for in 
the Permanent Deed of Trust (as defined in the Loan Agreement). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Trust's agreement to make the Loan, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Borrower covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

1. Assignment.  Borrower absolutely and unconditionally grants and assigns to the 
Trust as of the date hereof: 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



(a) all of Borrower's right, title and interest in, to and under all leases, licenses 
and other rental agreements of any kind relating to the use or occupancy of the Property and any 
portion thereof, which are currently if effect for the Property or are entered into on or after the 
date of this Assignment (collectively referred to as "Leases" and each individually as a "Lease").  
The Leases shall include (i) all guarantees of and security for lessees' performance under any and 
all Leases and (ii) all amendments, extensions, renewals or modifications thereto which are 
permitted hereunder; and 
 

(b) all rents (and payments in lieu of rents), and tenant expense 
reimbursements at any time payable under any and all Leases, any and all security deposits 
received or to be received by Borrower pursuant to any and all Leases, and all rights and benefits 
accrued or to accrue to Borrower under any and all Leases (collectively, "Rent"). 
 

2. Obligations Secured.  This Assignment secures the payment and performance of 
all present and future obligations of Borrower to the Trust under the Note, the Deed of Trust, any 
Loan Documents that are executed by Borrower and under any other agreement, which recites 
that, it is secured hereby. 
 

3. License.  This Assignment shall constitute a present and absolute assignment to 
the Trust.  However, Borrower shall have the right under a license (the “License”) granted 
hereby to collect and use at the time of, but not prior to, the date provided for payment, all of the 
Rent and to retain and use the same in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Note, 
Deed of Trust, and other Loan Documents; provided, that such license shall be revoked 
automatically upon the occurrence of a Default as defined below.  The Trust shall not revoke the 
License prior to an Event of Default. 
 

4. Covenants.  Borrower covenants and agrees as follows: 
 

(a) at Borrower's sole cost to: (i) perform the duties and obligations of lessor 
under the Leases and to enforce performance by the lessees of the obligations contained in the 
Leases; (ii) enforce all remedies available to Borrower in case of default by the lessees under any 
of the Leases and prosecute and defend any action, arbitration or other controversy relating to 
any of the Leases or to Borrower's interest in any of the Leases in the ordinary course of 
Borrower's business; (iii) give the Trust prompt notice of any material default by Borrower 
which occurs with respect to any of the Leases, and complete copies of any notice of default; (iv) 
exercise Borrower's best efforts to keep all portions of the Property designated as lease property 
leased at all times; (v) upon the Trust's request, deliver to the Trust a fully executed photocopy 
and a counterpart original of each and every Lease; (vi) execute and record such additional 
assignments of any Lease, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Trust, as the Trust 
may request; and (vii) execute and deliver such additional documents and instruments as the 
Trust may reasonably request from time to time to carry out the purpose of this Assignment; and 
 

(b) except with the Trust's prior written consent, which consent will not be 
arbitrarily withheld, not to either orally or in writing: (i) enter into any Leases after the date of 
this Assignment which are not in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Loan 
Agreement, Regulatory Agreement and other Loan Documents; (ii) execute any other assignment 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



relating to any of the Leases or collect the rent in advance, other than to collect one (1) month in 
advance of the time when it becomes due; (iii) terminate, modify or amend any of the terms of 
the Leases or in any manner release or discharge any lessee from any obligations thereunder; (iv) 
consent to any assignment or subletting by any lessee of the Leases; or (v) do or permit anything 
to be done to impair the validity or enforceability of any of the Leases.  Any such attempted 
action in violation of the provisions of this Paragraph 4(b) shall be null and void. 
 

(c)  to duly observe, perform, and discharge the obligations, terms, covenants, 
conditions and warranties of the Loan Agreement, Note and Deed of Trust or other Loan 
Documents entered into relating to the Loan. 
 

5. Representations and Warranties.  Borrower hereby represents and warrants 
 

(a) Borrower is and will be the sole owner of lessor's interest in each Lease; 
 

(b) each Lease, when executed and delivered, will be valid and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, will constitute the entire agreement between the lessee named therein 
and Borrower, and there will be no amendments, written or oral, to such agreements except in 
the ordinary course of business, without the Trust's prior written consent; and 
 

(c) none of the lessor's interests in, and no Rent under, any of the Leases has 
been transferred or assigned except as expressly provided for in the Loan Agreement; and 
 

(d) Borrower is the owner of the Property, and has good title to the Leases, 
any contracts of sale that exist or may be made relating to the sale of a portion of the Property, 
and any Rent, money, rights or claims under the Leases or contracts of sale, and no other person 
firm, or corporation has any right, title, or interest in them. 
 

6. Default.  "Default" shall mean (i) the failure to perform any obligation hereunder 
or the failure to be true of any representation or warranty of Borrower herein, or (ii) the existence 
of any "Event of Default" as defined in and under the Note, Deed of Trust, or any of the other 
Loan Documents.  Any breach or Default by Borrower under this Assignment shall constitute an 
Event of Default under the Note, Deed of Trust, and related Loan Documents. 
 

7. Remedies.  In addition to the remedies contained in the Note, Deed of Trust, and 
other Loan Documents, the Trust shall have the following rights and remedies upon Default: 
 

(a) to demand, receive and enforce all Rent and other amounts arising or 
accruing under the Leases, and any and all amendments to each Lease, or from the Property; 
 

(b) to collect, sue for, settle, compromise and give acquittances or releases for 
all of the rent and pursue all remedies for the enforcement of the Leases and Borrower's rights in 
and under the Leases as Borrower might have pursued, but for this Assignment; 
 

(c) to take possession of the Property, and have, hold, manage, lease and 
operate the same on such terms and for such period of time as the Trust may deem proper and, 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



either with or without taking possession of the Property, in its own name, make from time to 
time all alterations, renovations, repairs or replacements thereto as the Trust deems proper. 
 
The Trust may exercise the foregoing rights and remedies (i) at Borrower's cost and expense, and 
in the name of Borrower or the Trust as the latter may determine in its sole discretion; (ii) prior 
to, simultaneously with or subsequent to the exercise of any rights or remedies under the Note, 
Deed of Trust, or any of the other Loan Documents; (iii) either in person or by its agent; (iv) with 
or without bringing any action or proceeding or having a receiver appointed; (v) without regard 
to the adequacy of any security held by the Trust for the obligations secured hereby; (vi) without 
notice or remand on Borrower except as otherwise provided herein; and (vii) without releasing 
Borrower from any obligations under this Assignment, the Note, Deed of Trust, or any of the 
other Loan Documents. 
 

8. Tenants Entitled to Rely on the Trust's Requests.  Borrower hereby 
irrevocably authorizes and directs each tenant and any successor to the interest of each tenant 
under the Leases, upon receipt of any written request of the Trust stating that a Default or Event 
of Default exists in the payments due under, or in the performance of any of the terms, covenants 
or conditions of, this Assignment, the Note, the Deed of Trust, or any other Loan Document to 
pay to the Trust the rents, royalties, issues and profits due and to become due under the Leases.  
Borrower agrees that such tenant shall have the right to rely upon any such statement and request 
by the Trust that such tenant shall pay such rents, royalties, issues and profits to the Trust 
without any obligation or right to inquire as to whether such Default or Event of Default actually 
exists notwithstanding any notice from or claim of Borrower to the contrary and that Borrower 
shall have no right or claim against such tenant for any such rents, royalties, issues and profits so 
paid by such tenant to the Trust.  Upon the curing of all Defaults and Events of Default, the Trust 
shall give written notice thereof to such tenant and thereafter, until the possible receipt of any 
further similar written request of the Trust, such tenant shall pay the rents, royalties, issues and 
profits to Borrower. 
 

9. Proceeds.  The Trust shall apply any and all Rent collected by it, and any and all 
sums, which the Trust may receive or collect pursuant to this Assignment, in the following 
manner: 
 

(a) First, to pay the portion of the obligations secured by this Assignment 
attributable to the costs and expenses of operation and collection; 
 

(b) Second, to pay all other obligations secured by this Assignment in any 
order and proportions as the Trust in its sole discretion may choose; and 
 

(c) Third, to remit the remainder, if any, to the person or persons entitled to it.  
the Trust shall have no liability for any funds, which it does not actually receive. 
 

10. Indemnification and Reimbursement.  Borrower hereby indemnifies, defends 
and agrees to hold the Trust harmless from and against any and all costs, expenses and attorneys' 
fees, including allocated costs for services of the Trust's in-house professionals, arising out of: 
(a) any liability the Trust may incur under any Lease or by reason of this Assignment; (b) the 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Trust's defense of any claims or demands arising under any Lease or by reason of this 
Assignment; or (c) actions taken by the Trust which it deems necessary to conserve the value of 
the Property. 
 

11. Effect of Assignment.  This Assignment shall not cause the Trust to be: (a) a 
mortgagee in possession; (b) responsible or liable for the control, care, management or repair of 
the Property or for performing any of the terms, agreements, undertakings, obligations, 
representations, warranties, covenants and conditions of the Leases; or (c) responsible or liable 
for any waste committed on the Property by the lessees or any other parties, any dangerous or 
defective condition of the Property, any environmental condition or occurrence on or affecting 
the Property, or any negligence in the management, upkeep, repair or control of the Property 
resulting in loss or injury or death to any lessee, licensee, employee, invitee or other person.  the 
Trust shall not directly or indirectly be liable to Borrower or any other person as a consequence 
of: (i) the exercise of the rights, remedies or powers granted to the Trust in this Assignment; (ii) 
the failure or refusal of the Trust to perform or discharge any obligation, duty or liability of 
Borrower arising under the Leases or this Assignment; or (iii) any loss sustained by Borrower or 
any third party resulting from the Trust's failure to lease the Property after the occurrence of a 
Default or Event of Default or from any other act or omission of the Trust in managing the 
Property after the occurrence of a Default or Event of Default unless such loss is caused by the 
gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith of the Trust, and no such liability shall be 
asserted against or imposed upon the Trust, all such liability being expressly waived and released 
by Borrower. 
 

12. Foreclosure.  Upon issuance of any deed pursuant to any judicial or nonjudicial 
foreclosure of the Deed of Trust or any deed in lieu of foreclosure, all right, title and interest of 
Borrower in and to the Leases and the rents shall, by virtue of this Assignment, vest in and 
become the absolute Property of the grantee or grantees of any such deed without any further act 
or assignment by Borrower.  Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints the Trust, and its successors 
and assigns, as its attorney-in-fact, to: (i) execute all instruments of assignment or further assur-
ance in favor of any such grantee of any deed, as may be necessary or desirable for such purpose; 
and (ii) after a Default under this Assignment, take any other action permitted under Paragraph 7 
hereof; provided, however, that the Trust as such attorney-in-fact shall only be accountable for 
such funds as are actually received by the Trust.  Nothing contained in this Assignment shall 
prevent the Trust at the Trust's sole discretion from terminating any subordinate Lease through 
such foreclosure. 
 

13. Release.  The Trust may take or release security for the performance of the 
obligations referred to in Paragraph 2 and the Trust may release any party primarily or 
secondarily liable for the performance of any such obligations, all without prejudice to any of the 
Trust's rights under this Assignment. 
 

14. Definitions.  The terms "lessor" and "lessors" as used in this Assignment shall 
include all owners, landlords, licensors and other parties in a similar position with respect to the 
Leases.  The terms "lessee" and "lessees" shall include any tenants, licensees, occupants and any 
other parties in a similar position and shall also include any guarantors of or other obligors under 
the Leases.  Any reference in this Assignment to "Lease" or "Leases" shall be construed as 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



including any extension, renewals, amendments or modifications thereto.  The term "including" 
shall mean "including but not limited to." 
 

15. Integration.  This Assignment and the other Loan Documents contain the entire 
agreement of the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations.  In the event of any 
conflict between the terms of this Assignment and the terms of the Deed of Trust, the Deed of 
Trust shall control. 
 

16. Waiver.  No delay or omission to exercise any power or remedy accruing to the 
Trust upon any breach or Default of Borrower under this Assignment shall impair any such right, 
power or remedy of the Trust, nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any 
such breach or Default or an acquiescence therein or in any similar breach or Default thereafter 
occurring; nor shall any waiver of any single breach or Default be deemed a waiver of any other 
previous or subsequent breach or Default.  Any waiver, permit, consent or approval of any kind 
or character on the part of the Trust of any provision or condition of this Assignment must be in 
writing and shall be effective only to the extent specifically set forth in the writing.  All 
remedies, either under this Assignment, by law or otherwise, afforded to the Trust, shall be 
cumulative and not alternative. 
 

17. Term.  This Assignment shall become effective as of the date of its recordation in 
the Official Records of Orange County and shall remain in effect until it is terminated in writing 
by the Trust or the Loan is repaid in full, whichever occurs first. 
 

18. Successors and Assigns.  This Assignment is binding on Borrower, its heirs, 
successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Trust, its successors and assigns.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Assignment is subject to restrictions on assignment by 
Borrower as set forth in the Loan Documents. 
 

19. Prevailing Law.  This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to the choice of law rules of 
that state.  In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Assignment, the sole and 
exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, California, 
and the parties hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, 
notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 
 

20. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party acknowledges that it is aware of and has had 
the advice of counsel of its choice with respect to its rights to trial by jury, and each party, for 
itself and its successors and assigns, does hereby expressly and knowingly waive and release all 
such rights to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim brought by any party hereto 
against the other (and/or against its officers, directors, employees, agents, or subsidiary or 
affiliated entities) on or with regard to any matters whatsoever arising out of or in any way 
connected with this Assignment and/or any claim of injury or damage to the fullest extent 
permitted by applicable law. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Assignment as of the date first 
above written.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
BORROWER:  
 

[BORROWER SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
     
 
    By:  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



TRUST: 
 
ORANGE COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California 
public agency formed pursuant to California Government Code 
section 6500 et. seq. 

 
           
           
   By:____________________________________ 

                                                 Adam B. Eliason, Housing Manager  
     Orange County Housing Finance Trust  
 
  
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
  
  
By____________________________ 
           Trust Counsel 
  

Dated_________________________  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



PROMISSORY NOTE SECURED BY DEED OF TRUST, 
 
 
 
($[XXXXX])           _________________, 2020 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned [XXXXXXXXX][BORROWER TO 
CONFIRM PARTY AND ORG IDENTITY] (“Borrower”) promises to pay to the ORANGE 
COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE TRUST, a California public agency formed pursuant to 
California Government Code section 6500 et. seq. (the "Trust") or order at Santa Ana, 
California or such other place as the Trust may designate in writing, the principal sum of 
[AMOUNT SPELLED OUT] ($XXX) plus interest on the terms specified below. 
 

1. Agreement.  This Note is given in accordance with that certain Loan Agreement 
executed by and between the Trust and the Borrower of even date herewith (the “Loan 
Agreement”), and in connection with that certain Regulatory Agreement executed by and 
between the Trust and the Borrower dated as of the same date as this Note (the “Regulatory 
Agreement”).  The obligations of the Borrower under this Note shall be subject to the terms of 
the Loan Agreement, the Deed of Trust of even date herewith which secures performance under 
this Note, the Assignment of Leases, the Regulatory Agreement, and the other Loan Documents, 
all of which are hereby incorporated by reference.  Capitalized terms used but not defined herein 
shall have the meaning as set forth in the Loan Agreement. 
 

2. Interest and Repayment. 
 

(a) Borrower promises to pay simple interest recalculated annually based 
upon the outstanding principal amount at the rate of three percent (3%) per annum.  Such simple 
interest shall begin to accrue the date escrow closes on Loan Agreement. 
 

(b) Borrower promises to repay the indebtedness during the Permanent Term 
(defined in the Loan Agreement) of the Loan as follows: 

 
(1) Commencing on the date six (6) months after closing of the 

Borrower’s previous year’s books and every one year anniversary date thereafter during the 
Permanent Term, Borrower shall make annual payments to Trust of the then available Residual 
Receipts (hereinafter defined), but only to the extent said Residual Receipts are available; and 

 
(2) At the expiration of the Permanent Term, as set forth in the Loan 

Agreement, the then outstanding principal amount of this Note together with all accrued, but 
unpaid interest thereon shall become all due and payable. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Paragraph 2, 

during the Permanent Term for so long as Borrower (i) timely makes the payments required 
under this Note, (ii) is not in breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Note, and 
(iii) there is no uncured Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or any other Loan 
Document, Trust agrees that then available Residual Receipts otherwise payable in their entirety 
to the Trust shall be [XXXXXXX] percent ([XX]%). This Paragraph 2(c) shall have no further 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



force or effect immediately (x) upon an occurrence of any failure by Borrower to make timely 
payments hereunder, (y) a breach of any term, covenant or condition hereunder or (z) an Event of 
Default under any Loan Document which continues to remain uncured after the expiration of any 
cure period.  In the event the Loan is timely reinstated in full as permitted under California law 
prior to foreclosure with all outstanding monies, costs, and expenses owed to the Trust paid in 
full, then in such event the Residual Receipts sharing agreement stated hereinabove in this 
Paragraph 2 (c) shall also be reinstated. 

 
(d) In the event that the Trust is dissolved prior to the repayment of the Loan 

in full, repayment of the LHTF Program Funds, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be made 
to the California Department of Housing and Community Development in accordance with the 
Loan Agreement. 

 
(e) For purposes of this Note, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 

 
(1) “Residual Receipts” means the Annual Project Revenue less (A) 

Annual Operating Expenses (hereinafter defined), (B) obligated debt service on the Senior 
Construction/Permanent Loan (as defined in the Loan Agreement) and on any other loan(s) for 
the Project senior to the Trust’s Loan approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, 
(C) payment obligations (e.g. partnership management fees, and deferred developer fees) 
approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, (D) scheduled deposits to reserves 
approved in writing by the Trust at the closing of the Loan, and (E) required deposits under the 
Loan Agreement for Operating Reserves and Replacement Reserves. 

 
(2) “Annual Project Revenue” means all annual revenue generated 

by the Project, including, but not limited to, rent payments, governmental assistance housing 
payments, laundry and other vending machine and pay telephone income. 

 
(3) “Annual Operating Expenses” means all regular and customary 

annual expenses incurred in relation to the operation of the Project as reflected on the annual 
budget for the Project that Borrower shall prepare and abide by each year during the Term (as 
defined in the Loan Agreement) of this Loan.  Said Annual Operating Expenses shall include 
reasonable property management and administrative fee, as approved by the Trust, utility 
charges, operating and maintenance expenses, Project property taxes, Project insurance 
premiums and the Trust annual loan monitoring fees, as set forth in the Loan Agreement.  
Director reserves the right to at any time to review and approve each or any annual budget during 
the Term hereof and any changes to any said annual budget requested by the Trust Manager shall 
be promptly implemented by Borrower.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Annual 
Operating Expenses include any costs, fees, fines, charges, penalties, awards, judgments or 
expenses (including, but not limited to legal and accounting fees and expenses) which are due to 
or arising out of the Borrower’s (A) breach or default of this Loan, any Loan Document or any 
Mortgage Loan Document (B) fraudulent acts or willful misconduct or (C) breach or default 
under any other contract, lease or agreement pertaining to the Project.  Annual Operating 
Expenses shall also not include other expenses not related to the Project’s operations such as 
depreciation, amortization, accrued principal and interest expense on deferred payment debt and 
capital improvement expenditures. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
3. Payments.   

 
(a) All amounts due and payable under the Note are payable at the address 

provided to the Borrower by the Trust, or at such other place or places as the Trust may 
designate to the Borrower in writing from time to time.  Any payment under this Note shall be 
paid in advance, on the first day of the month in currency of the United States of America, which 
at the time of payment is lawful for the payment of public and private debts and which on the 
respective dates on which such payments are due shall be in immediately available funds.  

 
(b) All payments and prepayments received by the Trust pursuant to the terms 

hereof shall be applied in the following manner: first, to the payment of all expenses, charges, 
costs and fees incurred by or payable to the Trust by Borrower pursuant to the terms of the Loan 
Documents; second to the payment of all interest accrued to the date of such payment; and third, 
to the payment of the outstanding principal until paid in full.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained herein, after the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of 
Default (as such term is defined in the Loan Agreement), all amounts received by the Trust from 
any party shall be applied in such order as the Trust, in its sole discretion, may elect. 
 

4. Prepayments.  Borrower may prepay all or part of the principal balance and 
accrued interest due under this Note without penalty. 

 
5. Term.  The term shall be 55 years or more to match the term of the Regulatory 

Agreement on rental properties 
 

6. Security. This Note is secured by, among other things, a Deed of Trust covering 
real and personal property including, but not limited to, the Property and the Project (as such 
terms are defined in the Loan Agreement). 
 

7. Waivers. 
 

(a) Borrower expressly agrees that this Note or any payment hereunder may 
be extended from time to time at the Trust’s sole discretion and that the Trust may accept 
security in consideration for any such extension or release any security for this Note at its sole 
discretion all without in any way affecting the liability of Borrower. 
 

(b) No extension of time for payment of this Note or any installment hereof 
made by agreement by the Trust with any person now or hereafter liable for payment of this Note 
shall operate to release, discharge, modify, change, or affect the original liability of Borrower 
under this Note, either in whole or in part. 
 

(c) The obligations of Borrower under this Note shall be absolute and 
Borrower waives any and all rights: 
 

(1) to offset, deduct, or withhold any payments or charges due under 
this Note for any reasons whatsoever; 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
(2) of presentment for payment, demand, protest and notices of 

dishonor and protest; and 
 

(3) of diligence in taking any action to collect any sums owing under 
this Note or in proceeding against any of the rights and interests in and to properties securing 
payment of this Note. 
 

8. Attorney Fees and Costs.  Borrower agrees that if any amounts due under this 
Note are not paid when due, to pay in addition, all costs and expenses of collection and 
reasonable attorney fees paid or incurred in connection with the collection or enforcement of this 
Note, whether or not suit is filed. 
 

9. Joint and Several Obligations.  This Note is the joint and several obligation of all 
makers, sureties, guarantors, and endorsers, and shall be binding upon them and their successors 
and assigns. 

 
10. Acceleration.  If any of the payments required by the terms hereof shall not be 

paid when the same becomes due, or if the payment due on the maturity date of this Note is not 
paid when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, or if an Event of Default (as defined in the 
Loan Agreement) occurs under the Loan Agreement or other default under any other Loan 
Document occurs, then, or at any time thereafter, the whole of the unpaid principal and interest 
owing on this Note shall, at the option of the Trust and without notice, become immediately due 
and payable.  This option may be exercised at any time after any such event and the acceptance 
of one or more installments or other payments from any person thereafter shall not constitute a 
waiver of the Trust’s option.  The Trust’s failure to exercise said option in connection with any 
particular event or series of events shall not be construed as a waiver of the provisions hereof as 
regards that event or any subsequent event.  The Loan Agreement and other Loan Documents 
may also contain provisions, which provide for the automatic acceleration of amounts owing 
under this Note upon the occurrence of certain specified events.  The Trust shall have, and be 
entitled to exercise, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default or other event described above, 
all rights and remedies available to the Trust under the Loan Agreement, this Note, the other 
Loan Documents or at law or in equity.  All such rights and remedies shall be cumulative.    
 

11. Prohibition Against Transfer of Interest.  The Borrower shall not make any sale, 
assignment or conveyance, or transfer in any other form, nor any further pledge, encumbrance, or 
mortgaging of the Property and/or the Project or any part thereof or of any of its interest therein, 
other than in accordance with the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory 
Agreement, the Deed of Trust and the other Loan Documents. 
 

12. Default Interest; Default Under Other Loan Documents.  All covenants, 
conditions, and agreements contained in this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory 
Agreement, the Deed of Trust and the other Loan Documents are hereby made a part of this 
Note, and the Borrower agrees that the unpaid balance of the then principal amount of this Note, 
together with all accrued interest thereon and charges owing, shall, at the option of the Trust 
hereof, become immediately due and payable, and thereafter until paid bear interest at the rate of 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



twelve percent (12%) per annum (which rate shall in no event exceed the highest interest rate 
then permitted at law and if it does, it will be reduced to said lower amount) (the “Default Rate”), 
compounded annually upon the failure of the Borrower to make any payment hereunder as and 
when due (after expiration of any cure period); upon the failure of the Borrower to perform or 
observe any other term or provision of this Note; or upon the occurrence of any event (whether 
termed default, event of default, or similar term) which (after the expiration of any cure period) 
under the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust 
or other Loan Document shall entitle the Trust to exercise rights or remedies thereunder. 
 

13. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not defined in this Note shall have the same 
meanings as defined in the Loan Agreement, the terms of which are incorporated into this Note 
by this reference. 
 

14. Governing Law.  This Note shall be construed in accordance with and be 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 

15. Severability.  If any provision of this Note shall be judicially determined to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions hereof shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

16. Captions.  The captions and headings in this Note are merely for convenience and 
substantively are not part of this Note. 
 

17. JURY TRIAL WAIVER; VENUE.  UNLESS PROHIBITED BY FEDERAL, 
STATE OR LOCAL LAWS, IN ANY JUDICIAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING 
FROM OR RELATING TO THE LOAN OR THE LOAN DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING ANY 
ACTION OR PROCEEDING INVOLVING A CLAIM BASED ON OR ARISING FROM AN 
ALLEGED TORT, BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT OR THEY MAY 
HAVE TO REQUEST OR DEMAND A TRIAL BY JURY.  VENUE FOR ANY ACTION 
RELATED TO THE LOAN OR LOAN DOCUMENTS SHALL BE IN AN APPROPRIATE 
COURT IN ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA SELECTED BY COUNTY TO WHICH 
BORROWER HEREBY CONSENTS. 
 

18. Joint and Several Liability.  If Borrower consists of more than one person or 
entity, each shall be jointly and severally liable for the performance of Borrower’s obligations 
under this Note. 
 

19. Notices.  All notices to be given pursuant to this Note shall be given as provided 
in the Loan Agreement. 
 

20. Calculation of Interest.  Interest hereunder shall be calculated on the basis of a 
three hundred sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each, 
except that interest due and payable for a period less than a full month shall be calculated by 
dividing (a) the product of (i) the actual number of days elapsed in such period, (ii) the 
outstanding principal balance hereunder during that period and (iii) the Note interest rate in 
effect hereunder during that period by (b) 360. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
21. Number and Gender.  In this Note the singular shall include the plural and the 

masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa, if the context so 
requires. 
 

22. Time.  Time is of the essence in this Note. 
 

23. No Waiver by the Trust.  No waiver of any breach, default, or failure of condition 
under the terms of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the Deed of Trust 
or any other Loan Document or the obligations secured thereby shall be implied from any failure 
of the Trust to take, or any delay by the Trust in taking, action with respect to such breach, 
default or failure, or any form of previous waiver of any similar or unrelated breach, default or 
failure; and waiver of any term of this Note, the Loan Agreement, the Regulatory Agreement, the 
Deed of Trust or any other Loan Document or any of the obligations secured thereby must be 
made in writing and shall be limited to the express written terms of such waiver. 
 

24. Amendments and Modifications.  This Note may not be changed orally, but only 
by an amendment in writing signed by Borrower and the Trust. The parties agree and 
acknowledge that the Trust must obtain the approval of any amendments or modifications to this 
Note from the California Department of Housing and Community Development prior to signing 
any such amendments. 
 

25. Non-Recourse.   The Trust will neither seek nor obtain judgment against the 
Borrower for payment of principal or interest under the Note or for other obligations under the 
Loan Documents following a judicial foreclosure (or to the extent permitted by law, a 
nonjudicial foreclosure of the Deed of Trust), and the Trust’s sole recourse against the Borrower 
for any default in the payment of principal or interest is limited to the Property and the Project 
and any other collateral of the Loan; provided, however, nothing in this Paragraph 24 will be 
deemed to limit or prejudice the rights of the Trust to: 
 

(a) foreclose the Deed of Trust or enforce any of its other rights or remedies under 
the Loan Documents; or 

 
(b) name the Borrower or the general partners of Borrower as a party defendant in 

any action, proceeding or arbitration, subject to the limitations of this Section; or 
 

(c) assert any unpaid amounts on the Loan as a defense or offset to or against any 
claim or cause of action arising out of or pertaining to the Project made or alleged against the 
Trust by the Borrower or any of its general partners; or  

 
(d) exercise self-help remedies such as set off or nonjudicial foreclosure against or 

sale of any real or personal property collateral or security; or 
 

(e) proceed against any entity or person, including Borrower and the general partners 
of Borrower with respect to the enforcement of any leases, bonds, policies of insurance, or other 
agreements (other than the Loan Documents); or 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
 

(f) recover damages against Borrower or the general partners of Borrower for fraud, 
breach of warranty, failure to maintain insurance, waste, or material misrepresentation; or 

 
(g) recover any condemnation proceeds or insurance proceeds or other similar funds 

or payments attributable to the Property and/or the Project that under the terms of the Loan 
Documents should have been paid to Lender; or 

 
(h) recover any tenant security deposits, prepaid rents, or other similar sums paid to 

or held by Borrower or any other entity or person in connection with the Property and the 
Project; or 
 

(i) recover the value of any personalty or fixtures removed by Borrower from the 
Project after the occurrence of an Event of Default 

 
(j) recover the rents and profits of the Property and the Project accruing from and 

after the occurrence of an Event of Default that have not been applied to pay any portion of the 
Loan, operating, and maintenance expenses of the Property and/or the Project, insurance, 
premiums, impositions, deposits into a reserve for replacement, or other sums required by the 
Loan Documents; or 

 
(k) recover any amounts owing to the Trust under indemnity provisions (including 

indemnity provisions pertaining to Hazardous Materials as such term is defined in the Loan 
Agreement) in the Loan Documents; or 
 

(l) recover funds to reimburse the Trust for sums expended by the Trust for the 
protection or preservation of the Property, the Project or the Trust’s interest therein (including, 
without limitation, payment of any real property taxes, assessments or other charges which 
would create liens on any portion of the Property or Project 

 
The limitation of liability set forth in this Section 24 shall be deemed void and have no 

force or effect if Borrower or any general partner of Borrower attempts to materially delay any 
foreclosure of or on the Deed of Trust or any other collateral for the Loan, or if the Borrower or 
any of its general partners claim that this Agreement or any related documents are invalid or 
unenforceable to an extent that would preclude foreclosure.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary set forth in the immediately preceding sentence, in the event Borrower contests any 
foreclosure proceeding in good faith and Borrower prevails in such action, or in the event 
Borrower and the Trust agree to a settlement of any such action which gave rise to the 
foreclosure proceeding, the Loan shall remain nonrecourse.  Any liability of Borrower or any of 
the general partners of Borrower for any obligations arising in connection with the matters set 
forth in clauses (a) through (l) inclusive will be personal liability, and may be asserted against 
and recovered from its or their interest in the Property and/or Project as well as against any of its 
and their other assets.  Nothing contained in this Section impairs the validity of this Note or any 
related documents or any lien or security interest created or perfected by it. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Signature Page to follow  
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Promissory Note as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

    BORROWER:  
 
    [NEED SIGNATURE BLOCK] 
 
    By:  
     
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
TRUST COUNSEL 
 
 
By____________________________ 

Trust Counsel 
 
Dated__________________________         
      

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT C OCHCA MHSA SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Mental Health Services Act 
Expression of Interest 

 
 
 
 
 

FOR FUNDS TO ACQUIRE, CONSTRUCT, AND/OR 
REHABILITATE PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 

FOR HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS WITH SERIOUS MENTAL 
ILLNESS WHO ARE HOMELESS, CHRONICALLY 
HOMELESS OR AT-RISK OF HOMELESSNESS 

 
 
 
 

February 20222023 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT ONE (1): ORANGE COUNTY MHSA Expression of Interest 
DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY FORM 

 

Developer: 
 
 
Sponsor: 
 
 
Name of Project: 
 
 
Project Address (including parcel #): 
 
 
 

Supervisor/Council District: 
 
 
Form of Site Control: 
 
 

Entitlement Status and Time Estimate to complete Entitlements: 
 
 
 
 

Anticipated Construction Start Date: 
 
 

Anticipated Date of Certificate of Occupancy: 
 
 
 
Community Planning Group: 
 
 
Any Contact made yet with local neighbors or planning group? If yes, 
please specify meeting dates and times. 
 
 
 
 

Community Process Plan including potential meeting dates with 
community groups

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE TWO OF TWO 
 
Total number of units and bedroom types: 
 
 
 
 

 
Total number of MHSA units and bedroom types: 

 
 
 
 

 
Square footage by bedroom of MHSA units: 

 
 
 
 

 

Type of Development    New Construction  Acquisition/Rehab 
 
Total Cost of the Development: 
 
 
Total Cost of MHSA Units: 

 
 
MHSA Capital Request: 
 

 
 
 

Will you be requesting non-MHSA funded operating subsidies, such as 
project-based vouchers? (Please check one)   Yes  No 
 

If so, what type and from which agency?        
 

Other Funding Sources: 
 4% or  9% Tax Credit – Round _____, 20____ 
 Other: Land donation, City funds, etc.        

Additional Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Information: 
 

Name:  
 
Company:  
 
Phone:       Fax:  
 
Email: 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 

ATTACHMENT TWO (2): CONTACTS FOR FORM SUBMITTAL 
 

Please send an e-mail with Expression of Interest information to: 
 

Michelle Zdeba 
Housing Development Manager, OCCR/Housing & Community Development 
michelle.zdeba@occr.ocgov.com 

 
 (714) 480-2994 

 
 

Submit a copy to: 
 

Marcy KovacevichLisa Row  
Program Manager, Health Care Agency  
MKovacevich@ochca.comERow@ochca.com 

 
(714) 796-0200 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



 

 

 
Project Requirements and Desirable Features 

 

Orange County continues to update it’s planning for Project Requirements and Desirable 
features, including feedback heard from clients and peers. As needed, the County will issue 
updated guidance for applications for MHSA Program funds. In order to ensure that the 
projects developed with MHSA Program funds in Orange County meet the needs expressed 
by people with lived experience, the following requirements will be applicable to projects: 

 
 

 All units must incorporate full kitchens, full baths, and adequate storage and closet 
space within each apartment. 

 Buildings shall be well designed and well maintained, include on-site laundry services, 
and have cable access and internet/computer access. Projects must be located close 
to transportation, shopping and services.1 

 To meet consumer need for safety and security, projects applying for funds will be 
required to document how they incorporate considerations for the safety of tenants on 
the property and surrounding neighborhood. 

 Buildings shall include security design features such as architectural and landscape 
security design configurations, cameras in common areas, and/or security services. 

 Project designs shall be non-institutional in feeling and blend in with the community. 
Designs shall include a case management office and adequate space for resident 
activities. The size of the community/resident activity space and case management 
office is particularly important for projects with unit sizes that are smaller. 

 Services shall be available either on or accessible off site. 
 Projects shall include dedicated services space and community rooms, with kitchens if 

possible. 
 All units shall include air conditioning. 
 All units shall have microwave ovens. 
 At least 5% of units must be accessible to the physically disabled and at least 2% of 

units must be accessible to the sensory disabled. 
 All units shall be furnished with standard furnishings applicable to the unit type. 

 
In addition, the following recommended amenities or features are encouraged to better meet 
the needs of the target population: 

 

 Clients prefer to reside one-bedroom apartments. 
 There should be planned smoking areas for projects that have non-smoking units. 
 Units are encouraged to be at least 450 square feet, with the consideration for tenant 

space needs such as service animals, space to store a bike within the unit, and 
accessibility needs for aging clients/tenants. 

 
 

1 At minimum, public transit that comes with reasonable frequency must be accessible within 0.5 mile. It is preferred 
that, where possible, other services be walkable within 0.5 mile (e.g. not including physical barriers that prevent 
access by foot or public transit). 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT D MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) 
FUNDING TERM SHEET 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

 

1 February 1, 2022January 3, 2023 

 

 

 

 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) FUNDING 

TERM SHEET 

General Loan Terms and Conditions 
All of the policies and lending practices set forth within the NOFA shall apply to all projects funded 
with MHSA funds. The following additional requirements shall apply to all of the MHSA funded 

units: 

 The population to be served shall  include extremely  low  income  (30% of Area Median 
Income for Orange County), homeless individuals who has a serious mental disorder as 
defined in WIC 5600.3, verified by a State Licensed Mental Healthcare Professional and 
has been deemed  to meet  the MHSA Housing Program eligibility  (MHSA Certified) by 
Health Care Agency MHSA Housing Program staff. 

 Restricted rents for the MHSA funded units shall not exceed 30% of the HUD‐published 
30%  Area Median  Income  (AMI)  levels  for  Orange  County,  adjusted  for  designated 
household size (less a utility allowance unless included in the rent) with the tenants rent 
portion not to be more than 30% of their Social Security Income/Social Security Pension 

(SSI/SSP) or not more  than 30% of  their  total gross household  income  (if additional 

income  beyond  SSI/SSP  is  received).  If  federally  funded  Project  Based  Vouchers  are 
provided, the developer shall comply with the federal regulations for maximum rent and 
tenant rent portions.  

 To  the greatest extent  feasible,  the Developer shall utilize  the  local coordinated entry 
system to identify referrals for the MHSA Units.  

 Housing units and building  features must meet  the needs of  the MHSA  tenants  to be 
served  at  the  development,  including  privacy,  housing  activities  and  community 
interaction. There shall be no requirement for non‐related, single, adult tenants to share 
bedrooms. There shall be adequate number of bedrooms to accommodate the housing 
composition.   Units are encouraged to have at  least one‐bedroom and be at  least 450 
square feet. 

 Rental homes must have an identifiable and private living area, sleeping area, full kitchen 
area and a full bathroom, including air conditioning. The kitchen area shall at a minimum 
include a full size sink, full size refrigerator, cupboard/cabinet space for storage, counter 
area for food preparation, microwave or oven, and a two burner stove or built‐in cook 
top. 

 All units should be furnished with standard furnishings applicable to the unit type. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

 

2 February 1, 2022January 3, 2023 

 Developers are encouraged to provide units that are pre‐wired for high technology and 
internet access.  

 The  building  must  include  common  space,  such  as  a  community  room  that  can 
accommodate a variety of activities and where tenants can choose to interact with one 
another.  

 The building must include a designated office space to provide services to MHSA tenants.   
 The design and operation of the housing shall incorporate features designed to increase 

efficiency and reduce ongoing expenses.   
 The housing shall incorporate appropriate and feasible green design practices, such as the 

use of ENERGY STAR rated energy‐efficient appliances and water‐conserving fixtures and 
products.   

 The housing must also utilize durable materials chosen  to  reduce  future maintenance 
costs and renewable building supplies.  

 Tenants  shall  be  provided  with  information  to  assist  them  to  participate  in 
environmentally friendly practices such as energy and water conservation, recycling and 
use of non‐toxic household products.   

Required Operating, Replacement and Subsidy Reserves 
All developments using MHSA funds must provide for the following reserves: 

Capitalized  operating  expense  reserve,  at  a  minimum,  shall  equal  25%  of  the  first  year’s 
approved operating and reserve budget.  

Capitalized replacement reserve for rehabilitation projects shall be based on a physical needs 
assessment and/or one or more Building Inspection Reports and a Replacement Reserve Needs 
Analysis. New construction projects shall have a capitalized replacement reserve of at least $500 
per unit/annually for all units in a project, increasing by 5% every five years.   

Capitalized operating  subsidy  reserve  (“COSR”)  shall be  required  for projects without  rental 
assistance  vouchers  (or  other  rental  subsidies)  to  subsidize  operating  costs  for  the  MSHA 
Regulated Units. COSR’s must be funded to allow for operating cost subsidies for a minimum of 
17 full years.  

Tenant Rent & Utility Reserve may be required by the Trust to be funded by the Developer by 
Certificate of Occupancy for the development.  This Reserve is used to assist MHSA eligible clients 
with rent and utility payments while waiting to get approved for SSI/SSP and/or rental assistance.  
The Reserve should provide 2 to 3 years rental  income for the MHSA‐assisted units (assuming 
rents that include utilities at 30% of SSI/SSP). This Reserve is held by Borrower as a revolving fund 
and is intended to be replenished over time from tenant rent back payments once the tenants 
qualify for SSI/SSP.  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

 

3 February 1, 2022January 3, 2023 

Developer/Borrower is required to continually seek future commitments of rental or operating 
subsidies for the MHSA Regulated Units (e.g., project‐based Section 8 vouchers) for the life of the 
MHSA Loan.  

MHSA Expression of Interest 

The initial step in the Orange County process for developers interested in applying for MHSA 
funding and project‐based rental assistance (Section 8 vouchers) is to submit an Expression of 
Interest (EOI).   
The preliminary EOI information consists of the following items: 

 The Development Summary Form (Attachment One) 
 A narrative description of the proposed project and the experience of the sponsor 

and must provide a thorough discussion of the project,  including, at a minimum, 
the service goals of the project, characteristics of tenants to be served, the type of 
housing that will be provided, how the building(s) in which housing and services will 
be provided (location, building type,  layout, features, etc.) will meet the housing 
and  service  needs  of  the  tenants,  the  primary  service  provider(s)  and  other 
project/development partners, and project financing. 

 Site plan, floor plans, elevations and renderings, if available 
 A current project budget/proforma 

Submit  one  (1)  copy  of  the  information  listed  above  to  Michelle  Zdeba  at 
michelle.zdeba@occr.ocgov.com  AND  one  (1)  copy  to  Marcy  KovacevichLisa  Row  at 
erow@ochca.comMKovacevich@ochca.com, no later than February 22, 20222023.    
 

Once  the  applicant  submits  the  EO I   and   r equ i r ed   i n f o rma t i on ,  HCA/Housing and 
Supportive  Services  and  OCCR/Housing & Community Development will do  any or  all of  the 
following: 

 OCCR/Housing & Community Development  staff will arrange a meeting between  the 
developer, HCA/Housing  and  Supportive  Services  and OCCR/ Housing &  Community 
Development to discuss the project concept/proposed development and determine  if 
the project  could meet County priorities and objectives; 

 Provide  input  and  suggested  revisions  intended  to  improve  the  proposed 
development and application; 

 Request  that  the  applicant  make  certain  revisions  to  the  proposal  in  order  to 
reconsider providing a supportive services commitment for the application submission. 

 
Application and Loan Commitment Notes 
Upon review of the borrower application and a decision to loan MHSA funds, the following will 
be determined by the Trust and set forth in a commitment letter: 1) the per regulated unit loan 
amount; 2) the percent of MHSA regulated units as it relates to the entire Project; 3) the size of 
the  regulated  units  to  best meet MHSA  client  needs  (bedroom  count);  4)  any  permissible 
occupancy  preferences  (adults;  seniors;  transition  age  youth);  5)  the  maximum  COSR  (if 
applicable)  to  carry  the  project  through  the  first  17  years  of  operations;  6)  any  permissible 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

 

4 February 1, 2022January 3, 2023 

developer fees for non‐tax credit transactions; and 9) permissible overlaying occupancy, rent or 
income restrictions from other financing or tax credit sources.  
 
Supportive services provisions and a Social Services Plan and operating budget from the primary 
or lead service provider(s) shall be provided as part of the application for Trust Funds. 

All units assisted with MHSA  funding  through  this NOFA  shall additionally  include  supportive 
services provided by  the Orange County Health Care Agency.   The developer  shall work with 
HCA/Housing and Supportive Services  to develop and provide a supportive services plan  that 
meet and address the needs of the MSHA tenants for the term of the Trust Loan.  

Primary supportive services shall be provided on site to meet the specific needs of the population 
to be served. 

All MHSA tenants must be MHSA Certified by HCA MHSA Housing Program staff as outlined  in 
the MHSA Certification and Referral Process. It is important to note that in no event shall a person 
be required to be a client of the Orange County Behavioral Health department or a recipient of 
mental health or other services in order to qualify for or to remain in an Assisted MHSA Unit. 

 

NOTE:  This term sheet is subject to change. 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT E UNDERWRITING ASSUMPTIONS 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

    Rev 01/2022 

 

 

Loan Application Underwriting Criteria 

 Max project loan amount:  
o $2,500,000. 

 Maximum loan amount per non‐MHSA unit: 
o Zero‐bedroom: $11090,000.00. 
o One‐bedroom: $125100,000.00. 
o Two‐bedroom+: $135110,000.00. 

 Maximum loan amount per MHSA unit: 
o Zero‐bedroom: $184,230177,145. 
o One‐bedroom: $184,230177,145. 
o Two‐bedroom+: $184,230177,145. 

 Maximum marketing costs:  
o $1,500/unit. 

 Maximum common area furnishing cost:  
o $1,000/unit. 

 Maximum contractor overhead, profits, and general requirements:  
o 14% of total construction costs. 

 Developer fee 
o within TCAC limits for tax credit projects or in accordance with HCD 2017 UMR 

for projects without tax credits. 
 Maximum Partnership Management Fees (combined, all partners) 

o $15,000/year 
 Capitalized operating subsidy reserve for MHSA units.  

o Minimum 17 years of operating costs or rental subsidy (Project Based Vouchers 
or another rental subsidy). 

 Replacement reserve:  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

    Rev 01/2022 

o $350/unit/year (non‐MHSA units), $500/unit/year increasing 5% every 5 years 
(MHSA units). 

 Vacancy rate:  
o 5%. 

 Rent inflation rate:  
o 2.5%. 

 Misc. income inflation rate:  
o 3.0%. 

 Expense inflation rate:  
o 3.5%. 

 Debt coverage ratio:  
o between 1.1 and 1.2. 

 Residual receipts  
o to repay loan over loan term. 

 Appraisal to support the cost of land. 
 Min projected operating expenses. 

o Total Operating Expenses (not including property taxes or the approved costs of 
on‐site service coordination) shall not be less than those specifically listed in 
California Code of Regulations, Title 4, Section 10327 as minimum Operating 
Expenses (without the reduction allowed by those regulations for bond‐financed 
projects). The OCHFT may project higher Operating Expenses where warranted 
by the experience of comparable properties and particular building 
characteristics, such as the nature of the tenant population or the level of 
rehabilitation. Prior to loan closing, the OCHFT may approve total Operating 
Expenses that are less than those specified in Section 10327, supra, only if the 
Project has Uniform Multifamily Regulations 11/15/2017 Page 18 of 35 an 
extraordinary design feature, such as its own electrical generation system, which 
results in a quantifiable operating cost savings as documented by a qualified 
third party.  

o All Operating Expenses, including property management fees, shall be within the 
normal market range, as periodically determined by the OCHFT in surveys or 
based on costs observed in its portfolio. 

 Contingency 
o Where OCHFT is providing construction‐period financing, the minimum budgeted 

construction contingency shall be 5 percent of construction costs for new 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



     
 

    Rev 01/2022 

construction projects and 7.5 percent of construction costs for rehabilitation and 
conversion projects. 

 
 Positive cash flow 

o The Project must demonstrate a positive cash flow for 15 years, using income 
and expenses increase rate assumptions specified in California Code of 
Regulations, Title 4, Section 10327. If projected Project income includes rental 
assistance or operating subsidy payments under a renewable contract, the 
OCHFT may assume that this contract will be renewed, where the renewal of the 
rental assistance or operating subsidy is likely. 

 Subordination Policy 
o OCHFT may execute and cause to be recorded a subordination agreement 

subordinating the OCHFT lien so long as the subordination does not increase the 
OCHFT’s risk beyond that contemplated in the Program loan or grant 
commitment, as may be amended from time to time, and so long as the 
subordination would further the interest of the Program. 

 Senior lender loan types and junior lender loan types 
o Balloon payments are not allowed on senior debt. Balloon payments are allowed 

on junior debt during the term of the Trust’s loan only where the Trust 
determines that the balloon payment will not jeopardize project feasibility. 

 Leasehold security requirements 
o The Regulatory Agreement, Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases, and any 

subordination agreements shall be recorded against both the Sponsor’s interest 
in the Project and the fee interest in the land, and the lease shall have a term 
remaining at the time of recordation at least equal to the term of the Trust’ loan. 

 

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT F ONLINE APPLICATION FORM REFERENCE 
  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



ATTACHMENT F   ONLINE APPLICATION FORM REFERENCE

Below is a printscreen of the online application tool for the 2023 OCHFT NOFA. Please use this reference to 
help understand the application requirements prior to begining the application.

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B



  

ATTACHMENT G LEVINE ACT STATEMENT 
 
***PRIME APPLICANT AND SUBAPPLICANTS MUST SUBMIT A SIGNED LEVINE ACT 
STATEMENT*** 
 
California Government Code § 84308, commonly referred to as the “Levine Act,” precludes an 
officer of a local government agency from participating in the award of a contract if he or she receives 
any political contributions totaling more than $250 in the 12 months preceding the pendency of the 
contract award, and for three months following the final decision, from the person or company 
awarded the contract. This prohibition applies to contributions to the officer or received by the officer 
on behalf of any other officer, or on behalf of any candidate for office or on behalf of any committee. 
The Levine Act also requires a member of the Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board of 
Directors who has received such a contribution to disclose the contribution on the record of the 
proceeding. 
 
Orange County Housing Finance Trust Board of Directors as of the date of this Notice of Funding 
Availability are as follows: 
Lisa Bartlett, Don Barnes, Doug Chaffee, Stephen Faessel, Jamey Federico, Shari Freidenrich, Fred 
Jung, David PeñalozaNatalie Moser, Jessie Lopez, __________, and Ed Sachs__________. 
 
1. Have you or your company, or any agent on behalf of you or your company, made any 
political contributions of more than $250 to any Orange County Housing Finance Trust Director 
in the 12 months preceding the date of the issuance of this Notice of Funding Availability? 

   YES  NO 
If yes, please identify the Director:       

2. Do you or your company, or any agency on behalf of you or your company, anticipate or plan 
to make any political contributions of more than $250 to any Orange County Housing Finance 
Trust Director in the three months following the award of the contract? 

   YES  NO 
 
If yes, please identify the Director:       
 
Answering yes to either of the two questions above does not preclude Orange County Housing 
Finance Trust from awarding a contract to your firm. It does, however, preclude the identified 
Director from participating in the contract award process for this contract. 
 
 
 
 

DATE (SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL) 
 
 
 
 

(TYPE OR WRITE APPROPRIATE NAME, TITLE)  

Agenda Item 6 
Attachment B


	Item 0.0 - Jan 26 2023 Board Meeting Agenda
	DISCUSSION ITEMS (Items 2-6):
	HOUSING TRUST MANAGER REPORT (Item 7):
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	DIRECTOR COMMENTS:
	ADJOURNED:

	Division Pages
	Item 1.0 - OCHFT SAM 11-16-22 (Zoom) 
	CONSENT CALENDAR (Item 1)
	DISCUSSION ITEMS (Items 2-5):
	HOUSING TRUST MANAGER REPORT (Item 6):
	PUBLIC & TRUST COMMENTS:
	PUBLIC COMMENTS:
	DIRECTOR COMMENTS:
	ADJOURNED:  10:49 a.m.
	NEXT MEETING:  January 18, 2023 at 10:00 a.m.

	Division Pages
	Item 2.0 - STAFF REPORT Funding Advocacy Update
	Item 2.1 - TPA OCHFT Update - 12.30.22
	Division Pages
	Item 3.0 - STAFF REPORT County Funding Strategy Update 2022
	Item 3.1 - County Housing Funding Strategy 2022 Update
	Division Pages
	Item 4.0 - STAFF REPORT ADU funding application approval
	Division Pages
	Item 5.0 - STAFF REPORT - Mapping RFP
	Item 5.1 - Request for Proposal - Mapping Services
	OCHFT Background
	Scope of Services
	Specific tasks to be undertaken are described below.
	1) Kickoff Meeting
	 Meet with Trust staff to fully develop a scope of needs and desires for the mapping application.
	 Prepare meeting agenda and notes.
	Deliverables
	 Meeting agenda
	 Meeting notes

	2) Develop Mockup
	 Prepare graphical mockup of website for review by Trust staff. It is expected that the mockup will be a static, non-working representation of what the mapping application will look like.
	 Include as many different views of the mapping application as necessary to convey the complete user and administrative experience of using the application. Views may include, but should not be limited to, landing page, property information display, ...
	 Revise mockup according to Trust staff direction. (Up to three rounds of revisions.)
	Deliverables
	 Website mockup with revisions

	3) Develop Mapping Application
	 Create the mapping application in accordance with the Trust’s approved mockup.
	 Populate map with initial information, including existing housing developments and community amenities for finance scoring calculations.
	Deliverables
	 Mapping application

	4) Mapping Application Training & Hosting
	 Train Trust Staff on updating mapping information, including adding and modifying mapped housing developments, and adding and modifying community amenities.
	 Host mapping application for a period of three years.
	Deliverables
	 Mapping training
	 Mapping hosting


	Preparation of Proposals
	1) Cover Letter/Letter of Transmittal. The proposer shall provide a Cover Letter/Letter of Transmittal addressed to Adam Eliason, Manager, Orange County Housing Finance Trust.
	2) Contact Person. The proposer shall provide the name and title, address, telephone number, and e-mail address of the contact person for the proposal evaluation period.
	3) Validity Period. The proposer shall specify a proposal validity period of no less than 120 days from the Proposal Submittal Deadline.
	4) Subcontractors. The proposer shall designate each entity that is proposed to perform work or render services pursuant to a subcontract, detailing the extent of subcontracting contemplated. Information regarding suppliers is required only if the sup...
	5) Conflicts of Interest. The proposer shall provide a completed Attachment 3, Conflict-of-Interest Disclosure Statement.
	 Provide a brief profile of the firm, including the types of services offered; the year founded; form of the organization (corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship); number, size and location of offices; and number of employees.
	 Describe how the firm proposes to staff this contract. Provide education, experience and applicable professional credentials of project staff. Identify the principals who will be engaged in the day-to-day activities for the Trust, their current assi...
	 Identify subcontractors, if any, by company name, address, contact person, telephone number and project function. Describe proposers experience working with each subcontractor.
	 Include the firm’s organization chart, clearly delineating the communication/reporting relationships among the firm’s proposed staff and the Trust.
	 Include a statement that the principals and key personnel will be available to the extent proposed for the duration of the project acknowledging that no person designated as “key” to the project shall be removed or replaced without the prior written...
	 Describe the firm’s experience in providing communications services to joint powers authorities and/or other governmental agencies on housing related issues and provide examples of this work.
	 Describe the firm’s experience in performing services of a similar nature to that solicited in this RFP and highlight the participation in such services by the key personnel proposed for assignment to this project. Included in this experience is the...
	 Describe the experience of the principals and key personnel in working with joint power authorities and housing related issues. Provide samples of projects and programs.
	 In not more than five pages, describe your firm’s success in representing public agencies and other clients.
	 Provide examples of the scope of services for your current clients and narrative examples of accomplishments in achieving the requirements identified in the respective scopes of services.
	 Describe the firm’s proposed approach to representing the Trust.


	Compensation Proposal.
	Proposal Review and Selection
	 Professional capability, demonstrated competence and specialized experience of the proposer, including existing workload and ability to meet schedules – 25%;
	 Work plan/methodology – 50%; including examples of previous work with public agencies.
	 Compensation Proposal – 25%;

	Instructions – Protest Procedures
	This Contract for Mapping Services, hereinafter referred to as “Contract” is made and entered into as of the date fully executed by and between the Orange County Housing Finance Trust, a California public agency formed pursuant to California Governmen...
	i. RECITALS
	ii. ARTICLES
	I.   GENERAL Terms and Conditions:
	II. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

	In the alternative, a single corporate signature is acceptable when accompanied by a corporate resolution demonstrating the legal authority of the signature to bind the company.
	ATTACHMENT A
	SCOPE OF WORK
	Specific tasks to be undertaken are described below.
	2) Kickoff Meeting
	 Meet with Trust staff to fully develop a scope of needs and desires for the mapping application.
	 Prepare meeting agenda and notes.
	Deliverables
	 Meeting agenda
	 Meeting notes

	3) Develop Mockup
	 Prepare graphical mockup of website for review by Trust staff. It is expected that the mockup will be a static, non-working representation of what the mapping application will look like.
	 Include as many different views of the mapping application as necessary to convey the complete user and administrative experience of using the application. Views may include, but should not be limited to, landing page, property information display, ...
	 Revise mockup according to Trust staff direction. (Up to three rounds of revisions.)
	Deliverables
	 Website mockup with revisions

	4) Develop Mapping Application
	 Create the mapping application in accordance with the Trust’s approved mockup.
	 Populate map with initial information, including existing housing developments and community amenities for finance scoring calculations.
	Deliverables
	 Mapping application

	5) Mapping Application Training & Hosting
	 Train Trust Staff on updating mapping information, including adding and modifying mapped housing developments, and adding and modifying community amenities.
	 Host mapping application for a period of three years.
	Deliverables
	 Mapping training
	 Mapping hosting
	ATTACHMENT B

	I. COMPENSATION: This is an all-inclusive, firm, fixed fee Contract between Trust and Contractor for all other services provided in Attachment A, Scope of Work.    The Contractor agrees to accept the specified compensation as set forth in this Contrac...
	The Contract amount shall not exceed $TBD.
	II. FIRM RATE: Contractor guarantees that rates quoted are equal to or less than rates quoted to any other local, State or Federal government entity for services of equal or lesser scope. Contractor agrees that no rate increases shall be passed along ...
	Contractor shall bill for the actual number of hours worked. Contractor shall notify Trust in advance if any task requires an additional time commitment to complete. Trust approval is required before Contractor can work additional hours/time on the p...
	IV. PAYMENT TERMS: Invoices are to be submitted in arrears, after services have been completed, to the bill to address specified under Section VI – Billing Instructions, unless otherwise directed in this Contract.  Contractor shall reference Contract ...
	Billing shall cover services not previously invoiced.  The Contractor shall reimburse the Trust for any monies paid to the Contractor for services not provided or when services do not meet the Contract requirements.
	Payments made by the Trust shall not preclude the right of the Trust from thereafter disputing any services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the services.
	V. TAX ID NUMBER: The Contractor shall include its taxpayer ID number on all invoices submitted to the Trust for payment to ensure compliance with IRS requirements and to expedite payment processing.
	VI. BILLING INSTRUCTIONS: The Contractor will provide an invoice on the Contractor’s letterhead for services rendered. Each invoice will have a number and will include the following information:
	Billing Address:  All invoices shall be billed to:
	OC Housing Finance Trust
	Attn: Adam Eliason
	1 League #62335
	Irvine, CA 92602
	aeliason@ochft.org
	Incomplete or incorrect invoices are not acceptable and will be returned to the Contractor for correction.
	VII. PAYMENT (ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER [EFT]): The Trust of Orange offers Contractors the option of receiving payment directly to their bank account via an Electronic Fund Transfer (EFT) process in lieu of a check payment.  Payment made via EFT will ...
	ATTACHMENT C



	Disclosure Policy
	1) Any firm, individual, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity currently retained for services by a developer of affordable housing or service provider for families and individuals at risk of or experiencing homelessness.
	2) Any firm currently retained or which may be retained for services by the County of Orange or any member city of the Trust or other public entity within Orange County, California (see list of member agencies below).

	Disclosure
	1)     Consultant is not currently retained for services as defined in the Disclosure Policy above.
	2)     Consultant is currently retained for services as defined in the Disclosure Policy above.
	a) Consultant is retained for services by the following member agencies of the Trust
	b) Consultant is retained for services by the following other public agencies and public or private entities within Orange County, California. (List individually.)
	c) Please describe briefly those services potentially affected by this Disclosure:

	3)


	Division Pages
	Item 6.0 - STAFF REPORT - 2023 NOFA
	Item 6.1 OCHFT 2023 NOFA
	Section 1 Introduction
	Section 2 Program Description
	2.01 Funds Available
	2.02 Funding Reallocation
	2.03 Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Allocation
	2.04 Service Planning Area Allocation
	2.05 Eligible Projects
	2.06 Eligible Applicants
	2.07 Eligible Activities
	2.08 Eligible Costs
	2.09 Affordability Covenant
	2.10 Loan Award Terms & Conditions
	2.11 Maximum Loan Amount/Subsidy Limits
	2.12 Developer Fee Limit
	2.13 Partnership Management Fee Limit
	2.14 NOFA Schedule Milestones
	2.15 Application Review Committee
	2.16 Form of Loan Documents

	Section 3 Threshold Requirements
	3.01 Coordinated Entry System
	3.02 Income Limits
	3.03 Supportive Services
	3.04 Reserves
	3.05 Compliance Monitoring Fee
	3.06 Financial Commitments
	3.07 Underwriting Assumptions

	Section 4 Scoring
	4.01 Project Readiness
	4.02 Developer Experience & Financial Strength
	4.03 Service Enriched Location
	4.04 Development Pipeline
	4.05 AFFIRMATIVELY Furthering Fair Housing
	4.06 Tie Breaker

	Section 5 Application
	5.01 General Application Form
	5.02 Project Narrative
	5.03 Project Vicinity Map
	5.04 Project Proforma
	5.05 Financial Notes and Assumptions
	5.06 Project SCHEDULE
	5.07 Development Team Members
	5.08 Applicant Experience
	5.09 Applicant Financial Strength
	5.10 Health Care Agency Acknowledgement Letter
	5.11 Social Services Plan
	5.12 Social Services Operating Budget
	5.13 Levine Act Statement


	Item 6.2 OCHFT 2023 NOFA (redlined)



